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(In thousands, except per share data) For the years ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006

Net sales $6,310,607 $6,220,010 $6,492,993

Special items(a) - - 10,350 

Adjusted net sales(a) $6,310,607 $6,220,010 $6,503,343

Operating income (earnings before interest and taxes, “EBIT”)(b) $   394,455 $   341,943 $   480,326
Special items(a) 141,496 87,592 194,548

Adjusted EBIT(a)(b) $   535,951 $   429,535 $   674,874

Net income(b)(c) $   156,108 $   114,056 $   183,572
Special items, net of taxes(a) 94,535 54,349 144,415

Adjusted net income(a)(b)(c) $   250,643 $   168,405 $   327,987

Earnings per share (“EPS”):(d)

Basic EPS(b)(c) $         1.33 $         0.96 $         1.55
Special items, net of taxes(a) 0.80 0.46 1.22
Adjusted basic EPS(a)(b)(c) $         2.13 $         1.41 $         2.77

Diluted EPS(b)(c) $         1.32 $         0.94 $         1.50
Special items, net of taxes(a) 0.80 0.45 1.18
Adjusted diluted EPS(a)(b)(c) $ 2.12 $ 1.39 $         2.68

Net cash flows from operating activities $   438,197 $   505,529 $   108,520

EBITDA:(e)

EBIT(b) $   394,455 $   341,943 $   480,326
Depreciation and amortization 117,408 113,403 119,665

EBITDA(b)(e) 511,863 455,346 599,991
Special items(a) 141,496 87,592 194,548

Adjusted EBITDA(a)(b)(e) $   653,359 $   542,938 $   794,539

The Financial Highlights information above should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations as included in Omnicare, Inc.’s (“Omnicare” or the
“Company”) 2008 Form 10-K Filing (“Form 10-K”), enclosed herein. 

(a) See summary of special items, excluded from the adjusted presentations, at Appendix 1 of this Omnicare 2008 Annual Report. 

(b) Operating income in 2007 was unfavorably impacted by an increase in the provision for doubtful accounts of $131,351, which includes an
incremental charge taken in the fourth quarter relating to customer bankruptcies and other legal action against a group of customers for,
among other things, the collection of past-due receivables, a revised assessment of the administrative and payment issues associated with
Prescription Drug Plans under Medicare Part D, particularly relating to the aging of copays and rejected claims, and the resultant adop-
tion by the Company of a modification to its policy with respect to payment authorization for dispensed prescriptions under Medicare
Part D and other payors. 

(c) Net income in 2007 and 2006 was favorably impacted by a reduction in income tax expense of approximately $2,833 and $4,510, respec-
tively, primarily for the favorable effects of an increase in the tax benefit of certain state income tax net operating losses. 

(d) EPS (basic EPS; special items, net of taxes; adjusted basic EPS; diluted EPS; and adjusted diluted EPS) is reported independently for each
amount presented. Accordingly, the sum of the individual amounts may not necessarily equal the separately calculated amounts for the
corresponding period. 

(e) “EBITDA” represents earnings before interest expense (net of investment income), income taxes, depreciation and amortization.
Omnicare uses EBITDA primarily as an indicator of the Company’s ability to service its debt, and believes that certain investors find
EBITDA to be a useful financial measure for the same purpose. However, EBITDA does not represent net cash flows from operating activ-
ities, as defined by U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”), and should not be considered as a substitute for net operat-
ing cash flows as a measure of liquidity. Omnicare's calculation of EBITDA may differ from the calculation of EBITDA by others. See the
Five-Year Summary of Selected Financial Data in the Form 10-K for a reconciliation of EBITDA to net cash flows from operating activities.

SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT
Except for historical information, statements in this report that are forward-looking involve risk and uncertainties.  Investors
are cautioned that such statements are only predictions and that actual events or results may differ materially.  Please see
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, page 69 of the enclosed 
Form 10-K, for factors that could cause results to differ materially from those discussed.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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CORPORATE PROFILE

Omnicare’s business is pharmaceutical care.  Its mission is 

positive outcomes.

Omnicare is one of the nation’s largest providers of comprehensive

pharmaceutical services for seniors.  Serving residents in long-term care

facilities and other chronic care settings comprising more than 1.4 million

beds in 47 states, the District of Columbia and Canada, Omnicare is the

nation’s largest provider of professional pharmacy, related consulting and

data management services for skilled nursing, assisted living and other

institutional healthcare providers as well as for hospice patients in

homecare and other settings.  Omnicare also provides pharmacy services,

including patient assistance, product support and distribution for specialty

pharmaceuticals to a broader population.

With operations in 30 countries, Omnicare’s clinical research organizations

(CROs) support the pharmaceutical, biotechnology, nutraceutical, medical

device and diagnostic industries in the design, clinical development and

regulatory approval of pharmaceuticals and other products that safely and

cost-effectively enhance the quality of life.
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YEAR IN REVIEW
Net sales in 2008 surpassed 
$6.3 billion, as compared with the
$6.2 billion reported in 2007.  Net
income increased 37% to 
$156.1 million, as compared with
$114.1 million, while diluted
earnings per share rose 40% to
$1.32 versus $0.94 for the 2008 and
2007 years, respectively.  After
adjusting for special items, but
including an incremental provision
for doubtful accounts in 2007, our
adjusted net income increased 49%
to $250.6 million versus 
$168.4 million in 2007, with
adjusted diluted earnings per share
rising 53% to $2.12 versus $1.39 in
the prior year.  Even aside from the
incremental provision for doubtful
accounts, 2008 earnings were well
ahead of the prior year.

Earnings before interest, income
taxes, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) for the full
year 2008 increased 12% to 
$511.9 million versus $455.3 million

FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS:

T he year 2008 was one in which we sought to restore
growth, improve profitability and enhance shareholder
value.  We implemented strategies to mitigate the

challenges of Medicare Part D, to capitalize on a rapidly
changing pharmaceutical marketplace, to reverse trends in the
number of beds served and to effect a major process-reengineering
in our business model. The successful execution of our strategies
produced improvement throughout the year — culminating in
sales growth, expanded margins, sequentially increasing earnings
and a return to year-over-year growth in the latter half of the
year.  And, despite turmoil in the financial markets, this
performance allowed us to deliver enhanced shareholder value.

in 2007. Excluding special items
(but including the incremental
provision for doubtful accounts),
2008 adjusted EBITDA rose 20% to
$653.4 million as compared with
$542.9 million in the prior year.

We also continued to generate
strong cash flow. Cash flow from
operations reached $438.2 million
in 2008, allowing us to pursue

attractive acquisitions, fund capital
expenditures, complete a $100
million stock repurchase program
and reduce our debt position. But
for one additional weekly payment
of $65 million made to our primary
drug wholesaler due solely to how
the calendar fell in 2008, this level
of operating cash flow would have
been similar to the record operating
cash flow of $505.5 million
achieved in 2007.

During 2008, we repaid $92 million
in debt and at December 31, 2008
had $217 million in cash on our
balance sheet.  Our total debt to
total capital at December 31, 2008
was 44.4%, down approximately 180
basis points from year-end 2007.

PHARMACY SERVICES
Our pharmacy services sales grew
to $6.1 billion in 2008, reflecting
primarily expansion in specialty
pharmacy services, the contribution
of drug price inflation and the
increased utilization of certain
higher acuity drugs and biologic
agents.  These factors more than
offset the impact of a greater mix of
generic drugs on our sales and a
lower net number of beds served,
as well as reductions in utilization
or reimbursement for certain drugs.

Adjusted operating profit for the
full year 2008 increased 22% to
$633.4 million versus $518.9 million
in 2007. Even aside from the
incremental provision for bad debt,
2008 adjusted operating profit was
above the prior year, largely as a
result of our growing contribution
from generics, drug price inflation,

Joel F. Gemunder
President and Chief Executive Officer
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our productivity and cost-reduction
initiatives, including savings
attributable to our Full Potential
Plan, and margin expansion in our
specialty and hospice pharmacy
businesses.

At December 31, 2008, we served
long-term care facilities and other
chronic care settings comprising
approximately 1,435,000 beds,
including 68,000 patients served
under patient assistance programs.
While our net number of beds
served was modestly lower year-
over-year, we made solid progress

T hroughout 2008, we implemented strategies
and made investments in initiatives that we

believe will drive growth, improve profitability and
enhance shareholder value.

in our customer development and
retention efforts throughout 2008,
ultimately resulting in sequential
net bed growth in the fourth
quarter of 2008.  

CONTRACT RESEARCH 
Our contract research business
(CRO) recorded a 4% increase in
revenues to $203.3 million as
compared with $195.1 million in
2007.  Reimbursable out-of-pocket
expenses in 2008 and 2007 totaled
$31.3 million and $31.7 million,
respectively.  Excluding such
expenses, adjusted CRO revenues
for the full-year 2008 increased 5%
to $172.0 million as compared with
$163.4 million in 2007.  Adjusted
operating profit in 2008 was up
34% to $17.6 million versus 
$13.1 million in 2007.  Backlog 
at December 31, 2008 was 
$303 million.  

Despite a more challenging
operating environment for the CRO
industry, notable growth among our
biotechnology clients continued,
and our vigilance in managing costs
produced strong operating profit
growth for the year.

OPPORTUNITY IN A
DYNAMIC MARKETPLACE
Our business has benefited
increasingly from certain trends
that have emerged in the
pharmaceutical marketplace.  In
light of the rising costs of
healthcare, generic drug
alternatives are more important
than ever.  During 2008, we and
our customers and payors
continued to benefit from the
increasing availability of generics.
Four years ago, the number of
generic prescriptions we dispensed
was only slightly higher than our
branded dispensing rate.  In 2008,
alone, we increased our generic
dispensing rate significantly,
ending the year dispensing nearly
72% of our prescriptions in generic
form.

We are also looking forward to the
potential introduction in 2009 of
several new branded drugs
targeted at the chronic conditions
common in the patients we serve.
These include new treatments for
diabetes mellitus, atrial fibrillation
and stroke prevention.

The pharmaceutical industry is also
being shaped by the advent of
drugs known as “biologics”.  These
highly intricate drugs have become
increasingly employed in the
treatment of such disease states as
multiple sclerosis, cancer and
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rheumatoid arthritis.  As more and
more of these drugs move into the
mainstream, we are seeing
increased utilization in our long-
term care population, which we
believe bodes well for growth in
our core business and for
improvement in patient care.  

In 2008, we further capitalized on
the opportunity to leverage our
assets and skill sets in this rapidly
growing sector.  In July, we
acquired Advanced Care Scripts
(ACS), which expanded our
presence in the specialty pharmacy
market.  Centered largely on
specialized pharmacy services and
support programs for multiple
sclerosis and oncology, ACS
complements our existing specialty
pharmacy business and significant-
ly expands our position in this
market.  In fact, at the time of its
acquisition, ACS was generating
annualized revenues of
approximately $237 million; less
than six months later, the business
was operating at an annualized rate
of nearly $300 million in revenues.
We view our presence in the
specialty pharmacy business as an
attractive opportunity to extend
Omnicare’s reach beyond its
traditional institutional markets.  

LEVERAGING OUR
OPERATIONAL
STRENGTHS 
Throughout 2008, we implemented
strategies and made investments in
initiatives that we believe will drive
growth, improve profitability and
enhance shareholder value.  The
results of these efforts were
reflected in the substantial progress

we made operationally as well as
financially during the year.  

Since mid-2007, we put in place
new sales management, nearly
doubled the size of the sales force
and initiated programs to enhance
the effectiveness of our sales team.
We have also invested in training
and increased incentives for our
pharmacy operations designed to
increase net bed growth and have
added marketing resources to
reinforce the value proposition that
Omnicare brings to its customers.
The results have been encouraging.
In fact, new contract signings in
2008 were 30% higher than in the
prior year.   

We recognize the value of
complementing our effective sales
force with a service-minded
customer retention group.  We
doubled the size of this specialized
retention team in 2008 and our

investment produced substantial
returns.  This group retained
approximately 48,000 beds, or more
than triple the number of beds it
retained in the prior year.
Moreover, these client accounts
represented approximately 
$250 million in annualized revenues
retained, or 4% of total pharmacy
services revenues.  We plan to
continue adding high-caliber
individuals to this team to support
our retention and renewal efforts in
2009.

Our retention team has been
running in tandem with our
organization-wide effort to enhance
service levels.  We have invested in
training and development
programs for a wide range of our
employees who interface with
customers in a number of different
ways. In addition to our focus on
organic growth, we have the most
active acquisition program in the
industry, and 2008 was no
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exception.  Due to our scale and
scope, we are a logical partner to
those seeking greater resources and
efficiencies, particularly in today’s
economic environment.  In 2008,
we acquired and integrated 11
institutional pharmacy businesses.

We have also been successful in
leveraging our geriatric expertise in
the rapidly growing assisted living
market, where we increased our
presence during 2008.  This market
is particularly attractive because we
not only have the opportunity to
increase the number of
communities we serve, but we also
have room to grow the number of
residents we serve within our
existing client communities.

In addition to the progress we have
made in expanding our market
reach, we have increased our
purchasing effectiveness across the
entire organization.  During 2008,
we implemented new strategies
and developed new tools to
enhance our pharmaceutical
purchasing efficiency, particularly
in the generics market.  Moreover,
we successfully met our $40 million
goal in negotiated savings on non-
drug purchases throughout the
organization.  We have already set
our sights on 2009, when we expect
to make continued progress on this

strategic sourcing initiative by
further utilizing our size and scale.

REACHING OUR FULL
POTENTIAL
Perhaps the most far-reaching of
our strategic initiatives is our Full
Potential Plan.  It is transforming
how Omnicare addresses the
institutional pharmacy business
and we believe it will substantially
raise the bar in efficiency and
customer service for years to come. 

The Omnicare Full Potential Plan
enhances our business model by
leveraging our size and scale to
drive further efficiency and reduce
costs, while optimizing our assets
and resources across the company.
This important initiative builds
upon innovative technology and is
organized around best practices, a
hub-and-spoke operational model,
and net customer growth.  In 2008,
we achieved important operational
and financial milestones under the
Full Potential Plan.

In 2008, we built-out 22 of our 30
hubs, with 20 that are providing
either order-entry or prescription-
filling activities for more than 50
local pharmacies.  We have also
completed nine of the 10 regional
back offices, or billing and
collection centers, which are billing
claims in a more timely and
accurate manner.  This can reduce
receivables, while improving
customer satisfaction.  

At the start of 2008, we had only
begun to receive the automation
equipment required to support this
major initiative.  One year later, we

O mnicare, we believe, is uniquely positioned in our
industry to look at innovative ways to enhance our

business model, allowing us to foster and successfully
leverage our growth — to reach our full potential.

have installed more than 86% of the
automation equipment we plan to
employ.  We are already processing
prescriptions at a rate in line with
targeted levels for both the MTS
OnDemand II and our proprietary
Auto-Label & Verify (ALV)
machines.  This equipment has
greatly improved dispensing
accuracy, which has garnered the
approval of State Pharmacy Boards
as well as our customers.    

Another important aspect of the
Full Potential Plan is document
imaging. In 2008, we moved from
the planning stages to having more
than 40 pharmacies equipped with
document imaging today.  This
digital imaging software eliminates
much of the paper-intensive nature
of the business.  It also allows us to
balance workflow, increasing
efficiency and flexibility while
enhancing customer responsive-
ness. 

Importantly, we have begun to
realize a financial return from our
Full Potential Plan.  During the
fourth quarter of 2008, we
generated savings from this
program at an annualized rate of
approximately $26 million, or more
than 20% of the $100-$120 million
in targeted annual savings we
expect to achieve upon completion
of the program. 

We are also proud to have
increased our customer retention
rate during the year, even while
undertaking this far-reaching
program.  This progress gives us
confidence in the longer-term goal
of the Full Potential Plan – which is
net customer growth.
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Joel F. Gemunder
President and Chief Executive
Officer

March 27, 2009

Given our size and scope, we
believe Omnicare is uniquely
positioned in our industry to
continue to look at innovative ways
to enhance our business model,
allowing us to foster and
successfully leverage our growth —
to reach our full potential.

WELL POSITIONED FOR
LONG-TERM GROWTH
The fundamentals underpinning
our industry support long-term
growth.  In contrast to the global
economy, the institutional
pharmacy business has remained
relatively stable due to its nature as
an essential healthcare service.
Moreover, as we look ahead,
demand in our industry will be
largely driven by demographic
trends in the elderly, which are
projected to rise substantially over
the next three decades.  Today there
are nearly 40 million Americans

6

aged 65 or older.  By 2020, little
more than 10 years from now, that
number is expected to increase by
38% to 55 million and by 2040, to
exceed 80 million, or approximately
double the number of those over 65
today.  And given our market
position and scale advantages, we

believe we are well positioned to
serve this increasing demand.

While stock prices in this economic
environment have been subject to
much volatility, in 2008, your
investment in Omnicare
significantly outperformed both the
healthcare sector and the broader
market.  Additionally, we were
pleased to have executed a $100
million stock repurchase program,
returning additional capital to
shareholders beyond our quarterly
dividend.

In closing, I would like to express
our sorrow with the passing of our
esteemed friend, colleague and
Chairman Emeritus of Omnicare,
Edward L. Hutton.  Mr. Hutton
was instrumental in the creation of
Omnicare in 1981.  He served as
Chairman of the company from
1981 until May 2003, and as
Chairman of the Board until
February 2008, when he became
Chairman Emeritus.  Mr. Hutton’s
wisdom and dedication have been
critical to the success of his many
business and philanthropic
ventures. His insights and
guidance have had an indelible
and positive impact on our
company and on all who knew
him. He was an extraordinary man.
We will miss him. 

We look forward to continued
progress in 2009.  We plan to use
our scale and clinical expertise to
increase our market penetration in
our core business, while
progressively building upon our
presence in adjacent markets.  We
believe this focus will continue to
position Omnicare to enhance
shareholder value.  
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Joel F. Gemunder (a)

President and Chief Executive Officer
Patrick E. Keefe(a)

Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
Stephen S. Brown
Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer
W. Gary Erwin, Pharm.D.(a) 

Senior Vice President – Professional Services and President of
Omnicare Senior Health Outcomes
Tracy Finn(a)

Senior Vice President – Strategic Planning and Development

Board of Directors

Corporate Officers

John T. Crotty(1)(3)(4)

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Omnicare, Inc.
Managing Partner of CroBern Management Partnership LLP

Joel F. Gemunder(4)

President and Chief Executive Officer of Omnicare, Inc.

Steven J. Heyer(3)

Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer of Electric Eye
Entertainment Corp.

Sandra E. Laney
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Cadre Computer
Resources Co.

Andrea R. Lindell, Ph.D., RN(2)(3)

Dean and Professor in the College of Nursing and 
Associate Senior Vice President for Academic Health Affairs
at the University of Cincinnati

James D. Shelton(1)(2)

Chairman of the Board of Legacy Hospital Partners, Inc.

John H. Timoney(1)(2)(4)

Retired Senior Vice President of Applied Bioscience
International, Inc.

Amy Wallman(2)

Retired Partner of Ernst & Young International

(1) Member of the Nominating and Governance Committee
(2) Member of the Audit Committee
(3) Member of the Compensation and Incentive Committee
(4) Member of the Executive Committee

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND 
CORPORATE OFFICERS

David W. Froesel, Jr.(a)

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Cheryl D. Hodges(a)

Senior Vice President and Secretary
Bradley S. Abbott
Vice President, Controller and Group Executive – Corporate
Financial Services Group

Donald E. Amorosi
Vice President – Trade Relations

Paul W. Baldwin
Vice President – Public Affairs

Robert E. Dries
Vice President and Group Executive – Operations Finance
Group

Dale B. Evans, Ph.D.
Vice President and Chief Executive Officer of Omnicare
Clinical Research

Beth A. Kinerk
Vice President – Customer Development

Mark G. Kobasuk(a)

Vice President – General Counsel

D. Michael Laney
Vice President – Management Information Systems

Thomas W. Ludeke
Vice President 

Daniel J. Maloney, R.Ph.
Vice President – Purchasing

Thomas R. Marsh
Vice President – Financial Services and Treasurer

Regis T. Robbins
Vice President – Analysis and Controls

Jeffrey M. Stamps, R.Ph.(a) 

Vice President and Senior Vice President -
Field Operations of Pharmacy Operations Group
John D. Stone
Vice President – Internal Audit
Timothy L. Vordenbaumen, Sr., R.Ph.
Vice President – Government Affairs
William A. Fitzpatrick, R.Ph.
Corporate Compliance Officer

(a) Executive Officer of Omnicare, Inc. 
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Pharmacy Services
Omnicare Senior Pharmacy Services

Pharmacy Operations Group
Jeffrey M. Stamps, R.Ph.
Senior Vice President - Field Operations
Christine A. Arakelian
Vice President - Business Development
W. Scott Arledge, R.Ph.
Vice President - Pharmacy Services and 
Best Practices 
Dennis B. Blank
Vice President
Jonathan D. Borman
Vice President - Strategic Sourcing
Jeffrey L. Carpp
Vice President - Asset Management
James E. Cialdini
Vice President
Melinda J. Ferris, R.Ph.
Vice President and National Operations Director
Clifford D. Gookin
Vice President - Business Development
Mary Lou Gradisek
Vice President - Customer Service
Richard T. Richow
Vice President - National Credit and Collections
James L. Stultz, R.Ph.
Vice President and National Billing Director
Michael J. Szesko
Vice President - Automation
Sonya E. Trezevant
Vice President - Marketing
James S. Mathis
Senior Compliance Counsel

Operations Finance Group
Robert E. Dries
Group Executive

Professional Services Group
Barbara J. Zarowitz, Pharm.D.
Vice President and Chief Clinical Officer
Pamela J. Black, Pharm.D.
Vice President - Clinical Operations

Regional Vice Presidents – Pharmacy Operations
Anthony J. Solaro, R.Ph.
Senior Regional Vice President - Western Division

Michael J. Arnold, R.Ph.
South Central Region

Patrick F. Downing, R.Ph.
Northeast Region
Joseph L. Dupuy, R.Ph.
Southern Region
A. Samuel Enloe, R.Ph.
Midwest Region
Thomas A. Schleigh, Jr., R.Ph.
Southwest Region
Rolf K. Schrader, R.Ph.
Great Lakes Region
Mark J. Schroder, Pharm.D.
Mid-Atlantic Region
David H. West 
Southeast Region
Michael S. Wood, Pharm.D.
Western/Pacific Region

W. Gary Erwin, Pharm.D.
President, Omnicare Senior Health Outcomes

Gary W. Kadlec, R.Ph.
President and Chief Executive Officer, excelleRx

Cindy M. Padgett
General Manager, RxCrossroads

Jeffrey P. Spafford 
President and Chief Executive Officer, Advanced Care Scripts
Edward H. Hensley 
Executive Vice President, Advanced Care Scripts

Stanton G. Ades, R.Ph.
Senior Vice President, Professional Pharmacies

Contract Research Organizations

Omnicare Clinical Research
Dale B. Evans, Ph.D.
Chief Executive Officer

Clinimetrics
Matthew P. Smith
President and Chief Executive Officer

OPERATING 
MANAGEMENT
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As used i n thi s docum ent, unless ot herwise specifie d or  the context otherwise re quires, the  term s “Om nicare,” 
“Company,” “its,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Omnicare, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries. 
 

PART I 
ITEM 1. - BUSINESS 
 
Background 
 
Omnicare was formed in 1981.  T oday, Omnicare is a lea ding geriatric pharmaceutical services c ompany.  We are 
the nation’s largest provider of pharmaceuticals and related pharmacy and ancillary services to long-term healthcare 
institutions.  Our clien ts inclu de primarily sk illed n ursing facilities (“SNFs”), assist ed liv ing facilities (“ALFs”), 
retirement cen ters, in dependent liv ing co mmunities, h ospitals, h ospice, and other h ealthcare settin gs an d serv ice 
providers.  Omnicare provides its ph armacy services to long-term care facilities as well as ch ronic care and other 
settings comprising approximately 1,435,000 beds, including approximately 68,000 patients served by  the pat ient 
assistance programs of its s pecialty pharmacy services business .  The comparable number at Dece mber 31, 2007 
was approximately 1,449,000 (including 57,000 specialty pharmacy patients).  We provide our pharmacy services in 
47 states in the United States (“U.S.”), the District of C olumbia and i n Canada at  December 31, 2008.  As wel l, 
Omnicare pro vides o perational soft ware a nd s upport sy stems t o l ong-term care pha rmacy pro viders acro ss t he 
United States.  Omnicare’s pharmacy services also include distribution and patient assistance services for specialty 
pharmaceuticals.  Om nicare’s contract research orga nization provides com prehensive product development and 
research services for the  pharmaceutical, biotechnology, nutraceutical, medical devices and diagnostic industries in 
30 countries worldwide. 
 
We operate i n t wo busi ness seg ments.  The C ompany’s primary l ine of b usiness, Phar macy Services, provi des 
distribution of pharmaceuticals, related pharmacy consul ting and other an cillary services, data  management serv ices 
and medical supplies to SNFs, ALFs, retirement cen ters, in dependent liv ing co mmunities, h ospitals, h ospice, and 
other heal thcare set tings and servi ce pro viders.  Ph armacy Servic es purchases, repackages and dispenses  
pharmaceuticals, both prescription and no n-prescription, and provides co mputerized medical record-keeping and 
third-party billing for residents in these facilities.  We also provide consultant pharmacist services, including evaluating 
monthly pat ient drug t herapy, monitoring t he drug di stribution system  wi thin the nursing faci lity, assi sting i n 
compliance with state and federal regulations and providing proprietary clinical and health management programs.  In 
addition, our  P harmacy Services seg ment provi des a vari ety of ot her pro ducts and serv ices, including i ntravenous 
medications an d nut rition pro ducts (i nfusion t herapy services), respir atory ther apy s ervices, medical supplies and  
equipment, clinical care planni ng and fi nancial soft ware information sys tems, e lectronic medical reco rds syste ms, 
pharmaceutical informatics services, pharmacy benefit management services, retail and mail-order pharma cy services, 
pharmaceutical care management for hosp ice agencies and product support and distribution servi ces for s pecialty 
pharmaceutical manufacturers.  We also provide pharmaceutical case management services for retirees, employees and 
dependents wh o have dr ug b enefits unde r corporate-sponsored heal thcare program s.  Since 1989, w e have been  
involved in a program to acquire providers of pharmaceutical products and related pharmacy management services and 
medical suppl ies t o l ong-term care facili ties and t heir resi dents.  Addi tional i nformation regardi ng acqui sitions i s 
presented at the “Acquisitions” note of the Notes to our 2008 Consolidated Financial Statements, included at Item 8 of 
this Filing.  The Pharmacy Services segment has no operating locations outside of the U.S. and Canada.  The Pharmacy 
Services segment comprised approximately 97% of the Company’s total net sales during each of the three years ended 
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006. 
 
Our other business segment is cont ract research organi zation services (“ CRO Services”).  CRO Servic es is a leading 
international provi der of co mprehensive p roduct devel opment and research servi ces to cli ent companies i n t he 
pharmaceutical, biotechnology, nutraceutical,  medical devices and diagnostics indus tries.  Our CRO Services seg ment 
provides support for the de sign of regu latory stra tegy a nd clinica l de velopment of pharmaceu ticals by offering 
individual, multiple, or co mprehensive and ful ly integrated s ervices including c linical, qual ity assurance, data 
management, medical writing and regulatory support for our client’s drug development programs.  As of December 31, 
2008, our CRO Services segment operated in 30 count ries around the world.  The C RO Services segment comprised 
approximately 3% of the Company’s total net sales during each of the three years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 
2006. 
 



 5

Financial information regarding our business segments is presented at the “Segment Information” note of the Notes to 
our 2008 Consolidated Financial Statements, included at Item 8 of this Filing. 
 
Pharmacy Services 
 
We purchase, repackage and dispense  prescription and non-prescription medication in accordance w ith physician  
orders and  del iver such pres criptions t o l ong-term care f acilities for adm inistration t o i ndividual resi dents by  t he 
facilities’ nursi ng st aff.  We typically service l ong-term care facil ities wi thin a 150 -mile radi us of o ur p harmacy 
locations and m aintain a 24-hour, seven- day per week, on-call phar macist service for em ergency dispensi ng and 
delivery, and for consultation with the facility's staff or attending physician. 
 
Upon receipt of a prescription, the relevant resident information is entered into our computerized dispensing and billing 
systems.  At that tim e, the dispensing system checks the prescription for any potentially adverse drug i nteractions, 
duplicative therapy or resi dent sensitivity.  When req uired and/or speci fically requested by  the physician or patient, 
branded drugs are dispensed, and generic drugs are subst ituted in accordance with applicable state and federal laws as 
requested by the physic ian o r resident.  Subject to phy sician approval a nd oversight, and in accordance with our  
pharmaceutical care guidelines, we also prov ide for patient-specific therapeutic interchange of more efficacious and/or 
safer drugs for those presen tly be ing prescribed.  See "The O mnicare Geria tric Phar maceutical Care Guidelines®" 
below for further discussion. 
 
We utilize a unit-of-use drug d istribution system.  This means that our prescriptions are  packaged for d ispensing in 
individual doses.  This di ffers from prescriptions filled by re tail pharmacies, which typically are di spensed in vials or 
other bulk packaging requi ring measurement of each dose by or for the patient.  Our de livery system is intended to 
improve control over pharmaceutical distribution and patient compliance with drug therapy by increasing the accuracy 
and timeliness of drug administration. 
 
In conjunction with our drug distribution system, our co mputerized record keeping/documentation system is designed 
to result in greater efficiency in nursing time, improved control and reduced waste in clie nt facilities, an d lower error 
rates in both dispensing and a dministration.  We also furnish intravenous administration of m edication and nutrition 
therapy and respi ratory t herapy services, medical suppli es and equi pment and cli nical care planni ng and soft ware 
support systems.  We bel ieve we di stinguish ourselves from many of our co mpetitors by also providing proprietary 
clinical programs.  For example, we have developed a ranking of drugs based on their relative clinical effectiveness for 
the elderly and by cost to the payor.  We use t hese rankings, which we cal l the Omnicare Geriatric Pharmaceutical 
Care Gu idelines®, or Omnicare Gu idelines®, to more effectively manage patien t car e and costs.  In addition, we  
provide health and outcomes management programs for the large base of elderly residents of the long-term facilities we 
serve. 
 
Consultant Pharmacist Services 
 
Federal and st ate regulati ons mandate t hat long-term care facil ities, i n addit ion to provi ding a source of  
pharmaceuticals, retain consultant phar macist services to monitor and report on prescription drug thera py in order to  
maintain and im prove t he quali ty of resi dent care.  The Omnibus B udget Reconcili ation Act  of 198 7 ("OB RA of  
1987") implemented in 1990 sought to further upgrade an d standardize care by  setting forth more stringent standards 
relating to planning, monitoring and report ing on t he progress of prescript ion drug t herapy, as well  as overal l drug 
usage.  In addition, the Center s for Medicare & Medicaid Services (“CMS”) issued revised guidelines to surveyors of 
long-term care facili ties which, effective December 18, 2006, expanded t he scope and d etail in which surveyors are 
assessing pharmacy services at facilities, including consultant pharmacy services (discussed later herein).  We provide 
consultant pharmacist services, which help clients comply with the federal and state regulations applicable to nursing 
homes.  The services offered by our consultant pharmacists include: 
 
 • monthly medication regimen reviews for each resident in the f acility to assess the appropriatene ss 

and effect iveness of dru g therapies, including a revi ew of t he resident's current medication usage,  
monitoring drug reactions to other drugs or food, monitoring lab results and recommending alternate 
therapies, dosing adjustments or discontinuing unnecessary drugs; 

 • monitoring and monthly reporting on the appropriateness of drug usage; 
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 • participation on t he pharm acy and t herapeutics, qua lity assurance and ot her com mittees of cl ient 
facilities, as well as periodic involvement in staff meetings; 

 • development and maintenance of pharmaceutical policy and procedures manuals; and 
 • assistance to  the nursing facili ty in complying with  state and federal  regulations as t hey pertain to  

drug use. 
 
We have al so devel oped a pr oprietary soft ware sy stem fo r use by  our  co nsultant phar macists.  The syst em, call ed 
OSC2OR® (Omnicare System of Clinical and Cost Outcomes Retrieval), enables our pharmacists not only to perform 
their funct ions more efficiently, but al so provides the plat form for consistent data retr ieval for heal th and outcomes 
management. 
 
Additionally, we offer specialized consulting services, which help long-term care facilities enhance care and reduce and 
contain costs, as well as to comply with state and federal regulations.  Under these consulting services, we offer: 
 
 • data requi red for OB RA and  ot her regul atory purposes, i ncluding repor ts on usage of  chem ical 

restraints known as psychotropic drugs, antibiotic usage (infection control) and other drug usage; 
 • contribution to plan of care programs, which assess each patient's state of health upon admission and 

monitor progress and out comes using data on drug usage as well  as d ietary, physical therapy and  
social service inputs; 

 • counseling related to appropriate drug usage and implementation of drug protocols; 
 • on-site educational seminars for the nursing facility staff on topics such as drug information relating 

to clinical indications, adverse drug react ions, drug protocols and speci al geriatric considerations in 
drug therapy, and i nformation and t raining on i ntravenous drug t herapy and up dates on OBRA and 
other regulatory compliance issues; and 

 • nurse consultant services and consulting for dietary and medical records. 
 
The Omnicare Geriatric Pharmaceutical Care Guidelines® 
 
In June 1994, to enhance the pharmaceutical care management services that we offer, Omnicare introduced to our client 
facilities and their attending phy sicians t he Omnicare Geriatric Pharmaceutica l Ca re Gu idelines® (“Omnicare 
Guidelines®”).  We bel ieve the Omnicare Gu idelines® is t he fi rst drug form ulary ran king dr ugs by  disease st ate 
according to their clinic al effectiveness ind ependent of their cost, spe cifically des igned for the elderly resid ing in 
long-term care institutions and the community.  The Omnicare Guidelines® ranks drugs used for speci fic diseases as 
preferred, acceptable or unacceptable based solely on their disease-specific clinical effectiveness in treating the elderly.  
The Omnicare Gu idelines® t akes i nto account  such factors as pharm acology, safety and t oxicity, effi cacy, drug 
administration, quality of li fe and other considerations specific to the frail elderly population residing in facilities and 
for t hose l iving i ndependently.  The cl inical eval uations and ra nkings are devel oped excl usively for us  by  t he 
University of the Sciences  in  Philadelphia ( formerly the Philadelphia College of Phar macy), an academic institution 
recognized for  i ts experti se in geri atric long-term car e.  The Omnicare Gu idelines® is extens ively reviewed and 
updated at least annually by the Univers ity of Sciences in Philadelphia, taki ng into account, am ong other factors, th e 
latest advances as documented in the medical literature.  In addi tion, the Omnicare Guidelines® provides relative cost 
information comparing the prices of the drugs to patients, their insurers or other payors of the pharmacy bill. 
 
As the Omnicare Gu idelines® focuses on health benefi ts, rat her t han sol ely on cost , we bel ieve that use of t he 
Omnicare Guidelines® assists physicians in making the best clinical choices of drug therapy for the patient in a manner 
that is cost ef ficient for the  payor of t he pharmacy bil l.  Accordi ngly, we bel ieve t hat the devel opment of and 
compliance with the  Omnicare Gu idelines® i s im portant i n lowering cost s for SNFs operati ng und er t he federal 
government’s Prospective Paym ent System (“PPS”), Pres cription Drug Plans under M edicare Par t D (see further  
discussion in thi s Fili ng, i ncluding t he “G overnment Regul ation” caption bel ow), an d st ate Medicaid program s, 
managed care and other payors, including residents or their families. 
 
Health and Outcomes Management 
 
We have expanded upon the data in the Omnicare Guidelines® to develop health and outcomes management programs 
targeted at  major cat egories of di sease co mmonly found i n the elderly, such as congest ive hear t f ailure, st roke 
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prevention, Alzheimer’s dise ase, fracture prevention and pai n management.  These progra ms seek t o identify patients 
who m ay be candidates for more clinically effi cacious drug t herapy and t o work wi th phy sicians t o optim ize 
pharmaceutical care for these geriatr ic patients.  We believe these programs can enhance th e quality of care of elderly 
patients wh ile reducing co sts to  the h ealthcare s ystem, which ar ise fro m the adverse out comes of sub-optimal or  
inappropriate drug therapy. 
 
Outcomes-Based Algorithm Technology 
 
Combining data provi ded by our proprietary systems, the Omnicare Guidelines® and health management programs, 
our pharmacists seek to determine the best clinical and most cost-effective drug therapies and make recommendations 
for t he most appropriate phar maceutical t reatment.  Si nce late 1997, we have augm ented their efforts wi th the 
development o f propri etary, computerized, database-driven t echnology that el ectronically screens and i dentifies 
patients at ris k fo r p articular d iseases an d assis ts in  d etermining tre atment p rotocols.  Th is s ystem combines 
pharmaceutical, clinica l and care planning data  and scre ens the  data utilizi ng a lgorithms derived fro m medical bes t 
practice standards, allowing our pharmacists to make recommendations to improve the effectiveness of drug therapy in 
seniors, including identifying potentially underdiagnosed and undertreated conditions. 
 
Pharmaceutical Case Management 
 
Combining our cli nical resources, including the Omnicare Guidelines® health and out comes management programs 
and our com prehensive database of medical and pharm acy data, we are p roviding pharmaceutical case management 
services to comm unity dwelling reti rees, em ployees and depe ndents who receive drug benefits under em ployer-
sponsored healthcare programs.  Because seniors living independently are often under the care of multiple practitioners 
with no coordi nation of prescri bing, this population is highly susceptible to drug-related problems.  Omnicare Senior 
Health Outcomes addresses this need through programs designed to reduce unnecessary and inappropriate drug use, to 
add necessary drug therapy according to cu rrent practice standards fo r certain at-risk groups and to m ake therapeutic 
interventions in accordance with the Omnicare Guidelines® and health management p rograms.  The se services  are 
provided on behalf of l arge corporate employers sponsoring healthcare benefits, including prescription drug benefits, 
that seek to protect the safety and quality of healthcare for their retirees, employees and dependents while containing or 
reducing their costs. 
 
Ancillary Services 
 
We provide the following ancillary products and services: 
 
Infusion Therapy Product s and Services. With cos t containment pressures in healthcare, SNFs and nur sing facili ties 
(“NFs”) are increasingly called upon to treat patients requiring a high degree of medical care and who would otherwise 
be treated in the more costly hospital environment.  We provide intravenous (or infusion therapy) products and services 
for these client facilities as well as hospice and home care patients.  Infusion therapy consists of the product (a nutrient, 
antibiotic, chemotherapy or other drugs in solution) and the intravenous administration of the product. 
 
We prepare t he prod uct t o b e ad ministered usi ng p roper equipment in an aseptic envir onment an d th en d eliver th e 
product to the nursing home for administration by the nursing staff.  Proper ad ministration of intravenous ("IV") drug 
therapy requires a highly trained nursing staff.  Upon request, our consultant pharmacists and nurse consultants provide 
an education and cert ification program on I V therapy to assure proper staff training and com pliance with regulatory 
requirements in client facilities offering an IV therapy program. 
 
By provi ding an i nfusion t herapy program , we enabl e o ur cl ient SNFs and NFs t o a dmit and ret ain pat ients wh o 
otherwise would need t o be cared for  in a h ospital or anot her type of acute-care faci lity.  The most common infusion 
therapies we provi de are t otal parent eral nu trition, whi ch provides nut rients i ntravenously to pati ents with chroni c 
digestive or gastro-intestinal problems, antibiotic therapy, chemotherapy, pain management and hydration. 
 
Wholesale Medical Supplies/Medicare Part B Billing. We distribute disposable medical supplies, including urological, 
ostomy, nutritional support and wo und care products and ot her disposables needed i n the nursing home environment.  
In addition, we bill Medicare directly for certain of these product lines for patients eligible under the Medicare Part B 
program.  As part of t his service, we det ermine patient eligibility, obtain certi fications, order products and maintain 
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inventory at the nursing facility.  W e also contract to act as bi lling agent for certain nursing homes that supply these 
products directly to the patient. 
 
Other Services. We provide clinical care plan, financial software and electronic medical records systems for long-term 
care facil ities, as well  as operat ional soft ware sy stems for l ong-term care phar macies.  W e pr ovide co mprehensive 
pharmaceutical care services for hospice patients.   W e al so offer respiratory therapy products, durable medical 
equipment along wi th phar macy benef it management, retai l and mail-order phar macy services, and dist ribution and 
product support services for specialty pharmaceuticals.  We also have a pharmaceutical informatics service to capitalize 
on our unique geriatric pharmaceutical database, by providing a unique offering of Om nicare’s broad-based long-term 
care data to augment the pharmaceutical industry’s ability to monitor performance in the long-term care channel.  We 
continue t o revi ew t he expansi on of t hese as wel l as ot her pro ducts and servi ces t hat may furt her enhance t he 
Company’s ab ility o r th at o f its c lients to  p rovide q uality h ealthcare serv ices fo r th eir patients in  a c ost-effective 
manner. 
 
Contract Research Organization  
 
Our C RO Ser vices seg ment provides com prehensive prod uct development and research servi ces gl obally t o cli ent 
companies in the pharm aceutical, biot echnology, nutraceu tical, medical devices  and diagnostics industries.  CRO 
Services provides support  fo r t he desi gn of regul atory st rategy and cli nical devel opment (phases I t hrough IV) of 
pharmaceuticals by offering i ndividual, multiple, or com prehensive and fully integrated services including project 
management, clinical monitoring, qual ity assurance, dat a management, st atistical anal ysis medical writ ing and  
regulatory support for our clients' drug development programs.  As of Decem ber 31, 2008, the CRO Services segment 
operated in 30 countries, including the U.S. 
 
We believe that our involvement in the CRO business is a logical adjunct to our core i nstitutional pharmacy business 
and serves to leverage our assets and strengths, including our access to a  large geriatric population and our ability to 
appropriately collect data for health and outcomes management.  We believe such assets and strengths can be of val ue 
in devel oping new dr ugs t argeted at  di seases of t he el derly and i n meeting t he Food and Dr ug Administration's 
(“FDA’s”) geriatric dosing and labeling requirements for all  prescription drugs pro vided to t he elderly, as well  as in  
documenting health outcomes to payors and plan sponsors in a managed care environment.   
 
Product and Market Development 
 
Our Pharmacy Services and CRO Services businesses engage in a continuing program for the development of new 
services and for marketing these servic es.  Whi le new servi ce and new m arket development are im portant factors for 
the growth of t hese businesses, we do not  expect  t hat any new servi ce or  marketing effort s, i ncluding t hose in t he 
developmental stage, will require the investment of a significant portion of our assets. 
 
Materials/Supply 
 
We purchase pharmaceuticals through a wh olesale distributor with whom we have a pri me vendor cont ract at prices 
based primarily upon contracts negotiated by us directly with pharmaceutical manufacturers. We also are a member of 
industry buy ing gro ups, which cont ract wit h manufacturers for discounted pri ces.  W e have num erous sources of 
supply avail able t o us and have not  experi enced any  di fficulty i n obt aining pharm aceuticals or ot her products and 
supplies used in the conduct of our business. 
 
Patents, Trademarks, and Licenses 
 
Our business operations are not dependent upon any material patents, trademarks or licenses (see further discussion of 
licenses in the “Government Regulation” caption below). 
 
Seasonality 
 
Our business operations are not significantly impacted by seasonality. 
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Inventories 
 
We seek to maintain adequate on-site inventories of pharmaceuticals and supplies to ensure prompt delivery service to 
our customers.  Our primary wholesale distributor also maintains local warehousing in most major geographic markets 
in which we operate. 
 
Competition 
 
The l ong-term care phar macy business is highly regional or l ocal in nature and, wi thin a gi ven geographic area of  
operations, highly competitive.  We are the nation's largest provider of pharmaceuticals and related pharmacy services 
to long-term care institutions such as SNFs, NFs, ALFs, retirement centers and ot her institutional healthcare facilities.  
Our largest competitor nationally is PharMerica Corporation.  In t he geographic regions we serve, we al so compete 
with nu merous local and regional  institutional phar macies, pharmacies owned by  long-term care facil ities and l ocal 
retail pharmacies.  We compete in thes e markets on the basi s of qual ity, price, terms and overal l cost-effectiveness, 
along with the clinical expertise, breadth of services, technology and professional support we offer.   
 
Our CRO Services business competes against other full-service CROs and client internal resources.  The CRO industry 
is highly fragmented with a number of ful l-service CROs and many small, limited-service providers, some of whi ch 
serve only local markets.  Clients choose a CRO based on,  among other reasons, reputation, references from existing 
clients, the client' s rel ationship wi th the CR O, t he CR O's experi ence with t he par ticular ty pe of project  and/ or 
therapeutic area of clinic al development, the CRO's ability to add value to the c lient's development plan, the CRO's 
financial stability and the CRO's ability to provide the full range of services on a global basis as required by the client.  
We believe that we compete favorably in these respects. 
 
Backlog 
 
Backlog is no t a relev ant factor in our Pharmacy Services segment since this segment’s products and serv ices are 
sold promptly on an as-ordered basis.   
 
Our CR O Se rvices se gment re ports backlog ba sed on a nticipated net reve nue for services or proje cts, yet to be 
provided, that have been authorized by the customer through signed contracts, letter agreements and certain verbal 
commitments.  Onc e work begins on a project, net rev enue is recog nized as t he wo rk is co mpleted.  Usi ng th is 
method of reporting backlog, at December 31, 2008, backlog was approximately $302.9 million, as compared with 
approximately $314.3 million at December 31, 2007.  Backlog may not be a consistent indicator of future results of 
our CRO Se rvices segm ent because it can be affe cted by a num ber of factors, includi ng t he va riable size a nd 
duration of projects, many o f which are  performed over several years.  Additionally, projects may be del ayed o r 
terminated by the customer, or i ndirectly delayed by regulatory au thorities.  Mo reover, the scope of work can be 
increased or decreased during the course of a project. 
 
Customers 
 
At December 31, 2 008, our Pharmacy Serv ices segment served l ong-term care facil ities and ot her chronic care and  
other set tings comprising ap proximately 1,435,0 00 beds,  including approxi mately 6 8,000 served by t he pati ent 
assistance programs of its specialty pharmacy business, in 47 states in the U.S., the District of Columbia and in Canada. 
 
Our CRO Services segment operates in 30 countries, including the U.S., and serves a bro ad range of cl ients, including 
many of t he major multi-national pharmaceutical and bi otechnology companies, as well as sm aller companies in the 
pharmaceutical, biotechnology, nutraceutical and medical devices industries. 
 
No single customer comprised more than 10% of consolidated revenues in 2008, 2007 or 2006. 
 
Financial information with respect to geographic location is presented at the “Segment Information” note of the Notes 
to our 2008 Consolidated Financial Statements, included at Item 8 of this Filing. 
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Government Regulation  
 
Institutional pharmacies, as well  as t he long-term care facilities they serve, are subject  to extensive federal, state and 
local reg ulation.  Th ese reg ulations cover requi red quali fications, day -to-day operations, reim bursement and t he 
documentation of activities.  In addition, our CRO Services are subject to substantial regulation, both domestically and 
abroad.  We continuously monitor the effects of regulatory activity on our operations. 
 
Licensure, Certification and Regulation. States generally require that companies operating a pharmacy within the state 
be li censed by  the st ate board of phar macy.  At D ecember 31, 2008, we had pha rmacy li censes, or pendi ng 
applications, for each pharmacy we operate.  In addition, many states regulate out-of-state pharmacies as a condition to 
the delivery of prescription products to patients in their states.  Our pharmacies hold the requisite licenses applicable in 
these states.  I n addition, our pharmacies are registered with the appropriate state and federal  authorities pursuant to 
statutes governing the regulation of controlled substances. 
 
Client long-term care facil ities are al so separately required to be l icensed in the states in which they operate and, i f 
serving Med icaid o r Med icare patients, must be certif ied to be in co mpliance with  applicable p rogram participation 
requirements.  Client facilities are also subject to the nursing home reforms of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act 
of 1987 (“OBRA of 19 87”), as am ended, which imposed st rict co mpliance st andards rel ating to qual ity of care for  
nursing hom e operat ions, including vastly  increased d ocumentation and report ing requi rements.  In addi tion, 
pharmacists, nurses and other healthcare professionals who provide services on our behalf are in most cases required to 
obtain and maintain professional  li censes and are subject  to st ate regul ation regardi ng professi onal st andards o f 
conduct. 
 
Federal and State Laws Affecting the Repackaging, Labeling and Interstate Shipping of Drugs. Federal and st ate laws 
impose cert ain regi stration, repackagi ng and l abeling requ irements on en tities t hat repackage drugs for di stribution, 
other than pharmacies that repackage in the regular practice of dispensing or selling drugs directly to patients.  A drug 
repackager must regis ter w ith the FDA as a repacker, a nd wi th t he rel evant st ates as a drug wh olesaler and/ or 
repackager.  A drug repac kager i s subject  to FDA in spection for co mpliance with rel evant C urrent Good 
Manufacturing Practi ces ( "CGMPs").  W e hold al l requi red registrations and l icenses, and we bel ieve our on going 
repackaging operations are in substantial compliance with applicable federal CGMP requirements and state wholesaler 
requirements.  In addi tion, we beli eve we co mply wi th all rel evant requi rements of state and federal  laws for the 
transfer and shipment of pharmaceuticals. 
 
Drug Pedigree Regulations.  Federal and st ate laws impose "drug pedigree" regulations on wholesale distributors.  
These regulations, in certain circu mstances, re quire t he wholesale d rug distributor t o m aintain, an d provide t o 
pharmacies, a history of the transactions in the chain of distribution of a given drug lot from the manufacturer to the 
pharmacy.  Effective Decem ber 2006, the FDA has implemented pedigree regulations pursuant to the  Prescription 
Drug Marketing Act of 1987, as am ended by the  Pre scription Drug M arketing Act of 1992.  In ea rly December 
2006, the federal District Court for the Eastern District of New York issued a preliminary injunction, enjoining the 
implementation of certain of the FDA pedigree regulations, in response to a case initiated by secondary distributors.  
On July 10, 2008, the federal Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit affirmed this injunction.  We cannot predict 
the u ltimate o utcome o f t his leg al proceeding.  In  add ition to th e FDA reg ulations, sev eral stat es h ave eith er 
implemented or p roposed d rug pe digree r egulations.  We bel ieve w e are i n com pliance wi th fe deral an d st ate 
regulations currently in effect.  These regulations, however, may be interpreted in the future in a manner inconsistent 
with our interpretation and application.  In  addition, it is  anticipated that additional states will en act drug pedigree 
requirements in the future. 
 
State Laws A ffecting Access to Services.  So me st ates have enact ed "freedom  of choi ce" or "any  wi lling pr ovider" 
requirements as part of t heir state Medicaid programs or in separate legislation.  These laws may preclude a nursi ng 
facility fro m r equiring t heir patients to pur chase phar macy or ot her anci llary medical services or su pplies fro m 
particular providers that deal with the nursing home.  Limitations such as these may increase the competition which we 
face in providing services to nursing facility residents. 
 
Medicare and Medi caid. The l ong-term care phar macy busi ness ha s l ong operat ed under regul atory and cost 
containment pressures from state and federal legislation primarily affecting Medicaid and, to a lesser extent until 2006, 
Medicare.  We had hist orically received rei mbursement from the Medicaid and Me dicare programs, directly fro m 
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individual residents or their responsible parties (private pay), long-term care facilities and from other payors such as 
third-party insurers.  Effective January 1, 2006, Omnicare experienced a significant shift in payor mix as a result of 
the prescription drug benefit under Medicare Part D (“Part D”). 
 
The t able b elow re presents our a pproximated pay or m ix (as a % o f an nual sal es) f or t he l ast t hree y ears en ded 
December 31,: 
 

2008 2007 2006
Private pay, third-party and facilities (a)  44% 43% 43%
Federal Medicare program (Part D & Part B) (b)  42% 43% 42%
State Medicaid programs 10% 10% 12%
Other sources (c)  4% 4% 3%

Totals 100% 100% 100%

(a) Includes payments from SNFs on behalf of their federal Medicare program-eligible residents (Medicare 
Part A) and for other services and supplies, as well as payments from third-party insurers and private pay.

(b) Includes direct billing for medical supplies under Part B totaling 1% in each of the 2008, 2007 and 2006
years.

(c) Includes our contract research organization.

For those patients who are not  covered by government-sponsored programs or private insurance, we generally directly 
bill the patient or the patient's responsible party on a monthly basis.  Depending upon local market practices, we may 
alternatively bill pr ivate patients through the nursing facility.  Pr icing for private pay patients  is  based on prevailing 
regional market rates or "usual and customary" charges. 
 
The Medicaid program is a cooperative federal-state program designed to enable states to provide medical assistance to 
aged, blind or disabled individuals or members of fam ilies with dependent chil dren whose i ncome and resources are 
insufficient to meet the costs of necessary medical services.  State participation in the Medicaid program is voluntary.  
To beco me eligible to rece ive federal funds, a s tate must su bmit a M edicaid "s tate p lan" to the  Se cretary of the  
Department of Health and Human Services (“HHS”) for approval.  The federal  Medicaid statute specifies a variety of 
requirements whi ch t he st ate pl an must meet, i ncluding requi rements relat ing to  eli gibility, coverage of  servi ces, 
payment and administration.  We are participating in state Medicaid programs. 
 
Federal law and regulations contain a variety of requi rements relating to the furni shing of prescription drugs under  
Medicaid.  F irst, states are given authority, subject to cer tain standards, to limit or specify conditions for the coverage 
of particular drugs.  Second, f ederal Medicaid law establishes standards affecting pharmacy practice.  These standards 
include general requirements relating to patient counseling and drug utilization review and more specific standards for 
SNFs and NFs rel ating to drug regim en reviews for M edicaid pa tients in such facil ities.  Thi rd, federal  regulations 
impose certain requirements relating to reimbursement for prescription drugs furni shed to Medicaid patients.  A mong 
other things, regulations establish "upper limits" on payment levels.  Legislation enacted in February 2006 changed the 
calculation of these so-called upper limits (see below).  In addition to requirements imposed by federal law, states have 
substantial discretion to determine administrative, coverage, eligibility and payment policies under their state Medicaid 
programs that may affect our operations. 
 
On December 18, 2006, CMS issued final updated Guidance to Surveyors on Long Term Care regarding the survey 
protocol fo r rev iew of pharmacy serv ices provided in  long -term care facilities p articipating in  t he M edicare an d 
Medicaid programs.  The gui delines expanded the areas a nd detail in whi ch surveyors assess pharmacy services at 
the facility, including ordering, acquiring, receiving, storing, labeling, dispensing and disposing of all medications at 
the facility; the provision of medication-related information to health care professionals and residents; the process of 
identifying and addressing medication-related issues through medication regimen reviews and collaboration between 
the licensed consultant pharmacist, the facility and other healthcare professionals; and the provision, monitoring and 
use of m edication-related devices.  The guidelines al so e mphasize t he i mportant r ole of c onsultative ser vices o f 
pharmacists in pr omoting saf e and ef fective medication use t hrough t he coo rdination of al l aspect s of p harmacy 
services provided to all residents within a facility.   
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The Medicare program is a f ederally funded and ad ministered health insurance program for i ndividuals age 65 and  
over, or w ho are di sabled.  The M edicare p rogram currently consists of four part s: Medicare Part  A, which covers,  
among other things, inpatient hospital, SNF, home healthcare and certain other types of healthcare services; Medicare 
Part B, which covers phy sicians' services, outpatient services, items and services provided by medical suppliers, and a 
limited number of specifically designated prescription drugs; Medicare Part C, established by the Balanced Budget Act 
of 1997 (“BBA”), which generally allows beneficiaries to enroll in managed care p rograms instead of the traditional 
Medicare fee for service program; and Medicare Part D, established by the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, 
and M odernization Act  of 2003 (“M MA”), which establi shed a prescri ption drug benef it t hat becam e effect ive on 
January 1, 2006 (discussed below).   
 
The M edicare program est ablishes requi rements for part icipation by  prov iders and sup pliers.  Pharm acies are not 
subject to such certification requirements.  SNFs and supp liers of medical equipment and supplies, however, including 
our supplier operations, are su bject to specified standards.  Failure to comply with these requirements and st andards 
may adversely affect an entity's abilit y to participate in the Medicare program and receive reimbursement for services 
provided to Medicare beneficiaries. 
 
Medicare and Medicaid providers  and suppl iers are subject t o i nquiries or  audi ts t o evaluat e their compliance with 
requirements and standards set forth under these government-sponsored programs.  These audits and inquiries, as well 
as our own internal co mpliance program , fr om time-to- time have i dentified overpaym ents and ot her bi lling errors 
resulting in repaym ent or self-reporting to  the applicab le agency.  W e b elieve that our billing practices materially 
comply with applicable state and federal requirements.  However, the requirements may be interpreted in the future in a 
manner inconsistent with our interpretation and application. 
 
The Medicare and Medicaid programs are subject to statutory and regulatory changes, retroactive and prospective rate 
adjustments, administrative rulings, executive orders a nd freezes and funding reductions, all of which may adversely 
affect our business.  Paym ents for pharm aceutical supplies and services under the Medicare and M edicaid programs 
may not continue to be based on current methodologies or remain comparable to present levels.  In this regard, we may 
be subject  to payment reduct ions as a re sult of federal  b udgetary or other l egislation rel ated t o the M edicare and 
Medicaid programs.  In addi tion, numerous state governments are experiencing budgetary pressures that may result in 
Medicaid payment reductions and delays in payment to us or our customer nursing facilities. 
 
In addition, if we or our client facilities fail to comply with applicable reimbursement regulations, even if inadvertently, 
our business could be adversely impacted.  Additionally, changes in reimbursement programs or in regulations related 
thereto, such as reductions in the al lowable reim bursement l evels, modifications i n t he tim ing or processi ng of 
payments and other changes i ntended to limit or decrease th e growth of Medicaid and M edicare expenditures, could 
adversely affect our business. 
 
Referral Restrictions. We have to comply with federal and state laws which govern fi nancial and ot her arrangements 
between healt hcare provi ders.  These laws include t he fe deral anti -kickback st atute, whi ch prohi bits, am ong ot her 
things, knowingly and willfully soliciting, receiving, offering or paying any remuneration directly or indirectly in return 
for or t o induce the referral of an i ndividual to a person fo r the furnishing of any  item or service for which payment 
may be made in whole or in part under federal healthcare programs.  We are also subject to the federal physician self-
referral st atute, whi ch prohi bits phy sicians f rom referri ng Medicare and Medicaid pat ients for certai n “desi gnated 
health servi ces,” i ncluding out patient prescri ption drugs , durabl e m edical equi pment, and ent eral suppl ies and 
equipment to an entity if the referring physician (or a member of the physicia n’s immediate family) has a “financ ial 
relationship,” through ownership or compensation, with the entity.  Many states have enacted similar statutes which are 
not necessarily limited to items and services for which payment is made by federal healthcare programs.  Violations of 
these laws may result in fines, imprisonment, denial of payment for services, and excl usion from the federal programs 
and/or other state-funded programs.   
 
Other provisions in the Social Security Act and in other federal and state l aws authorize the imposition of penal ties, 
including criminal and civil fines and exclusions from participation in Medicare, Medicaid and other federal healthcare 
programs for false claims, improper billing and other offenses. 
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In addition, a number of states have undertaken enforcem ent actions against pharmaceutical manufacturers involving 
pharmaceutical marketing programs, in cluding program s cont aining incentives to phar macists to dispense one 
particular product rather than another.  These enforcem ent actions arose u nder state consumer protection laws which 
generally prohibit false advertising, deceptive trade practices, and the like. 
 
We believe our contract arrangements with other healthcare providers, our pharmaceutical suppliers and our phar macy 
practices are in  compliance with applicable federal and state laws.  Th ese laws may, however, be in terpreted in  the 
future in a manner inconsistent with our interpretation and application. 
 
Healthcare Reform and Federal Budget Legislation. In recent years, federal legislation has resulted in major changes 
in the healthcare system, which significantly affected healthcare providers.  The Balanced Budget Act of 1997 (the 
“BBA”) mandated a prospective paym ent s ystem (“PPS ”) for Medicare- eligible res idents of SNFs.  Under PPS, 
Medicare pays SNFs a fixed fee per patient per day based upon the acuity level of the resident, covering substantially 
all items and services furnished during a Medicare-covered stay, including pharmacy services.  PPS initially resulted in 
a significant reduction of reimbursement to SNFs.  C ongress subsequently sought to restore some of the reductions in 
reimbursement resulting from PPS.  One provision gave SNFs a temporary rate increase for certain specific high-acuity 
patients begi nning Apri l 1, 2000, and e nding when t he Centers for M edicare & M edicaid Servi ces (“C MS”) 
implemented a refined patien t classification system  under PPS.  For several years,  CMS did not im plement such  
refinements, thus cont inuing t he addi tional rat e increase fo r cert ain hi gh-acuity pat ients t hrough feder al fi scal y ear 
2005. 
  
In the final SNF PPS rule f or fiscal year 2006 CMS added nine pa tient classificatio n categories to the PPS patient 
classification system, thus triggering the expiration of the high-acuity payments add-ons.  The new patient classification 
refinements became effective on January 1,  2006.  F or fiscal year 2007, SNFs received  the full 3.1 percent market 
basket i ncrease t o rates, i ncreasing paym ents t o SNFs by approximately $560 m illion.  For fi scal year 2008 S NFs 
received a 3.3 percent market basket increase, increasing Medicare payments to SNFs by approximately $690 million.  
On August 8, 2008, CMS published the Medicare SNF PPS final rule for fiscal year 2009, which included a 3.4 
percent inflation update that increases overall payments to S NFs by $780 million.  CMS did not adopt a provision 
included in its May 7, 2008 proposed rule to recalibrate case mix weights to co mpensate for increased expenditures 
resulting from refinements made in January 2006, which would have cut overall SNF PPS payments by $770 million in 
fiscal year 2009.  The rul e al so addresses several  SN F pol icy issues, i ncluding, am ong ot hers, revi sions to t he 
Minimum Data Set , devel opment of an i ntegrated post -acute p ayment s ystem, reh abilitative s ervices in SNFs, an d 
consolidated billing.  While recent rulemakings have not decreased payments to SNFs, reimbursement changes could 
be adopted in the future that could have an adverse effect on the financial condition of the Company’s SNF cl ients 
which could, in turn, adversely affect the timing or level of their payments to Omnicare.   
 
Moreover, the  Deficit Redu ction Act (“ DRA”), e nacted in 2 006, pr ovided fo r r eductions in  n et Medicare and 
Medicaid spe nding of a pproximately $11 billion over fi ve years.  Am ong ot her things , the legislation reduce d 
Medicare SNF bad debt payments by 30 percent for those individuals who are not dually eligible for Medicare and 
Medicaid.  This provision was expected to reduce payments to SNFs b y $100 million over five years  (fiscal years 
2006-2010).  Separately, on Au gust 1, 2007, th e Ho use o f Repr esentatives app roved H .R. 316 2, t he Ch ildren’s 
Health and Medicare Protection Act of 2007, that included a number of Medicare policy changes, including a freeze 
in fiscal year 2 008 SNF PPS rates at fiscal year 2 007 levels.  While the version of the b ill that u ltimately passed 
Congress did not include Medicare provisions impacting SNF reimbursement, Congress may yet consider these and 
other pr oposals in the fut ure that wo uld fu rther restrict M edicare f unding for SNFs.  See the  "M anagement's 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," included at Item 7 of this Filing. 
 
In December 2003, Congress enacted the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 
(“MMA”), which included a major expansion of the Medicare prescription drug benefit under a new Medicare Part 
D.  
 
Under the Medicare Part D prescription drug benefit, Medicare beneficiaries may enroll in prescription drug plans 
offered by private en tities (or in a “fallb ack” plan offered on behalf of the g overnment through a con tractor, to the 
extent private entities fail to  offer a plan in a g iven area), which provide coverage of outpatient prescription drugs 
(collectively, “Part D Plans”).  Part D Plans include both plans providing the drug benefit on a stand-alone basis and 
Medicare A dvantage plans providing drug coverage as a  sup plement to an e xisting medical benefi t un der t hat 
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Medicare Advantage plan, most co mmonly a health maintenance o rganization pl an.  M edicare bene ficiaries 
generally have to pay a premium to enroll in a Part D Plan, with the premium amount varying from plan to plan, 
although C MS pr ovides va rious fe deral su bsidies t o Pa rt D Plans t o reduce t he c ost to be neficiaries.  E ffective 
January 1, 2006, Medicare beneficiaries who are also entitled to benefits under a state Medicaid program (so-called 
“dual eligibles”) have their prescription drug costs covered by the new Medicare drug benefit, unless they elect to 
opt out of Part D coverage.  Many nursing home residents Omnicare serves are dual eligibles, whose drug costs were 
previously covered by state Medicaid programs.  In 2 008, approximately 41% of Omnicare’s revenue was de rived 
from beneficiaries covered under the federal Medicare Part D program. 
 
CMS provides premium and cost-sharing subsidies to Part D Plans with respect to dual eligible residents of nursing 
homes.  Such dual  el igibles are not  re quired to pay  a pre mium fo r enroll ment in  a Part D Plan, so  long as the 
premium for the Part D Plan in which they are enrolled is at or below the premium subsidy, nor are they required to 
meet deductibles or pay copayment amounts.  Further, all dual eligibles who do not affirmatively enroll in a Part D 
Plan are automatically enrolled into a Prescription Drug Plan (“PDP”) by CMS on a random basis from among those 
PDPs meeting CMS criteria for lo w-income p remiums in th e PDP re gion, unless t hey el ect t o opt  out  o f Part  D 
coverage.  As is the case for any nursing home beneficiary,  such dual eligible beneficiaries may select a d ifferent 
Part D Pla n at  any tim e through t he Part D enrollment process.  Also, du al elig ibles who are qualifying covered 
retirees u nder an em ployer or union-sponsored q ualified ret iree prescription d rug pl an ( plans whi ch o ffer a n 
alternative t o Part D cov erage, supp orted by fed eral su bsidies to th e plan  sp onsor) will b e deemed t o have not 
enrolled in a Part D Plan  unless they affirmatively enroll in a Part D plan or contact CMS to indicate that they wish 
to b e au to-enrolled.  In su m, d ual elig ible residents of  nursing  ho mes are en titled to  hav e th eir prescription drug  
costs covered by a Part D Plan, provided that the prescription drugs which they are taking are either on t he Part D 
Plan’s formulary, or an exception to the plan’s formulary is granted.  CMS requires the formularies of Part D Plans 
to include the types of drugs most commonly needed by Medicare beneficiaries and to offer an exceptions process to 
provide coverage for medically necessary drugs.  

 
Pursuant t o t he fi nal Part  D  rul e, ef fective Janua ry 1, 2006, t he C ompany obt ains reim bursement fo r d rugs i t 
provides to enrollees of a given Part  D Plan in accorda nce with the ter ms of agreements negotiated be tween it and 
that Part D Plan.  The Company has entered into such agreements with nearly all Part D Plan  sponsors under which 
it will provide drugs and associated services to their enrollees.  The Company continues to have ongoing discussions 
with Pa rt D  Pl ans i n t he ordinary course.  Moreover, t he Co mpany may, as appr opriate, re negotiate agreements.  
Further, the proportion of the Company’s Part D business serviced under specific agreements may change over time 
based upon beneficiary choice, reassignment of dual eligibles to different Part D Plans or Part D Plan consolidation.  
Consequently, there can be no assurance that the reimbursement terms which currently apply to the Company’s Part 
D business will n ot change.  In  addition, as ex pected in the transition to a new program of this magnitude, certain 
administrative and payment issues have arisen, resulting in higher operating expenses, as well as ou tstanding gross 
accounts recei vable (net of allowances  for contract ual adjustm ents, and prior to any allowa nce for doubtful 
accounts), particularly for c opays.  As of Decem ber 31 , 2008, c opays outstandi ng from Part D Plans were 
approximately $19 million, relating to 2006 and 2007.  The Company is pursuing solutions, including legal actions 
against certain Part D payors, to c ollect outstanding copays, as well as c ertain rejected claims.  Pa rticipants in the 
long-term care pharmacy industry continue to address these issues with CMS and the Part D Plans and attempt to 
develop solutions.  Among other things, on January 12, 2009, CMS finalized a c hange in its regulations requiring 
Part D Plan sponsors to accept and act upon certain types of documentation, referred to as “best available evidence,” 
to co rrect copays fo r dual eligibles an d other lo w-income su bsidy elig ible b eneficiaries.  Ho wever, un til all  
administrative and payment issues are fu lly resolved, there can be no assurance that the im pact of the Part D drug 
benefit o n t he C ompany’s results o f operations, fi nancial po sition or cash flows will not  c hange based on t he 
outcome of any unforeseen future developments. 

 
The MMA does not change the manner in which Medicare pays for drugs for Medicare beneficiaries covered under 
a Medicare Part A st ay.  Th e Company cont inues to rece ive reimbursement for drugs provided to such residents 
from the SNFs, in accordance with the terms of the agreements it has negotiated with each SNF.  The Company also 
continues to receive reimbursement from the state Medicaid programs, albeit to a greatly reduced extent, for those 
Medicaid be neficiaries n ot el igible f or t he Part D program, i ncluding t hose u nder a ge 65 , a nd for certain d rugs 
specifically excluded from Medicare Part D. 
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CMS has i ssued su bregulatory gui dance on m any aspect s of t he Part  D pr ogram, incl uding t he pr ovision of 
pharmaceutical services to long-term  car e residents.  CM S ha s als o e xpressed s ome conce rns a bout pharmacies’ 
receipt of discounts, rebates and other price concessions from drug manufacturers.  Specifically, in a finalized “Call  
Letter” for the 2007 calendar year, CMS i ndicated that beginning in 2007 , Part D sponsors must have policies and 
systems in place, as part of their drug utilization m anagement programs, to protect beneficiaries and reduce c osts 
when long-term care pharmacies are subject to incentives to move market share through access/performance rebates 
from d rug m anufacturers.  Fo r th e purposes of m anaging and  m onitoring dru g u tilization, especially wh ere such 
rebates exist, CMS instructed Part D Plan sponsors to require pharmacies to disclose to the Part D Plan sponsor any 
discounts, reba tes and ot her di rect or i ndirect remuneration designed to di rectly or i ndirectly influence or i mpact 
utilization of Part D drugs.  The Company reported information specified by CMS with respect to rebates received 
by th e Co mpany fo r 2007 an d t he fi rst qu arter of 200 8 to  tho se Part D Plan s wh ich ag reed to  maintain th e 
confidentiality of such information.  On November 24, 2008, CMS announced that it is suspending collection of the 
long-term care pharmacy rebate data from Part D Plan sponsors for calendar years 2008 and 2009.  In stead, CMS 
intends to co llect d ifferent non-rebate i nformation to  focus p lan atten tion on network pharmacy co mpliance and 
appropriate drug utilization management.  The new data would include the number and the cost of formulary versus 
non-formulary drugs dispe nsed by each pharmacy (whether long-term  care or non-long-term care) i n the Part D 
Plan’s pharmacy network.  CMS will test th e proposed reporting requirements with a small n umber of Part D Plan 
sponsors prior to calendar year 2010, when the new reporting requirements will become effective.  CMS also issued 
a memo on November 25, 2008 reminding Part D Plan sponsors of the requirement to (1) provide convenient access 
to network long-term care pharm acies to all o f their enrollees residing in long-term care facilities, an d (2) exclude 
payment for drugs that are covered under a Medicare Part A stay that would otherwise satisfy the definition of a Part 
D drug.  The Company will continue to work with Part D Plan sponsors to ensure compliance with CMS’s evolving 
policies related to long-term care pharmacy services.  
 
On July 15, 2008, Congress enacted into law H.R. 6331, the "Medicare Improvements for Patients and Providers Act 
of 2008” (“MIPPA”).  The new law includes further reforms to the Part D program.  Among other things, from and 
after Janu ary 1, 2010, th e l aw r equires t hat long-term  care pha rmacies ha ve between 30 an d 90 d ays t o s ubmit 
claims to a Part D Plan.  C ommencing January 1, 20 09, the law also requires Par t D Plan sponsors to update the 
prescription drug pricing data they use to pay p harmacies no less frequently than every seven days.  The law also 
expands th e number o f Med icare beneficiaries wh o will b e en titled to  p remium an d co st-sharing subsidies by 
modifying previous income and asset requirements, eliminates late enrollment penalties for beneficiaries entitled to 
these sub sidies, an d limits the sales an d marketing activ ities in  wh ich Part D Plan  sp onsors may e ngage, among 
other things.  On Se ptember 18, 2 008, CMS published final regulations implementing many of t he MIPPA Part D 
provisions, an d t he age ncy pu blished an other i nterim final rul e wi th com ment peri od o n Jan uary 16 , 2 009 
implementing additional MIPPA pro visions related to drug fo rmularies and protected classes of drugs.  Ad ditional 
legislative proposals are pending before Congress that could further modify the Part D benefit, including proposals 
that could impact the payment available or pricing for drugs under Part D Pl ans.  The  Company cannot predict at 
this time whether such legislation will be enacted or the form any such legislation would take.  Th e Company can 
make no assurances that future Part D legislation would not impact its business. 
 
Moreover, CMS continues to issue guidance on and make other revisions to the Part D program.  The Company is 
continuing to monitor issues relating to imp lementation of th e Part D benefit, and until further agency guidance is 
known and  until al l ad ministrative and  paymen t issues associated with the transition to th is massive p rogram are  
fully resol ved, there can be no ass urance that the im pact of the Pa rt D rules,  fu ture leg islative ch anges, or th e 
outcome of ot her potential developments relating t o i ts implementation on ou r bu siness, resu lts of op erations, 
financial position or cash flows will not change based on the outcome of any unforeseen future developments. 
 
The MMA also changed the Medicare payment methodology and conditions for coverage of certain items of durable 
medical equipment prosthetics, orthotics, and supplies (“DMEPOS”) under Medicare Part B.  Approximately 1% of 
the C ompany’s re venue i s derived f rom b eneficiaries c overed under Medicare Pa rt B .  T he c hanges i nclude a 
temporary freeze i n a nnual i ncreases i n payments for  d urable m edical equi pment fro m 2004  t hrough 2 008, n ew 
clinical co nditions fo r p ayment, qu ality stan dards (applied  b y CMS-ap proved accred iting org anizations), and  
competitive b idding requ irements.  On  April 1 0, 2007, CMS issu ed a fin al ru le estab lishing the Med icare 
competitive bidding program.  On ly suppliers that are winning bidders will be eligible to provide competitively-bid 
items to M edicare be neficiaries i n t he sel ected areas.  Enteral n utrients, eq uipment and s upplies and oxygen 
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equipment and supplies we re among the 10 categories of DMEPOS included in t he first round of the competitive 
bidding program.  
 
In mid-2007, CMS conducted a first roun d of bidding for these 10 DMEPOS product categories in 10 competitive 
bidding areas , and C MS began a nnouncing winning bidders i n M arch 2008.  In l ight of c oncerns a bout 
implementation of t he bi dding p rogram, including C MS’ di squalification of m any bi ds base d u pon bi dders’ 
submission of allegedly incom plete financial documentation and the potential adverse impact on beneficiary access 
to certain types of DMEPOS, Congress has, through the enactment into law on July 15, 2008 of MIPPA, terminated 
the contracts awarded by CMS in the first round of competitive bidding, required that new bidding be conducted for 
the first round, and required certain reforms to the bidding process.  Among other things, the law requires CMS to 
rebid those areas in  2009, with bidding for round two delayed until 2011.  Th e delay will b e financed by reducing 
Medicare fee schedule payments for all items covered by the round one bidding program by 9.5 percent nationwide 
beginning January 1, 2009, followed by a 2 percent increase in 2014 (with certain exceptions).  The legislation also 
includes a seri es of procedural im provements t o t he bidding process, i ncluding requiring C MS t o n otify bi dders 
about paperwork discrepancies and providing suppliers with an opportunity to submit proper documentation, and it 
requires contracting suppliers to disclose all sub contracting relationships to CMS.  CMS published an interim final 
rule with  co mment p eriod to  im plement t he MIPPA com petitive b idding ch anges on Janu ary 1 6, 2 009.  Th e 
Company intends to participate in the new bidding process for round one, and is assessing the potential impact of the 
fee schedule reductions on its business. 
 
CMS requires  all existing DMEPOS suppliers to s ubmit proof of accreditation by a deem ed accreditation 
organization by September 30, 2009, although suppliers in the competitive bidding regions and new suppliers have 
been subject to earlier accredi tation deadlines.  MIPPA c odifies the require ment that all suppliers be accredited by 
September 30, 2009 and extends the accreditation requirement to companies that subcontract with contract suppliers 
under the competitive b idding program.  Th e Company in tends to comply with all accred itation requ irements for 
DMEPOS suppliers by the applicable deadline. 
 
On January 2, 2009, CMS published a final rule requiring certain Medicare DMEPOS suppliers to furnish CMS with 
a $50,000 s urety bond, although the required bond am ount will be hi gher fo r c ertain “hi gh-risk” suppliers with 
previous a dverse legal actions.  A sepa rate surety bon d will be requi red for each National Provi der Identifier 
obtained for DMEPOS billing purposes.  C MS has adopted exceptions to the surety bo nd requirement for certai n 
physicians and no n-physician practitioners, orthotic and prosthetic personnel, physical and occupational therapists, 
and government-operated s uppliers i n l imited ci rcumstances.  C MS di d n ot est ablish exce ptions f rom t he bo nd 
requirement for pharmacies or for nursing facilities that bill for Medicare DMEPOS services provided to their own 
residents.  Current suppliers must comply with the surety bond requirement by October 2, 2009, while new enrolling 
suppliers or suppliers seeking to  change ownership after th e effective da te must meet this requirement by May 4, 
2009.  We intend to comply with the surety bond requirement by the applicable deadline. 
 
With re spect t o Medicaid, t he BBA repealed the “B oren Am endment” fede ral pay ment st andard fo r M edicaid 
payments to nursing facilities, giving states greater latitude in setting payment rates for such facilities.  The law also 
granted states greater flexibility to establish Medicaid m anaged care programs without th e need to obtain a federal  
waiver.  Altho ugh th ese waiver programs g enerally ex empt in stitutional care, i ncluding nu rsing facilities an d 
institutional ph armacy serv ices, so me stat es d o use m anaged care principles in  th eir lo ng-term ca re prog rams.  
Likewise, the DRA includes several changes to the Medicaid program designed to rein in program  spending.  These 
include, am ong ot hers, st rengthening t he Medicaid asset t ransfer rest rictions for persons seeki ng t o qual ify for  
Medicaid long-term care coverage, which could, due to the timing of the penalty period, increase facilities’ exposure to 
uncompensated care.  Th is provision is ex pected to reduce Medicaid spending by an esti mated $2.4 billion over five 
years.  The law also gives states greater flexibility to expand access to home and community based services by allowing 
states to provide these services as an optional benefit without undergoing the waiver approval process, and i ncludes a 
new demonstration to encourage st ates to provide long-term care servi ces in a com munity setting to individuals who 
currently receive M edicaid servi ces i n nursi ng ho mes.  Together, t hese provisions coul d i ncrease state fundi ng for  
home and community-based services, while prompting states to cut funding for nursing facilities.  N o assurances can 
be given that state Med icaid programs ultimately will not change the reimbursement system for long-term care or 
pharmacy services in a way that adversely impacts the Company.   
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The DRA also changed the so-called federal upper limit payment rules for multiple source prescription drugs covered 
under Medicaid.  Like the current upper limit, it only applies to drug ingredient costs and does not include dispensing 
fees, which will continue to be determined by the states.  Fi rst, the DRA redefined a multiple source drug subject to 
the upper l imit rules to be a covered out patient drug t hat has at  l east one ot her drug  p roduct that i s therapeutically 
equivalent.  Th us, the federal upper l imit is triggered when there are t wo or m ore therapeutic equivalents, instead of 
three or more as was previ ously t he case.  Second, e ffective January  1, 2007, t he DR A changed t he federal  upper  
payment limit from 150 percent of the lowest published price for a drug (which is usually the average wholesale price) 
to 250 percent of the lowest average manufacturer price (“AMP”).  Congress expected these DRA provisions to reduce 
federal and st ate Medicaid spending by $8.4 billion over fi ve years.  On Jul y 17, 2007, C MS issued a final  rule with 
comment period to implement changes to the upper l imit rules.  Among other things, the final rule: established a new 
federal upper l imit cal culation for  multiple source dru gs b ased on 2 50 percent of t he lowest  AM P i n a dru g cl ass; 
required CMS to post AMP am ounts on its web site; and established a un iform definition for AMP.  Additionally, the 
final rule provided that sales of drugs to long-term care pharmacies for supply to NHs and ALFs (as well as associated 
discounts, rebates or o ther price concessi ons) are not  to be taken into account in determining AMP where such sal es 
can be identified with adequate documentation, and that any AMPs which are not at least 40% of the next highest AMP 
will not  be t aken i nto account  i n det ermining t he upper lim it amount ( the so-call ed “out lier” test).  However, on 
December 19, 2007, the United States District Court for t he District of C olumbia issued a prel iminary injunction that 
enjoins C MS from  implementing provi sions of t he Jul y 17, 20 07 r ule t o t he extent  t hat it aff ects Medicaid 
reimbursement rat es for ret ail pharmacies under t he Medicaid program.  The or der al so enjoins CMS from post ing 
AMP data on a publ ic website or di sclosing it to states.  As a result of t his preliminary injunction, CMS did not post 
AMPs or new upper l imit prices i n lat e December 2007 ba sed upon  t he Jul y 17, 200 7 f inal rul e desp ite i ts earlier 
planned timetable, and the schedule for states to implement the new upper limits has been delayed until further notice.  
Separately, on March 14, 2008, CMS published an interim final rule with comment period revising the Medicaid rebate 
definition of multiple source drug set forth in t he July 17, 2007 fi nal rule.  In short , the effect of the rule will be that 
federal upper l imits apply in all states unless the state finds that a parti cular generic drug is not available within that 
state.  While the rule’s effective date was April 14, 2008, it was subject to public co mment.  CMS also noted that the  
regulation is subject to the injunction by the United States District Court for the District of Columbia to the extent that 
it may affect Medicaid reimbursement rates for pharmacies.  On Oct ober 7, 2008, CMS published the final version of 
this rule, responding to public comments received on the March 14, 2008 regulation.  The final rule adopted the March 
2008 interim final rule with technical changes effecti ve November 6, 200 8, although it continues to be subject  to an 
injunction to the extent that it affects Medicaid pharmacy reimbursement rates.  Moreover, MIPPA delays the adoption 
of t he DR A’s new federal  upper l imit paym ent rul es for Medicaid based on AMP fo r multiple source drugs an d 
prevents CMS from publishing AMP data until October 1, 2009; until then,  upper limits will continue to be determined 
under the pre-DRA rules.  With the advent of Medicare Part D, the Company’s revenues from state Medicaid programs 
are substantially lower than has been the case previously.  However, some of the Company’s agreements with Part D  
Plans and other payors have incorporated the Medicaid upper l imit rules into the pricing mechanisms for prescription 
drugs.  Until the litigation regarding the final rule is resolved and new upper limit amounts are published by CMS, the 
Company cannot predict the impact of t he final rule on t he Company’s business.  Furt her, there can b e no assurance 
that f ederal upper l imit payments under pre-DR A rules, changes under t he DRA or ot her effort s by  payors to limit 
reimbursement for certain drugs will not adversely impact the Company’s business. 
 
MIPPA also seeks to promote e-prescribing by providing incentive payments for physicians and other practitioners 
paid under the Medicare physician fee schedule who are "successful electronic prescribers."  Specifically, successful 
electronic prescribers are to receive a 2 percent bonus during 2009 and 2010, a 1 percent bonus for 2011 and 2012 
and a 0.5 percent bonus for 2013; practitioners who are  not successful electronic prescribers are penalized by a 1 
percent reduction from the current fee schedule in 2012, a 1.5 percent reduction in 2013, and thereafter a 2 perce nt 
reduction.  CMS has announced that to be a successful electronic prescriber and to receive an incentive payment for 
the 2009 e-prescribing reporting year, an eligible professional must report, using a qualified e-prescribing system, 
one of three e-prescribing measures in at least 50% of the cases in which the measure is repo rtable by the eligible 
professional du ring 2009.  CMS h as issued  detailed guid elines on  t he sp ecifications fo r qualified e- prescribing 
systems.  The Company is closely monitoring developments related to this initiative, and will seek to make available 
systems unde r whi ch p rescribers m ay sub mit prescri ptions t o t he C ompany's ph armacies el ectronically so as t o 
enable them to qualify for the incentive payments. 
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Most recently, on February 17, 2009, President Obama signed into law the American Recovery and Reinvestment 
Act o f 2009.  This $79 0 billion eco nomic stimulus p ackage in cludes a number of health  care po licy p rovisions, 
including approximately $19 billion in funding for health information technology infrastructure and Medicare and 
Medicaid in centives to  en courage do ctors, h ospitals, and o ther providers to  u se health in formation tech nology to 
electronically ex change p atients’ health in formation.  The law also streng thens fed eral privacy an d security 
provisions to  protect p ersonally-identifiable h ealth in formation.  In  ad dition, th e leg islation in creases Fed eral 
Medical Assistan ce Percen tage (FM AP) payments b y a pproximately $87 b illion to h elp supp ort state Med icaid 
programs in the face of budget s hortfalls.  The law also te mporarily extends curre nt Medicai d prom pt paym ent 
requirements to nursing facility and hospital claims, requiring state Med icaid programs to reimburse providers for 
90 percent of claim s within 30 days of rec eipt and 99 percent of claims with in 90 days of receipt .  Om nicare is  
reviewing the new law and assessing the potential impact of the various provisions on the Company.  
 
Two other recent actions at the federal level could impact Medicaid payments to nursing facilities.  The Tax Relief 
and Health Care Act of 2006 modified several Medicaid policies including, among other things, reducing the lim it 
on Medicaid provider taxes from 6 percent to 5.5 percent from January 1, 2008 through September 30, 2011.  Th e 
Bush Administration had been expected to issue regulations calling for deeper cuts in this funding.  On February 22, 
2008, CMS published a final rule that implements this legislation, and makes other clarifications to the standards for 
determining the permissibility of provider tax arrangements.  O n June 30, 2008, President Bush signed into law a 
supplemental appropriations bill (P.L. 110-252) that imposes a moratorium on implementation of certain provisions 
of this rule until April 1, 2009.The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 extends this moratorium until 
July 1 , 2009.  Secon d, on Jan uary 18 , 2007, CMS pub lished a proposed ru le d esigned to  en sure t hat Med icaid 
payments to gove rnmentally-operated nursing facilities and certain other health care providers are based on act ual 
costs and that state financing arrangements are consistent with the Medicaid statute.  CMS estimates that the rule, if 
finalized, would save $120 million during the first year an d $3.87 billion over five years.  On  May 29, 2007, CMS 
published a final rule to implement this provision, but Congress blocked the rule for one year in an emergency fiscal 
year 200 7 sp ending b ill, H.R. 220 6.  The supp lemental appropriations bill, P.L. 110-252, fu rther ex tends t he 
moratorium on implementation of the rule through April 1, 2009.  The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 
2009 expresses the sense of Congress that the Secretary of Health and Human Services should not promulgate the 
provider cost limit rule, citing a ruling by the United States District Court for the District of Columbia that the final 
rule was “improperly promulgated.” 
 
Further, in  order to  rein i n h ealthcare costs, th e Co mpany an ticipates th at f ederal an d state gover nments w ill 
continue to review a nd asse ss alternate healthcare delivery system s, p ayment methodologies and  operational 
requirements fo r healthcare providers, in cluding l ong-term care faciliti es and  ph armacies.  Giv en t he con tinuous 
debate regarding the cost of healthcare, managed care, universal healthcare coverage, and other healthcare issues, 
the Company can not p redict with any d egree o f certainty what add itional h ealthcare in itiatives, if any, will b e 
implemented or th e effect any fu ture leg islation or regulation will h ave o n its business.  Fu rther, the Co mpany 
receives discounts, rebates and other price concessions from pharmaceutical manufacturers pursuant to contracts for 
the pu rchase of th eir pr oducts.  Th ere can  b e no assuran ce th at an y ch anges in  l egislation or regulations, or 
interpretations of cu rrent l aw, t hat w ould el iminate or s ignificantly reduce t he di scounts, reb ates and other p rice 
concessions that the Com pany receives  from manufacturers or that otherwise impact payment available for drugs  
under fede ral or st ate heal thcare pr ograms, wo uld n ot have a material adverse impact on the Com pany’s ove rall 
consolidated r esults o f operations, fi nancial po sition or cash flows.  L onger t erm, fu nding f or fe deral an d st ate 
healthcare programs must consider the aging of the population; the growth in enrollees as elig ibility is p otentially 
expanded; the escalation in drug costs owing to hi gher drug utilization among seniors; the impact of the Medicare 
Part D benefit for seniors; the introduction of ne w, more efficacious but a lso more expensive medications; and the 
long-term fin ancing of th e en tire Med icare p rogram.  Gi ven co mpeting n ational priorities, it re mains d ifficult to  
predict th e ou tcome an d im pact on  us of an y chang es i n h ealthcare policy relatin g t o the fu ture funding of the  
Medicare and Medicaid program s.  Furt her, Medica re, Medicaid and/ or private pay or rates for pharmaceutical 
supplies an d servi ces m ay not  cont inue t o be based on current m ethodologies or re main co mparable t o prese nt 
levels.  Any future healthcare legislation or regulation may adversely affect the Company’s business. 
 
Contract Research Organization Services. The clinical services performed by our CRO Services are subject to various 
regulatory requirements designed to ensure the quality and integrity of the data produced as a result of these services.   
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The i ndustry st andard for c onducting cl inical t esting i s em bodied i n t he goo d cl inical practi ce ("GCP") and 
Investigational New Dru gs ("IND") regul ations ad ministered by  the FDA.  R esearch conduct ed at  institutions 
supported by funds from the National Institutes of Heal th ("NIH") must also comply with multiple project assurance 
agreements an d gui delines ad ministered by t he NIH and the HHS Office  of Hu man Res earch Pro tection.  The  
requirements for facilities engaging in pharmaceutical, clinical trial, supply preparation, labeling and distribution are set 
forth i n t he GM P regul ations and i n GC P gui delines.  The U.S. and European Uni on (“EU”) al so recogni ze t he 
Guidelines for Good Clinical Practice adopted by the International Conference on Harmonization (“ICH”).  GCP, IND 
and CGMP regulations, and ICH guidelines, have been mandated by the FDA and the European Medicines Evaluation 
Agency (the "EMEA") and have been adopted by sim ilar regulatory au thorities in other countries.  GCP, IND and 
CGMP regul ations, and IC H gui delines, sti pulate requi rements for facil ities, equi pment, suppl ies and perso nnel 
engaged i n t he cond uct of st udies t o whi ch t hese regul ations appl y.  Th e regul ations requi re t hat writ ten, st andard 
operating procedures ("SOPs") are followed during the conduct of studies and for the recording, reporting and retention 
of study data and records.  To  help assure compliance, our CRO Services has a worldwide staff of experienced quality 
assurance professionals who perform the specific responsibility or responsibilit ies need ed for each project, such as 
negotiation of clinical tr ial agreements, data management, safety reviews, study monitoring, data auditing, or regul ar 
inspections of t esting procedures and faci lities, and any  combination of these responsi bilities.  The FD A and ot her 
regulatory authorities require that study results and data submitted to such authorities are based on studies conducted in 
accordance with GCP and IND provisions.  We may provide services that invoice one or more of these requirem ents, 
which include: 
 • complying with specific regulations governing the selection of qualified investigators; 
 • obtaining specific written commitments from the investigators; 
 • disclosure of financial conflicts of interest; 
 • verifying that patient informed consent is obtained; 
 • instructing investigators to maintain records and reports; 
 • verifying drug or device accountability; and 
 • permitting appropriate governmental authorities access to data and st udy sites for t heir review and 

inspection. 
 
Records for clinical studies must be maintained for specific periods for inspection by the FDA, EU or other authorities 
during audi ts.  Non-com pliance wit h GC P or IND requi rements can resul t in the di squalification of dat a collected 
during t he cl inical trial and may lead t o disqual ification of an i nvestigator or debar ment of a CRO if found t o be 
responsible for the violative conduct. 
 
Clinical study sponsors who engage a CRO for one or more CRO Services could be affected by  the CRO’s failure to 
comply with applicable laws and regulations.  For exam ple, a sponsor’s st udies could be terminated, study data could 
be cal led i nto quest ion and disqualified, or t he revi ew of  a spons or’s pending appl ications coul d be suspended.   
Therefore, a CRO could be subject to contractual and civil claims by sponsors for such fai lure.  Failure to adequately 
monitor a st udy as par t of CR O Services could also affect the FDA’s ab ility to monitor the safety of hu man subjects 
participating in clinical trials if, for example, the CRO fails to monitor an investigator who does not properly record or 
report t o cl inical st udy sponsors adverse event s.  Therefor e, we coul d be subject  t o ci vil cl aims fro m sponsors or 
subjects who might be injured during the study as a result of such failure. 
 
CRO Services' SOPs related to clinical studies are written in accordance with regulations and guidelines appropriate to 
a global standard with regional variations in the regions where they will be used, t hus helping to ensure co mpliance 
with GCP.  CRO Services also generally complies with a reasonable interpretation of the ICH Guideline for GCP, EU 
GCP regulations and U.S. GCP regulations for North America.  In addition, we believe that our CRO Services take into 
account the requirements of the federal Health In surance P ortability and  Accountability A ct o f 1996  ( “HIPAA”), 
which covers many clinical trial sites, and that our CRO Services employees have been trained to meet the standards 
of this legislation. 
 
Although we believe that we are i n compliance in al l material respects with federal , state and l ocal l aws, fai lure to  
comply coul d subject us t o deni al of t he ri ght t o conduct  business, fi nes, crim inal pe nalties and ot her enforcement 
actions. 
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Health Information Privacy, Security and Transaction Practices. The Company, along with the healthcare industry in 
general, i s i mpacted by fe deral l egislation kn own a s H IPAA.  HIPAA m andates, a mong ot her t hings, t hat t he 
Company comply with national standards for the exchange of health information in electronic form, in an effort to  
enhance the efficiency and si mplify th e administration of the healthcare  syst em with  resp ect to  certain  co mmon 
healthcare tra nsactions (the “Transaction Standards”).  HIP AA req uires the Com pany to establish and enforce 
privacy pol icies and p rocedures rel ating t o i ts uses and di sclosures of health i nformation an d t o pr ovide cert ain 
rights to  in dividuals as to  their p ersonal health  in formation (the “P rivacy St andards”).  HIP AA al so req uires t he 
Company to adopt security practices and procedures for the physical, electronic and administrative safeguarding of 
health information (the “Security Standards”).  The Company, along with most other health care providers and third 
party payors, has been required to comply with the Transaction Standards and the Privacy Standards since 2003, and 
with th e Secu rity Stan dards sin ce 20 05.  While HIPAA u ltimately is designed, in  part, to  red uce ad ministrative 
expenses within the healthcare system, the law has resulted in some costly changes for the industry.  The Company 
believes it is co mpliant with  the Tran saction Stan dards as  to HIPAA-re gulated electronic transactio ns, and  is not 
experiencing any HIPAA-related claims processing problems.  The Company has policies and procedures in place to 
adhere t o t he relevant o rganizational st ructure p rovisions o f t he P rivacy St andards i n o rder t hat t he C ompany’s 
business units an d divisions may u se an d d isclose health inform ation as p ermitted with in t he organ ization.  In 
addition, the Company has implemented policies and procedures designed to comply with the other requirements of 
the Privacy Standards.  As required by the Privacy Standards and the Security Standards, Omnicare has appointed a 
privacy and security officer.  The Privacy Standards require healthcare providers like Omnicare, to provide a notice 
describing patient’s privacy rights and the Company’s privacy practices to all of t he patients to whom we pr ovide 
healthcare products o r ser vices and t o p rovide pat ients cert ain righ ts as to  th eir h ealth in formation.  Om nicare’s 
Employee Reti rement Income Security Act health benefit plans are als o subject to the  applicable requirements of 
HIPAA in the course of plan operations.  In January 2004, the federal government published a rule announcing the 
adoption of the National Provider Identifier (“NPI”) as the standard unique health identifier for healthcare providers 
to use in filing and processing healthcare claims and other transactions.  Compliance with this rule was required as 
of May 23 , 2007.  The Company has obtained the NPIs fo r its  locations as th ey have become due.  In addition to 
HIPAA, t he C ompany wo rks to  en sure t hat it ad heres to state pri vacy laws a nd ot her state privac y or health 
information requirements not preempted by HIPAA, including those which furnish greater privacy protection for the 
individual than HIPAA.  Such laws include, but are not limited to, laws that, in general terms, require organizations 
that maintain p ersonal in formation o f i ndividuals, su ch as their social security nu mbers and driver’s licens e 
numbers, to notify each individual if t heir personal information is access ed or acquired by an unauthorized person.  
Significant penalties are provided by most states for violation of these laws.  State and  federal regulations designed 
to prevent or mitigate financial and medical identity theft are expected to increase and the Company will be required 
to c omply.  I n a ddition, t here ca n be no assurance t hat t he l oss o r i mproper e xposure of personal dat a by t he 
Company will not adversely impact the business and prospects of the Company nor result in possible civil litigation 
by customers and affected individuals.  
 
On January 16, 2009, HHS published a final rule adopting new code sets to be used by the public and private sectors 
for re porting di agnoses an d i npatient p rocedures i n health care transac tions under HIPAA, effective October 1, 
2013.  Sp ecifically, th e ru le ad opts th e In ternational Classificatio n o f Diseases, Ten th Revisio n, Clin ical 
Modification (“ICD-10-CM”) for diagnosis coding, and the International Classification of Diseases, Tenth Revision, 
Procedure Coding System (“ICD-10-PCS”) for inpatient hospital procedure coding.  HHS expects adoption of the 
new code sets to support value-based purchasing, enhance payment accuracy, and result in significant savings to the 
health care sy stem.  Th e C ompany will n eed to  m odify its b illing so ftware and  cl aims p rocessing system s t o 
accommodate these c hanges.  T he sec ond final rule published Janua ry 16, 2009 a dopts update d versions of t he 
HIPAA sta ndards for certa in electronic health ca re transactions, i ncluding the pharm acy claims transactions 
standard.  The rule also adopts a standard for Medicaid pharmacy subrogation transactions, a process through which 
State Medicaid age ncies rec oup paym ents for pharm acy services in cas es whe re a th ird party pay er has p rimary 
financial resp onsibility.  Th e co mpliance date for im plementing th e pharmacy transaction stan dard an d Med icaid 
pharmacy subrogation standard is January 1, 2012.  The Company is assessing the impact of the new code sets and 
transaction standards on its operations. 
 
The Fe deral T rade C ommission (“ FTC”) i n co njunction with ot her federal age ncies has p ublished a Fi nal R ule 
implementing provisions o f t he Fai r and Accurate Credit Transactions Act o f 2003 which required, among other 
things, that “creditors” with “covered accounts” implement a written plan to identify and detect indicators of identity 
theft (referred to in the FTC’s Final Rule as “red flags”) and to take steps to prevent or mitigate identity theft.  The 
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date for compliance with the Final Rule, originally November 1, 2008, was extended by the FTC to May 1 , 2009. 
Civil monetary penalties can be assessed against a creditor who fails to comply with the Final Rule.  Omnicare, like 
most health care providers, is a “cred itor” within the meaning of the Final Rule and maintains “covered accounts”.  
The Company is in the process of estab lishing a plan to identify, detect and respond to indicators of identity theft 
from its in formation systems and  exp ects to  satisfy all  the requ irements o f the Final Rule on  or b efore the 
compliance deadline. 
 

The scope of the Company’s operations involving health and other personal information is broad and the nature of 
those operations is complex.  Although we believe the Company’s contract arrangements with healthcare payors and 
providers a nd our business practices ar e m aterially in  co mpliance with app licable federal and state electronic  
transmission, privacy and security of health information laws, the requirements of these laws, including HIPAA, are 
complicated an d are sub ject to  in terpretation.  In  add ition, state reg ulation of m atters also cov ered by HIPAA, 
especially the Privacy Sta ndards, is inc reasing, and determining wh ich state laws ar e preem pted by HI PAA i s a  
matter of interpretation.  Failure to comply with HIPAA or similar state laws could subject the Company to loss of 
customers, liti gation by or on  b ehalf of ind ividuals, denial o f th e right to  co nduct busin ess, civ il d amages, fin es, 
criminal penalties and other enforcement actions.   

Moreover, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, signed into law on February 17, 2009, includes a 
number of provisions to strengthen federal privacy and security provisions to protect personally-identifiable health 
information.  Among other things, the law applies HIPAA security provisions and penalties to business associates of 
covered entities; requi res certain notifications in the event of a security breac h i nvolving protected health 
information; restricts certain  unauthorized disclosures and sales of health information; clarifies treatment of certain  
marketing activities; and strengthens enforcement activities.  Many of the i mplementation requirements associated 
with these provisions will be detailed in future regulations.  The Company currently is assessing the potential impact 
of t hese ne w privacy an d se curity pr ovisions o n i ts o perations.  Omnicare canno t pred ict at th is ti me th e co sts 
associated with compliance, or the im pact of the new requirements on the Company’s results of ope rations, cash 
flows or financial condition. 

 
Compliance Program. The Office of Inspector General (“OIG”) has issued guidance to various sectors of the healthcare 
industry to help provi ders desi gn effect ive voluntary co mpliance program s to prevent fraud, wast e and abuse i n 
healthcare programs, including Medicare and Medicaid.  In addition, the Company and its operating units are subject in 
the ordi nary course of business t o audit , co mpliance, ad ministrative an d i nvestigatory reviews by  federal  and st ate 
authorities covering various aspects of its business.  In 1998, O mnicare voluntarily adopted a co mpliance program to 
assist us in complying with applicable government regulations, and the Company continues to maintain and support its 
compliance program.  In 200 6, the Company entered into two corporate integr ity agreements each requi ring, among 
other things, that the Company maintain its compliance program in accordance with the terms of the agreement. 
 
See “Risk Factors” and “Legal Proceedings” at Items 1A and 3, respectively, of this Filing for further discussion. 
 
Environmental Matters 
 
In operat ing our faci lities, historically we h ave not  enco untered any  major difficulties in effecting compliance with  
applicable pollution control laws.  No m aterial capital expenditures for envi ronmental control facilities are expected.   
While we cannot  predi ct the effect  which any  fut ure legi slation, regul ations or i nterpretations may h ave upon o ur 
operations, we do  not  ant icipate any  chang es regardi ng p ollution cont rol l aws t hat woul d have a m aterial adverse 
impact to Omnicare. 
 
Employees 
 
At Decem ber 31, 2 008, we em ployed approxi mately 17,200 persons  (i ncluding a pproximately 1,800 part-time 
employees), of which approximately 16,550 are located within, and approximately 650 outside of, the U.S. 



 22

Available Information 
 
We make available, free of charge, on or through our Corporate Web site, at www.omnicare.com, our annual reports on 
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to those reports, as soon 
as reasonably practicable after such material is e lectronically fi led wi th t he Securi ties and Exchange Co mmission 
(“SEC”).  Ad ditionally, the public may read and copy  an y materials we fi le wit h the SEC  at  the SEC ’s Publi c 
Reference Room at 100 F St reet, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C., 20549.  Information regarding operation of the 
Public Reference Room is available by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.  Information that we fi le with the SEC is 
also available at the SEC’s Web site at www.sec.gov. 
 
We also post on our Corporate Web site the following corporate governance documents and committee charters: 
 

• Corporate Governance Guidelines 
• Code of Business Conduct and Ethics 
• Code of Ethics for the CEO and Senior Financial Officers 
• Audit Committee Charter 
• Compensation and Incentive Committee Charter 
• Executive Committee Charter 
• Nominating and Governance Committee Charter 

 
Copies of these documents are also available in print to any stockholder who requests them by writing our Corporate 
Secretary at: 
 
  O mnicare, Inc. 
  1600 RiverCenter II 
  100 East RiverCenter Boulevard 
  Covington, Kentucky  41011 
 
ITEM 1A. - RISK FACTORS 
 
Risks Relating to Our Business 
 
If we or our client fa cilities fa il to  co mply with Med icaid and Medica re reg ulations, our revenue co uld b e 
reduced, we could be subject to penalties and we could lose our eligibility to participate in these programs.  
 
Historically, prior to Part D, approximately one-half of our pharmacy services billings were d irectly reimbursed by 
government sponsored programs (including Medicaid and, to a lesser extent, Medicare).  Beginning January 1, 2006, 
the prescription drug benefit under Part D became effective.  As a resu lt, we experienced a shift in payor mix (as a  
% of ann ual sales) in 200 6, such that payments under Part D now represent approximately 41% of total Company 
revenues for t he year e nded Decem ber 31, 2008.  In particular, Me dicare be neficiaries who are also e ntitled to 
benefits under a state Medicaid program (so-called “dual eligibles”), including the nursing home residents we serve 
whose drug costs were previously covered by state Medicaid programs, now have their outpatient prescription drug 
costs covered by the Medicare drug benefit.  In 2005, the year immediately preceding Part D, approximately 46% of 
our r evenue was d erived from b eneficiaries co vered under  state Med icaid p rograms.  U nder t he Par t D  b enefit, 
payment is determined in accordance with the agreements we have negotiated with the Part D Plans.  The remainder 
of our billings are paid or reimbursed by individual residents, long-term care facilities an d other third party payors, 
including private insurers.  A portion of these revenues also are indirectly dependent on government programs. 
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The t able b elow re presents our a pproximated pay or m ix (as a % o f an nual sal es) f or t he l ast t hree y ears en ded 
December 31,: 
 

2008 2007 2006
Private pay, third-party and facilities (a)  44% 43% 43%
Federal Medicare program (Part D & Part B) (b)  42% 43% 42%
State Medicaid programs 10% 10% 12%
Other sources (c)  4% 4% 3%

Totals 100% 100% 100%

(a) Includes payments from SNFs on behalf of their federal Medicare program-eligible residents (Medicare 
Part A) and for other services and supplies, as well as payments from third-party insurers and private pay.

(b) Includes direct billing for medical supplies under Part B totaling 1% in each of the 2008, 2007 and 2006
years.

(c) Includes our contract research organization.

The Medicaid and Medicare programs are highly regulated.  The fai lure, even if inadvertent, of us and/or our client 
facilities to comply with applicable regulations could adversely affect our reimbursement under these programs and 
our ab ility to  continue to  participate in  t hese programs.  As previously disclosed in “Gov ernment Reg ulation” at  
Item 1  o f th is Filin g, our clien t lo ng-term care facilities  are requ ired to b e certified to b e in  co mpliance with 
requirements p ertaining to  participation in  th e Med icare an d Med icaid p rograms.  Facilit ies are su rveyed fo r 
compliance wi th th ese progra m requ irements.  On Dece mber 18, 20 06, CMS issued fi nal up dated Gui dance to 
Surveyors on Long Term Care regarding the survey protocol for review of pharmacy services provided in long-term 
care facilities participating in the Medicare and Medicaid programs.  The guidelines expanded the areas and detail in 
which surveyors assess pharmacy services at the facility, including ordering, acquiring, receiving, storing, labeling, 
dispensing and disposing of all medications at the facility; the provision of medication-related information to health 
care p rofessionals an d resi dents; t he pr ocess of i dentifying an d ad dressing m edication-related i ssues t hrough 
medication regi men rev iews and co llaboration b etween the licensed consu ltant pharmacist, th e facilit y an d o ther 
healthcare professionals; and the provision, monitoring and use of medication-related devices.  The guidelines also 
emphasize the important role of consultative services of pharmacists in promoting safe and effective medication use 
through the coordination of all asp ects of pharmacy services provided to all resid ents within a facility.  Wh ile the 
Company has ext ensive policies and pr ocedures i nvolving t he provisions of pharmacy servi ces and c onsulting 
pharmacist serv ice to  long-term care faciliti es, there can  be no assurance that the increased requirements and the 
enhanced focus on pharmacy services by government surveyors will not have an adverse impact on the Company's 
clients or on the Company's businesses.  In addition, our failure to comply with applicable Medicare and Medicaid 
regulations could subject us to other penalties.  
 
Continuing efforts to contain healthcare costs may reduce our future revenue.  
 
Our sales and profitability are affected by the efforts of healthcare payors to contain or reduce the cost of healthcare 
by l owering r eimbursement rat es, l imiting t he scope of co vered ser vices, a nd negotiating re duced o r ca pitated 
pricing ar rangements.  A ny changes which lower reimbursement l evels under Medicare, Medicaid o r p rivate pay 
programs, including managed care contracts, could reduce our future revenue.  Furthermore, other changes in these 
reimbursement pr ograms or i n rel ated r egulations co uld reduce our f uture re venue.  T hese cha nges may i nclude 
modifications in the timing or processing of payments and other changes intended to limit or decrease the growth of 
Medicare, Med icaid or th ird p arty exp enditures.  In  add ition, our profitability may b e ad versely affected  b y an y 
efforts of our suppliers to shift healthcare costs by increasing the net prices on the products we obtain from them.  
 
Federal a nd s tate heal thcare l egislation has si gnificantly i mpacted our b usiness, and fut ure l egislation a nd 
regulations are likely to affect us.  
 
In recent y ears, fe deral l egislation has r esulted i n m ajor cha nges i n t he heal thcare s ystem, whi ch significantly 
affected healthcare p roviders.  The BBA m andated a PPS for Medicare-eligible res idents of SNFs.  Under PPS, 
Medicare pays SNFs a fixed fee per patient per day based upon the acuity level of the resident, covering substantially 
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all items and services furnished during a Medicare-covered stay, including pharmacy services.  PPS initially resulted in 
a significant reduction of reimbursement to SNFs.  C ongress subsequently sought to restore some of the reductions in 
reimbursement resulting from PPS.  One provision gave SNFs a temporary rate increase for certain specific high-acuity 
patients beginning Apri l 1, 2 000, and  ending when C MS implemented a refined pat ient cl assification system under 
PPS.  For several years, CMS did not im plement such refi nements, thus continuing the additional rate  increase for  
certain high-acuity patients through federal fiscal year 2005. 
 
In the SNF PPS rule for fiscal year 2006, CMS added ni ne patient classif ication cat egories to the PPS patien t 
classification system, thus triggering the expiration of the high-acuity payments add-ons.  The new patient classification 
refinements became effective on January 1,  2006.  F or fiscal year 2007, SNFs received  the full 3.1 percent market 
basket i ncrease t o rat es, i ncreasing payments t o SNFs by  approximately $560 million.  For fi scal year 200 8, SNFs  
received a 3.3 percent market basket increase, increasing Medicare payments to SNFs by approximately $690 million.  
On August 8, 2008, CMS published the Medicare SNF PPS final rule for fiscal year 2009, which includes a 3.4 percent 
inflation update that increases overall payments to SNFs by $780 m illion.  CMS did not adopt a provision included in 
its May 7, 2008 proposed rule to recalib rate case mix weights to compensate for increased expenditures resulting fr om 
refinements made in Ja nuary 2006, which would have cu t overall SNF PPS payments by $770 million in fiscal year 
2009.  The rule also addresses several SNF policy issues, including, among others, revisions to the Minimum Data Set, 
development o f an i ntegrated post -acute paym ent sy stem, rehabilitative services in SNFs, and consoli dated bil ling. 
While recent rul emakings have not  decreased paym ents to SNFs, reim bursement chan ges coul d be adopt ed i n t he 
future that could have an a dverse effect on the financial condition of the Company’s SNF cl ients which could, in 
turn, adversely affect the timing or level of their payments to Omnicare.   
 
Moreover, t he DR A, e nacted i n 2 006, p rovided f or re ductions i n net M edicare a nd M edicaid spending of 
approximately $11 billion over five years.  Am ong other things, t he le gislation reduced Medicare SNF bad de bt 
payments by 30 percent for those individuals who are not dually eligible for Medicare and Medicaid.  This provision 
was expected to reduce payments to SNFs by $100 million over five years (fiscal years 2006-2010).  Separately, on 
August 1, 2007 , the House of Representatives approved H.R. 3162, the Children’s Health and Medicare Protection 
Act of 2007, that included a number of Medicare policy changes , including a freeze i n fiscal year 2008 SNF PPS  
rates at fiscal year 200 7 levels.  While the v ersion of th e bill th at u ltimately p assed Con gress did no t in clude 
Medicare provisions i mpacting S NF rei mbursement, C ongress may y et co nsider t hese an d other proposals i n t he 
future that would further restrict Medicare funding for SNFs.   
 
In December 2003, Congres s enacted the MMA whic h included a m ajor e xpansion of the Me dicare pre scription 
drug benefit under a new Medicare Part D.  
 
Under the Medicare Part  D prescription drug benefit, Medicare beneficiaries may enroll in Pa rt D Pl ans.  Pa rt D 
Plans include both plans providing the drug benefit on a stand alone basis and Medicare Advantage plans providing 
drug coverage as a supplement to an existing medical benefit under that Medicare Advantage plan, most commonly 
a health maintenance organization plan.  Medicare beneficiaries generally have to pay a premium to enroll in a Part 
D Plan, with the prem ium amount varying from  plan to pl an, although CMS provide s various federal subsidies to 
Part D Plans  to re duce the cost to beneficiaries.  E ffective January 1, 2006, Medicare beneficiaries who a re also 
entitled to  benefits und er a state Med icaid program (so-called “du al eligibles”) have th eir prescription dru g costs 
covered by the new M edicare drug benefit, unless they elect to opt  out of Part D c overage.  M any nursing home 
residents Omnicare serves are dual eligibles, whose drug costs were previously covered by state Medicaid programs.  
In 2008, ap proximately 41 % of Omnicare’s re venue w as deri ved from benefi ciaries cove red u nder t he fe deral 
Medicare Part D program. 
 
CMS provides premium and cost-sharing subsidies to Part D Plans with respect to dual eligible residents of nursing 
homes.  Such dual  el igibles are not  re quired to pay  a pre mium fo r enroll ment in  a Part D Plan, so  long as the 
premium for the Part D Plan in which they are enrolled is at or below the premium subsidy, nor are they required to 
meet deductibles or pay copayment amounts.  Further, all dual eligibles who do not affirmatively enroll in a Part D 
Plan a re a utomatically enro lled i nto a P DP by  C MS o n a ra ndom bas is fr om am ong t hose P DPs meeting C MS 
criteria for low-income premiums in the PDP region unless they elect to opt out of Part D coverage.  As is the ca se 
for any  nursing home beneficiary , such dual elig ible beneficiaries may select a different Part D Plan at any time  
through the Part D en rollment process.  Also , dual eligibles who are qualifying covere d retirees under an employer 
or union-sponsored q ualified ret iree presc ription drug pl an ( plans w hich o ffer an al ternative t o Pa rt D cove rage 
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supported by federal subsidies to the plan sponsor) will b e deemed to have elected not to  enroll in a Part D p lan, 
unless they affirmatively enroll in a Part D plan or contact CMS to indicate they wish to be auto-enrolled.  In  sum, 
dual eligible residents of nursing homes are en titled to have their prescription drug costs covered by a Part D Plan, 
provided that the prescription drugs which they are taking are either on the Part D Plan’s  formulary, or an exception 
to the plan’s formulary is granted.  CMS requires the formularies of Part D Plans to include the types of drugs most 
commonly needed by Medicare beneficiaries and t o offer an exce ptions process to provide coverage for medically 
necessary drugs.  

 
Pursuant t o t he Part  D final rul e, e ffective Janu ary 1 , 2 006, we obtain rei mbursement f or drugs we p rovide t o 
enrollees of a given Part D Plan in accordance with the te rms of agreements negotiated between us and that Part D 
Plan.  We have entered into such agreements with nearly all Part D Plan sponsors under which we provide drugs and 
associated services to thei r enrollees.  We continue to have ongoing discussions with Part D Plans in the ordinary 
course.  Moreover, we may, as appropriate, renegotiate agreements.  Fur ther, the proportion of our Part D business 
serviced under specific a greements may change over time base d u pon beneficiary ch oice, rea ssignment of dual 
eligibles to different Part D Plans or Part D Plan consolidation.  Co nsequently, there can be no ass urance that the 
reimbursement terms which currently apply to our Part D business will not change.  In  addition, as expected in the 
transition to a new program of this magnitude, certain administrative and payment issues have arisen, resulting in  
higher operating e xpenses, as well as outstanding gross accounts rece ivable (n et of allowances for c ontractual 
adjustments, and prior to any allowance for doubtful accounts), particularly for copays.  As of December 31, 2008, 
copays outstanding from Part D Plans were approximately $19 million relating to 2006 and 2007.  The Company is 
pursuing solutions, including legal act ions against certain Part D payors, to collect outstanding copays, as w ell as 
certain rejected claims.  Part icipants in the long-term care pharmacy industry continue to address these issues with 
CMS and t he Part  D Pl ans and at tempt to devel op sol utions.  Am ong ot her t hings, on Ja nuary 1 2, 20 09, C MS 
finalized a change i n its regulations  re quiring Pa rt D Plan spons ors to accept and act upon ce rtain types of 
documentation, referred to as “best available evidence,” to correct co-pays for dual eligibles, and other low-income 
subsidy eligible beneficiaries.  However, until all administrative and payment issues are fully resolved, there can be 
no assurance that the impact of the Part D Drug benefit on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows 
will not change based on the outcome of any unforeseen future developments. 

 
The MMA does not change the manner in which Medicare pays for drugs for Medicare beneficiaries covered under 
a Medicare Part A stay.  We continue to receive reimbursement for drugs provided to such residents from the SNFs, 
in accordance with the term s of the  agreements we have negotiated with each SNF.  We also continue to recei ve 
reimbursement from the state Medicaid programs, albeit to a greatly reduced extent, for those Medicaid beneficiaries 
not eligible for the Part D p rogram, including those under age 65, and for certai n drugs specifically excluded from 
Medicare Part D. 
 
CMS has i ssued su bregulatory gui dance on m any aspect s of t he Part  D pr ogram, incl uding t he pr ovision of 
pharmaceutical services to long-term  car e residents.  CM S ha s als o e xpressed s ome conce rns a bout pharmacies’ 
receipt of discounts, rebates and other price concessions from drug manufacturers.  Specifically, in a finalized “Call  
Letter” for the 2007 calendar year, CMS i ndicated that beginning in 2007 , Part D sponsors must have policies and 
systems in place, as part of their drug utilization m anagement programs, to protect beneficiaries and reduce c osts 
when long-term care pharmacies are subject to incentives to move market share through access/performance rebates 
from d rug m anufacturers.  Fo r th e purposes of m anaging and  m onitoring dru g u tilization, especially wh ere such 
rebates exist, CMS instructed Part D Plan sponsors to require pharmacies to disclose to the Part D Plan sponsor any 
discounts, reba tes and ot her di rect or i ndirect remuneration designed to di rectly or i ndirectly influence or i mpact 
utilization of Part D drugs.  The Company reported information specified by CMS with respect to rebates received 
by th e Co mpany fo r 2007 an d t he fi rst qu arter of 200 8 to  tho se Part D Plan s wh ich ag reed to  maintain th e 
confidentiality of such information.  On November 24, 2008, CMS announced that it is suspending collection of the 
long-term care pharmacy rebate data from Part D Plan sponsors for calendar years 2008 and 2009.  In stead, CMS 
intends to co llect d ifferent non-rebate i nformation to  focus p lan atten tion on network pharmacy co mpliance and 
appropriate drug utilization management.  The new data would include the number and the cost of formulary versus 
non-formulary drugs dispe nsed by each pharmacy (whether long-term  care or non-long-term care) i n the Part D 
Plan’s pharmacy network.  CMS will test th e proposed reporting requirements with a small n umber of Part D Plan 
sponsors prior to calendar year 2010, when the new reporting requirements will become effective.  CMS also issued 
a memo on November 25, 2008 reminding Part D Plan sponsors of the requirement to (1) provide convenient access 
to network long-term care pharm acies to all o f their enrollees residing in long-term care facilities, an d (2) exclude 
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payment for drugs that are covered under a Medicare Part A stay that would otherwise satisfy the definition of a Part 
D drug.  The Company will continue to work with Part D Plan sponsors to ensure compliance with CMS’s evolving 
policies related to long-term care pharmacy services.  
 
On July 15, 2008, Congress enacted into law MIPPA.  The new law includes further reforms to the Part D p rogram.  
Among other things, from and after January 1, 2010, the law requires that long-term care pharmacies have between 
30 and 90 days to submit claims to a Part D Plan.  Commencing January 1, 2009, the law also requires Part D Plan 
sponsors to update the prescription drug pricing data they use to pay pharmacies no less frequently than every seven 
days.  The law also expands the number of Medicare beneficiaries who will be entitled to premium and cost-sharing 
subsidies by modifying previous inco me and  asset requirements, eli minates late enro llment p enalties for  
beneficiaries entitled to these subsidies, and limits the sales and marketing activities in which Part D Plan sponsors 
may engage, among other things.  On September 18, 2008, CMS published final regulations implementing many of 
the MIPPA Part D provisions, and the agency published another interim final rule with comment period on January 
16, 2 009 implementing additional MIPPA pr ovisions rel ated t o dr ug f ormularies and pr otected cl asses of d rugs.  
Additional legislative proposals are pending before Congress that could further modify the Part D benefit, including 
proposals that could impact the payment available or pricing for drugs under Part D Plans.  We cannot predict at this 
time wh ether such leg islation will b e en acted o r t he form  an y su ch leg islation would  tak e.  We can m ake n o 
assurances that future Part D legislation would not impact our business. 
 
Moreover, CMS continues to issue guidance on an d make revisions to the Part D program.  W e are cont inuing to 
monitor issues relating to implementation of the Part D benefit, and until further agency guidance is known and until 
all administrative and payment issues associated with the transition to this massive program are fully resolved, there 
can be no assurance that the impact of the Part D rules, future legislative changes, or the outcome of other potential 
developments relating to its i mplementation on our business, results of operations, financial position or cash flows 
will not change based on the outcome of any unforeseen future developments. 
 
The M MA al so cha nged t he M edicare pa yment methodology and c onditions f or co verage o f cert ain i tems of  
DMEPOS under Medicare Part B.  A pproximately 1% of  our revenue is derived from beneficiaries covered under 
Medicare Pa rt B.  The c hanges incl ude a temporary freeze in annual i ncreases in payments for durable m edical 
equipment from  2004 through 2008, new clinical conditions for paym ent, quality standa rds (a pplied by CMS-
approved accrediting organizations), and competitive bidding requirements.  On April 10, 2007, CMS issued a final 
rule establishing the Medicare competitive bidding program.  Only suppliers that are winning bidders will be eligible 
to provide competitively-bid items to Medicare beneficiaries in the selected areas.  Enteral nutrients, equipment and 
supplies and oxygen equipment and supplies were among the 10 categories of DMEPOS included in the first round 
of the competitive bidding program. 
 
In mid-2007, CMS conducted a first roun d of bidding for these 10 DMEPOS product categories in 10 competitive 
bidding areas , and C MS began a nnouncing winning bidders i n M arch 2008.  In l ight of c oncerns a bout 
implementation of t he bi dding p rogram, including C MS’ di squalification of m any bi ds base d u pon bi dders’ 
submission of allegedly incom plete financial documentation and the potential adverse impact on beneficiary access 
to certain types of DMEPOS, Congress has, through the enactment into law on July 15, 2008 of MIPPA, terminated 
the contracts awarded by CMS in the first round of competitive bidding, required that new bidding be conducted for 
the first round, and required certain reforms to the bidding process.  Among other things, the law requires CMS to 
rebid those areas in  2009, with bidding for round two delayed until 2011.  Th e delay will b e financed by reducing 
Medicare fee schedule payments for all items covered by the round one bidding program by 9.5 percent nationwide 
beginning January 1, 2009, followed by a 2 percent increase in 2014 (with certain exceptions).  The legislation also 
includes a seri es of procedural im provements t o t he bidding process, i ncluding requiring C MS t o n otify bi dders 
about paperwork discrepancies and providing suppliers with an opportunity to submit proper documentation, and it 
requires contracting suppliers to disclose all sub contracting relationships to CMS.  CMS published an interim final 
rule with comment period to implement the MIPPA competitive bidding changes on January 16, 2009.  We intend to 
participate i n t he ne w bi dding pr ocess for ro und o ne, a nd are assessing  th e po tential i mpact of the fee schedule  
reductions on its business. 
 
CMS requires all existing DMEPOS to s ubmit proof of accreditation by a deemed accreditation organization by 
September 30, 2009, although suppliers in the competitive bidding regions and new suppliers have been subject to 
earlier accreditation deadlines.  MIPPA c odifies the requirement that all suppliers be accredited by September 30,  
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2009 and exte nds t he accre ditation requir ement to com panies that subcont ract with contract suppli ers unde r the 
competitive bidding program.  We intend t o comply with all accre ditation requirements for DMEPOS suppliers by 
the applicable deadline. 
 
On January 2, 2009, CMS published a final rule requiring certain Medicare DMEPOS suppliers to furnish CMS with 
a $50,000 s urety bond, although the required bond am ount will be hi gher fo r c ertain “hi gh-risk” suppliers with 
previous a dverse legal actions.  A sepa rate surety bon d will be requi red for each National Provi der Identifier 
obtained for DMEPOS billing purposes.  C MS has adopted exceptions to the surety bo nd requirement for certai n 
physicians and n onphysician practitioners, orthotic and pros thetic personnel, physical and  occupational therapists, 
and government-operated s uppliers i n l imited ci rcumstances.  C MS di d n ot est ablish exce ptions f rom t he bo nd 
requirement for pharmacies or for nursing facilities that bill for Medicare DMEPOS services provided to their own 
residents.  Current suppliers must comply with the surety bond requirement by October 2, 2009, while new enrolling 
suppliers or suppliers seeking to  change ownership after th e effective da te must meet this requirement by May 4, 
2009.  The Company intends to comply with the surety bond requirement by the applicable deadline. 
 
With re spect t o Medicaid, t he BBA repealed the “B oren Am endment” fede ral pay ment st andard fo r M edicaid 
payments to nursing facilities, giving states greater latitude in setting payment rates for such facilities.  The law also 
granted states greater flexibility to establish Medicaid m anaged care programs without th e need to obtain a federal  
waiver.  Altho ugh th ese waiver programs g enerally ex empt in stitutional care, i ncluding nu rsing facilities an d 
institutional ph armacy serv ices, so me stat es d o use m anaged care principles in  th eir lo ng-term ca re prog rams.  
Likewise, the DRA includes several changes to the Medicaid program designed to rein in program  spending.  These 
include, am ong ot hers, st rengthening t he Medicaid asset t ransfer rest rictions for persons seeki ng t o qual ify for  
Medicaid long-term care coverage, which could, due to the timing of the penalty period, increase facilities’ exposure to 
uncompensated care.  Th is provision is ex pected to reduce Medicaid spending by an esti mated $2.4 billion over five 
years.  The law also gives states greater flexibility to expand access to home and community based services by allowing 
states to provide these services as an optional benefit without undergoing the waiver approval process, and i ncludes a 
new demonstration to encourage st ates to provide long-term care servi ces in a com munity setting to individuals who 
currently receive M edicaid servi ces i n nursi ng ho mes.  Together, t hese provisions coul d i ncrease state fundi ng for  
home and community-based services, while prompting states to cut funding for nursi ng facilities.  No assurances can 
be given that state Med icaid programs ultimately will not change the reimbursement system for long-term care or 
pharmacy services in a way that adversely impacts the Company. 
 
The DRA also  ch anged th e so -called federal up per lim it p ayment ru les for m ultiple sou rce prescription dru gs 
covered under Medicaid.  Like the current upper limit, it only applies to drug ingredient costs and does not include 
dispensing fees, which will continue to be determined by the states.  First, the DRA redefined a multiple source drug 
subject to  th e u pper li mit ru les to  b e a co vered ou tpatient d rug th at h as at least o ne o ther d rug p roduct th at is  
therapeutically equ ivalent.  Thus, t he federal upp er li mit is trigg ered when t here are two  or m ore th erapeutic 
equivalents, i nstead o f t hree or m ore as was p reviously the case.  Second, e ffective Janua ry 1, 2 007, t he D RA 
changed the federal upper payment limit from 150 percent of the lowest published price for a drug (which is usually 
the average wholesale price) to 250 percent of the lowest average manufacturer price (“AMP”).  Congress expected 
these DRA provisions to reduce federal and state Med icaid spending by $8.4 billion over five years.  On  July 17, 
2007, CMS issu ed a fi nal rule with comment period to im plement changes to the upper limit rules.  Am ong other 
things, the final rule: established a new federal upper limit calculation for multiple source drug based on 250 percent 
of the lowest AMP in a drug cl ass; required CMS to post AMP amounts on i ts web sit e; and establi shed a uni form 
definition for AMP.  Additionally, the final rule provided that sales of drugs to long-term care pharmacies for supply to 
NHs and ALFs (as well as associated disc ounts, rebates or other pri ce concessions) are not to be taken into account in  
determining AMP where such sales can be identified with adequate documentation, and that any AMPs which are not 
at least 40% of  the next highest AMP will not be t aken into account in determining the upper l imit amount (the so-
called “outlier” test).  However, on Decem ber 19, 200 7, the United States District Court for the District of Columbia 
issued a preliminary injunction that enjoins CMS from implementing provisions of the July 17, 2007 rule to the extent 
that it affects Medicaid reimbursement rates for retail pharmacies under the Medicaid program.  The order also enjoins 
CMS from posting AMP data on a publ ic website or disclosing it to states.  As a  result of this preliminary injunction, 
CMS d id not  post AMPs or new upper l imit prices in late December 2007 based upon  the Ju ly 17, 2007 fi nal rule 
despite its earlier pl anned timetable, and the schedule for st ates to implement the new upper limits has been del ayed 
until further notice.  Separately, on March 14, 2008, CMS published an interim final rule with comment period revising 
the Medicaid rebate definition of multiple source drug set forth in the July 17, 2007 final rule.  In short, the effect of the 
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rule wil l be that f ederal upper lim its apply in al l st ates unless t he st ate f inds t hat a par ticular gener ic drug i s not 
available within that state.  W hile the rule’s effective date was April 14, 2008, it is subject to public comment.  CMS 
also noted that the regulation is subject to the injunction by the United States District Court for the District of Columbia 
to the extent that it may affect Medicaid reimbursement rates for pharmacies.  On October 7, 2008, CMS published the 
final version of this rule, responding to public comments received on t he March 14, 20 08 regulation.  The fi nal rule 
adopted the March 2008 interim final rule with technical changes effective November 6, 2008, although it continues to 
be subject to an in junction to  the extent that i t affects Medicaid pharmacy reimbursement rates. Moreover, MIPPA 
delays the adopt ion of t he DRA’s new fede ral upper l imit payment rules for M edicaid based on AM P for m ultiple 
source drugs and prevents CMS from publishing AMP data until October 1, 2009; until then, upper limits will continue 
to be determined under the pre-DRA rules.  With the advent of Medicare Part D, our revenues from state Medicaid 
programs are substantially lower than has been the case previously.  However, some of our ag reements with Part D 
Plans and  other payors have in corporated th e Med icaid upper limit  ru les in to the pricin g m echanisms for 
prescription drugs .  Until the litigation regarding the fi nal rule is res olved and ne w uppe r lim it am ounts are  
published by  C MS, we cannot predict the impact of t he fi nal rul e o n o ur b usiness.  Furt her, t here can be n o 
assurance that federal upper limit payments under pre-DRA rules, changes under the DRA or other efforts by payors 
to limit reimbursement for certain drugs will not adversely impact our business. 
 
MIPPA also seeks to promote e-prescribing by providing incentive payments for physicians and other practitioners 
paid under the Medicare physician fee schedule who are "successful electronic prescribers."  Specifically, successful 
electronic prescribers are to receive a 2 percent bonus during 2009 and 2010, a 1 percent bonus for 2011 and 2012 
and a 0.5 percent bonus for 2013; practitioners who are  not successful electronic prescribers are penalized by a 1 
percent reduction from the current fee schedule in 2012, a 1.5 percent reduction in 2013, and thereafter a 2 perce nt 
reduction.  CMS has announced that to be a successful electronic prescriber and to receive an incentive payment for 
the 2009 e-prescribing reporting year, an eligible professional must report, using a qualified e-prescribing system, 
one of three e-prescribing measures in at least 50% of the cases in which the measure is repo rtable by the eligible 
professional du ring 2009.  CMS h as issued  detailed guid elines on  t he sp ecifications fo r qualified e- prescribing 
systems.  The Company is closely monitoring developments related to this initiative, and will seek to make available 
systems unde r whi ch p rescribers m ay sub mit prescri ptions t o t he C ompany's ph armacies el ectronically so as t o 
enable them to qualify for the incentive payments. 
 

Most recently, on February 17, 2009, President Obama signed into law the American Recovery and Reinvestment 
Act o f 2009.  This $79 0 billion eco nomic stimulus p ackage in cludes a number of health  care po licy p rovisions, 
including approximately $19 billion in funding for health information technology infrastructure and Medicare and 
Medicaid in centives to  en courage do ctors, h ospitals, and o ther providers to  u se health in formation tech nology to 
electronically ex change p atients’ health in formation.  The law also streng thens fed eral privacy an d security 
provisions to  protect p ersonally-identifiable h ealth in formation.  In  ad dition, th e leg islation in creases Fed eral 
Medical Assistan ce Percen tage (FM AP) payments b y a pproximately $87 b illion to h elp supp ort state Med icaid 
programs in the face of budget s hortfalls.  The law also te mporarily extends curre nt Medicai d prom pt paym ent 
requirements to nursing facility and hospital claims, requiring state Med icaid programs to reimburse providers for 
90 percent of claim s within 30 days of rec eipt and 99 percent of claims with in 90 days of receipt .  Om nicare is  
reviewing the new law and assessing the potential impact of the various provisions on the Company.  

 
Two other recent actions at the federal level could impact Medicaid payments to nursing facilities.  The Tax Relief 
and Health Care Act of 2006 modified several Medicaid policies including, among other things, reducing the lim it 
on Medicaid provider taxes from 6 percent to 5.5 percent from January 1, 2008 through September 30, 2011.  Th e 
Bush Administration had been expected to issue regulations calling for deeper cuts in this funding.  On February 22, 
2008, CMS published a final rule that implements this legislation, and makes other clarifications to the standards for 
determining the permissibility of provider tax arrangements.  O n June 30, 2008, President Bush signed into law a 
supplemental appropriations bill (P.L. 110-252) that imposes a moratorium on implementation of certain provisions 
of this rule until Ap ril 1 , 2009.  Th e American Recovery and Reinvestment Act o f 2009 extends this moratorium 
until July 1, 2009.  Second, on January 18, 2007, CMS published a proposed rule designed to ensure that Medicaid 
payments to gove rnmentally-operated nursing facilities and certain other health care providers are based on act ual 
costs and that state financing arrangements are consistent with the Medicaid statute.  CMS estimates that the rule, if 
finalized, would save $120 million during the first year an d $3.87 billion over five years.  On  May 29, 2007, CMS 
published a final rule to implement this provision, but Congress blocked the rule for one year in an emergency fiscal 
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year 200 7 sp ending b ill, H.R. 220 6.  The supp lemental appropriations bill, P.L. 110-252, fu rther ex tends t he 
moratorium on implementation of the rule through April 1, 2009.  The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 
2009 expresses the sense of Congress that the Secretary of Health and Human Services should not promulgate the 
provider cost limit rule, citing a ruling by the United States District Court for the District of Columbia that the final 
rule was “improperly promulgated.” 
 
Further, in order to rein in healthcare costs, we anticipate that federal and state governments will continue to review 
and ass ess al ternate heal thcare del ivery sy stems, pay ment methodologies an d operational re quirements for  
healthcare providers, including long-term care facilities and pharmacies.  Given the continuous debate regarding the 
cost of healthcare, managed care, universal healthcare coverage, and other healthcare issues, we cannot predict with 
any degree of certainty what additional healthcare initiatives, if any, will be implemented or th e effect an y future 
legislation or regulation will h ave on our b usiness.  Fu rther, we receive d iscounts, reb ates and o ther price 
concessions from pharmaceutical manufacturers pursuant to contracts for the purchase of their products.  There can 
be no assurance that any changes in legislation or regulations, or interpretations of current law, that would eliminate 
or significantly reduce the discounts, rebates and other price concessions that we receive from manufacturers, or that 
otherwise impact payment available for drugs under federal or state healthcare programs, would not have a material 
adverse im pact o n our overall co nsolidated resu lts of operations, fi nancial p osition or cash fl ows.  Lo nger term , 
funding for federal and state healthcare programs must consider the aging of the population; the growth in enrollees 
as eligibility is potentially expanded; the escalation in drug costs owing to higher drug utilization among seniors; the 
impact of the Medicare Part D benefit for seniors; the introduction of new, more efficacious but also more expensive 
medications; and the long-term financing of the entire Medicare program.  Giv en competing national priorities, it  
remains difficult to predict the outcome and impact on us of any changes in healthcare policy relating to the future 
funding of t he M edicare an d M edicaid p rograms.  Furt her, M edicare, M edicaid an d/or pri vate p ayor rat es f or 
pharmaceutical supplies and services may not continue to be based on current methodologies or remain comparable 
to present levels.  Any future healthcare legislation or regulation may adversely affect our business. 
 
Changes in the use of the average wholesale price as  a  benchmark from which pricing in the pharmaceutical 
industry is negotiated could adversely affect the Company. 
 
On October 4, 2006, the plaintiffs in New England Carpenters Health Benefits Fund et al. v. First Da taBank, Inc. 
and McKesson Corporation, CA No. 1:05-CV-11148-PBS (United District Court for the District of Massachusetts) 
and d efendant First DataBank, In c. (“First DataBank ”) entered i nto a settle ment ag reement relatin g t o First 
DataBank’s publication of average wholesale price (“AWP”).  AWP is a pricing benchmark that is widely used t o 
calculate a portion of the reimbursement payable to pharmacy providers for the drugs and biologicals they provide, 
including under State Medicaid programs, Medicare Part D Plans and certain of the Company’s contracts with long-
term care facilities.  The  settlement agreement would have required First DataBank to cease publishing AWP two  
years after th e settlement became effective unless a co mpetitor of First DataBank was th en publishing AWP, and 
would have required t hat Fi rst Dat aBank modify t he manner i n w hich i t cal culates AWP f or o ver 8,0 00 di stinct 
drugs (“NDCs”) from 125% of the drug’s wholesale acquisition cost (“WAC”) price established by manufacturers to 
120% of WAC until First DataBank ceased publishing same.  In a related case, District C ouncil 3 7 He alth and 
Security Pla n v. Med i-Span, CA No . 1:07-CV-10988-PBS (U nited States D istrict Co urt fo r t he D istrict of  
Massachusetts), in which M edi-Span is accuse d of m isrepresenting pharm aceutical prices by relying on a nd 
publishing First DataBank’s price list, th e parties entered into a si milar settlement agreement.  Th e Court granted 
preliminary approval of both agreements, however on January 22, 2008, the court held a h earing on a motion for 
final approval of the proposed settlements, and after hearing various objections to the proposed settlements indicated 
that it wou ld not approve the settlements as p roposed.  On May 2 9, 2008, the plaintiffs and First DataBank filed a 
new settlement that included a reduction in the number of NDCs to which a n ew mark-up over WAC would apply 
(20% vs. 25%) from over 8,000 to 1,356, and removed the provision requiring that AWP no longer be published in 
the future.  First DataBank also agreed to contribute approximately $2 million to a settlement fund and for legal fees.  
On July 15, 2008, Medi-Span and the p laintiffs in  that litigation also  proposed an  amended settlement agreement 
under which Medi-Span agreed to reduce the mark-up over WAC (from 20% to 25%) for only the smaller number of 
NDCs, t he re quirement t hat A WP n ot be  pu blished i n the fut ure was  rem oved, an d M edi-Span agree d t o pay  
$500,000 fo r the benefit of the p laintiff class.  First DataBank and  Medi-Sp an, ind ependent of th ese settle ments, 
announced that they would, of their own volition, reduce to 20% the mark-up on all drug s with a m ark-up higher 
than 20% and stop publishing AWP within two years after the changes in m ark-up are implemented (in the case of 
First DataBank) or within two years after the settlement is finally approved (in the case of Medi-Span).  During June 
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and July, 2008, the Court granted preliminary approval to the revised settlements and approved the process for class 
notification.  On December 17, 2008, the Court held a hearing on the plaintiffs’ motion for final approval of the two 
proposed settlements, but did not grant such approval, and asked the parties to submit certain additional information.  
Additional pleadings have been filed in the case and an additional hearing on certain issues was held on January 27, 
2009, but the Court has not yet ruled on the motion or scheduled a further hearing with respect to final approval of 
the proposed settlements. 
 
The Co mpany is monitoring th ese cases fo r fu rther developments an d ev aluating p otential i mplications and/ or 
actions that may be required, incl uding any adverse effect o n t he Company’s re imbursement for drugs a nd 
biologicals a nd a ny act ions t hat m ay be taken t o offset or  ot herwise m itigate such  i mpact.  The re ca n be no 
assurance, howev er, th at the First DataBan k an d Med i-Span settlements, if app roved, or actio ns, if an y, b y th e 
government or  pri vate health i nsurance p rograms rel ating t o A WP would n ot ha ve an ad verse i mpact on t he 
Company’s reimbursement for drugs and biologicals and have implications for the use of AWP as a benchmark from 
which pricing in the pharmaceutical industry is negotiated, which could adversely affect the Company. 
 
If we fail to comply with licensure requirements, fraud and abuse laws or other applicable laws, we may need t o 
curtail operations, and could be subject to significant penalties.  
 
Our pharmacy b usiness i s s ubject t o ext ensive an d often c hanging federal, st ate an d l ocal regulations, a nd our 
pharmacies are required to be licensed in the states in which they are located or do business.  While we continuously 
monitor th e effects of regu latory activ ity on  our op erations a nd we c urrently ha ve pharmacy licenses for eac h 
pharmacy we operate, the failure to obtain or renew any required regulatory approvals or licenses could adversely 
affect the continued operation of our business.  The long-term care facilities th at contract for our services are also  
subject to federal, state and l ocal regulations and are required to be licensed in the states in which the y are located.   
The failure b y these long-term care faciliti es to comply with these or future regulations, or to obtain or ren ew any 
required licenses, could result in  our inability to  prov ide pharmacy services to  these facilities and their resi dents.  
We are also s ubject to fe deral and state laws that prohibit som e ty pes of direct a nd i ndirect pay ments bet ween 
healthcare provide rs.  These laws, co mmonly kn own as the frau d and  abuse laws, prohibit p ayments in tended to 
induce or encourage the referral of patients to, or the recommendation of, a particular provider of items or services.  
Violation of these laws can result in loss of licensure, civil and criminal penalties, and exclusion from the Medicaid, 
Medicare and other federal healthcare programs.  
 
We expend considerable resources in connection with our compliance efforts.  We believe that we are in compliance 
in all material respects with state and federal regulations applicable to our business.  However, we cannot assure you 
that g overnment en forcement ag encies will ag ree with  ou r assessm ent, o r th at we wo uld no t b e su bject to  an 
enforcement action under applicable law.   
 
Federal and s tate l aws that protect patient heal th and other personal information may increase our costs and 
limit our ability to collect and use that information.  
 

Our Company and the healthcare industry generally are required to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, which mandates, among other things, the adoption of standards to enhance 
the efficiency and simplify the administration of the healthcare system.  Many states h ave similar law s with which 
the Company is also required to comply.  HIPAA requires the Department of Health and Human Services (“HHS”) 
to adopt standards for electronic tra nsactions and code sets for basic he althcare transactions such as payment and 
remittance advice (“Tra nsaction Standards”); privacy of individually identifiable healthcare in formation (“Privacy 
Standards”); a nd sec urity (“Secu rity St andards”), as well as stan dards for un ique id entifiers for prov iders, 
employers, health plans and individuals; and for governmental enforcement of the requirements of HIPAA.  In many 
of our operations, we are a he althcare provider, a “covere d entity” under HIPAA, and therefore required to comply 
in our operations with these standards and subject to significant civil and criminal penalties for failure to do so.  In 
addition, such failure to comply could result in loss of customers and/or contractual liability to our customers.  We 
also provide s ervices to c ustomers that ar e healthcare provid ers themselves and we  are require d to provi de 
satisfactory written assurances to those customers, in the form of contractual agreements, that we will provide our 
services in acc ordance with the requirements of t he Privacy and Se curity Standards.  Failure to co mply with these 
contractual ag reements could lead  to  loss of customers, contractual liab ility to  our customers, o r, because we are 
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also a covere d entity unde r HIPAA, direct action by the federal government, including penalties.  We believe t hat 
we are compliant with the HIPAA Transaction Standards, the Privacy Standards and the Security Standards, as each 
is currently in effect.  In addition, in January 2004, CMS published a rule announcing the adoption of the National 
Provider I dentifier (“N PI”) as the sta ndard u nique health id entifier fo r healthcare providers to  u se i n filin g and 
processing hea lthcare cl aims and  ot her t ransactions.  We have obtained the NPIs f or our l ocations a s t hey have 
become due.  On January 16, 2009, HHS published two rules (1) adopting new code sets to be use d by the public 
and pr ivate secto rs for reporting diagnoses and  inp atient procedures in health care transactions unde r HIPAA, 
effective October 1, 20 13; and (2) adopting updated versions of the HIPAA standards  for certain electronic health 
care transactions, including the pharmacy claims transactions standard, effective January 1, 2012.  We are assessing 
the impact of the ne w c ode sets and transa ction standa rds on  our op erations.  We believe we fully comply with  
HIPAA and similar state requirements; however, at this time we cannot estimate if future changes, if any, to the cost 
of co mpliance o f th e HIPAA and  si milar state stan dards will resu lt i n an  adv erse effect on  ou r operations o r 
profitability, or that of our customers.   

Like m ost hea lth care providers, Omnicare m aintains p ersonal info rmation of or con cerning its patients.  Su ch 
information, which has common elements with health information regulated under HIPAA and state medical privacy 
laws b ut is not id entical to  health in formation, is sub ject to  in creasing state an d federal regu lation d esigned to 
prevent or m itigate th e effects o f fi nancial id entity th eft, d efined as wrongfully g aining cred it or other fin ancial 
benefit using another’s financial identity, and medical identity theft, defined as wrong fully obtaining medical care 
using an other’s in surance cov erage id entity.  Laws of most sta tes in  wh ich th e C ompany o perates requ ire th at 
individuals be notified of a breach of the security of their personal information, so that they can take steps to protect 
themselves from identity theft.  Th e Company expects this expansion of the scope of security breach  notification 
laws to continue at th e state an d possibly the federal levels.  M oreover, the American Recovery and Reinvestment 
Act of 2009, signed into law on  February 17, 2009, includes a nu mber of provisions to strengthen federal privacy 
and security provisions to protect p ersonally-identifiable health information.  Among other things, the law app lies 
HIPAA security provisions and penalties to business associates of covered entities; requires certain notifications in 
the event of a securi ty breach involving protected health information; restricts certain unauthorized disclosures and 
sales of health i nformation; clarifies treat ment o f certain m arketing activ ities; and  streng thens enforcem ent 
activities.  Man y of th e im plementation requ irements associ ated with  these p rovisions will b e d etailed in  future 
regulations.  The Company currently is assessing the potential impact of these new privacy and security provisions 
on its o perations.  Om nicare cannot predict at th is time the costs associated with com pliance, or the i mpact of the 
new requirements on the Company’s results of operations, cash flows or financial condition.   

Like most health care provi ders, the Company is require d by the  Federal Trade Commission to have in place, by 
May 1, 2009, a written plan to identify and detect indications of identity theft (so-called “red flags”) and to respond 
appropriately to prevent and mitigate identity theft.  Implementation of systems within the Company to comply with 
these laws and operational com pliance carries with it costs and administrative burdens.  Failure to com ply carries  
with it th e risk o f significant penalties and sanctions from regulatory authorities as well as p ossible civil litigation 
from affected  individuals or the facilities in  which they reside.  Fu rther, there can  be no assu rance that improper 
exposure of personal information of the individuals it serves to  third parties will not have an adverse impact on the 
business and prospects of the Company. 

 
Omnicare has substantial outstanding debt and could incur more debt in the future. Any failure to meet its debt 
obligations would adversely affect Omnicare’s business and financial condition.  
 
At December 31, 2008, Omnicare’s total consolidated long-term debt (incl uding current maturities) accounted for 
approximately 4 4.4% of its to tal cap italization.  In  ad dition, Om nicare an d its sub sidiaries may b e able to  in cur 
substantial ad ditional debt i n t he f uture.  The  i nstruments governing Om nicare’s current i ndebtedness c ontain 
restrictions on Om nicare’s incurrence of additional debt.  Th ese restrictions, however, are subject to  a number of 
qualifications and ex ceptions, and  und er certain  circ umstances, Omn icare co uld in cur su bstantial ad ditional 
indebtedness in compliance with these restrictions, including in connection with potential acquisition transactions.  
Moreover, these restrictions do not prevent Omnicare from in curring obligations that do not constitute debt under 
the governing documents.  
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The degree to which Omnicare is leveraged could have important consequences, including:  
 

• a substantial portion of Omnicare’s cash flow from operations will be required to be dedicated to interest 
and p rincipal payments and may not  be  a vailable f or op erations, wo rking cap ital, cap ital ex penditures, 
expansion, acquisitions, dividends or general corporate or other purposes; 

• Omnicare’s ability to obtain additional financing in the future may be impaired; 
• Omnicare may b e m ore h ighly lev eraged th an its com petitors, wh ich m ay p lace it at a co mpetitive 

disadvantage; 
• Omnicare’s flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in its business and industry may be limited; 

and 
• Omnicare’s degree of leverage may make it more vulnerable in the event of a downturn in its business or in 

its industry or the economy in general. 
 
Omnicare’s ability to make payments on and to refin ance its debt will depend on its ab ility to generate cash in  the 
future.  Th is, to  a certain  extent, is su bject to  g eneral eco nomic, b usiness, fi nancial, co mpetitive, leg islative, 
regulatory and other factors that are beyond Omnicare’s control.  
 
We can not assu re you that Omnicare’s b usiness will g enerate sufficien t cash flow from o perations or t hat fu ture 
borrowings will be available under its credit facilities in a n amount sufficient to enable Omnicare to pay its debt or 
to fund its other liquidity needs.  Omnicare may need to refinance all or a portion of its debt on or before maturity.  
We cannot assure you that Omnicare would be able to refinance any of its d ebt, including any credit facilities, o n 
commercially reasonable terms or at all.  
 
We are subject to additional risks relating to our acquisition strategy.  
 
One c omponent of our strat egy contem plates our m aking select ed acquisitions.  Acquisitions involve inhe rent 
uncertainties.  These uncertainties include our ability to consummate proposed acquisitions on favorable terms or at 
all, the effect on acquired businesses of in tegration into a larger organization, and the availability of management 
resources to oversee t he ope rations of thes e busi nesses.  Th e su ccessful in tegration of acqu ired businesses will 
require, among other things: 
 

• consolidation of financial and managerial functions and elimination of operational redundancies; 
• achievement of purchasing efficiencies; 
• the addition and integration of key personnel; and 
• the maintenance of existing business. 

 
Even though an acquired business may have experienced positive financial performance as an independent company 
prior to an acquisition, we cannot be sure that the business will continue to perform positively after an acquisition.  
 
We also  may acquire businesses with  unknown or con tingent liab ilities, including liabilit ies for failure to  comply 
with healthcare laws and regulations, and tax contingencies.  We have policies and procedures to conduct reviews of 
potential acq uisition cand idates for co mpliance with h ealthcare laws a nd t o c onform the practices  of acquired 
businesses to our standards and applicable laws.  We also generally seek indemnification from sellers covering these 
matters.  We may, however, incur material liabilities for past activities of acquired businesses.  
 
We cannot be sure of the successful completion or integration of any acquisition, or that an acquisition will not have 
an adverse impact on our results of operations, cash flows or financial condition.  
 
We operate in highly competitive businesses.  
 
The long-term care pha rmacy business is highly regionalized and, within a gi ven geographic region of operations, 
highly co mpetitive.  Ou r larg est co mpetitor n ationally is PharMerica Co rporation.  In th e g eographic reg ions we 
serve, we also compete with numerous local and regional institutional pharmacies, pharmacies owned by long-term 
care facilities and local retail pharmacies.  While we compete on the basis of quality, price, terms and overall cost-
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effectiveness, along with t he clinical expertise, brea dth of services, pharmaceutical technology and professional 
support we offer, competitive pressures may affect our profitability.  
 
Our contract research organization, or CRO business, competes against othe r full-service CROs and client internal 
resources.  The CRO industry is highly fragmented with a number of full-service contract research organizations and 
many small, limited-service providers, some of which serve only local markets.  Clients choose a CRO based upon, 
among other reasons, reputation, references from existing clients, the client’s relationship with the organization, the 
organization’s experience wi th t he pa rticular t ype of p roject and/ or t herapeutic a rea of clinical devel opment, t he 
organization’s ability to  add  value t o the cl ient’s development p lan, th e org anization’s fin ancial stabilit y an d t he 
organization’s ability to provide the full range of services required by the client.  
 
We are dependent on our senior management team and our pharmacy professionals.  
 
We a re highly dependent upon the members of our senior management and our pharmacists and other pharmacy 
professionals.  O ur business i s m anaged by a sm all num ber o f key m anagement per sonnel w ho ha ve been 
extensively involved in the success of our business, including Joel F. Gemunder, our President and Chief Executive 
Officer.  If we were unable to retain these persons, we might be adversely affected.  There is a limited pool of senior 
management personnel with significant experience in our industry.  Acc ordingly, we b elieve we co uld experience 
significant di fficulty in replacing key management personnel.  Although we h ave employment cont racts wi th our 
key management personnel, these contracts generally may be terminated without cause by either party.  
 
In addition, our continued success de pends on our a bility to attract and re tain pha rmacists and other pharmacy 
professionals.  Co mpetition for qu alified ph armacists an d other ph armacy p rofessionals is stro ng.  Th e lo ss o f 
pharmacy p ersonnel or th e in ability to  attract, retain o r m otivate su fficient nu mbers of qualified ph armacy 
professionals could ad versely affect  o ur business.  Al though we generally have been abl e t o m eet ou r st affing 
requirements for pharmacists and other pharmacy professionals in the past, our inability to do so in the future could 
have a material adverse effect on us.  
 
 
ITEM 1B. - UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 
 
Not applicable. 
 
ITEM 2. – PROPERTIES 
 

Pharmacy CRO Total
Services Services Corporate Total Square

U.S. State/Country Facilities Facilities Facilities Facilities Footage

 Alabama                     2                  2                         16,949 
 Arizona                     4                  4                         32,546 
 Arkansas                     2                  2                         22,800 
 California                   12                  2                14                       269,990 
 Colorado                     3                  3                         25,199 
 Connecticut                     2                  2                         69,700 
 District of Columbia                     1                  1                           1,073 
 Florida                     8                     1                  9                       121,769 
 Georgia                     2                  1                  3                         28,220 

We have facilities including offices, distribution centers, warehouses and other key operating facilities (e.g., institutional
pharmacies, etc.) in various locations within and outside of the U.S. As of December 31, 2008, we operated a total of 239
facilities, 8 of which we owned, while the remaining were leased. The owned facilities are held in fee and are not subject
to any material encumbrance. We consider all of these facilities to be in good operating condition and generally to be
adequate for present and anticipated needs.
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Pharmacy CRO Total
Services Services Corporate Total Square

U.S. State/Country Facilities Facilities Facilities Facilities Footage
 Idaho                     1                  1                           4,826 
 Illinois                     8                  8                       203,096 
 Indiana                     4                  4                       127,924 
 Iowa                     7                  7                         43,999 
 Kansas                     1                  1                           9,809 
 Kentucky                     6                     2                  8                       377,822 
 Louisiana                     3                  3                         29,867 
 Maine                     2                  2                         20,613 
 Maryland                   15                15                       245,852 
 Massachusetts                     3                  3                         43,865 
 Michigan                     5                  5                         74,947 
 Minnesota                     1                  1                         28,255 
 Mississippi                     1                  1                           4,175 
 Missouri                     6                  6                       113,569 
 Montana                     1                  1                           3,500 
 Nebraska                     1                  1                           9,772 
 Nevada                     2                  2                         26,863 
 New Hampshire                     1                  1                         22,400 
 New Jersey                     5                  5                         98,806 
 New Mexico                     1                  1                           9,454 
 New York                     9                  1                10                       173,298 
 North Carolina                     6                  6                         72,783 
 Ohio                   14                14                       360,535 
 Oklahoma                     2                  2                         46,405 
 Oregon                     2                  2                         36,409 
 Pennsylvania                   12                  1                13                       541,078 
 Rhode Island                     1                  1                         21,600 
 South Carolina                     4                  4                         53,188 
 South Dakota                     1                  1                           8,960 
 Tennessee                     3                  3                       100,184 
 Texas                   12                12                         95,497 
 Utah                     3                  3                         48,306 
 Vermont                     1                  1                           5,000 
 Virginia                   10                10                       117,320 
 Washington                   11                11                         81,533 
 West Virginia                     3                  3                         27,260 
 Wisconsin                     5                  5                         86,619 

Argentina                  1                  1                           4,930 
Australia                  1                  1                           4,079 
Belgium                  1                  1                           4,251 
Canada                     1                  1                  2                           2,908 
China                  2                  2                           3,260 
Czech Republic                  1                  1                           2,723 
France                  1                  1                           4,871 
Germany                  3                  3                         49,536 
Hungary                  1                  1                           2,013 
India                  1                  1                         10,100 
Japan                  1                  1                              744 
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Pharmacy CRO Total
Services Services Corporate Total Square

U.S. State/Country Facilities Facilities Facilities Facilities Footage
Poland                  1                  1                           2,577 
Russia                  1                  1                           1,841 
Singapore                  1                  1                           2,260 
Spain                  1                  1                           1,346 
Sweden                  1                  1                              452 
Taiwan                  1                  1                              890 
United Kingdom                  1 1                  9,590                          

                209                 26                      4               239                    4,072,006 

 
ITEM 3. - LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 
 
On May 18, 2006, an antitrust and fraud action entitled Omnicare, Inc. v. UnitedHealth Group, Inc., et al., 2:06-cv-
00103-WOB, was filed by th e Company in  th e Un ited States Di strict Court f or t he Eastern Di strict of  Kentucky 
against Unite dHealth Group, Inc., Paci fiCare Healt h Sy stems, Inc. , a nd RxSolutions, Inc. d /b/a Prescrip tion 
Solutions, asserting claims of violations of federal and state antitrust laws, civ il conspiracy and common law fraud 
arising out of an alleged conspiracy by defendants to illegally and fraudulently coordinate their negotiations with the 
Company for Medicare Part D contracts as part of an effort to defraud the Company and fix prices.  The complaint 
seeks, among other things, damages, injunctive rel ief and reformation of certain contracts.  O n June 5, 2006, the 
Company filed a first  supplemental and amended complaint in  which it asserted the i dentical claims.  In a n order 
dated N ovember 9, 2006, a m otion by  de fendants t o t ransfer ve nue t o t he Uni ted St ates Di strict Cou rt fo r t he 
Northern District of Illinois was granted, but a motion to dismiss the antitrust claims was denied without prejudice, 
with leave to refile in  the transferee court.  On January 16, 2009 the United States D istrict Court for the Northern 
District of Il linois granted a motion f or summar y j udgment f iled b y th e d efendants.  O n Janu ary 21 , 200 9, th e 
Company filed a Notice of Appeal of the judgment and the related orders to the Seventh Circuit Court of Appeals.  
The C ompany i ntends t o pursue t he a ppeal vi gorously a nd seek reversal of t he j udgment and t he lower co urt's 
orders. 
 
As previously d isclosed, t he Un ited States Atto rney's Office, District of Massa chusetts is co nducting an 
investigation relating to the  Company's relationships with certain manufacturers and distributors of pharmaceutical 
products a nd certain cust omers, as well as with re spect to contracts with certain c ompanies acquire d by the  
Company.  Any actio ns resu lting from th is in vestigation co uld result in  civil o r criminal p roceedings ag ainst th e 
Company.  The Company believes that it has complied with all applicable laws and regulations with respect to these 
matters.  Omnicare has recorded a special litigation charge of $40 million pretax in its financial results for the fourth 
quarter and full year ended Decem ber 31, 2008 to esta blish a  se ttlement reserve in c onnection with this 
investigation.  This special litigation charge relates to t he Company’s estimate of potential settlement amounts and 
associated cost s under SFAS No . 5, “Accou nting for C ontingencies.”  The C ompany cann ot pred ict th e ultimate 
outcome of this matter. 
 
On October 27 , 2008, the U.S. District Cou rt in  Boston, Massachusetts unsealed a q ui tam complaint against the 
Company that was originally filed under seal with the court on July 16, 2002.  This action was brought by Deborah 
Maguire as a private party "qui tam relator" on behalf of the federal government and various state governments.   On 
September 16, 2008, the U.S. Government filed a Notice that it is not intervening in the action at this time. 
 
A qu i ta m ac tion is always filed  un der seal.  Befo re a qui  t am act ion i s unseal ed, and t ypically fol lowing an  
investigation by the gove rnment initiated after the filing of the qui tam  action, the government is required to notify 
the court of its decision whether to intervene in the action.  The government could seek to intervene in this qui tam 
action in the future with permission from the court.  Where the government ultimately declines to intervene, the qui 
tam relators may continue to pursue the litigation at their own expense on behalf of the federal or state government 
and, if successful, would receive a portion of the government's recovery. 
 
The action brought by Ms. Maguire alleges civil violations of the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. (S) 3729 et seq. and 
various state false claims statutes based on allegations that the Company:  submitted claims for nam e brand drugs 
when act ually pr oviding ge neric ve rsions of t he sam e dr ug t o nursing h omes; provided consultant pha rmacist 
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services to its customers at below-market rates to induce  the referral of pharmaceutical business in violation of the 
Anti-Kickback Statute, 42 U.S.C. 13 20a-7b; a nd accepted disc ounts from drug m anufacturers i n return for 
recommending that certain pharmaceuticals be presc ribed to nursi ng home residents in violation of the Anti-
Kickback Statute.  The unsealed action see ks damages provided fo r in th e False Claim s Act an d app licable state 
statutes.    
 
In addition, on October 30 and 31, 2008, Omnicare was provided with copies of t wo complaints against Omnicare 
and other de fendants t hat were p reviously fi led u nder seal wit h the U.S. District Co urt in  Bo ston, 
Massachusetts. One complaint was brought by Bernard Lisitza, and the other by David Kammerer, both as private 
party “qui tam relators” on behalf of the federal government and various state governments. The U.S. Government 
has notified the court that it is not intervening in these actions at this time. 
 
The action brought by Mr. Kammerer alleges civil violations of the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. (S) 3729 et seq. and 
various state statutes based on allegations that Omnicare accepted rebates, post-purchase discounts, grants and other 
forms of remuneration from drug manufacturers in return for purchasing pharmaceuticals from those manufacturers 
and taking steps to increase the purchase of those manufacturers’ drugs in violation of the Anti-Kickback Statute, 42 
U.S.C. (S) 1320a-7b and applicable state statu tes. The action brought by Mr. Lisitza alleges civil v iolations of the 
False Claim s Act and various state statutes based on allegations that Omnicare: accepted re bates from  drug 
manufacturers in return for recommending to physicians that certain pharmaceuticals be prescribed to nursing home 
residents in violation of the Anti-Kickback Statute and applicable state statutes; made false statements and omissions 
to physicians  in connection with its recommendations of those pha rmaceuticals; and substi tuted certain 
pharmaceuticals without phy sician author ization. The uns ealed actions seek damages provide d for in the False 
Claims Act and applicable state statutes.  
 
In addition to the unsealed qui tam actions described above, the Company is aware of two other qui tam complaints 
against it and other companies that have been filed with the U.S. District Court in Boston, Massachusetts and remain 
under seal.   
 
The Company believes that all of the allegations described above are without merit and intends to vigorously defend 
itself in these actions if pursued. 
 
On February 2 and February 13, 2006, respectively, two substantially similar putative class action lawsuits, entitled 
Indiana State Dist. Council of  Laborers & HOD Carriers Pension & Welfare Fund v. Omnicare, Inc., et  al ., No. 
2:06cv26 (“HOD Carriers”), and Chi v. O mnicare, Inc., et al.,  No. 2:06cv31 (“Chi”), were filed against Omnicare 
and two of its officers in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Kentucky purporting to assert 
claims fo r v iolation o f §§1 0(b) and  20 (a) o f th e Secu rities Ex change Act o f 193 4 an d Ru le 10b -5 p romulgated 
thereunder, and seeking, among other things, compensatory damages and injunctive relief.  Th e complaints, which 
purported to be b rought on behalf of all o pen-market purchasers of Omnicare common stock from August 3, 2005 
through Ja nuary 2 7, 2006, a lleged t hat Omnicare had a rtificially i nflated i ts earni ngs by  en gaging i n i mproper 
generic drug substitution and that defendants had made false and  misleading statements regarding the Company’s 
business and prospects.  On April 3, 2006, plaintiffs in the HOD Carriers case formally moved for consolidation and 
the appointment of lead plaintiff and lead counsel pursuant to the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.  
On May 22, 2006, that motion was granted, the cases were consolidated, and a lead plaintiff and lead counsel were 
appointed.  On Ju ly 20 , 200 6, plaintiffs filed a consolidated am ended c omplaint, addi ng a t hird officer as a  
defendant and new factual allegations primarily relating to revenue recognition, the valuation of receivables and the 
valuation of i nventories.  On Oct ober 3 1, 2006, plaintiffs m oved f or l eave t o fi le a second am ended c omplaint, 
which was g ranted on  January 26, 2007, on the condition that no  further amendments would be permitted absent 
extraordinary circumstances.  Plainti ffs thereafter filed their second am ended complaint on January 29, 2007.  Th e 
second amended complaint (i) expands the putative class to include all purchasers of Omnicare common stock from 
August 3, 2005 through July 27, 2006, (ii) names two members of the Company’s board of directors as additional 
defendants, (iii) adds a new plaintiff and a new claim for violation of Section 11 of the Securities Act of 1933 based 
on alleg ed false an d m isleading statem ents in th e reg istration statem ent filed in  co nnection with  th e Co mpany’s 
December 2005 public offe ring, (iv) alleges that the Com pany failed to timely di sclose its contractual dispute with 
UnitedHealth Group ( see d iscussion of the UnitedHealth Group matter above), and (v) alleges t hat the C ompany 
failed to  tim ely record  certain  sp ecial litig ation reserv es.  Th e defendants filed  a m otion to  dismiss th e seco nd 
amended c omplaint on M arch 12, 2007, claiming t hat plaintiffs ha d failed a dequately t o pl ead l oss ca usation, 
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scienter or any actionable misstatement or omission.  That motion was fully briefed as of May 1, 2007.  In response 
to certain arguments relating to the individual claims of the named plaintiffs that were raised in defendants’ pending 
motion to dismiss, plaintiffs filed a motion to add, or in the alternative, to intervene an ad ditional named plaintiff, 
Alaska Electr ical Pension Fu nd, on  July 27, 2 007.  On  O ctober 12 , 20 07, the court issued an op inion and or der 
dismissing th e case an d d enying plaintiffs’ motion to  add  an  ad ditional n amed p laintiff.  On  November 9 , 2007, 
plaintiffs filed a n otice of appeal with the United States Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit with respect to the 
dismissal of their case.  Oral argument was held on September 18, 2008. 
 
On Feb ruary 13, 2006, two su bstantially similar shareholder derivative actions, en titled Isak v . Gemunder, et al. , 
Case No. 06-CI-390, and Fragnoli v. Hutton, et al., Case No. 06-CI-389, were filed in Kentucky State Circuit Court, 
Kenton Circuit, against the members of Omnicare’s board of directors, individually, purporting to assert claims for 
breach of fiduciary duty, abuse of c ontrol, gross mismanagement, waste of c orporate assets and unjust enrichment 
arising out o f t he C ompany’s al leged vi olations o f fe deral an d st ate heal th care l aws base d u pon t he sam e 
purportedly improper generic drug substitution that is the subject of the federal purported class action lawsuits.  The 
complaints seek, among other things, damages, restitution and injunctive relief.  The Isak and Fragnoli actions were 
later consolidated by agreement of t he parties.  On January 12, 2007, the d efendants filed a m otion to dismiss the 
consolidated actio n on th e grounds th at t he d ismissal o f th e sub stantially id entical sh areholder derivative action , 
Irwin v. Gemunder, et  al., 2:06cv62, by t he United St ates Di strict Court for the Eastern District o f Kentucky on 
November 20 , 2 006 shou ld be g iven preclusive effect and  thus b ars re-litig ation o f the issu es already d ecided in 
Irwin.  Instead of opposing that motion, on March 16, 2007, the plaintiffs filed an amended consolidated complaint, 
which continues to name all of the directors as defendants and asserts the same claims, but attempts to bolster those 
claims by adding nearly all of th e substantive allegations from the most recent complaint in  the federal securities 
class action (see discussion of HOD Carriers above) and an amended complaint in Irwin that added the same factual 
allegations that were added to the consolidated amended complaint in the HOD Carriers action.  On April 16, 2007, 
defendants fi led a su pplemental memorandum of l aw i n fu rther s upport of t heir pen ding m otion t o dismiss 
contending t hat t he am ended c omplaint sho uld be  di smissed o n t he sam e gro unds p reviously art iculated for 
dismissal, namely, the preclusive effect of the dismissal of the Irwin action.  That motion has been fully briefed, oral 
argument was held on August 21, 2007, and the court reserved decision. 
 
The Co mpany b elieves th e ab ove-described p urported cla ss an d derivative actio ns are with out m erit an d will b e 
vigorously defended. 
 
Although the Company cannot predict the ultimate outcome of t he matters described in the preceding paragraphs, 
there can be no ass urance t hat the re solution o f t hese matters wi ll not  have a m aterial adver se i mpact on t he 
Company’s consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows. 
 
As part of its ongoing operations, the Company is subject to various inspections, audits, inquiries and similar actions 
by gov ernmental/regulatory authorities resp onsible fo r en forcing laws and regu lations to  which th e Co mpany is 
subject, i ncluding r eviews o f i ndividual Omnicare phar macy's reim bursement docu mentation an d adm inistrative 
practices. 
 
 
ITEM 4. - SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 
 
None. 
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ADDITIONAL ITEM - EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY 
 
Our executive officers of the Company at the time of this Filing are as follows: 
 

First Elected to
Name Age Office(1) Present Office

Joel F. Gemunder 69 President and Chief Executive Officer(2) May 20, 1981

Patrick E. Keefe 63 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer(3) January 16 , 2007
 

W. Gary Erwin 56 Senior Vice President - Professional Services(5) September 28, 2006

Leo P. Finn III 50 Senior Vice President - Strategic Planning and Development(4) August 15, 2005

David W. Froesel, Jr. 57 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer March 4, 1996
 

Cheryl D. Hodges 56 Senior Vice President and Secretary February 8, 1994
 

Mark G. Kobasuk 51 Vice President - General Counsel(6) June 20, 2006

Jeffrey M. Stamps 49 Vice President and Senior Vice President - Field Operations / February 27, 2007
Director of Field Operations(7)

 
(1) Executive offi cers are el ected for one -year ter ms at  t he ann ual o rganizational m eeting o f t he B oard o f 

Directors, which follows the annual meeting of stockholders. 
(2) Mr. Gemunder was appointed Chief Executive Officer of the Company on May 21, 2001, having served as 

the President and a principal executive officer of the Company since 1981. 
(3) Mr. Keefe was appointed Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer on January 16, 2007. From 

August 20 05 – Janu ary 20 07, Mr. K eefe served as Ex ecutive V ice Presid ent – G lobal Mar kets.  From 
February 1997 until August 2005, he served as Ex ecutive Vice President – Operations, and from 1994 to 
1997 as Senior Vice President of Operations.  Prior to that tim e, Mr. Keefe jo ined Omnicare in 1993 as 
Vice President of Operations.  

(4) Mr. Finn was appointed Senior Vice President – Strategic Planning and Development on August 15, 2005.  
From May 1997 – August 2005, Mr. Finn served as Vice President – Strategic Planning and Development.  
From 1995 to 1997, he served as Regional Vice President of Operations for the Company’s Illinois, Iowa, 
and Wisconsin pharm acy o perations.  Pri or to that  ti me, Mr. Finn  jo ined Omnicare in 1990 as Vice 
President of Business Development.  

(5) Dr. Erwin was appointed Senior Vice President – Professional Services on September 28, 2006.  From July 
2000 – Se ptember 20 06, Dr. E rwin se rved as  Vi ce President – Health C are Sy stems Prog rams and 
President of Om nicare Senior Health  Outcomes.  Prior to that tim e, Dr. Erwin serve d Omnicare as Vice 
President –  Health Syste ms Program s.  Before jo ining Om nicare in 19 97, Dr. Erwin se rved as  Vic e 
President fo r Professional Pr ograms, an d Pr ofessor of Clin ical Ph armacy, Ph iladelphia Co llege of 
Pharmacy an d Scien ce.  In ad dition, he was on  th e faculty at th e University o f Georgia, wh ere h e 
specialized in geriatric pharmacotherapy and long-term care. 

(6) Mr. K obasuk was ap pointed Vi ce Presi dent – Gene ral C ounsel o n Ju ne 20, 2006.  Mr. K obasuk was a 
partner of Taft, Stettinius and Hollister LLP from 1998 until June 2006. 

(7) Mr. Stamps was app ointed corporate Vice Preside nt and Senior Vice Pr esident – Field Operations for the 
Company’s Pharmacy Operations Group in February 2007.  From August 2005 until February 2007, he was 
corporate Vice President and Senior Vice Preside nt of  t he Central Division of the Pharmacy Operations  
Group.  Fro m 2001 u ntil Aug ust 2005, h e was Sen ior Regional Vice President –  East ern Region of the 
Pharmacy Operations Group. 
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PART II 

 
ITEM 5 . - MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RE LATED STOCKHOLDE R 
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES 
 
Price Range of Common Stock; Holders of Record 
 
Our Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange, and the following table sets forth the ranges of high 
and low closing prices during each of the calendar quarters of 2008 and 2007. 
 

2008 2007
High Low High Low

First Quarter 24.79$      15.59$      44.59$      38.00$      
Second Quarter 26.32$      18.18$      41.40$      33.17$      
Third Quarter 32.61$      24.03$      37.31$      29.30$      
Fourth Quarter 29.09$      19.71$      35.11$      22.18$       

 
The number o f holders of re cord of ou r Common Stock on Jan uary 31 , 2009 was 2,379.  This amount does not 
include st ockholders wi th s hares held u nder beneficial ow nership i n nom inee na me or wi thin cl earinghouse 
positions of brokerage firms and banks. 
 
Stock Performance Graph 

The fo llowing graph compares the cumulative to tal return for the last five years on a $100 investment (assuming 
dividend reinvestment) o n December 31, 2003 i n eac h of t he C ommon St ock of t he Company, t he St andard & 
Poor’s 500 Stock Index and the S&P 500 Health Care Index.  
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December 31,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Omnicare, Inc. 100.00$ 8 5.93$   142.29$ 9 6.26$   57.00$   69.62$   
S&P 500 100.00   110.87   116.30   134.66   142.07   89.51     
S&P 500 Health Care Index 100.00   101.68   108.25   116.38   124.89   96.37     
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Dividends 
 
On Fe bruary 12, 2009, t he Board of Di rectors ap proved a quarterly c ash dividend of $ 0.0225, f or a n i ndicated 
annual rate of $0.09 per common share for 2009, which is consistent with annual dividends paid per common share 
for the 2008 and 2007 years.  It is presently intended that cash dividends on common shares will continue to be paid 
on a quarte rly basis; howe ver, there can be no ass urances as future di vidends are neces sarily dependent upon our 
future earnings and financial condition and other factors not currently determinable. 
 
Stock Repurchases 
 
A summary of Om nicare’s repurchases of the Company’s common stock during the quarter ended December 31, 
2008 is as follows (in thousands, except per share data): 
 

Period
0 -$                  - -

22 26.77                - -
21 27.22                - -

Total 43 26.99$              - -

(a )    

December 1 -  31 , 2008

During the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company purchased 43 shares of Omnicare common stock in connection with its employee 
benefit  plans, including purchases associated with the vesting of restricted stock awards.  These purchases were not made pursuant to a 
publicly announced repurchase plan or program.

Maximum Number (or 
Approximate Dollar 

Value) of Shares that 
Must Yet Be Purchased 

Under the Plans or  
Programs

Total Number of 
Shares Purchased 

(a)
Average Price 
Paid per Share

Total Number of Shares 
Purchased as Part of 
Publicly Announced 
Plans or Programs

October 1 - 31, 2008
November 1 -  30 , 2008

 
Additional information regarding our equity compensation plans is included at Items 8 and 12 of this Filing. 
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ITEM 6. - SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 
 
The following table summ arizes cer tain selected  fin ancial d ata and  shou ld be read in con junction with our co nsolidated 
financial st atements and rel ated n otes t hereto an d "M anagement's Discussi on a nd Analysis o f Fi nancial C ondition an d 
Results of Operations" included at Items 8 and 7, respectively, of this Filing. 
 
Five-Year Summary of Selected Financial Data

Omnicare, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
(in thousands, except per share data)

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
INCOME STATEMENT DATA:(a)(b)

Net sales (c) 6,310,607$  6,220,010$  6,492,993$   5,292,782$   4,119,891$   

Net income 156,108$     114,056$     183,572$      226,491$      236,011$      

Earnings per common share data:

Basic 1.33$           0.96$           1.55$            2.19$            2.29$            

Diluted 1.32$           0.94$           1.50$            2.10$            2.17$            

Dividends per common share 0.09$           0.09$           0.09$            0.09$            0.09$            

Weighted average number of
common shares outstanding:

Basic 117,466       119,380       118,480        103,551        103,238        

Diluted 118,313       121,258       122,536        108,804        112,819        

BALANCE SHEET DATA (at end of period):(a)

Cash and cash equivalents 215,090$     274,448$     138,034$      215,421$      84,169$        
Working capital (current assets less current liabilities) 1,730,904    1,803,990    1,872,427     1,360,391     1,082,297     
Goodwill 4,252,906    4,342,169    4,225,011     4,029,482     2,003,223     
Total assets 7,459,718    7,593,779    7,398,471     7,157,405     3,899,181     
Long-term debt (excluding current portion), 

net of swap(d) 2,731,163    2,820,751    2,955,120     2,719,392     1,234,067     
Stockholders' equity(d) 3,421,384    3,291,703    3,163,451     2,942,046     1,927,108     

OTHER FINANCIAL DATA:(a)

Net cash flows from operating activities 438,197$     505,529$     108,520$      263,539$      168,858$      
EBITDA(e) 511,863       455,346       599,991        601,951        498,732        
Net cash flows used by investing activities (285,293)     (196,888)     (126,872)      (2,646,103)   (415,973)       
Capital expenditures(f) (61,113)       (45,270)       (31,251)        (24,239)        (17,926)         
Net cash flows from financing activities (209,066)     (175,139)     (60,114)        2,514,759     144,442        

For the years ended and at December 31,

 
 
See the related notes to Five-Year Summary of Selected Financial Data on the following pages. 
 
(a) Omnicare, Inc. (“Omnicare” or the “Company”) has had an active acquisition program in effect since 1989.  See the 

“Acquisitions” not e of t he Notes t o C onsolidated Financial St atements f or a dditional i nformation concerning 
acquisitions that impact the comparability of our results. 
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(b) The following aftertax charges are included in net income for the years ended December 31 (in thousands): 
 

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Call premium and write-off of unamortized

             debt issuance costs -$                -$                -$                 20,364$        (1) -$                  
Restructuring and other related charges 21,871         (2) 17,300         (2) 18,758          (2) 11,760          (2) -                    
Litigation and other related professional fees 68,724         (3) 26,380         (3) 100,507        (3) -                   -                    
Heartland matters 3,940           (3) 10,669         (3) 21,232          (3) -                   -                    
Other expense -                   -                   3,918            (2) -                   -                    

       Total 94,535$       54,349$       144,415$      32,124$        -$                  

(1) See the "Debt" note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(2)
(3)

See the "Restructuring and Other Related Charges" note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
See the "Commitments and Contingencies" note of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

 
(c) In accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 01-14, “Income Statement Characterization of 

Reimbursements Received for “Out-of-Po cket” Expe nses Inc urred” (“E ITF No. 01-14”), Omnicare has rec orded 
reimbursements received for “out-of-pocket” expenses on a grossed-up basis in the inc ome statement as net sales  
and cost of sales.  EITF No. 01-14 relates solely to the Company's contract research services business.   

(d) During the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company completed its offerings of $225 million aggregate principal amount 
of 6 .75% sen ior s ubordinated notes d ue 2 013, $525 million a ggregate principal am ount of 6 .875% se nior 
subordinated notes due 2015, $977.5 million aggregate principal amount of 3.25% convertible senior debentures due 
2035 (in cluding th e ex ercise in  fu ll b y th e u nderwriters of th eir op tion to  p urchase ad ditional d ebentures), and  
12,825,000 shares of common stock (not including the underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares), $1 par 
value, at $59.72 per share. During January 2006, the underwriters of the common stock offering completed by the 
Company in December 2005 exercised their opt ion, in part, to purchase an additional 850,000 shares of c ommon 
stock, $1 par value, at $59.72 per share.  See the “Debt” and “Public Offering of Common Stock” notes of the Notes 
to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information on these transactions.   

(e) “EBITDA” re presents ear nings before i nterest (net  of  i nvestment incom e), i ncome t axes, depreci ation a nd 
amortization.  Omnicare uses EBITDA primarily as an  indicator of the Company’s ability to  service its d ebt, and 
believes t hat c ertain i nvestors fi nd EBITDA t o be  a useful financial measure for t he sam e pur pose.  However, 
EBITDA do es n ot rep resent n et cash  flows fro m o perating activ ities, as d efined by Un ited States Gen erally 
Accepted Accounting Principles (“U.S. GAAP”), and should not be considered as a substitute for operating cash 
flows as a measure of liquidity.  Omnicare’s calculation of EBITDA may differ from the calculation of EBITDA by 
others.  The following is a reconciliation of EBITDA to net cash flows from operating activities for the years ended 
December 31 (in thousands):  

 
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

EBITDA 511,863$     455,346$     599,991$      601,951$      498,732$      
(Subtract)/add:   
Interest expense, net of 
  investment income (134,268)     (155,445)     (159,830)      (159,823)      (67,237)         
Income tax provision (104,079)     (72,442)       (136,924)      (135,315)      (139,188)       
Changes in assets and liabilities,
  net of effects from acquisition
  of businesses 98,032         236,861       (276,319)      (153,554)      (181,603)       

Deferred tax provision 66,649         41,209         81,602          110,280        58,154          
Net cash flows from operating 

   activities 438,197$     505,529$     108,520$      263,539$      168,858$      

 
(f) Primarily represents the purchase o f computer equipment and s oftware; machinery and e quipment; and furniture, 

fixtures and leasehold improvements. 
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ITEM 7. - MA NAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AN D AN ALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CO NDITION A ND 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (“MD&A”) 
 
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with  the Consolidated Financial Statements, related notes 
and other fin ancial in formation ap pearing elsewhere in  th is report.  In ad dition, see th e “Safe Harb or Statem ent 
under th e Pri vate Securities Litig ation Refo rm Act of 1995 Reg arding Fo rward-Looking In formation” cap tion 
below, as well as the “Risk Factors” previously discussed at Item 1A of this Filing. 
 
Overview of 2008 and Consolidated Results of Operations 
 
Omnicare, Inc. (“Omnicare” or the “Company”) is a lea ding geriatric pharmaceutical services company.  Omnicare 
is the nation’s largest prov ider of pharmaceuticals and related pharmacy  and anc illary services to long-te rm 
healthcare i nstitutions.  Omnicare’s clien ts in clude prim arily sk illed nu rsing facilities (“SNFs”), assisted  liv ing 
facilities (“ALFs”), retirem ent cen ters, i ndependent liv ing co mmunities, ho spitals, hosp ice, and  other healthcare 
settings and service providers.  At December 31, 2008, Omnicare served long-term care facilities as well as chronic 
care and other set tings comprising approximately 1,435,000 beds, including approximately 68,000 patients served 
by t he pat ient assi stance pr ograms of i ts speci alty pha rmacy services busi ness.  The com parable num ber at 
December 31, 2007 was approximately 1,449,000 (including 57,000 patients served by patient assistance programs).  
Omnicare provides its pharmacy services in  47 states  in t he United States (“U.S.”), the District of Columbia and 
Canada at December 31, 2008.  Omnicare also provides comprehensive product development and research services 
for the pharmaceutical, biot echnology, nutraceutical, medical devices and diagnostic industries in 30 countries 
worldwide.  For further description of the Company’s business activities see the “Business” caption of Part I, Item 1 
of this Filing. 
 
The following summary table presents consolidated net sales and results of operations of Omnicare for each of the 
years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 (in thousands, except per share amounts).  In accordance with the 
Securities and Excha nge Com mission (“ SEC”) release  entitled “Conditions for Use of Non-GAAP Fi nancial 
Measures,” the Company has disclosed in this MD&A, with the exception of EBITDA (discussed below), only those 
measures that are in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”). 
 

2008 2007 2006

Net sales 6,310,607$         6,220,010$      6,492,993$      

Net income 156,108$            114,056$         183,572$         

Earnings per share:
Basic 1.33$                  0.96$               1.55$               
Diluted 1.32$                  0.94$               1.50$               

EBITDA(a ) 511,863$            455,346$         599,991$         

For the years ended December 31,

 
(a) “EBITDA” re presents ear nings before i nterest (net  o f i nvestment income), i ncome taxes, de preciation an d 

amortization.  Omnicare uses EBITDA primarily as an  indicator of the Company’s ability to service its d ebt, 
and believes t hat cert ain i nvestors fi nd EBITDA t o be a usef ul fi nancial measure fo r t he sam e pu rpose.  
However, EBITDA does not represent net cash flows from operating activities, as defined by U.S. GAAP, and 
should not be considered as a substitute for operating cash flows as a measu re of liq uidity.  Th e Company’s 
calculation of EBITDA may di ffer from the calculation o f EBITDA by  others.  See Five-Year Summary of 
Selected Financial Data for a recon ciliation of EBITDA to net cash flows from operating activities, at Part II, 
Item 6 of this Filing. 

 
The results for the year ended December 31, 2008 continued to be impacted by the unilateral reduction in April 2006 
by UnitedHealth Group, Inc. and its affiliates (“United”) in the reimbursement rates paid by United to Omnicare by 
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switching t o i ts Paci fiCare pha rmacy netwo rk c ontract fo r services rendered by Om nicare to bene ficiaries of 
United’s d rug bene fit pl ans un der t he M edicare Part  D pr ogram.  The di fferential i n rei mbursement rat es t hat 
resulted from United’s action , as co mpared with  reimbursements rates u nder t he orig inally n egotiated con tract, 
reduced sales  and operating profit for t he year e nded December 31, 2008 by approxim ately $97 m illion 
(approximately $ 59 m illion aftertax) and  cu mulatively sin ce Ap ril 2 006 b y app roximately $ 296 m illion 
(approximately $184 million aftertax).  Th is matter is currently the subject of litigation initiated by Omnicare.  See 
further discussion at the “Legal Proceedings” section at Part I, Item 3 of this Filing. 
 
2008 vs. 2007 

 
Total net  sales for t he year ended December 31, 2008 increased to $6,310.6 million from $6,220.0 million in the 
comparable prior-year period.  Diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2008 were $1.32 versus 
$0.94 in the same prior-year period.  Net income for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $156.1 million versus 
$114.1 million earned in the comparable 2007 period.  EBITDA totaled $511.9 million for the year ended December 
31, 2008 as compared with $455.3 million for the same period of 2007. 
 
Net sales for t he y ear we re favorably impacted by acquisitions, drug price inflation, t he increase d use of ce rtain 
higher acuity drugs and biologic agents, and growth in specialty pharmacy and C RO Services revenues.  Part ially 
offsetting these factors was the unfavorable impact of the increased availability and utilization of generic drugs, a 
lower number of beds se rved, combined wi th a year-over-y ear sh ift in  mix  to wards assisted  liv ing, redu ctions in 
reimbursement and/or utilization for certain drugs as well as competitive pricing issues, and lower revenues reported 
from copays and rejects under Part D as well as from certain matters currently in litigation.  See d iscussion of sales 
and operating p rofit resu lts i n m ore d etail at th e “Ph armacy Serv ices Seg ment” an d “CRO Serv ices Seg ment” 
captions below. 
 
The Company’s consolidated gross profit of $1,592.4 million increased $53.8 million for the full year 2008 from the 
same prior-year period amount of $1,538.6 million.  G ross profit as a pe rcentage of total net sales of 25.2% in the 
year ended December 31, 2008, inc reased from the 24.7 % exp erienced du ring 2007.  G ross pr ofit was favorably 
impacted in the 2008 period largely as a resu lt of the increased availability and utilization of higher margin generic 
drugs, t he i ntegration of ac quisitions, t he favorable effe ct of drug price i nflation, purchasing i mprovements and 
lower inc remental costs  ass ociated with  the clos ure of t he C ompany’s Hea rtland re packaging facili ty as furthe r 
described below.  Largely offsetting these factors was the gross profit impact of certain of the aforementioned items 
that reduced net sales, primarily the lower net number of beds served and the reductions in reimbursement.   
 
Increased leverage in purchasing favorably impacts gross profit and is primarily derived through discounts, rebates 
and other price concessions from suppl iers.  Lev eraging of fixed and variable overhead costs primarily relates to 
generating higher sal es volumes fr om pha rmacy faci lities wi th n o or l imited i ncreases i n fixed c osts (e. g., re nt, 
depreciation, etc.) an d negligible to  moderate increases in  variable costs (e.g ., u tilities, labor, etc.), as well as th e 
elimination of ph armacies th rough t he C ompany’s productivity an d consolidation initiatives, fu rther d iscussed 
below.  The Company believes it will be able to continue to leverage fixed and variable overhead costs through both 
internal and acquired growth. 
 
Government and other rei mbursement for mulas general ly adju st t o t ake i nto acc ount drug p rice i nflation or 
deflation.  In  o rder to  enhance its g ross profit margins, the Company strateg ically allocates its resou rces to  those 
activities that will in crease internal sales growth and favorably impact sales mix, or will lower costs.  In addition, 
through the ongoing development of its pharmaceutical purchasing programs, the Company is able to obtain volume 
discounts and thereby manage its pharmaceutical costs. 
 
Omnicare’s consolidated selling, general and administrative (“operating”) expenses for the year ended December 31, 
2008 of $948.2 million we re hi gher t han t he comparable prior-year amount of $910.3 m illion, by $37.9 million.  
Operating ex penses as a percentage of net  sal es am ounted t o 15.0% i n 2 008, re presenting an i ncrease fr om t he 
14.6% experienced in the comparable prior-year period.  Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 
were unfavorably impacted largely by increases in employee benefit costs, increased operating costs associated with 
recent acquisitions a nd incre ased delive ry costs.  Partia lly offsetting the increase d operating e xpenses were the  
favorable impact of the Company’s continued integration of acquisitions, purchasing improvements and productivity 
enhancements.  
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The provision for doubtful acco unts for the year ended December 31, 2008  of $113.8 million was lower than the  
comparable prior-year amount of $213.6 million, by $99.8 million.  T he year ended 2007 includes an incremental 
charge t aken i n t he f ourth q uarter relating t o cust omer ban kruptcies and other l egal act ion agai nst a gro up o f 
customers for, among other things, the collection of past due receivables, a revised assessment of the administrative 
and payment issues associated with Prescription Drug Plans under Medicare Part D, particularly relating to the aging 
of copays and rejected claims, and the resultant adoption by the Company of a modification in its policy with respect 
to payment authorization for dispensed prescriptions under Medicare Part D and other payors. 
 
Investment income for the year ended December 31, 2008 of $9.8 million was higher than the $8.7 million earned in 
the comparable prio r-year period, primarily due to h igher returns on  assets invested for the settlement o f pension 
obligations, partially offset by lower interest rates versus the prior-year. 
 
Interest expense for the year  ended December 31, 2008 of $144.1 m illion is lower tha n the $164.2 million in the  
comparable prior-year period, primarily due to  lower debt ou tstanding resulting from payments aggregating $200  
million on the Company’s senior term A lo an facility, maturing on July 28, 2010 (the “Term Loans”), throughout 
2007 and 2008, payments of $39.1 million to pay off a term note payable in 2008 and lower interest rates on variable 
rate loans.  
 
The effective income tax rate was 40.0% in 2008, as compared to the rate of 38.8% for the same prior-year period.  
The year-over-year increase in the effective tax rate is primarily attributable to certain nondeductible litigation costs 
recognized in the 2008 period, partially offset by the impact of adjustments to deferred taxes and a change in filing 
methodology for a st ate taxing jurisdiction.  The ef fective tax rates in 2008 and 2007 are higher than the federal 
statutory rate l argely as a result of t he impact of state and local income taxes and various nondeductible expenses 
(including a portion of the aforementioned litigation costs in 2008.) 
 
Special Items 
 
The year ended December 31, 2008 included the following charges totaling $141.5 million pretax , which primarily 
impacted the  Pharmacy Services se gment.  Mana gement believes that these s pecial i tems are eithe r infre quent 
occurrences or otherwise not related to Omnicare’s ordinary course of business:  
 
(i) Operating income included restructuring and other related charges of  approximately $35.8 m illion pretax 
($21.9 m illion aftertax) relat ing t o th e im plementation of th e “Om nicare Fu ll Po tential” Plan , a m ajor in itiative 
primarily designe d t o re-engineer t he pharmacy operat ing model to i ncrease e fficiency and enha nce custom er 
growth.  See further discussion at the “Restructuring and Other Related Charges” note of the Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements and the “Restructuring and Other Related Charges” section of this MD&A. 
 
(ii) During 2006, t he Company expe rienced certain quality control and produ ct recall issues, as well as fire 
damage, at one of its repackaging facilities, Heartland Repack Services (“Heartland”), as described in further detail 
at the “Commitments and Contingencies” note of t he Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  (th e “Heartland 
Matters”).  In addressing and resolving these Heartland Matters, the Com pany continues to expe rience increased 
costs and, as  a result, the year ended December 31, 2008 incl uded special charges of $6.4 million preta x 
(approximately $5.5 million and $0.9 million was recorded in the cost of sales and operating expense sections of the 
Consolidated Statements of Income, respectively) ($3.9 million af tertax) for these increased costs.  The Company 
maintains p roduct recall, property and  casualty an d bu siness i nterruption i nsurance, a nd t he e xtent of i nsurance 
recovery for t hese e xpenses is curren tly being reviewed by its  outsi de advis ors.  As of December 31, 2008, the  
Company has received no material insurance recoveries. 
 
(iii) Operating in come in cluded sp ecial litig ation and  o ther related p rofessional fees of $99 .3 m illion p retax 
($68.7 million aftertax) fo r litig ation-related p rofessional ex penses in con nection with  th e C ompany’s lawsu it 
against Un ited, certain  o ther larg e cu stomer di sputes, t he i nvestigation by  the United States Attorney’s Office, 
District of Massachusetts, the purported class and derivative actions, the investigation by the federal government and 
certain states relating to drug substitu tions, and the Company’s response to subpoe nas it received rela ting to other 
legal proceedings to wh ich the Company is no t a party.  Also  included in  the $99.3 million is a special litig ation 
charge of $40 million pretax recorded by Omnicare in its financial results for the fourth quarter and full year end ed 
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December 31, 2008 to establish a settlement reserve in connection with the previously disclosed investigation by the 
United States Attorney’s Office, District o f Massachusetts.  Th is special litigation charge relates to  the Co mpany’s 
estimate of pot ential settlement amounts and associated costs under SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies.”  
The Company cannot predict the ultimate outcome of this matter.  W ith respect to these proceedings to which the 
Company is a party, including the investigation by the United States Attorney’s Office, District of Massachusetts, 
see fu rther discussion at  t he “C ommitments an d C ontingencies” n ote of t he N otes t o C onsolidated Fi nancial 
Statements, and the “Legal Proceedings” section at Part I, Item 3 of this Filing. 
 
Restructuring and Other Related Charges 
 
Omnicare Full Potential Program 
In 2006, th e Company co mmenced th e i mplementation o f th e “Om nicare Fu ll Po tential” Plan , a maj or in itiative 
primarily designe d t o re -engineer t he C ompany’s p harmacy ope rating model t o i ncrease effi ciency and enhance 
customer growth.  The Omnicare Full Potential Plan is expected to optimize resources across the entire organization 
by im plementing best p ractices, i ncluding t he real ignment and right-sizing o f f unctions, an d a “h ub-and-spoke” 
model whereby certain key administrative and production functions will be transferred to regional support centers 
(“hubs”) specifically designed and managed to perform these tasks, with local pharmacies (“spokes”) focusing on 
time-sensitive services and customer-facing processes. 
 
This program is expected to be completed over a multi-year period and is estimated to generate pretax savings in the 
range of $100  millio n to  $ 120 m illion an nually u pon co mpletion o f th e in itiative.  It is an ticipated th at 
approximately on e-half of t hese sav ings will b e realized in  cost of sales, with th e remainder being realized i n 
operating exp enses.  Th e prog ram is est imated to  resu lt in  to tal p retax restru cturing and  o ther related ch arges of 
approximately $93 million over this implementation period.  The Company recorded restructuring and other related 
charges for t he Om nicare F ull Pot ential Pl an o f a pproximately $3 6 m illion, $29 m illion a nd $17 million p retax 
during the yea rs ended December 31, 2008, 2007 a nd 2006, respectively (approximately $22 million, $18 million, 
and $11 m illion a ftertax, r espectively), or c umulative agg regate re structuring a nd ot her related cha rges of 
approximately $83 million before taxes through the year e nded December 31, 2008.  The rem ainder of the overall 
restructuring and other related charges will be recognized and disclosed prospectively, as the remaining portions of 
the project are finalized and im plemented.  Incremental capital expenditures related to this program are expected to 
total app roximately $50 m illion to $55 million over t he entire implementation period.  The C ompany el iminated 
approximately 1 ,200 positions in  completing its i nitial p hase of t he program.  Th e re mainder of t he program is 
currently estimated to resu lt in a n et reduction of app roximately 1,200 positions (1,900 positions eliminated, net of 
700 new positions filled in different geographic locations as well as t o perform new functions required by the hub-
and-spoke m odel of operations), of which approximately 160 positions had been eli minated as of December 31, 
2008.  Th e forego ing reductions do  not inclu de add itional sav ings expected  fro m lower lev els of overtime an d 
reduced te mporary labor.  T he Company cur rently est imates reductions i n ove rtime, excess h ours and t emporary 
help, as well as productivity gains, to equal an additional 820 full-time equivalents.   
 
The restructuring charges primarily in clude sev erance p ay, th e buy-out of  em ployment ag reements, lease 
terminations, and other ex it-related asset d isposals, pro fessional fees and facility ex it co sts.  Th e o ther related 
charges are primarily comprised of professional fees. 
 
While t he C ompany is work ing diligently to  ach ieve the estimated sav ings as discussed abo ve, t here can  be no 
assurances as to the ultimate outcome of the program, including the savings and/or related timing thereof, due to the 
inherent risks associated with the implementation of a project of this magnitude and the related new technologies.  
Specifically, th e potential in ability to  su ccessfully mitigate i mplementation risks, inclu ding bu t not n ecessarily 
limited to, dependence on third-party suppliers and consultants for the timely d elivery of technology as well as its 
performance at exp ected capacities, co mpliance with federal, state an d local regu latory requ irements; relian ce on 
information tech nology and  teleco mmunications supp ort, timely co mpletion of facility  lease tran sactions an d/or 
leasehold improvements, and th e ability to obtain adequate staffing  levels, individually or in  the aggregate, could 
affect the overall success of the program from a savings and/or timing standpoint. 
 
See further discussion at the “Restructuring and Other Related Charges” note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements.  
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2005 Program 
In t he th ird quarter of  2005, t he Co mpany anno unced th e im plementation of con solidation p lans an d o ther 
productivity initiativ es to  strea mline p harmacy serv ices an d contract research  o rganization operations, including 
maximizing workforce and operating asset utilization, and p roducing a more cost-efficient, operating infrastructure 
(the “2005 Program”).  These consolidation and productivity in itiatives were related, in part, to  the integration of 
NeighborCare, In c. (“NeighborCare”).  Given th e geo graphic overlap of  t he NeighborCare an d O mnicare 
pharmacies, su bstantial o pportunities for con solidation ex isted at th e ti me o f acqu isition.  While th e maj ority o f 
consolidations resul ted in NeighborCare pharmacies being c onsolidated into Omnicare pharmacies, depending on 
location, capacity and operati ng performance, certain Omnicare pharmacies were als o identified fo r consolidation 
into Nei ghborCare l ocations.  Ad ditionally, as part  of t he eval uation process on how best  t o i ntegrate t he t wo 
organizations, the C ompany also f ocused b roadly o n ways t o l ower o perating i nfrastructure co sts t o m aximize 
efficiencies and  asset u tilization an d id entified op portunities to  righ t-size th e b usiness, streamlin e o perations an d 
eliminate redun dant assets.  Th e con solidation activ ity an d other prod uctivity in itiatives o f t he 20 05 Progra m 
resulted in the closure of 29 Omnicare facilities, of which 26 were pharmacy operations.  Additionally, there was a 
net reduction in force of a pproximately 900 positions rel ating to the 2005 P rogram.  Of this re duction in force, 
approximately 96% were i n t he p harmacy operat ions a nd t he rem aining reductions were at  t he cor porate 
headquarters or th e C ompany’s con tract research op erations.  Restru cturing activ ities in  th e con tract research  
organization segment related primarily to facility lease obligations. 
 
The Company generated in excess of $40 million in pretax savings from pharmacy closures and other consolidation 
and productivity initiatives implemented in connection with these activities.  The 2005 Program initiatives required 
cumulative rest ructuring an d ot her related charges of a pproximately $ 31 m illion be fore t axes t hrough t he t hird 
quarter of 2006, which related to the costs associated with the consolidation of Omnicare pharmacies and the other 
consolidation and productivity in itiatives d escribed abov e.  Sp ecifically, th e Co mpany record ed rest ructuring and  
other related charges of approximately $12 million pretax during the year ended December 31, 2006 (approximately 
$8 million aftertax).  The restructuring liabilities associated with the 2005 Program were evaluated by the Company 
during the 2007 year, at w hich time it was determined that certain liabilities were no longer expected to be utilized 
as part of the activities remaining under the 2005 Program.  In accorda nce with SFAS No. 14 6, “Accounting for 
Costs Asso ciated with Ex it o r Disposal Activities,” th e Company record ed ad justments in  2007 t o redu ce t he 
employee sev erance and  em ployee ag reement bu y-out liab ilities b y ap proximately $ 1.2 m illion and  $0.4 m illion 
pretax, respectively. 
 
See further discussion at the “Restructuring and Other Related Charges” note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements.  
 
For a discussion regarding the Company’s outlook, please see the “Outlook” section of this MD&A. 
 
Pharmacy Services Segment 
 

2008 2007 2006

Net sales 6,107,287$         6,024,871$      6,321,141$      
Operating income 496,578$            439,148$         560,991$         

For the years ended December 31,

 
 
2008 vs. 2007 
 

Omnicare’s Pharmacy Services segment recorded sales of $6,107.3 million for the yea r ended December 31, 2008, 
up from the 2007 am ount of $6,024.9 million by $82.4 million, or 1.4%.  At Decem ber 31, 2008, Om nicare served 
long-term care facilities as well as ch ronic care an d o ther settings co mprising approx imately 1 ,435,000 beds, 
including approximately 68,000 patients served by the patient assistance programs of its specialty pharmacy services 
business.  The comparable number at December 31, 2007 was approximately 1,449,000 (including 57,000 specialty 
pharmacy p atients).  Pharmacy Serv ices sales were favorably i mpacted b y th e impact o f acqu isitions, drug  price 
inflation, the increase d use of cert ain higher acui ty drugs and biologic agents and growth in specialty pharmacy.  
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Partially offsetting these factors was th e unfavorable impact of the increased availability and utilization of generic 
drugs, a lower nu mber of beds serv ed, as well as th e im pact o f a bed mix shi ft t oward assisted l iving, which 
typically has lower penetration rates than skilled nursing facilities, reductions in reimbursement and/or utilization of 
certain drugs as well as co mpetitive pricing issues, and lower revenues reported from copays and rejects under Part 
D as well as from certain  matters curren tly in  litigation.  While the Company is fo cused on reducing its co sts to 
mitigate the impact of dru g pricing and reimbursement issues, there can be no ass urance that such is sues or ot her 
pricing and reimbursement pressures will not adversely impact the Pharmacy Services segment.  
 
Operating in come o f th e Ph armacy Serv ices seg ment wa s $496.6 millio n in  2008, a $57 .5 m illion in crease as 
compared with the $439.1 m illion earned in 2007.  As a percentage of the seg ment’s sales, o perating income was 
8.1% i n 2008, co mpared w ith 7.3% i n 2007.  Op erating income in  2008  was favorably i mpacted lar gely by th e 
increased av ailability an d u tilization o f h igher m argin generic drugs, the Co mpany’s con tinued integ ration of 
acquisitions an d productivity en hancements, d rug price inflation, lower bad d ebt ex pense, and  pu rchasing 
improvements.  Pa rtially offsetting these factors was the operating income effect  of certain of the aforementioned 
items that reduced net sales as well as the year-over-year impact of the special items discussed below.  Specifically, 
operating income o f th e Pharmacy Serv ices seg ment in cluded sp ecial pretax item s o f $13 6.8 m illion and  $79.8 
million in  the years ended December 31, 2008 and  December 31, 2007, r espectively.  Operating income in  2008 
included the aforementioned special l itigation charges of $99.3 million, restructuring and other related charges of 
approximately $3 1.1 m illion, a nd i ncremental cost s as sociated with the closure of the Com pany’s Heartla nd 
repackaging facilit y o f $6 .4 million.  Op erating in come i n 200 7 in cluded th e afo rementioned sp ecial lit igation 
charges of $42.5  million, restructuring and other related  charges of app roximately $20.1 million, and incremental 
costs associated with the closure of the Company’s Heartland repackaging facility of $17.2 million. 
 
CRO Services Segment 
 

2008 2007 2006

Net sales 203,320$            195,139$         171,852$         
Operating income 15,908$              10,378$           5,340$             

For the years ended December 31,

 
 
2008 vs. 2007 

 
Omnicare’s CRO Services segment recorded revenues of $203.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, an 
increase of $8.2 million, or 4.2%, from the $195.1 m illion recorded in the sam e prior-year period.  In accordance 
with EITF Issue No. 01-14, the Company included $31.3 million and $31.7 million of reimbursable out-of-pockets 
in its CRO Services segm ent reported revenue and direct cost amounts for the year s ended December 31, 2008 and 
2007, respectively.  Rev enues fo r 200 8 were h igher t han in th e same p rior-year p eriod primarily d ue to the  
commencement and ram p-up of projects that were awa rded in 2007 and in 2008, exceeding p roject completions, 
terminations and cancellations. 
 
Operating income in the CRO Services segment was $15.9 million in 2008 compared with $10.4 million in 2007, an 
increase of $5.5 million.  As a perce ntage of the segment’s revenue, operating income was 7.8% in 2008 compared 
with 5.3% in  2007.  This i ncrease is primarily attrib utable to the favorable im pact of the inc rease i n re venues 
discussed above and the favorable year-over-year impact of special items.  Backlog at December 31, 2008 of $302.9 
million was $11.4 million lower than the December 31, 2007 backlog of $314.3 million. 
 
2007 vs. 2006 

 
Total net sales for t he year e nded December 31, 2007 decreased to $6,220.0 million from $6,493.0 million in the  
comparable prior-year period.  Diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2007 were $0.94 versus 
$1.50 in the same prior-year period.  Net income for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $114.1 million versus 
$183.6 million earned in the comparable 2006 period.  EBITDA totaled $455.3 million for the year ended December 
31, 2007 as compared with $600 million for the same period of 2006. 
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Net sales for t he year were unfavorably impacted by a lower number of beds served, the increased availability and 
utilization of generic drugs, th e im pact o f th e redu ction in  reim bursement u nder the United Part D co ntract, the  
deconsolidation of th e pharmacy joint-venture operations and a sh ift in mix towards assisted living, partially offset 
by the favorable impact of drug price inflation, acquisitions, and growth in hospice and specialty pharmacy services 
as well as  CRO Se rvices re venues.  See discussion of sales and  operating profit resu lts in m ore detail at th e 
“Pharmacy Services Segment” and “CRO Services Segment” captions below. 
 
The Company’s consolidated gross profit of $1,538.6 million decreased $61.8 million for the full year 2007 from the 
same prior-year period amount of $1,600.4 million.  G ross profit as a pe rcentage of total net sales of 24.7% in the 
year ended December 31, 2007, increased from the 24.6% experienced during 2006. 
 
Gross profit was favorably impacted in the 2007 period largely as a result of the increased availability and utilization 
of hi gher m argin generic drugs, t he c ontinued i ntegration of p rior-period acq uisitions, drug p urchasing 
improvements, and year-over-year growth in specialty pharmacy services and CRO services, as well as the favorable 
year-over-year gross profit impact of t he reduction in special items.  Specifically, gro ss profit for the year ended 
December 31, 2007 incl uded $14.8 m illion of i ncremental costs assoc iated with t he closure of t he Com pany’s 
Heartland repackaging facility as co mpared to  $27.7 m illion for t he year en ded December 3 1, 2006 , as fu rther 
described below.  In addition, gross profit for the year e nded December 31, 2006 included $10.3 million related to 
the Michigan Medicaid matter, as further discussed in the “Special Items” caption below.  Offsetting these factors 
was the unfavorable gross profit impact of the aforementioned reduction in net sales, including the lower number of 
beds served, a reduction in reimbursement under the United Part D contract, as well as an i ncrease in direct payroll 
costs. 
 
Increased leverage in purchasing favorably impacts gross profit and is primarily derived through discounts, rebates 
and other price concessions from suppl iers.  Lev eraging of fixed and variable overhead costs primarily relates to 
generating higher sal es volumes fr om pha rmacy faci lities wi th n o or l imited i ncreases i n fixed c osts (e. g., re nt, 
depreciation, etc.) an d negligible to  moderate increases in  variable costs (e.g ., u tilities, labor, etc.), as well as th e 
elimination of ph armacies th rough t he C ompany’s productivity an d consolidation initiatives, fu rther d iscussed 
below.  The Company believes it will be able to continue to leverage fixed and variable overhead costs through both 
internal and acquired growth. 
 
Government and other rei mbursement for mulas general ly adju st t o t ake i nto acc ount drug p rice i nflation or 
deflation.  In  o rder to  enhance its g ross profit margins, the Company strateg ically allocates its resou rces to  those 
activities that will in crease internal sales growth and favorably impact sales mix, or will lower costs.  In addition, 
through the ongoing development of its pharmaceutical purchasing programs, the Company is able to obtain volume 
discounts and thereby manage its pharmaceutical costs. 
 
Omnicare’s consolidated selling, general and administrative (“operating”) expenses for the year ended December 31, 
2007 of $910.3 million we re hi gher t han t he comparable prior-year amount of $887.4 m illion, by $22.9 million.  
Operating ex penses as a percentage of net  sal es am ounted t o 14.6% i n 2 007, re presenting an i ncrease fr om t he 
13.7% experienced in the comparable prior-year period.  Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2007 
were unfavorably impacted primarily by a $13.4 million increase in periodic pension costs, increased legal costs of 
$5.9 million, as well as the i mpact of recent acquisitions.  Partially offsetting the increased operating expenses were 
the favo rable im pact o f the Co mpany’s con tinued integ ration of prio r period acq uisitions, and  productivity 
enhancements, including the restructuring program relating to the NeighborCare acquisition and the “Omnicare Full 
Potential” Plan, as further discussed in the “Restructuring and Other Related Charges” section of this MD&A. 
 
The provision for doubtful accounts for the year ended December 31, 2007 of $213.6 million was higher than the 
comparable prior-year amount of $82.2 million, by $131.4 million.  T he year ended 2007 includes an incremental 
charge t aken i n t he f ourth q uarter relating t o cust omer ban kruptcies and other l egal act ion agai nst a gro up o f 
customers for, among other things, the collection of past due receivables, a revised assessment of the administrative 
and payment issues associated with Prescription Drug Plans under Medicare Part D, particularly relating to the aging 
of copays and rejected claims, and the resultant adoption by the Company of a modification in its policy with respect 
to payment authorization for dispensed prescriptions under Medicare Part D and other payors. 
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Investment income for the year ended December 31, 2007 of $8.7 million was lower than the $10.5 million earned 
in the comparable prior-year period, primarily due to lower average invested balances versus the prior-year. 
 
Interest expense for the year  ended December 31, 2007 of $164.2 m illion is lower tha n the $170.3 million in the  
comparable prior-year period, primarily due to  lower debt ou tstanding resulting from payments aggregating $250  
million on the Term Loans, in the latter half of 2006 and throughout 2007, partially offset by increased interest rates 
for variable rate loans.  
 
The effectiv e in come tax  rate was 3 8.8% in  2 007, significan tly lo wer th an th e prior-year rate of 4 2.7%, du e 
primarily to certain nondeductible litigation costs recognized in the 2006 period.  The effective tax rates in 2007 and 
2006 are higher than the federal statutory rate largely as a result of the i mpact of state and local i ncome taxes and 
various nondeductible expenses (including a portion of the aforementioned litigation costs). 
 
Special Items 
 
The year ende d December 31, 2007 i ncluded the followi ng charges totaling $87.6 mi llion pretax, which prim arily 
impacted the  Pharmacy Services se gment.  Mana gement believes that these s pecial i tems are eithe r infre quent 
occurrences or otherwise not related to Omnicare’s ordinary course of business:  
 
 
(i) Operating income included restructuring and other related charges of  approximately $27.9 m illion pretax 
($17.3 million aftertax), $29.5 million of which related to the implementation of the “Omnicare Full Potential” Plan, 
a major in itiative p rimarily designed to  re-eng ineer th e p harmacy o perating m odel t o in crease efficien cy an d 
enhance c ustomer gr owth, partially off set by  a ($ 1.6) million cre dit adj ustment to t he previously di sclosed 
consolidation and produ ctivity in itiatives related , in  part, to  th e i ntegration of t he Neig hborCare acq uisition and 
other related activities.  See further discussion at the “Restructuring and Other Related Charges” note of the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements and the “Restructuring and Other Related Charges” section of this MD&A. 
 
(ii) During the ye ar ended December 31, 2007, speci al charges relatin g to  the aforem entioned Heartland 
Matters of $17.2 million pretax (approximately $14.8 million and $2.4 million was recorded in the cost of sales and 
operating expense sect ions of the Consolidated Statements of In come, r espectively) ($10.7 million aftertax) were 
recorded ass ociated with th ese increa sed costs.  As previously disclosed, t he C ompany m aintains p roduct recall, 
property and casualty and business interruption insurance, and the extent of insurance recovery for these expenses is 
currently being reviewed by its outside advisors.  
 
(iii) Operating in come in cluded special litig ation ch arges of $42.5 million pretax  ($26.4 million aftertax ) fo r 
litigation-related professional fees i n co nnection with t he in vestigation b y t he United States Attorney’s Office, 
District of Massachusetts, the purpor ted cl ass and  derivative actio ns, th e Co mpany’s lawsu it ag ainst Un ited, the 
inquiry conducted by the Attorney General’s office in Michigan relating to certain billing issues under the Michigan 
Medicaid program, the investigation by the federal government and certain states relating to drug substitutions, the 
Company’s re sponse to subpoenas it recei ved relating to other legal proceedi ngs to which the C ompany is not a 
party, and ce rtain other l arger customer di sputes.  With respect t o t hese proceedings t o which the Company i s a 
party, see f urther discussion at the “Commitments and C ontingencies” note of t he Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements, and the “Legal Proceedings” section at Part I, Item 3 of this Filing. 
 
For a discussion regarding the Company’s outlook, please see the “Outlook” section of this MD&A. 
 
Pharmacy Services Segment 
 
2007 vs. 2006 
 

Omnicare’s Pharmacy Services segment recorded sales of $6,024.9 million for the yea r ended December 31, 2007, 
down from the 2006 am ount of $6,321.1 million by $296.2 million, or 4.7% .  At December 31, 2007, Omnicare 
served l ong-term care faci lities and ot her chro nic care  set tings com prising ap proximately 1,39 2,000 be ds as 
compared wi th ap proximately 1,40 6,000 beds serve d a t Dece mber 31, 2006.  Pha rmacy Services sales were 
unfavorably impacted by a lower number of beds served, the increased availability and utilization of generic drugs, 
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the effects of the reduction in reimbursement under the United Part D contract, the aforementioned deconsolidation 
of the pharmacy joint-venture operations, and the impact of a bed mix shift to ward assisted living, which typically 
has lower penetration rates than skilled nursing facilities.  Partially offsetting these factors were drug price inflation, 
the impact of acquisitions, and year-over-year growth in hospice pharmacy and specialty pharmacy services.  Th e 
company estimates that drug price inflation for its highest dollar volume products in 2007 was approximately 5% to 
6%.  While the Company is focused on reducing its costs to mitigate the impact of drug pricing and reimbursement 
issues, there can be no assurance that su ch issues or other pricing and reimbursement pressures will not adversely 
impact the Pharmacy Services segment.  
 
Operating in come o f th e Ph armacy Serv ices seg ment was $439.1 m illion in 200 7, a $121.9 m illion decrease as 
compared with th e $56 1.0 millio n earn ed in 2006.  As a p ercentage of th e seg ment’s sales, op erating in come o f 
7.3% in 2007 was lower than the 8.9% in 2006.  The decrease in operating income in 2007 is primarily attributable 
to a l ower number of beds served, the unfavorable impact of t he aforementioned reduction in the reimbursement 
rates under the United Part D contract, and the previously discussed increase in the provision for doubtful accounts 
of $131.4 million pretax.  Partially o ffsetting these factors was t he increased availability and utilization of higher 
margin generic dr ugs, drug p urchasing i mprovements, t he C ompany’s co ntinued i ntegration of p rior-period 
acquisitions an d pro ductivity en hancements, i ncluding th e restructuring program relatin g, i n p art, to th e 
NeighborCare acquisition and  the “Om nicare Fu ll Po tential” Plan, as further discussed in  t he “Restru cturing and 
Other Related Charges” section of this MD&A, as well as the favorable year-over-year impact of the special items 
discussed below.  Specifically, operating income of the Pharmacy Services segment included special pretax items of 
$79.8 m illion and $187.6 m illion in the ye ars e nded December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively.  
Operating income in 2007 included the aforementioned special litigation charges of $42.5 million, restructuring and 
other rel ated c harges of a pproximately $20 .1 m illion, an d increm ental costs ass ociated with t he closure of t he 
Company’s Heartland repackaging facility of $17.2 million.  Operating income in 2006 included the aforementioned 
special litig ation ch arges of $125.1 million, a $6.1 million ch arge asso ciated with reten tion p ayments fo r certain  
NeighborCare employees as requ ired un der th e acq uisition ag reement, restru cturing and  o ther related ch arges o f 
approximately $2 2.6 m illion, a nd i ncremental cost s as sociated with the closure of the Com pany’s Heartla nd 
repackaging facility of $33.7 million. 
 
CRO Services Segment 
 
2007 vs. 2006 

 
Omnicare’s CRO Services segment recorded revenues of $195.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, an 
increase of $23.2 million, or 13.5%, from the $171.9 million recorded in the same prior-year period.  In accordance 
with EITF Issue No. 01-14, the Company included $31.7 million and $25.6 million of reimbursable out-of-pockets 
in its CRO Services segm ent reported revenue and direct cost amounts for the year s ended December 31, 2007 and 
2006, respectively.  Rev enues fo r 200 7 were h igher t han in th e same p rior-year p eriod primarily d ue to the  
commencement and ramp-up of projects that were awarded in 2006 and in the first half of 2007, exceeding project 
terminations and cancellations. 
 
Operating income in the CRO Services segment was $10.4 million in 2007 compared with $5.3 million in 2006, an 
increase of $5.1 million.  As a perce ntage of the segment’s revenue, operating income was 5.3% in 2007 compared 
with 3.1% in 2006.  This increase is primarily attributable to the favorable impact of the aforementioned increase in 
revenues and cost reduction efforts.  Backlog at December 31, 2007 of $314.3 million was $12.4 million higher than 
the December 31, 2006 backlog of $301.9 million. 
 
Impact of Inflation 
 
The C ompany est imates t hat dru g p rice i nflation fo r i ts hi ghest dol lar pr oducts during t he t hree y ears ende d 
December 31, 2008 has ranged between approximately 6% to 7%, which tends to impact sales and c osts of sales at  
approximately the same level.  Therefore, inflation has not materially affected Omnicare’s net income, inasmuch as 
government and other reimbursement formulas generally adjust to take into account drug price inflation or deflation. 
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Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources 
 
Cash and cash equi valents at December 31, 2008 were $217.0 million compared with $277.6 million at Decem ber 
31, 2007 (including restricted cash amounts of $1.9 million and $3.2 million, respectively).  
 
The Company generated positive net cash flows from operating activities of $438.2 million during the year en ded 
December 31, 2008, compared with ne t cash fl ows from operating activities of  $505.5 million and $108.5 million 
during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.  Operating cash flows in 2008, as well as cash on 
hand, were used prim arily fo r acqu isition-related payments, th e Co mpany’s sto ck rep urchase p rogram, d ebt 
payments, cap ital ex penditures an d dividend p ayments.  Net cash  flows from o perating activ ities d uring the year  
ended December 31, 2008 were unfavorably impacted largely by the im pact of an ext ra payment to the Company’s 
drug wholesaler of approxim ately $65 million (these pay ments are due weekly, and the year ende d December 31,  
2008 incl uded one  extra we ekly paym ent), and the related im pact on the year-over-year m ovement in accounts  
payable, on operating cash flows.  Cash flow from operations for 2006 was impacted by cash payments of $104.2 
million related to the litigation matters and $12.5 million related to the Heartland matters.  See further discussion of 
these m atters at th e “Co mmitments an d C ontingencies” note of th e Notes to  C onsolidated Fi nancial State ments.  
This unfavorable 2006 impact was partially offset by the first quarter of 2006 return of a deposit of approximately 
$38.3 million from one of the Company’s drug wholesalers.  Cash flow from operations for 2006 also included the 
return of a $44.0 million deposit from another of the Company’s drug wholesalers in connection with a cha nge in 
terms to  more frequ ent, week ly p ayments.  Th e im pact of t hese m ore f requent payments on  cash f low in 200 6 
slightly more than offset the $44.0 million return of the deposit.   
 
Net cash used in investing activities was $285.3 million, $196.9 million and $126.9 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, 
respectively.  Acquisitions of businesses required outlays of $225.7 million (including amounts payable pursuant to 
acquisition agreements relating to pre-2008 acquisitions) in 2008 relating to 12 acquisitions, which were p rimarily 
funded by operating cash flows.  Acquisitions of businesses during 2007 required cash payments of $151.1 million 
(including am ounts payable pu rsuant to acquisition agr eements relatin g t o pre-2007 acqu isitions) which were 
primarily funded by operating cash flows.  Acquisitions of businesses during 2006 required cash payments of $94.3 
million (incl uding am ounts payable purs uant to ac quisition a greements relating to pre-2006 ac quisitions), which 
were primarily funded by pr oceeds from the issua nce of comm on stock, invested cash and operating cash fl ows.  
Omnicare’s capital requirements, in addition to the payment of debt and dividends, are p rimarily comprised of its 
acquisition pro gram an d cap ital ex penditures, larg ely relatin g to  i nvestments in  th e Co mpany’s in formation 
technology systems and the implementation of the “Omnicare Full Potential” Plan.  
 
Net cash use d in financi ng activities was $209.1 m illion for the year ended December 31, 2008, as com pared to 
$175.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. During 2008, the Company completed its $100 million stock 
repurchase program as further discussed below, paid down $50.0 million on the Term Loans, and paid $39.1 million 
to completely pay off a not e payable carrying a fi ve-year term.  During 2007 and 2006, the Company paid down 
$150 million and $100 million on the Term Loans, respectively.   
 
At December 31, 2008, there were no outstanding borrowings on the $800 million revolving credit facility, and $400 
million in borrowings were outstan ding on t he Term  Loa ns.  As of December 31, 2008, the Company had 
approximately $26 million outstanding relating to standby letters of cred it, substantially all of which are sub ject to 
automatic annual renewals. 
 
On February 12, 2009, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of 2.25 cents per share 
for an indicated annual rate of 9 cents per common share for 2009, which is consistent with annual dividends paid 
per common share for the 2008, 2007 and 2006 years.  Aggregate dividends of $10.8 million paid during 2008 were 
relatively consistent with the $11.0 million paid in 2007 and the $10.9 million paid in 2006.  
 
On March 27, 2008, the Company announced that its Board of Directors authorized a program to repurchase, from 
time to t ime, shares o f Om nicare's out standing com mon st ock having a n ag gregate value o f u p t o $100 m illion, 
depending o n market condi tions an d ot her fact ors. I n t he t hree months en ded Ju ne 3 0, 2 008, t he C ompany 
repurchased approximately 4.1 million shares at a cost  of approximately $100 million.  Accordingly, the Company 
has utilized the full amount of share repurchase authority and completed the program.  These repurchases were made 
in open market or privately negotiated transactions in compliance with Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 
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10b-18 and other applicable legal requirements.  On December 31, 2008, Omnicare had approximately 118.4 million 
shares of common stock outstanding. 
 
There were no known m aterial commitments and contingencies outstanding at December 31, 2008, ot her than the 
contractual obligations summarized in the “Disclosures About Aggregate Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance 
Sheet Arran gements” cap tion b elow, cert ain acq uisition-related p ayments po tentially d ue in  th e fu ture, in cluding 
deferred payments, indemnification payments and payments originating from earnout and other provisions that may 
become payable, as well as the m atters d iscussed in  th e “Commitments an d Contingencies” no te of th e No tes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements, and the “Legal Proceedings” section at Part I, Item 3 of this Filing.   
 
The Company believes that net cash flows from operating activities, credit facilities an d existing cash balances will 
be sufficient to satisfy its future working capital needs, acquisition contingency commitments, debt servicing, capital 
expenditures and other financing requirements for the foreseeable future.  Additionally, the C ompany believes t hat 
external sources of financing, including short- and long-term debt financings, are a vailable.  D ue to turmoil in the 
credit markets, Omnicare may not be able t o refinance maturing debt at terms that are as favorable as those fro m 
which the Company previously benefited or at terms that are acceptable to Omnicare.  In addition, no assurances can 
be given regarding the Company’s ability to obtain additional financing in the future. 
 
Disclosures About Aggregate Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
 
Aggregate Contractual Obligations: 
 
The following summarizes the Company’s aggregate contractual obligations as of December 31, 2008, and the effect 
such obligations are expected to have on the Company’s liquidity and cash flows in future periods (in thousands): 
 

Total 
 Less Than 1 

Year  1-3 Years  4-5 Years  After 5 Years 

Debt obligations(a) 2,722,500$       -$                     400,000$         475,000$         1,847,500$       
Capital lease obligations(a) 4,913                2,263               2,125               191                  334                   
Operating lease obligations 161,530            44,582             53,870             32,094             30,984              
Purchase obligations(b) 75,333             54,373           17,220           3,740              -                      
Other current obligations(c) 345,571            345,571           -                      -                       -                       
Other long-term obligations(d) 276,284            -                       225,725           24,241             26,318              
Subtotal 3,586,131         446,789           698,940           535,266           1,905,136         
Future interest relating to debt and
   capital lease obligations(e) 1,588,575         121,621           222,604           207,539           1,036,811         
Total contractual cash obligations 5,174,706$       568,410$         921,544$         742,805$         2,941,947$       

(a) The noted obligation amounts represent the principal portion of the associated debt obligations.  Details of 
the Company’s outstanding debt instruments can be found in the “Debt” note of the Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

(b) Purchase obligations primarily consist of open inventory purchase orders, as wel l as obligations for other 
goods and services, at period end. 

(c) Othe r current obligations primarily consist of accounts payable at period end. 
(d)  Other l ong-term obl igations are l argely comprised of pe nsion a nd excess  be nefit pl an obligations, 

acquisition-related liabilities, as well as accruals relating to uncertain tax positions. 
(e) Represents estimated future pretax interest costs based on the stated fixed interest rate of th e debt, or th e 

variable in terest rate in  effect at period end for variable interest rate debt.  The estimated fut ure interest 
costs presented in this table do not include any amounts potentially payable associated with the contingent 
interest and interest reset provisions of the Company’s convertible debentures.  To the extent that any debt 
would be paid off by Omnicare prior to the stated due date or refinanced, the estimated future interest costs 
would change accordingly.  Further, these analyses do not consider the effects of potential changes in the  
Company’s credit rating on future interest costs. 
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As of December 31, 2008, th e Company had approximately $26 m illion outstanding relating to standby letters of 
credit, substantially all of which are subject to automatic annual renewals. 
 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements: 
 
As of December 31, 2008, the Company had two unconsolidated entities, Omnicare Capital Trust I, a statutory trust 
formed by the Company (the “Old Trust”) and Omnicare Capital Trust II (the “New Trust”), which were established 
for the purpose of facilitating the offerings of the 4.00% Trust Preferred Income Equity Redeemable Securities due 
2033 (the “Old Trust PIERS”) and the Series B 4 .00% Trust Preferred Income Equity Redeemable Securities (the 
“New Trust PIERS”), respectively.  For finan cial reporting purposes , the Old T rust and Ne w Trust are treated a s 
equity method investments of the Company.  The Old Trust and New Trust are 100%-owned finance subsidiaries of 
the Co mpany.  Th e Co mpany h as fu lly an d un conditionally g uaranteed th e secu rities o f th e Old  Tru st an d New 
Trust.  The Ol d 4.00% Debentures issued by the Company to the Old Trust and the New 4.00% Debentures issued 
by th e Co mpany to  th e New Tru st in  con nection with  the issu ance of th e Old  Tru st PIERS and  the New Tru st 
PIERS, respectively, are presented as a single line item in Omnicare’s consolidated balance sheets and debt footnote 
disclosures.  Additionally, the related  disclosures concerning the Old Trust PIERS an d the New Trust PIERS, t he 
guarantees, and the Old 4.00% Debentures and New 4.00% Debentures are included in the “Debt” note of the Notes 
to Consolidated Financial Statements.  Omnicare records interest payable to the Old Trust and New Trust as interest 
expense in its consolidated statement of income. 
 
As of December 31, 2008, the Com pany had no other unconsolidated entities, or any financial partnerships, such as 
entities often referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities, which might have been established for the 
purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements. 
 
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk  
 
Omnicare’s primary market risk exposure relates to variable interest rate risk through its borrowings.  Accordingly, 
market risk loss is primarily defined as the potential loss in earnings due to higher interest rates on variable-rate debt 
of the Com pany.  The m odeling technique used by Om nicare f or eval uating i nterest rate risk e xposure i nvolves 
performing sen sitivity an alysis o n th e v ariable-rate debt, assu ming a c hange in  in terest rates o f 100  b asis-points.  
The Company’s debt obligations at December 31, 2008 include $400.0 million outstandi ng under the variable-rate 
Senior term A loan, due July 28, 2010, at an interest rate of 3.6% at December 31, 2008 (a 100 basis-point change in 
the interest rate would increase or decrease pretax interest expense by approximately $4.0 million per year); $250.0 
million outstanding under its fixed-rate 6.125% Senior Notes, due 2013; $225.0 million outstanding under its fixed-
rate 6.75% Senior Notes, due 2013; $525 million outstanding under its fixed-rate 6.875% Senior Notes, due 2015; 
$345.0 m illion out standing under i ts fi xed-rate 4. 00% Convertible Debentures, d ue 20 33; an d $ 977.5 m illion 
outstanding u nder i ts fi xed-rate 3.2 5% C onvertible De bentures, d ue 2 035 ( with an o ptional re purchase ri ght of  
holders on December 15, 2015).  In c onnection with its offering of $250.0 million of 6.125% Senior Notes, during 
the seco nd quarter of 200 3, the Co mpany entered in to a Swap Agreement on all $2 50.0 million of its ag gregate 
principal amount of the 6.125% Senior Notes.  Under the Swap Agreement, which hedges against exposure to long-
term U.S. doll ar interest rate s, the Com pany receives a fi xed rate of 6.125% a nd pay s a floating ra te based on 
LIBOR with a maturity of six months, plus a spread of 2.27%.  The estimated LIBOR-based floating rate (including 
the 2.27% spread) was 4.1% at December 31, 2008 (a 100 basis-point change in the interest rate would increase or 
decrease pretax interest expense by approximately $2.5 million per year).  The Swap Agreement, which matches the 
terms of the 6.125% Se nior Notes , is designate d and accounted for as a fair value he dge.  The Co mpany is 
accounting for the Swap Agreement in accordance with SFAS No. 133, as amended, so changes in the fair value of 
the Swap Agreement are offset by changes i n the recorded carrying value of the related 6.125% Senior Notes.  The 
fair v alue of th e Swap  Ag reement is reco rded as a n oncurrent asset o r (liab ility), wit h an  offsetting in crease or 
(decrease), res pectively, t o t he b ook ca rrying val ue o f t he rel ated 6.125% Se nior N otes, a nd amounted t o 
approximately $6.0 m illion at the e nd of 2008.  Additionally, at Decem ber 31, 2008, the fair val ue of Omnicare’s 
variable rate debt facilities approximated the carrying value, as the effective interest rates fluctuate with changes in 
market rates.  
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The fair v alue of the Company’s fixed-rate debt facilities  is b ased on quoted market prices and is su mmarized as  
follows (in thousands): 
 

Financial Instrument: Book Value Market Value Book Value Market Value

6.125% senior subordinated notes, due 2013, gross 250,000$       208,800$       250,000$       230,000$       
6.75% senior subordinated notes, due 2013 225,000         189,000         225,000         212,600         
6.875% senior subordinated notes, due 2015 525,000         446,000         525,000         486,900         
4.00% junior subordinated convertible 
     debentures, due 2033 345,000         250,800         345,000         246,700         
3.25% convertible senior debentures, due 2035 977,500         565,100         977,500         703,800         

December 31,
2008

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

2007

 
Embedded in the Old Trust PIERS, the New Trust PIERS and the 3.25% Convertible Debentures are two derivative 
instruments, specifically, a con tingent interest provision and a contingent conversion parity provision.  In addition, 
the 3.25% Convertible Debentures include an in terest rese t provision.  Th e embedded derivatives are pe riodically 
valued, and at period end, the values of the derivatives embedded in the Old Trust PIERS, the New Trust PIERS and 
the 3.25% Convertible Debentures were not material.  However, the values are subject to cha nge, based on market 
conditions, which  could affect th e Company’s fu ture consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash 
flows. 
 
The Co mpany h as op erations an d revenue th at o ccur ou tside of th e U.S. and  transactio ns th at are settled  in  
currencies other th an th e U.S. do llar, exposin g it to  market r isk r elated to  ch anges in  fo reign cu rrency ex change 
rates.  H owever, t he s ubstantial port ion o f t he C ompany’s o verall c onsolidated operations a nd revenues an d t he 
substantial p ortion of th e Co mpany’s ov erall con solidated cash  settle ments are exchanged in U.S. do llars.  
Therefore, changes in forei gn currency exchange rates do not rep resent a sub stantial market risk  exp osure to th e 
Company.   
 
The Company does not have any financial instruments held for trading purposes. 
 
Critical Accounting Policies 
 
The Company’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP.  In  connection with 
the preparation of these financial statements, Omnicare management is required to make assumptions, estimates and 
judgments that affect the reported am ounts of assets, liabilities, stockholders' equity, revenues and expenses and the 
related di sclosure of c ommitments and c ontingencies.  On a re gular ba sis, t he C ompany evaluates the estim ates 
used, in cluding tho se related to  its provision for doubtful acco unts, c ontractual al lowances, i nventory valuation, 
impairment of goodwill, insurance accruals, pension obligations, income taxes, stock-based compensation, legal and 
regulatory contingencies , fair value determ inations, an d other operating allowances a nd accruals.  Managem ent 
bases its estimates on  a co mbination of factors, including historical experience, current co nditions, feedback from 
outside advisors where feasible, and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable at the time and 
under the current circumstances.  The Company's significant accounting policies are summarized in the “Description 
of Bu siness an d Su mmary o f Sign ificant Acco unting Policies” no te of th e No tes to  C onsolidated Fin ancial 
Statements.  
 
In many cases, the accounting treatm ent of a particular transaction is specifically dictated by U.S. GAAP and does 
not require si gnificant m anagement j udgment in  its app lication.  Ther e ar e also ar eas in wh ich m anagement’s 
judgment in selecting among available alternatives would not produce a materially different result.  An accounting 
policy is co nsidered to  be cri tical if it is i mportant to  t he d etermination o f th e registrant’s fi nancial p osition and 
operating res ults, an d re quires si gnificant judgment and estimates on t he p art o f m anagement i n i ts ap plication.  
Omnicare’s critical accounting estimates and the related assumptions are evaluated periodically as conditions require 
revision.  A pplication of t he critical accounting policies requires management’s significant judgments, often as t he 
result of the need  to  m ake esti mates o f m atters th at are i nherently an d highly un certain, in cluding t hose m atters 
further di scussed bel ow.  I f actual resul ts were t o differ materially fro m the jud gments an d estim ates made, the 
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Company’s reported financial position and/or operating results could be materially affected.  Omnicare management 
continually reviews th ese estimates an d assumptions in pr eparing the financial statements.  The Company believes 
the following critical accounting policies and estimates involve more significant judgments and estimates used in the 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.  
 
Revenue Recognition 
 
Omnicare recognizes revenue when products are delivered or services are delivered or provided to the customer. 
 
Pharmacy Services Segment 
 
A si gnificant portion of the  Com pany’s Pharmacy Servi ces segm ent revenu es from  sales of pharmaceutical and 
medical products have been reimbursed by the federal Medicare Part D plan and, to a lesser extent, state Medicaid 
programs.  Pay ments for serv ices rendered to  patients co vered by t hese prog rams are g enerally less th an billed 
charges.  The Company monitors its re venues and recei vables from these reim bursement sources, as well as othe r 
third-party insura nce pay ors, and rec ords an estim ated contractual allowa nce for c ertain sales and receiva ble 
balances at the reve nue recognition date, to prope rly account for anticipated diff erences bet ween billed and 
reimbursed a mounts.  Accordingly, the  total net sales  and receivables reported i n the  Com pany’s financial 
statements are recorded at the amount ultimately expected to be received from these payors.  Since billing functions 
for a portion of the Com pany’s re venue systems, are la rgely com puterized ena bling on-line adjud ication (i.e., 
submitting charges to Medicare, Medicaid or other third-party payors electronically, with simultaneous feedback of 
the am ount t o be pai d) at  t he t ime of sal e t o recor d net  reven ues, exp osure t o est imating co ntractual al lowance 
adjustments is  li mited p rimarily to  u nbilled and /or in itially rej ected Med icare, Med icaid and  th ird-party clai ms 
(typically ap proved for reimbursement o nce add itional i nformation is provided t o th e p ayor).  For t he remaining 
portion of the Company’s rev enue system s, th e co ntractual allo wance is esti mated for all b illed, unbilled and /or 
initially rejected Medicare, Medicaid and third-party claims.  The Company evaluates several criteria in developing 
the esti mated contractual allo wances for b illed, un billed and /or in itially rej ected clai ms o n a monthly b asis, 
including historical t rends based on actual claims paid, current contract and reimbursement terms, and c hanges in 
customer base and payor/product mix.  C ontractual al lowance est imates are ad justed to actual amounts as cash i s 
received and c laims are settle d, and the a ggregate impact of these resulting adjustments were not significant to the  
Company’s operations for any of the periods presented.  Further, Omnicare does not expect the reasonably possible 
effects of a c hange i n esti mate related to unsettled December 31, 2008 contractual allowa nce am ounts from  
Medicare, Medicaid and third-party payors to be significant to its future consolidated results of operations, financial 
position and cash flows. 

 
Patient co-pay ments are a ssociated with Medicare Part D (see further di scussion b elow), ce rtain state Medicaid 
programs, Medicare Part B and certain thi rd-party payors and are typically not c ollected at the  time products are 
delivered or serv ices are rendered, but are b illed t o th e in dividual as p art of t he Company’s normal b illing 
procedures.  These co-payments are subject to the Company’s normal accounts receivable collections procedures. 
 
A pat ient may be di spensed prescribed medications (typically no more than a 2- 3 day  supply) prior to insurance 
being v erified in  e mergency situ ations, or fo r new fac ility ad missions after hou rs or on weekends.  As soon  as 
practicable (typically the fol lowing business day), specific payor information is obtained so that the proper payor 
can be billed for reimbursement. 
 
Under certain circumstances, the Company accepts returns of medications and issues a credit memo to the applicable 
payor.  The Company estimates and ac crues for sales re turns b ased on historical ret urn e xperience, giving 
consideration to the C ompany’s return policies.  Product returns are processed in t he period received and a re not 
significant when compared to the overall sales and gross profit of the Company. 
 
Contract Research Services Segment 
 
A portio n of the Co mpany's o verall rev enues relates to  the Contract R esearch Services (“CRO”) segment, and is  
earned by performing services under contracts with va rious pharmaceutical, biotechnology, nutraceutical, medical 
devices a nd diagnostics com panies, base d on c ontract t erms.  Most of  t he cont racts pr ovide fo r s ervices t o b e 
performed on a uni ts-of-service basi s.  T hese co ntracts s pecifically id entify th e un its-of-service and  unit pricing .  
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Under the se c ontracts, revenue is generally recognized upon co mpletion of t he units-of-service.  For tim e-and-
materials cont racts, re venue i s reco gnized at  cont ractual ho urly rat es, and for fixed-price c ontracts, re venue i s 
recognized using a method similar to that used for units-of-service.  The Company's contracts provide for additional 
service fees for scope of work cha nges.  T he Company recognizes re venue related to these scope change s when 
underlying services a re performed and  real ization i s assured.  In a  number o f cases, c lients are required to make 
termination payments in addition to payments for serv ices already rendered.  Any anticipated losses resulting from 
contract performance are  charged to earnings in the period identified.  Billings and payments are specified in each 
contract.  Re venue recognized in excess of billings is classified as unbilled receivables, while billings in e xcess of 
revenue are classified as deferred revenue, on the respective lines of the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  
 
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
Collection of accounts recei vable from customers is the Company’s primary source of operating cas h flow and is  
critical to  Omnicare’s operating performance, cash  flows and financial condition.  Om nicare’s p rimary co llection 
risk relates to facility, private pay and Pa rt D customers.  The Com pany provides a reserve for accounts receiva ble 
considered to be at inc reased risk of becoming uncollectible b y estab lishing an  allo wance to  reduce th e carryin g 
value of such receivables to their estim ated net realizable value.  Omnicare establishes this a llowance for doubtful  
accounts using the specific iden tification approach, and considering such factors as historical collection experience 
(i.e., payment history and credit losses) and cred itworthiness, specifically id entified credit risks, aging of accounts 
receivable by payor category, current and expected economic conditions and other relevant factors.  Management 
reviews this allowance for doubtful accounts o n an ongoing basis for appropriateness.  Judgment is u sed to assess 
the collectability of account balances and the economic ability of customers to pay.  
 
The Com pany com putes and m onitors its accounts rec eivable days sales outstandi ng (“DSO”), a non-GAAP  
measure, in order to evaluate the liquidity and collection pa tterns of its a ccounts receivable.  DSO is calculated by 
averaging the beginning and end of quarter accounts receivable, less c ontractual allowances and the a llowance for 
doubtful accounts, to derive "average accounts receivable" and di viding average accounts receivable by the sales 
amount (excluding reimbursable out-of-pockets) for the related quarter.  The resultant percentage is multiplied by 92 
days to derive the DSO amount.  Omnicare’s DSO approximated 79 days at December 31, 2008, whic h was lower 
than the December 31, 2007 DSO of approximately 84 days partly attr ibutable to the corresponding impact of the 
Company’s late 2007 increase in its provision for doubtful accounts and the related impact on t he aforementioned 
average acc ounts recei vable balance  used  in the  DSO calculation.  As previously disclose d, the  Com pany has  
experienced on-going adm inistrative and payment i ssues associated with the Medica re Part D im plementation, 
resulting in outstanding gross accounts r eceivable (net of allowance s for contractual adjustments, and prior to a ny 
allowance for doubtful accounts), particularly for copays.  As of December 31, 2008, copays outstanding from Part 
D Plans were approximately $19 million relating to 2006 and 2007.  The Company is pursuing solutions, including 
legal actions against ce rtain Part D pay ors, to c ollect ou tstanding copays, as well as certain  rejected clai ms.  
Unfavorably impacting the overall DSO, as well as the 181 days and over past due acc ounts receivable balance, is 
the aging in accounts receivable relating to several of the Company’s larger nursing home chain customers, and the 
continued aging of copays and rejected claims.  On  July 11, 2007, the Company commenced legal action against a 
group of its customers for, among other things, the collection of past-due receivables that are owed to the Company.  
Specifically, a pproximately $92 m illion (e xcluding i nterest and prior to a ny allowance for doubt ful accounts) is 
owed to the Company by this group of customers as of December 31, 2008, of which approximately $86 million is 
past due based on app licable payment terms (a sign ificant portion of which is not reserved based on the relevant 
facts and  circumstances).  The $92 million represen ts approximately 5  days o f the overall DSO at Dece mber 31, 
2008.  Until all administrative and payment issues relating to the Part D Drug Benefit as well as the aforementioned 
legal action against a group of Omnicare’s customers are fully resolved, there can be no assurance that the impact of 
these matters on the Company’s consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows will not change 
based on the outcome of any unforeseen future developments. 
 
The allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2008 was $333.0 million, compared with $334.1 million at 
December 31, 2007.  The allowance for doubtful accounts represented 19.6% and 19.5% of gross receivables (net of 
contractual allowances) as  of Decem ber 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  Unfore seen future developments could 
lead to changes in the Company’s provision for doubtful accounts levels and future allowance for doubtful accounts 
percentages, w hich co uld m aterially impact t he overal l financial res ults, fi nancial pos ition or cas h f lows o f t he 
Company.  For exam ple, a one pe rcentage point increase in the allowance for doubtful accounts as a perce ntage of 
gross receivables (net of allowances for contractual adjustments, and prior to allowances for doubtful accounts) as of 
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December 31, 2008 would re sult in an inc rease to the  provisi on for doubtful acc ounts and relate d allowance for 
doubtful accounts on the balance sheet of approximately $17.0 million pretax. 
 
The following table is an agi ng of the Company’s December 31, 2008 a nd 2007 gross accounts receivable (net of 
allowances f or cont ractual a djustments, an d p rior t o al lowances f or doubtful acc ounts), a ged base d on  pay ment 
terms and categorized based on the four primary overall types of accounts receivable characteristics (in thousands): 
 

December 31, 2008

Current and 0-180 
Days Past Due

181 Days and 
Over Past Due Total

Medicare (Part D and Part B), Medicaid
   and Third-Party payors 393,263$             186,349$             579,612$             
Facility payors 484,442               357,281               841,723               
Private Pay payors 118,541               132,640               251,181               
CRO 27,608                 -                           27,608                 
Total gross accounts receivable
    (net of contractual allowance adjustments) 1,023,854$         676,270$            1,700,124$          

December 31, 2007
Current and 0-180 

Days Past Due
181 Days and 
Over Past Due Total

Medicare (Part D and Part B), Medicaid
   and Third-Party payors 390,663$             167,116$             557,779$             
Facility payors 527,879               347,551               875,430               
Private Pay payors 126,480               124,958               251,438               
CRO 25,702                 -                           25,702                 
Total gross accounts receivable
    (net of contractual allowance adjustments) 1,070,724$         639,625$            1,710,349$          

 
Patient charges pending approval from Medicare, Medicaid and third-party payors are primarily billed as private pay 
and, where a pplicable, are recorded net of an estimated contractual allowance at pe riod end.  Once a n approval to  
bill Med icare, Med icaid and/o r th ird-party p ayors h as been  ob tained, the priv ate p ay b alance is rev ersed an d a 
corresponding M edicare, M edicaid or t hird-party rec eivable am ount i s rec orded.  The C ompany’s policy i s t o 
resolve accounts receivable with pending status as soon as practicable.  Pending accounts receivable balances were 
not a significant component of the overall accounts receivable balance at December 31, 2008.  
 
Omnicare has standard policies and procedures for collection of its accounts receivable.  The Company’s collection 
efforts generally include the mailing of statements, followed up when necessary with delinquency notices, personal 
and other con tacts, t he use of an i n-house nat ional col lections de partment or out side col lection agencies, an d 
potentially mediation/arbitration or litig ation wh en acco unts are con sidered unresponsive.  Omnicare’s co llection 
efforts primarily relate to its facility and private pay customers, as well as efforts to collect/rework Medicare Part D 
copays and rejected claims.  When Omnicare becomes aware that a sp ecific customer is po tentially unable to meet 
part or all o f its fin ancial ob ligations, fo r ex ample, as a resu lt o f bankruptcy o r deterioration in th e cu stomer’s 
operating results or financial position, the national credit and collections department includes the exposed balance in 
its allo wance for dou btful acco unts requ irements.  At su ch tim e th at a b alance is d efinitively d eemed to  be 
uncollectible by  Om nicare m anagement (i ncluding t he na tional cred it an d co llections d epartment), co llections 
agencies and /or ou tside legal cou nsel, the b alance is manually written  off ag ainst th e allowan ce fo r dou btful 
accounts.  At December 31, 2008, except for the accounts receivable matters separa tely disclosed in this Filing, the 
Company does not ha ve a significa nt portion of its overall  accounts re ceivable balance place d i n 
mediation/arbitration, litigation or with outside collection agencies. 
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Given the Company's experience, management believes that the aggregate reserves for potential losses are adequate, 
but if any of t he Company's larger customers were to  unexpectedly default on their obligations to  Omnicare, th e 
Company’s overall allowanc es for doubt ful accounts m ay pr ove to be  inadequate.  In particula r, if economic 
conditions wo rsen, t he p ayor mix sh ifts sign ificantly, add itional Part D payment issu es arise, or th e Co mpany's 
customers' reimbursement rates are adv ersely affected , impacting Omnicare’s customers' ab ility to  pay their b ills, 
management may adjust the  allowance for doubtful accounts acc ordingly, and the Com pany’s accounts receiva ble 
collections, cash flows, financial position and results of operations would then be, potentially, adversely affected. 
 
Fair Value 
On January 1, 2008, the Company partially adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
(“SFAS”) No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”).  SFAS 157 defines a hierarchy which prioritizes the 
inputs in fair value measurements.  “Level 1” measurements are measurements using quoted prices in active markets 
for id entical assets or liab ilities.  “Lev el 2” m easurements use sign ificant o ther observable inpu ts.  “Lev el 3” 
measurements are measurements using significant unobservable inputs which require a company to develop its own 
assumptions.  In recording the fair value of assets and liabilities, companies must use the most reliable measurement 
available.  Th e impact to the Company’s consolidated results of operations, financial position and cash flows upon 
partial adop tion of SFAS 157 was no t m aterial.  The Com pany elected  to  p artially d efer ado ption of SFAS 157 
related to goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(“FASB”) Staff Position 157-2. 
 
See further discussion at the “Fair Value” note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
 
Inventories  
The Company maintains inventory at lower of cost or market, with cost determined on the basis of the first-in, first-
out method.  There are not any significant obsolescence reserves recorded since the Company has not historically 
experienced (nor does it expect to ex perience) si gnificant l evels of i nventory obsoles cence write-offs.  Physical  
inventories are typically performed on a monthly basis at all pharmacy sites, and in all cases the Company’s policy 
is to perform them at least once a quarter.  Cost of goods sold is recorded based on the actual results of the physical 
inventory counts, and is estimated when a physical inventory is not performed in a particular month.   
 
Goodwill  
SFAS No. 142, “Goo dwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142”) requires that goodwill and other indefinite-
lived intangible assets be re viewed for impairment using a fair value based approach at least annually.  SFAS 142 
requires the Company to assess whether there is an indication that goodwill is impaired, and requires goodwill to be 
tested between annual tests if events occur or circumstances change that would, more likely than not, reduce the fair 
value of a reporting unit below its book carrying amount.  The C ompany's assessments to date have indicated that 
goodwill has not been impaired.  
 
The Company’s assessment o f goodwill impairment is larg ely dependent on estimates of future cash  flows at th e 
aggregated reporting unit level, and a weighted-average cost of capital.  The estimates of these future cash flows are 
based on assumptions and projections with respect to future revenues and expenses believed to be reasonable and 
supportable at the time the annual impairment analysis is performed.  Further, they require management’s subjective 
judgments and take into account assumptions about overall growth rates and increases in expenses.  To the extent 
the book carrying value of the assets would exceed their fair value; an impairment loss may be necessary.  Changes 
in the estimates of future cash flows or weighted-average cost of capital due to unforeseen events and circumstances 
could cause Omnicare’s analysis to indicate that goodwill is impaired in subsequent periods, and could result in the 
write-off of a po rtion or all  o f th e C ompany’s goodwill, wh ich co uld b e m aterial t o th e C ompany's fin ancial 
position, results of operations or cash flows.   
 
Insurance Accruals  
Omnicare is self-insured for certain employee health insurance claims.  The Company manages its health insurance 
risk by obtaining individual and aggregate stop-loss coverage in the amount of $200,000 per cl aim and  125% of 
expected aggregate claim s.  Additionally , Om nicare i nsures al l of i ts p roperty an d ca sualty pr ograms (i ncluding 
worker's compensation and professional liability) in excess of self-insured retentions, or deductibles, on the various 
policies of i nsurance (which ra nge f rom b etween $ 50,000 a nd $1,000,000 per cl aim, de pending o n t he t ype of 
coverage).  Omnicare closely monitors and continually evaluates its historical claim s experience, and obtains input 
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from t hird-party i nsurance a nd val uation professionals, t o estim ate the appropriate l evel of a ccrual for its sel f-
insured programs, including the aforementioned deductibles.  These accruals in clude provision for incurred, as well 
as incurred but not yet re ported, claims.  In developing its self-insurance accrual estimates, the Company’s liability 
calculation also considers the historical claim lag periods and current payment trends of insurance claims (generally 
approximately 2 months for health, and 48-60 months for all other coverages).  A change in the historical claim lag 
period ass umption by o ne m onth for health i nsurance cl aims wo uld af fect he alth i nsurance ex pense by 
approximately $3. 7 m illion pret ax.  A c hange i n t he hi storical cl aim l ag pe riod by  o ne m onth f or property an d 
casualty i nsurance cl aims w ould affect  p roperty and ca sualty i nsurance expe nse by  appr oximately $0. 8 million 
pretax. 
 
Although significan t flu ctuations m ay o ccur in  th e short-term d ue to  u nforeseen even ts p otentially resu lting in  
atypical claims experie nce, the Company's hi storical cl aims experi ence, coupled wi th its stop-loss coverages, has 
consistently supported management’s assumption that this methodology provides for reasonable insurance expense 
estimates and accruals over a long-term period.   
 
Employee Benefit Plans  
For certain  of its e mployee b enefit p lans, th e Co mpany u tilizes es timates in  d eveloping its actu arial assumptions 
(including such items as th e expected rate of return on plan assets, discount rate, mortality rates, and th e assumed 
rate of com pensation i ncrease, am ong other i tems), and  rel ies on act uarial com putations t o est imate the fut ure 
potential liab ility, expense and funding requ irements associated with  these benefits.  While it is requ ired that the 
actuarial assumptions be reviewed each year as of the measurement date of December 31, the actuarial assumptions 
generally d o not c hange be tween m easurement dat es.  D uring Omnicare’s a nnual revi ew, generally near t he 
beginning o f the fi scal y ear, t he C ompany re views a nd updates these ass umptions, and c onsiders hist orical 
experience, current market conditions and input from its third-party advisors, including any changes in interest rates, 
in making these assumptions.  These actuari al assumptions and estimates attempt to anticipate future events, and if 
assessed differently, or if they materially vary from actual results due to changing market and economic conditions, 
could have a significant imp act on  th e C ompany's co nsolidated financial p osition, resu lts of op erations or cash 
flows.  Ho wever, a one pe rcentage p oint change i n any  of t he i ndividual af orementioned ass umptions use d t o 
calculate th e Co mpany’s p ension ob ligation, ho lding al l o ther assu mptions con stant, is n ot exp ected to  h ave a 
material impact on the Company's consolidated operating results.  
 
Taxes  
In accordance  with SFAS No. 109, “A ccounting for Incom e Ta xes,” (“SFAS 109”), the Company estimates its  
current and deferred tax assets and liabilities, including those relating to acquired subsidiaries, based on current tax 
laws in the statutory jurisdictions in which it operates.  These estimates include judgments about deferred tax assets 
and liabilities resulting from  temporary differences between the fina ncial statement carrying amounts and the tax 
basis of assets and  liab ilities, as well as th e realizatio n of deferred tax  assets (including tho se relating to n et 
operating losses).  Th e deferred tax assets an d liabilities are determined based on the enacted tax rates ex pected to 
apply in the periods in which the deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be settled or realized. 
 
Omnicare periodically reviews its deferred tax assets for recoverability and establishes a valuation allowance if it is  
more l ikely than not that some portion or all of a d eferred tax asset will n ot be realized.  Th e determination as to 
whether a deferred tax  asset  will b e realized  is m ade o n a j urisdictional b asis and  is b ased on th e evaluation of 
positive and negative evidence.  Th is evidence includes historical taxable income, projected future taxable income, 
the expect ed t iming of t he reve rsal of e xisting t emporary di fferences and t he i mplementation of  t ax pl anning 
strategies.  P rojected future taxable income is based on the Company’s expected results and assumptions as to  the 
jurisdiction i n wh ich th e inco me will b e earned.  Th e expected tim ing of th e rev ersals of ex isting tem porary 
differences is based on c urrent tax law a nd Omnicare’s tax methods of accounting.  If the Com pany is una ble to 
generate sufficient future taxable income by jurisdiction, or if th ere is a material change in the actual effective tax 
rates or th e time p eriod within which the underlying temporary differences become taxable or deductible, or if t he 
tax l aws change unfavorably, then the Company could be required to in crease its valu ation allowan ce ag ainst its 
deferred tax assets, resulting in an increase in the effective tax rate and related tax expense.   
 
The Company also reviews its tax  liabilities, including those relating to acq uired subsidiaries, giving consideration 
to th e relevant au thoritative gu idance, i ncluding SFAS 109 and  FASB In terpretation No. 48, “Acco unting for 
Uncertainty in In come Taxes,” (“FIN 48”).  FIN 48 provides guidance for the financial statement recognition and 
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measurement of income tax positions taken or expected to b e taken in a tax  return. Under FIN 48 , recognition and 
measurement are considered discrete events.  The recognition threshold is met when it is d etermined a tax position, 
based solely on its technical merits, is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the relevant taxing 
authority.  If a tax  position does not meet the more likely than not recognition threshold, the benefit of that position 
is n ot recognized in th e financial state ments.  A tax  position th at meets th e m ore lik ely th an not recog nition 
threshold is measured to determine the amount of benefit to recognize in the financial statements. The tax position is 
measured as the largest amount of benefit that is 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate resolution with a 
taxing authority. 
 
Omnicare operates in a significant number of states and  tax jurisdictions with v arying tax laws.  The Co mpany is 
subject to both federal and state audits of tax returns in the normal course of business.  While the Company believes 
it h as p rovided ad equately fo r tax  liab ilities in  its co nsolidated fi nancial state ments, ad verse d eterminations b y 
applicable tax ing au thorities co uld have a material ad verse effect on  Omnicare’s conso lidated financial p osition, 
results of operations or cash flows.  If the provisions for current or deferred taxes are not adequate, if the Company 
is unable to realize certain deferred tax assets or if the tax laws change unfavorably, the Company could potentially 
experience tax lo sses.  Lik ewise, if prov isions for curre nt and deferred taxes are in excess of those event ually 
needed, if the Company is able to realize additional deferred tax assets or if tax laws change favorably, the Company 
could experience potential tax gains.  A one percentage point change in the Company's overall 2008, 2007 and 2006 
effective t ax r ates wo uld i mpact t ax ex pense a nd net i ncome by  $2 .6 m illion, $ 1.9 m illion an d $3 .2 m illion, 
respectively. 
 
Stock-Based Compensation 
Effective Ja nuary 1, 2006, t he Com pany adopted the provisions of SFAS 123R, which re placed SFAS No. 123, 
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”) and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for 
Stock Iss ued t o Em ployees” (“APB 25” ).  As further described in t he “Recently Iss ued Acc ounting Sta ndards” 
section of t he “Descri ption of B usiness a nd Summary of Sign ificant Accounting Po licies,” and “Stock-Based 
Employee Compensation,” notes of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, SFAS 123R requ ires the 
Company to record compensation costs relating to share-based payment transactions in its financial statements under 
a fair value recognition model.  Under the provisions of SFAS 123R, share-based compensation cost is measured at 
the grant date based on the fair v alue of the award a nd is recognized as  expense ratably over t he requisite service 
period of the award (usually the vesting period). 

 
The Company uses the Black-Scholes options pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options on the grant 
date, which is affected by Om nicare’s stock price as well as as sumptions regarding a number of com plex a nd 
subjective variables, as further discussed below.  These variables include Omnicare’s expected stock price volatility 
over the e xpected term of the  awards, act ual and projected employee exercise behaviors, the risk-free interest rate 
and the stock’s dividend yield.  The expected term of stock options granted represents the period of time that stock 
options granted are exp ected to  be outstanding and is est imated giving consideration primarily to hi storical stock 
option exercise experience.  The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the Company’s stock over 
a period generally commensurate with the expected term of the stock options.  The risk-free interest rate used in the 
option valuation model is based on United States Treasury Strip (“stripped coupon interest”) issues with remaining 
terms sim ilar t o t he ex pected t erm of t he st ock options.  The e xpected di vidend y ield i s base d o n t he c urrent 
Omnicare stock yield.  The Com pany is re quired to estimat e fo rfeitures at th e t ime o f the g rant and  rev ise those 
estimates in subsequent periods as necessary to reflect a ny changes in a ctual forfeiture experience.  Omnicare uses 
historical dat a t o est imate p re-vesting f orfeitures an d re cords st ock-based com pensation e xpense only fo r t hose 
awards that are expected to vest.  All stock option awards are am ortized on a straight-lin e basis over th e requisite 
service periods of t he awards, which a re generally the ve sting period.  C onsidering the importance of each of the 
above assumptions in the calculation of fair value, the Company re-evaluates the estimate of these assumptions on a 
quarterly basis.  While the Company believes its sto ck option fair value calculations are materially accurate, a one 
percentage point cha nge i n any of t he i ndividual af orementioned as sumptions, h olding al l ot her assum ptions 
constant, is not expected to have a material impact on the fair value calculated by the Company. 
 
Legal Contingencies 
As part of its ongoing operations, the Company is subject to various inspections, audits, inquiries and similar actions 
by third parties, as well as gov ernmental/regulatory authorities responsible for enforcing the laws and regulations to 
which t he C ompany i s sub ject (an d i ncluding r eviews of i ndividual O mnicare p harmacy’s rei mbursement 
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documentation an d ad ministrative p ractices).  Often times, th ese in spections, aud its and  inq uiries relate to  p rior 
periods, including periods predating Omnicare’s actual ownership of a part icular acquired unit.  The  Company is 
also in volved with v arious leg al actio ns arisin g i n th e normal course of busi ness.  Each quarter, the Company 
reviews, i ncluding co nsultation with its outside leg al advi sors where a pplicable, the  st atus of ins pections, audits, 
inquiries, legal claims and legal proceedings and assesses its potential financial exposure.  If the potential loss from 
any of these is considered probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated, the Company accrues a liability for 
the estimated loss, in  accordance with SFAS 5.  To  the extent the amount of a prob able loss is estimable only by 
reference to a range of equally probable outcomes, and no amount within the range appears to be a better estimate 
than any other amount, the low end of the range is accrued, as required by GAAP.  Because of inherent uncertainties 
related to these matters, the use of esti mates, assumptions, judgments and e xternal factors beyond the Company’s 
control, acc ruals are base d on t he best i nformation a vailable at th e time.  As add itional inform ation becomes 
available, Omnicare reassesses the potential liability related to any pending inspections, audits, inquiries, claims and 
litigation and may revise its estimated exposure upward or downward accordingly.  Such  revisions in the estimates 
of the potential liabilities could have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. 
 
Information pertaining to legal proceedings is further discussed at the “Commitments and Contingencies” note of the 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
Recently Issued Accounting Standards 
Information pertaining to recently issued accounting standa rds is fu rther discussed at the “Recently Issue d 
Accounting Standards” section of the “Description of Business and Summary of Si gnificant Accounting Policies” 
note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
Outlook 
 
Historically, the Company has derived approximately one-half of its revenues directly from government sources and 
one-half from t he private s ector (including i ndividual r esidents, t hird-party i nsurers, l ong-term care a nd ot her 
institutional health care facilities and its contract research organization business). 
 
As part of ongoing operations, t he C ompany an d i ts cus tomers are subject to regulatory ch anges i n th e lev el of 
reimbursement received from the Medicare and Medicaid programs.  Since 1997, Congress has passed a number of 
federal laws that have effected major changes in the healthcare system and payments to certain providers.   
 
The Balanced Budget Act of 1997 (the “BBA”) mandated a prospective payment system (“PPS”) for Medicare-eligible 
residents of skilled nursing facilities (“SNFs”).  Under PPS,  Medicare pays SNFs a fixed fee per patient per day based  
upon the acuity level of the resident, covering substantially all items and services furnished during a Medicare-covered 
stay, including pharm acy ser vices.  PPS initially resu lted in  a signif icant reduction of reimbursement to SNFs .  
Congress subsequently sought to  restore some of the reductions in reim bursement resulting from PPS.  One provision 
gave SNFs a temporary rate increase for certain specific high-acuity patients beginning April 1, 2000, and ending when 
the Cent ers for  M edicare & Medicaid Serv ices (“CM S”) implemented a refi ned pati ent cl assification sy stem under 
PPS.  For several years, CMS did not im plement such refi nements, thus continuing the additional rate  increase for  
certain high-acuity patients through federal fiscal year 2005. 
 
In the SNF PPS rule for fiscal year 2006, CMS added ni ne patient classif ication cat egories to the PPS patien t 
classification system, thus triggering the expiration of the high-acuity payments add-ons.  The new patient classification 
refinements became effective on January 1,  2006.  F or fiscal year 2007, SNFs received  the full 3.1 percent market 
basket i ncrease t o rat es, i ncreasing payments t o SNFs by  approximately $560 million.  For fi scal year 200 8, SNFs  
received a 3.3 percent market basket increase, which increased Medicare pa yments to SNFs by approxim ately $690 
million.  On August 8, 2008, CMS published the Medicare SNF PPS final rule for fiscal year 2009, which included a 
3.4 percent inflatio n upd ate t hat will in crease ov erall payments to  SNFs b y $780 million.  CMS did no t adop t a 
provision included in its May 7, 2008  pro posed rul e t o recalibrate case mix wei ghts to  com pensate for i ncreased 
expenditures resulting from refinements made in January 2006, which would have cut  overall SNF PPS paym ents by 
$770 million in fiscal year 2009.  The rule also addresses several SNF policy issues, including, among others, revisions 
to the Minimum Data Set, d evelopment of an integrated post-acute payment system, rehabilitative services in SNFs, 
and consol idated bi lling.  Whi le recent  rulemakings have not decreased payments to SNFs, r eimbursement changes 
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could be ad opted in the future that could have an ad verse effect on the financial condition of the Company’s SNF 
clients which could, in turn, adversely affect the timing or level of their payments to Omnicare.   
 
Moreover, the  Deficit Redu ction Act (“ DRA”), e nacted in 2 006, pr ovided fo r r eductions in  n et Medicare and 
Medicaid spe nding of a pproximately $11 billion over fi ve years.  Am ong ot her things , the legislation reduce d 
Medicare SNF bad debt payments by 30 percent for those individuals who are not dually eligible for Medicare and 
Medicaid.  This provision was expected to reduce payments to SNFs b y $100 million over five years  (fiscal years 
2006-2010).  Separately, on Au gust 1, 2007, th e Ho use o f Repr esentatives app roved H .R. 316 2, t he Ch ildren’s 
Health and Medicare Protection Act of 2007, that included a number of Medicare policy changes, including a freeze 
in fiscal year 2 008 SNF PPS rates at fiscal year 2 007 levels.  While the version of the b ill that u ltimately passed 
Congress did not include Medicare provisions impacting SNF reimbursement, Congress may yet consider these and 
other proposals in the future that would further restrict Medicare funding for SNFs.   

 
In Decem ber 2003, Congress enacted the Medicare Pres cription Drug, Im provement, and Moderni zation Act of  
2003 (“MMA”), which included a major expansion of the Medicare prescription drug benefit under a new Medicare 
Part D. 

 
Under the Medicare Part D prescription drug benefit, Medicare beneficiaries may enroll in prescription drug plans 
offered by private en tities (or in a “fallb ack” plan offered on behalf of the g overnment through a con tractor, to the 
extent private entities fail to  offer a plan in a g iven area), which provide coverage of outpatient prescription drugs 
(collectively, “Part D Plans”). Part D Plans include both plans providing the drug benefit on a stand-alone basis and 
Medicare A dvantage plans providing drug coverage as a  sup plement to an e xisting medical benefi t un der t hat 
Medicare Advantage plan, most co mmonly a health maintenance o rganization pl an.  M edicare bene ficiaries 
generally have to pay a premium to enroll in a Part D Plan, with the premium amount varying from plan to plan, 
although C MS pr ovides va rious fe deral su bsidies t o Pa rt D Plans t o reduce t he c ost to be neficiaries.  E ffective 
January 1, 2006, Medicare beneficiaries who are also entitled to benefits under a state Medicaid program (so-called 
“dual eligibles”) have their prescription drug costs covered by the new Medicare drug benefit, unless they elect to 
opt out of Part D coverage.  Many nursing home residents Omnicare serves are dual eligibles, whose drug costs were 
previously covered by state Medicaid programs.  In 2 008, approximately 41% of Omnicare’s revenue was de rived 
from beneficiaries covered under the federal Medicare Part D program.  

 
CMS provides premium and cost-sharing subsidies to Part D Plans with respect to dual eligible residents of nursing 
homes.  Such dual  el igibles are not  re quired to pay  a pre mium fo r enroll ment in  a Part D Plan, so  long as the 
premium for the Part D Plan in which they are enrolled is at or below the premium subsidy, nor are they required to 
meet deductibles or pay copayment amounts.  Further, all dual eligibles who do not affirmatively enroll in a Part D 
Plan are automatically enrolled into a Prescription Drug Plan (“PDP”) by CMS on a random basis from among those 
PDPs meeting CMS criteria for lo w-income p remiums in th e PDP re gion, unless t hey el ect t o opt  out  o f Part  D 
coverage.  As is the case for any nursing home beneficiary,  such dual eligible beneficiaries may select a d ifferent 
Part D Pla n at  any tim e through t he Part D enrollment process.  Also, du al elig ibles who are qualifying covered 
retirees u nder an em ployer or union-sponsored q ualified ret iree prescription d rug pl an ( plans whi ch o ffer a n 
alternative to Part D coverage supported by federal subsidies to the plan sponsor) will be determined to have elected 
not to enroll in a Part D plan, unless they affirmatively enroll in a Part D plan or contact CMS to indicate they wish 
to b e au to-enrolled.  In su m, d ual elig ible residents of  nursing  ho mes are en titled to  hav e th eir prescription drug  
costs covered by a Part D Plan, provided that the prescription drugs which they are taking are either on t he Part D 
Plan’s formulary, or an exception to the plan’s formulary is granted.  CMS requires the formularies of Part D Plans 
to include the types of drugs most commonly needed by Medicare beneficiaries and to offer an exceptions process to 
provide coverage for medically necessary drugs.  
 
Pursuant t o t he fi nal Part  D  rul e, ef fective Janua ry 1, 2006, t he C ompany obt ains reim bursement fo r d rugs i t 
provides to enrollees of a given Part  D Plan in accorda nce with the ter ms of agreements negotiated be tween it and 
that Part D Plan.  The Company has entered into such agreements with nearly all Part D Plan  sponsors under which 
it will provide drugs and associated services to their enrollees.  The Company continues to have ongoing discussions 
with Pa rt D  Pl ans i n t he ordinary course.  Moreover, t he Co mpany may, as appr opriate, re negotiate agreements.  
Further, the proportion of the Company’s Part D business serviced under specific agreements may change over time 
based upon beneficiary choice, reassignment of dual eligibles to different Part D Plans or Part D Plan consolidation.  
Consequently, there can be no assurance that the reimbursement terms which currently apply to the Company’s Part 
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D business will n ot change.  In  addition, as ex pected in the transition to a new program of this magnitude, certain 
administrative and payment issues have arisen, resulting in higher operating expenses, as well as ou tstanding gross 
accounts recei vable (net of allowances  for contract ual adjustm ents, and prior to any allowa nce for doubtful 
accounts), particularly for c opays.  As of Decem ber 31 , 2008, c opays outstandi ng from Part D Plans were 
approximately $19 million relating to 2006 and 2007.  The Company is pursuing solutions, including legal actions 
against certain Part D payors, to c ollect outstanding copays, as well as c ertain rejected claims.  Pa rticipants in the 
long-term care pharmacy industry continue to address these issues with CMS and the Part D Plans and attempt to 
develop solutions.  Among other things, on January 12, 2009, CMS finalized a c hange in its regulations requiring 
Part D Plan sponsors to accept and act upon certain types of documentation, referred to as “best available evidence” 
to co rrect copays fo r dual eligibles an d other lo w-income su bsidy elig ible b eneficiaries.  Ho wever, un til all  
administrative and payment issues are fu lly resolved, there can be no assurance that the im pact of the Part D drug 
benefit o n t he C ompany’s results o f operations, fi nancial po sition or cash flows will not  c hange based on t he 
outcome of any unforeseen future developments. 
 
The MMA does not change the manner in which Medicare pays for drugs for Medicare beneficiaries covered under 
a Medicare Part A st ay.  Th e Company cont inues to rece ive reimbursement for drugs provided to such residents 
from the SNFs, in accordance with the terms of the agreements it has negotiated with each SNF.  The Company also 
continues to receive reimbursement from the state Medicaid programs, albeit to a greatly reduced extent, for those 
Medicaid be neficiaries n ot el igible f or t he Part D program, i ncluding t hose u nder a ge 65 , a nd for certain d rugs 
specifically excluded from Medicare Part D. 
 
CMS has i ssued su bregulatory gui dance on m any aspect s of t he Part  D pr ogram, incl uding t he pr ovision of 
pharmaceutical services to long-term  car e residents.  CM S ha s als o e xpressed s ome conce rns a bout pharmacies’ 
receipt of discounts, rebates and other price concessions from drug manufacturers.  Specifically, in a finalized “Call  
Letter” for the 2007 calendar year, CMS i ndicated that beginning in 2007 , Part D sponsors must have policies and 
systems in place, as part of their drug utilization m anagement programs, to protect beneficiaries and reduce c osts 
when long-term care pharmacies are subject to incentives to move market share through access/performance rebates 
from d rug m anufacturers.  Fo r th e purposes of m anaging and  m onitoring dru g u tilization, especially wh ere such 
rebates exist, CMS instructed Part D Plan sponsors to require pharmacies to disclose to the Part D Plan sponsor any 
discounts, reba tes and ot her di rect or i ndirect remuneration designed to di rectly or i ndirectly influence or i mpact 
utilization of Part D drugs.  The Company reported information specified by CMS with respect to rebates received 
by th e Co mpany fo r 2007 an d t he fi rst qu arter of 200 8 to  tho se Part D Plan s wh ich ag reed to  maintain th e 
confidentiality of such information.  On November 24, 2008, CMS announced that it is suspending collection of the 
long-term care pharmacy rebate data from Part D Plan sponsors for calendar years 2008 and 2009.  In stead, CMS 
intends to co llect d ifferent non-rebate i nformation to  focus p lan atten tion on network pharmacy co mpliance and 
appropriate drug utilization management.  The new data would include the number and the cost of formulary versus 
non-formulary drugs dispe nsed by each pharmacy (whether long-term  care or non-long-term care) i n the Part D 
Plans pharmacy network.  C MS will test  the proposed reporting requirements with a small n umber of Part D Plan 
sponsors prior to calendar year 2010, when the new reporting requirements will become effective.  CMS also issued 
a memo on November 25, 2008 reminding Part D Plan sponsors of the requirement to (1) provide convenient access 
to network long-term care pharm acies to all o f their enrollees residing in long-term care facilities, an d (2) exclude 
payment for drugs that are covered under a Medicare Part A stay that would otherwise satisfy the definition of a Part 
D drug.  The Company will continue to work with Part D Plan sponsors to ensure compliance with CMS’s evolving 
policies related to long-term care pharmacy services.  
 
On July 15, 2008, Congress enacted into law H.R. 6331, the "Medicare Improvements for Patients and Providers Act 
of 2008” (“MIPPA”).  The new law includes further reforms to the Part D program.  Among other things, from and 
after Janu ary 1, 2010, th e l aw r equires t hat long-term  care pha rmacies ha ve between 30 an d 90 d ays t o s ubmit 
claims to a Part D Plan.  C ommencing January 1, 20 09, the law also requires Par t D Plan sponsors to update the 
prescription drug pricing data they use to pay p harmacies no less frequently than every seven days.  The law also 
expands th e number o f Med icare beneficiaries wh o will b e en titled to  p remium an d co st-sharing subsidies by 
modifying previous income and asset requirements, eliminates late enrollment penalties for beneficiaries entitled to 
these sub sidies, an d limits the sales an d marketing activ ities in  wh ich Part D Plan  sp onsors may e ngage, among 
other things.  On Se ptember 18, 2 008, CMS published final regulations implementing many of t he MIPPA Part D 
provisions, an d t he age ncy pu blished an other i nterim final rul e wi th com ment peri od o n Jan uary 16 , 2 009 
implementing additional MIPPA pro visions related to drug fo rmularies and protected classes of drugs.  Ad ditional 
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legislative proposals are pending before Congress that could further modify the Part D benefit, including proposals 
that could impact the payment available or pricing for drugs under Part D Pl ans.  The  Company cannot predict at 
this time whether such legislation will be enacted or the form any such legislation would take.  Th e Company can 
make no assurances that future Part D legislation would not impact its business. 
 
Moreover, CMS continues to issue guidance on and make other revisions to the Part D program.  The Company is 
continuing to monitor issues relating to imp lementation of th e Part D benefit, and until further agency guidance is 
known and  until al l ad ministrative and  paymen t issues associated with the transition to th is massive p rogram are  
fully resol ved, there can be no ass urance that the im pact of the Pa rt D rules,  fu ture leg islative ch anges, or th e 
outcome of ot her potential developments relating t o i ts implementation on ou r bu siness, resu lts of op erations, 
financial position or cash flows will not change based on the outcome of any unforeseen future developments.   
 
The MMA also changed the Medicare payment methodology and conditions for coverage of certain items of durable 
medical equipment prosthetics, orthotics, and supplies (“DMEPOS”) under Medicare Part B.  Approximately 1% of 
the C ompany’s re venue i s derived f rom b eneficiaries c overed under Medicare Pa rt B .  T he c hanges i nclude a 
temporary freeze i n a nnual i ncreases i n payments for  d urable m edical equi pment fro m 2004  t hrough 2 008, n ew 
clinical co nditions fo r p ayment, qu ality stan dards (applied  b y CMS-ap proved accred iting org anizations), and  
competitive b idding requ irements.  On  April 1 0, 2007, CMS issu ed a fin al ru le estab lishing the Med icare 
competitive bidding program.  On ly suppliers that are winning bidders will be eligible to provide competitively-bid 
items to M edicare be neficiaries i n t he sel ected areas.  Enteral n utrients, eq uipment and s upplies and oxygen 
equipment and supplies we re among the 10 categories of DMEPOS included in t he first round of the competitive 
bidding program. 
 
In mid-2007, CMS conducted a first roun d of bidding for these 10 DMEPOS product categories in 10 competitive 
bidding areas , and C MS began a nnouncing winning bidders i n M arch 2008.  In l ight of c oncerns a bout 
implementation of t he bi dding p rogram, including C MS’ di squalification of m any bi ds base d u pon bi dders’ 
submission of allegedly incom plete financial documentation and the potential adverse impact on beneficiary access 
to certain types of DMEPOS, Congress has, through the enactment into law on July 15, 2008 of MIPPA, terminated 
the contracts awarded by CMS in the first round of competitive bidding, required that new bidding be conducted for 
the first round, and required certain reforms to the bidding process.  Among other things, the law requires CMS to 
rebid those areas in  2009, with bidding for round two delayed until 2011.  Th e delay will b e financed by reducing 
Medicare fee schedule payments for all items covered by the round one bidding program by 9.5 percent nationwide 
beginning January 1, 2009, followed by a 2 percent increase in 2014 (with certain exceptions).  The legislation also 
includes a seri es of procedural im provements t o t he bidding process, i ncluding requiring C MS t o n otify bi dders 
about paperwork discrepancies and providing suppliers with an opportunity to submit proper documentation, and it 
requires contracting suppliers to disclose all sub contracting relationships to CMS.  CMS published an interim final 
rule with  co mment p eriod to  im plement t he MIPPA com petitive b idding ch anges on Janu ary 1 6, 2 009.  Th e 
Company intends to participate in the new bidding process for round one, and is assessing the potential impact of the 
fee schedule reductions on its business. 
 
CMS requires  all existing DMEPOS suppliers to s ubmit proof of accreditation by a deem ed accreditation 
organization by September 30, 2009, although suppliers in the competitive bidding regions and new suppliers have 
been subject to earlier accredi tation deadlines.  MIPPA c odifies the require ment that all suppliers be accredited by 
September 30, 2009 and extends the accreditation requirement to companies that subcontract with contract suppliers 
under the competitive b idding program.  Th e Company in tends to comply with all accred itation requ irements for 
DMEPOS suppliers by the applicable deadline. 
 
On January 2, 2009, CMS published a final rule requiring certain Medicare DMEPOS suppliers to furnish CMS with 
a $50,000 s urety bond, although the required bond am ount will be hi gher fo r c ertain “hi gh-risk” suppliers with 
previous a dverse legal actions.  A sepa rate surety bon d will be requi red for each National Provi der Identifier 
obtained for DMEPOS billing purposes.  C MS has adopted exceptions to the surety bo nd requirement for certai n 
physicians and n onphysician practitioners, orthotic and pros thetic personnel, physical and  occupational therapists, 
and government-operated s uppliers i n l imited ci rcumstances.  C MS di d n ot est ablish exce ptions f rom t he bo nd 
requirement for pharmacies or for nursing facilities that bill for Medicare DMEPOS services provided to their own 
residents.  Current suppliers must comply with the surety bond requirement by October 2, 2009, while new enrolling 
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suppliers or suppliers seeking to  change ownership after th e effective da te must meet this requirement by May 4, 
2009.  The Company intends to comply with the surety bond requirement by the applicable deadline. 
 
With re spect t o Medicaid, t he BBA repealed the “B oren Am endment” fede ral pay ment st andard fo r M edicaid 
payments to nursing facilities, giving states greater latitude in setting payment rates for such facilities.  The law also 
granted states greater flexibility to establish Medicaid m anaged care programs without th e need to obtain a federal  
waiver.  Altho ugh th ese waiver programs g enerally ex empt in stitutional care, i ncluding nu rsing facilities an d 
institutional ph armacy serv ices, so me stat es d o use m anaged care principles in  th eir lo ng-term ca re prog rams.  
Likewise, the DRA includes several changes to the Medicaid program designed to rein in program  spending.  These 
include, am ong ot hers, st rengthening t he Medicaid asset t ransfer rest rictions for persons seeki ng t o qual ify for  
Medicaid long-term care coverage, which could, due to the timing of the penalty period, increase facilities’ exposure to 
uncompensated care.  Th is provision is ex pected to reduce Medicaid spending by an esti mated $2.4 billion over five 
years.  The law also gives states greater flexibility to expand access to home and community based services by allowing 
states to provide these services as an optional benefit without undergoing the waiver approval process, and i ncludes a 
new demonstration to encourage st ates to provide long-term care servi ces in a com munity setting to individuals who 
currently receive M edicaid servi ces i n nursi ng ho mes.  Together, t hese provisions coul d i ncrease state fundi ng for  
home and community-based services, while prompting states to cut funding for nursing facilities.  N o assurances can 
be given that state Med icaid programs ultimately will not change the reimbursement system for long-term care or 
pharmacy services in a way that adversely impacts the Company.   
 
The DRA also  ch anged th e so -called federal up per lim it p ayment ru les for m ultiple sou rce prescription dru gs 
covered under Medicaid.  Like the current upper limit, it only applies to drug ingredient costs and does not include 
dispensing fees, which will continue to be determined by the states.  First, the DRA redefined a multiple source drug 
subject to  th e u pper li mit ru les to  b e a co vered ou tpatient d rug th at h as at least o ne o ther d rug p roduct th at is  
therapeutically equ ivalent.  Thus, t he federal upp er li mit is trigg ered when t here are two  or m ore th erapeutic 
equivalents, instead  of thr ee or m ore as was pr eviously th e case.  Secon d, ef fective Jan uary 1, 2007 , t he DRA 
changed the federal upper payment limit from 150 percent of the lowest published price for a drug (which is usually 
the average wholesale price) to 250 percent of the lowest average manufacturer price (“AMP”).  Congress expected 
these DRA provisions to reduce federal and state Med icaid spending by $8.4 billion over five years.  On  July 17, 
2007, CMS i ssued a fi nal rule wi th comment period to implement changes t o t he up per l imit rul es.  A mong other 
things, the final rule: established a new federal  upper limit calculation for multiple source drugs based o n 250 percent 
of the lowest AMP in a drug cl ass; required CMS to post AMP amounts on i ts web sit e; and establi shed a uni form 
definition for AMP.  Additionally, the final rule provided that sales of drugs to long-term care pharmacies for supply to 
nursing homes and assisted living facilities (as well as associated discounts, rebates or other price concessions) are not 
to be taken into account in determining AMP where such sales can be identified with adequate documentation, and that 
any AMPs which are not at least 40% of the next highest AMP will not be taken into account in determining the upper 
limit amount (the so-call ed “outlier” test).  H owever, on De cember 19, 20 07, the United States District Court for t he 
District of C olumbia issued a preliminary injunction that enjoins CMS from implementing provisions of t he July 17, 
2007 rule to the extent that it affects Medicaid reimbursement rates for retail pharmacies under the Medicaid program.  
The order al so enjoins CMS from posting AMP data on a publ ic website or di sclosing it to states.  As a resul t of this 
preliminary injunction, CMS did not post AMPs or new upper limit prices in late December 2007 based upon the July 
17, 2007 final rule despite its earlier planned timetable, and the schedule for states to implement the new upper limits 
has been delayed until further notice.  S eparately, on Mar ch 14, 2008, CMS publ ished an inter im final rule w ith 
comment period revising the Medicaid rebate definition of multiple source drug set forth in the July 17, 2007 final rule.  
In short, the effect of the rule will be that federal upper l imits apply in all states unless the state finds that a par ticular 
generic drug i s not  available within that state.  W hile the rule’s effective date was April 14, 200 8, i t was subject  to 
public comment.  CMS also noted that the regulation is subject to the injunction by the United States District Court for 
the District of Columbia to the extent that it may affect Medicaid reimbursement rates for pharmacies.  On October 7, 
2008, CMS published the final version of t his rule, responding to public comments received on t he March 14, 2 008 
regulation.  Th e final rule adopted the March 2008 interim final rule wi th technical changes effective November 6 , 
2008, although it continues to be subject to an injunction to the extent that it affects Medicaid pharmacy reimbursement 
rates.  Moreover, MIPPA delays the adoption of the DRA’s new federal upper limit payment rules for Medicaid based 
on AMP for m ultiple source drugs and prevents CMS fro m publish ing AMP data until October 1, 2009; until then, 
upper l imits w ill cont inue t o be det ermined un der t he pr e-DRA rul es.  With the advent of Medicare Part D, the 
Company’s re venues from s tate Medicaid program s are subs tantially l ower th an h as b een th e case p reviously.  
However, some of t he Company’s agreements with Part D Plans and other payors have incorporated the Medicaid 
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upper limit rules into the pricing mechanisms for prescription drugs.  Until the litigation regarding the final rule is 
resolved and new upper limit amounts are published by CMS, the Company cannot predict the impact of the final 
rule on the Com pany’s business.  Furt her, there can be no assurance that federal upper  limit payments under pre-
DRA rules, chan ges und er t he DRA or other efforts by pa yors t o li mit reimbursement for certain  drugs will no t 
adversely impact the Company’s business. 
 
MIPPA also seeks to promote e-prescribing by providing incentive payments for physicians and other practitioners 
paid under the Medicare physician fee schedule who are "successful electronic prescribers."  Specifically, successful 
electronic prescribers are to receive a 2 percent bonus during 2009 and 2010, a 1 percent bonus for 2011 and 2012 
and a 0.5 percent bonus for 2013; practitioners who are  not successful electronic prescribers are penalized by a 1 
percent reduction from the current fee schedule in 2012, a 1.5 percent reduction in 2013, and thereafter a 2 perce nt 
reduction.  CMS has announced that to be a successful electronic prescriber and to receive an incentive payment for 
the 2009 e-prescribing reporting year, an eligible professional must report, using a qualified e-prescribing system, 
one of three e-prescribing measures in at least 50% of the cases in which the measure is repo rtable by the eligible 
professional du ring 2009.  CMS h as issued  detailed guid elines on  t he sp ecifications fo r qualified e- prescribing 
systems.  The Company is closely monitoring developments related to this initiative, and will seek to make available 
systems unde r whi ch p rescribers m ay sub mit prescri ptions t o t he C ompany's ph armacies el ectronically so as t o 
enable them to qualify for the incentive payments. 
 
Most recently, on February 17, 2009, President Obama signed into law the American Recovery and Reinvestment 
Act o f 2009.  This $79 0 billion eco nomic stimulus p ackage in cludes a number of health  care po licy p rovisions, 
including approximately $19 billion in funding for health information technology infrastructure and Medicare and 
Medicaid in centives to  en courage do ctors, h ospitals, and o ther providers to  u se health in formation tech nology to 
electronically ex change p atients’ health in formation.  The law also streng thens fed eral privacy an d security 
provisions to  protect p ersonally-identifiable h ealth in formation.  In  ad dition, th e leg islation in creases Fed eral 
Medical Assistan ce Percen tage (FM AP) payments b y a pproximately $87 b illion to h elp supp ort state Med icaid 
programs in the face of budget s hortfalls.  The law also te mporarily extends curre nt Medicai d prom pt paym ent 
requirements to nursing facility and hospital claims, requiring state Med icaid programs to reimburse providers for 
90 percent of claim s within 30 days of rec eipt and 99 percent of claims with in 90 days of receipt .  Om nicare is  
reviewing the new law and assessing the potential impact of the various provisions on the Company.  
 
Two other recent actions at the federal level could impact Medicaid payments to nursing facilities.  The Tax Relief 
and Health Care Act of 2006 modified several Medicaid policies including, among other things, reducing the lim it 
on Medicaid provider taxes from 6 percent to 5.5 percent from January 1, 2008 through September 30, 2011.  Th e 
Bush Administration had been expected to issue regulations calling for deeper cuts in this funding.  On February 22, 
2008, CMS published a final rule that implements this legislation, and makes other clarifications to the standards for 
determining the permissibility of provider tax arrangements.  O n June 30, 2008, President Bush signed into law a 
supplemental appropriations bill (P.L. 110-252) that imposes a moratorium on implementation of certain provisions 
of this rule until Ap ril 1 , 2009.  Th e American Recovery and Reinvestment Act o f 2009 extends this moratorium 
until July 1, 2009.  Second, on January 18, 2007, CMS published a proposed rule designed to ensure that Medicaid 
payments to gove rnmentally-operated nursing facilities and certain other health care providers are based on act ual 
costs and that state financing arrangements are consistent with the Medicaid statute.  CMS estimates that the rule, if 
finalized, would save $120 million during the first year an d $3.87 billion over five years.  On  May 29, 2007, CMS 
published a final rule to implement this provision, but Congress blocked the rule for one year in an emergency fiscal 
year 200 7 sp ending b ill, H.R. 220 6.  The supp lemental appropriations bill, P.L. 110-252, fu rther ex tends t he 
moratorium on implementation of the rule through April 1, 2009.  The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 
2009 expresses the sense of Congress that the Secretary of Health and Human Services should not promulgate the 
provider cost limit rule, citing a ruling by the United States District Court for the District of Columbia that the final 
rule was “improperly promulgated.” 
 
On October 4, 2006, the plaintiffs in New England Carpenters Health Benefits Fund et al. v. First Da taBank, Inc. 
and McKesson Corporation, CA No. 1:05-CV-11148-PBS (United District Court for the District of Massachusetts) 
and d efendant First DataBank, In c. (“First DataBank ”) entered i nto a settle ment ag reement relatin g t o First 
DataBank’s publication of average wholesale price (“AWP”).  AWP is a pricing benchmark that is widely used t o 
calculate a portion of the reimbursement payable to pharmacy providers for the drugs and biologicals they provide, 
including under State Medicaid programs, Medicare Part D Plans and certain of the Company’s contracts with long-
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term care facilities.  The  settlement agreement would have required First DataBank to cease publishing AWP two  
years after th e settlement became effective unless a co mpetitor of First DataBank was th en publishing AWP, and 
would have required t hat Fi rst Dat aBank modify t he manner i n w hich i t cal culates AWP f or o ver 8,0 00 di stinct 
drugs (“NDCs”) from 125% of the drug’s wholesale acquisition cost (“WAC”) price established by manufacturers to 
120% of WAC until First DataBank ceased publishing same.  In a related case, District C ouncil 3 7 He alth and 
Security Pla n v. Med i-Span, CA No . 1:07-CV-10988-PBS (U nited States D istrict Co urt fo r t he D istrict of  
Massachusetts), in which M edi-Span is accuse d of m isrepresenting pharm aceutical prices by relying on a nd 
publishing First DataBank’s price list, th e parties entered into a si milar settlement agreement.  Th e Court granted 
preliminary approval of both agreements, however on January 22, 2008, the court held a h earing on a motion for 
final approval of the proposed settlements, and after hearing various objections to the proposed settlements indicated 
that it wou ld not approve the settlements as p roposed.  On May 2 9, 2008, the plaintiffs and First DataBank filed a 
new settlement that included a reduction in the number of NDCs to which a n ew mark-up over WAC would apply 
(20% vs. 25%) from over 8,000 to 1,356, and removed the provision requiring that AWP no longer be published in 
the future.  First DataBank also agreed to contribute approximately $2 million to a settlement fund and for legal fees.  
On July 15, 2008, Medi-Span and the p laintiffs in  that litigation also  proposed an  amended settlement agreement 
under which Medi-Span agreed to reduce the mark-up over WAC (from 20% to 25%) for only the smaller number of 
NDCs, t he re quirement t hat A WP n ot be  pu blished i n the fut ure was  rem oved, an d M edi-Span agree d t o pay  
$500,000 fo r the benefit of the p laintiff class.  First DataBank and  Medi-Sp an, ind ependent of th ese settle ments, 
announced that they would, of their own volition, reduce to 20% the markup on all drugs with a mark-up higher than 
20% and stop publishing AWP within two years after the changes in mark-up are implemented (in the case of First 
DataBank) or within two years after the settlement is finally approved (in the case of Medi-Span).  During June and 
July, 2 008, the Co urt gran ted p reliminary approval to  the rev ised settle ments an d app roved th e process for class 
notification.  On December 17, 2008, the Court held a hearing on the plaintiffs’ motion for final approval of the two 
proposed settlements, but did not grant such approval, and asked the parties to submit certain additional information.  
Additional pleadings have been filed in the case and an additional hearing on certain issues was held on January 27, 
2009, but the Court has not yet ruled on the motion or scheduled a further hearing with respect to final approval of 
the proposed settlements. 
 
The Co mpany is monitoring th ese cases fo r fu rther developments an d ev aluating p otential i mplications and/ or 
actions that may be required, incl uding any adverse effect o n t he Company’s re imbursement for drugs a nd 
biologicals a nd a ny act ions t hat m ay be taken t o offset or  ot herwise m itigate such  i mpact.  The re ca n be no 
assurance, however, that the First DataBank settlement, if approved, or actions, if any, by the government or private 
health insurance programs relating to AWP would not have an adverse impact on the Company’s reimbursement for 
drugs an d biologicals an d have i mplications f or t he us e of AWP as a benc hmark from whi ch p ricing i n t he 
pharmaceutical industry is negotiated, which could adversely affect the Company. 
 
Longer t erm, fundi ng for fed eral and st ate healthcare program s must co nsider t he agi ng of  t he pop ulation and t he 
growth i n en rollees as el igibility i s expanded;  t he escal ation i n drug cos ts owi ng t o hi gher dr ug ut ilization am ong 
seniors and the introduction of new, more efficacious but also more expensive medications; the impact of the Medicare 
Part D program ; and the long-term fi nancing of t he M edicare and Medi caid program s.  Gi ven co mpeting nati onal 
priorities, it remains difficult to predict the outcome and impact on t he Company of any  changes in healthcare policy 
relating to the future funding of the Medicare and Medicaid programs. 
 
Demographic trends indicate that demand for long-term care will increase well into the middle of this century as the 
elderly po pulation g rows si gnificantly.  M oreover, t hose ove r 6 5 co nsume a di sproportionately hi gh l evel of  
healthcare services, incl uding prescription drugs , whe n compared with th e under-65 population.  Th ere is 
widespread consensus that a ppropriate pharmaceutical care is generally considered the most cost-effective form  of 
treatment for the chronic ailments afflicting the elderly and also one that is able to improve the quality of life.  These 
trends not onl y support long-term  gr owth for the geriatric pharm aceutical industry but also contain ment of 
healthcare costs and the well-being of the nation’s growing elderly population. 
 
In order t o f und t his growing demand, t he C ompany bel ieves t hat t he go vernment and t he private sect or wi ll 
continue t o review, a ssess a nd possibly al ter heal thcare delivery sy stems and pay ment m ethodologies.  While i t 
cannot at t his time p redict t he ultimate effect of t he Medicare Part D drug benefit or an y fu rther i nitiatives on  
Omnicare’s b usiness, m anagement bel ieves t hat t he C ompany’s expertise in geria tric pha rmaceutical care and 
pharmaceutical cost management position Omnicare to help meet the challenges of today’s healthcare environment.  
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Further, while volatility can occur from time to time in the contract research business owing to factors such as t he 
success or failure of its clients’ compounds, the timing or budgetary constraints of its clients, or consolidation within 
our client base, new drug discovery remains an i mportant priority of drug manufacturers.  T he Company believes 
that drug manufacturers, in order to optimize their research and development efforts, will continue to turn to contract 
research organizations to assist them in drug research development and commercialization. 
 
Safe Harbor Statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Regarding Forward-Looking 
Information 
 
In add ition to  h istorical in formation, th is rep ort con tains certain  state ments th at c onstitute “fo rward-looking 
statements” wi thin the meaning of the Private Secu rities Litig ation Refo rm Act o f 1995.  Th ese fo rward-looking 
statements include, but are not limited to, all statements regarding the intent, belief or current expectations regarding 
the m atters di scussed or i ncorporated by  refe rence i n this document (i ncluding statements as to  “b eliefs,” 
“expectations,” “an ticipations,” “in tentions” o r similar wo rds) and all statements which are not state ments of 
historical fact.  Such forward-looking statements, together with other statements that are not historical, are based on 
management’s current expectations and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, contingencies and other 
factors that could caus e results, perf ormance or achi evements t o di ffer materially from  those stated.  The m ost 
significant of these risks and uncertainties are desc ribed in the Company’s Form 10-K, Form 10-Q and Form 8-K 
reports filed with the Securities and E xchange Commission and include, but are not limited to: overall econom ic, 
financial, political and business conditions; trends in the long-term healthcare, pharmaceutical and contract research 
industries; the ability to attract new clients and service contracts and retain existing clients and service contracts; the 
ability to consummate pending acquisitions; trends for the continued growth of the Company’s businesses; trends in 
drug pricing; delays and reductions in reimbursement by the government and other payors to customers and to the 
Company; the overall financial condition of the Company’s customers and the ability of the Company to assess and 
react to such financial condition of its customers; the ability of vendors and business partners to continue to provide 
products and services to the Company; the continued successful in tegration of acqu ired companies; the con tinued 
availability of suitable acquisition candidates; the ability to attract and  retain needed management; competition for 
qualified staff in the healthcare industry; the demand for the Company’s products and services; variations in costs or 
expenses; the ability to  implement productivity, consolidation and cost reduction efforts and  to realize an ticipated 
benefits; th e ab ility o f clin ical research  projects t o produce rev enues in  fu ture periods; th e potential i mpact o f 
legislation, government regulations, and other government action and/or executive orders, including those relating to 
Medicare Part D, including its implementing regulations and any subregulatory guidance, reimbursement and drug 
pricing policies and changes in the interpretation and application of such policies; government budgetary pressures 
and sh ifting priorities; federal an d stat e bu dget sh ortfalls; effo rts b y payors to  co ntrol co sts; ch anges to  or 
termination of the Company’s contracts with Medicare Part D plan sponsors or to the proportion of the Company’s 
Part D business covered by specific contracts; the outcome of litigation; potential liability for losses not covered by, 
or in excess of, insurance; the impact of differences in actuarial assumptions and estimates as compared to eventual 
outcomes; events or circumstances which result in an i mpairment of asset s, including but not limited to, goodwill; 
market conditions; the outcome of audit, compliance, administrative, regulatory, or investigatory reviews; volatility 
in the  m arket for t he C ompany’s st ock a nd in t he financial m arkets gene rally; access to a dequate capital and 
financing; ch anges in  in ternational econ omic an d po litical co nditions and cu rrency flu ctuations b etween the U.S. 
dollar and ot her currencies; changes in tax laws and re gulations; changes in account ing rules and standa rds; and 
costs to co mply with  our C orporate Integrity Agreem ents.  S hould one o r m ore of these risks o r uncertainties 
materialize or sh ould underlying ass umptions prove i ncorrect, t he C ompany’s act ual res ults, performance o r 
achievements coul d differ m aterially from  those e xpressed i n, o r i mplied by , suc h forward-looking st atements.  
Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these  forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the  
date here of.  Exce pt as ot herwise required by  law, the C ompany does not un dertake any o bligation to pu blicly 
release any revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect e vents or circumstances after the date hereof or 
to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. 
 
 
ITEM 7A. - QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK  
 
Information required under this Item is set forth in the “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk” 
caption at Part II, Item 7, of this Filing. 
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ITEM 8. - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 
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information is shown elsewhere in the Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes thereto. 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  
 
To the Stockholders and  
Board of Directors of Omnicare, Inc. 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Omnicare, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results 
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the thr ee years in the period ended  December 31, 2008  in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  In addition, i n our 
opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in th e accompanying index presents fairly, in all m aterial respects, 
the information set forth  therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements.  Also 
in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective in ternal control over financial reporting 
as of December 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control -  Integrated Framework is sued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations o f the Treadway Commission (COSO).  The Company's management is 
responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal control 
over fi nancial repo rting and fo r its assessmen t o f th e effectiv eness of in ternal con trol ov er fi nancial rep orting, 
included i n M anagement's Repo rt o n I nternal C ontrol o ver Fi nancial R eporting ap pearing u nder It em 9A.  Ou r 
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements, on the financial statement schedule, and on the 
Company's internal con trol ov er fi nancial rep orting b ased on o ur i ntegrated audi ts.  We co nducted ou r au dits i n 
accordance wi th the standa rds of the Public Co mpany Accounting Oversight Boa rd (United Sta tes).  Those  
standards require that we  plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether th e financial 
statements are free of m aterial misstatement and whether effective in ternal co ntrol over fi nancial repo rting was 
maintained in  all material re spects.  Our au dits of t he financial statemen ts in cluded examining, on a test b asis, 
evidence s upporting the am ounts a nd discl osures i n the fi nancial statem ents, assessi ng t he accounting principles 
used an d significant est imates made by  management, an d eval uating t he ov erall fi nancial st atement presentation.  
Our audit of i nternal control over financial reporting included obtaining an un derstanding of internal control over 
financial repo rting, assessi ng th e risk  th at a material weakness exi sts, a nd t esting an d eval uating t he desi gn an d 
operating ef fectiveness of i nternal c ontrol based o n t he a ssessed ri sk.  Our a udits al so i ncluded performing suc h 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the  circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinions. 
 
As d iscussed in  No te 1 3 to  th e con solidated fin ancial state ments, th e C ompany ch anged th e m anner in  wh ich it 
accounts for uncertain tax positions in 2007.  Furthe rmore, as discusse d in Note 12 to the consolidated financial 
statements, the Com pany change d th e manne r in whic h it accounts  for defined benefit pension and ot her 
postretirement plans in 2006. 
 
A c ompany’s internal c ontrol ove r financial rep orting i s a p rocess designed t o p rovide reasonable assu rance 
regarding the reliability o f financial reporting and  the preparation of financial statements fo r ex ternal purposes in 
accordance wi th generally accepted accounti ng principles.  A co mpany’s internal  control over fi nancial reporting 
includes tho se p olicies and  procedures th at (i) pertain to th e m aintenance of record s th at, in  reason able detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect t he transactions and dispositions  of the assets of the c ompany; (ii) provide reasonable 
assurance t hat t ransactions a re rec orded as  necessa ry t o permit prepa ration of fi nancial st atements i n acc ordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and t hat receipts and e xpenditures of the company are being m ade 
only in accordance with a uthorizations of management and directors of the com pany; and (iii) provi de reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.  
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 
 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Cincinnati, Ohio 
February 26, 2009 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
OMNICARE,  INC.  AND  SUBSIDIARY  COMPANIES

(in thousands, except per share data)

For the years ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006

Net sales 6,310,607$     6,220,010$     6,492,993$     

Cost of sales 4,712,683       4,666,621       4,864,966       
Heartland matters (Note 17) 5,531              14,788            27,663            

Gross profit 1,592,393       1,538,601       1,600,364       

Selling, general and administrative expenses 948,171          910,294          887,426          
Provision for doubtful accounts (Note 1) 113,802          213,560          82,209            
Restructuring and other related charges (Note 15) 35,784            27,883            29,562            
Litigation and other related professional fees (Note 17) 99,267            42,516            114,778          
Heartland matters (Note 17) 914                 2,405              6,063              
Operating income 394,455          341,943          480,326          

Investment income 9,782              8,715              10,453            
Interest expense (144,050)        (164,160)        (170,283)        
Income before income taxes 260,187          186,498          320,496          

Income tax provision 104,079          72,442            136,924          
Net income 156,108$       114,056$        183,572$       

Earnings per share:
Basic 1.33$             0.96$              1.55$             
Diluted 1.32$              0.94$              1.50$              

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic 117,466        119,380         118,480         
Diluted 118,313          121,258          122,536          

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
OMNICARE,  INC.  AND  SUBSIDIARY  COMPANIES

(in thousands,  except share data)
December 31,

2008 2007
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 215,090$          274,448$          
Restricted cash 1,891                3,155                
Accounts receivable, less allowances

of $332,969 (2007-$334,061) 1,367,155         1,376,288         
Unbilled  receivables, CRO 22,329              24,855              
Inventories 452,748            448,183            
Deferred income tax benefits 134,249            126,239            
Other current assets 178,231            202,982            

Total current assets 2,371,693         2,456,150         

Properties and equipment, at cost less accumulated
depreciation of $346,260 (2007-$311,422) 219,652            199,449            

Goodwill 4,252,906         4,342,169         
Identifiable intangible assets, less accumulated 

amortization of $152,405 (2007-$115,042) 333,769            323,637            
Rabbi trust assets for settlement of pension obligations 134,587            123,035            
Other noncurrent assets 147,111            149,339            

Total noncurrent assets 5,088,025         5,137,629         
Total assets 7,459,718$       7,593,779$       

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 339,552$          371,020$          
Accrued employee compensation 51,451              32,696              
Deferred revenue, CRO 23,227              22,068              
Current debt 2,263                3,192                
Other current liabilities 224,296            223,184            

Total current liabilities 640,789            652,160            
Long-term debt, notes and convertible debentures 2,731,163         2,820,751         
Deferred income tax liabilities 390,098            449,789            
Other noncurrent liabilities 276,284 379,376

Total noncurrent liabilit ies 3,397,545 3,649,916
Total liabilities 4,038,334         4,302,076         

Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)

Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, no par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized,

none issued and outstanding -                        -                        
Common stock, $1 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized,

125,583,300 shares issued (2007-124,599,300 shares issued) 125,583            124,599            
Paid-in capital 1,945,627         1,917,062         
Retained earnings 1,543,188         1,397,831         
Treasury stock, at cost-7,135,300 shares (2007-2,827,300 s hares) (193,178)           (89,791)             
Accumulated other comprehensive income 164                   (57,998)             

Total stockholders' equity 3,421,384         3,291,703         

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity 7,459,718$       7,593,779$       

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
OMNICARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

(in thousands)
For the years ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income 156,108$      114,056$      183,572$       
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

flows from operating activities:
Depreciation 52,636          54,857          57,110           
Amortization 64,772          58,546          62,555           
Deferred tax provision 66,649          41,209          81,602           

Changes in assets and liabili ties, net of effects
from acquisition of businesses:

Accounts receivable and unbilled receivables, net of
     provison for doubtful accounts 48,964          172,179        (279,329)        
Inventories 4,776            13,391          24,023           
Current and noncurrent assets 74,957          (64,236)         80,733           
Accounts payable (46,522)         107,383        (144,893)        
Accrued employee compensation 21,851          (808)              360                
Deferred revenue 1,159            (4,366)           1,577             
Current and noncurrent liabilities (7,153)           13,318          41,210           

Net cash flows from operating activities 438,197        505,529        108,520         

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisit ion of businesses, net of cash received (225,710)       (151,135)       (94,346)          
Capital expenditures (61,113)         (45,270)         (31,251)          
Transfer of cash to trusts for employee health and

severance costs, net of payments out of the trust 847               291               (1,321)            
Other 683               (774)              46                  

Net cash flows used in investing activities (285,293)       (196,888)       (126,872)        

Cash flows from financing activit ies:
Borrowings on line of credit facilities 396,000        95,000          158,000         
Payments on line of credit facilities, term A loan and notes payable (485,081)       (245,000)       (258,000)        
Payments on long-term borrowings and obligations (3,193)           (5,734)           (14,858)          
Fees paid for financing arrangements -                    -                    (3,482)            
(Decrease) increase in cash overdraft balance (5,449)           (3,580)           12,264           
Payments for Omnicare common stock repurchases (Note 2) (100,165)       -                    -                     
Proceeds from stock offering, net of issuance costs -                    -                    49,239           
Payments for stock awards and exercise of stock options,

net of stock tendered in payment (1,390)           (8,966)           (2,751)            
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 963               4,112            10,411           
Dividends paid (10,751)         (10,971)         (10,937)          

Net cash flows used in financing activities (209,066)       (175,139)       (60,114)          

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (3,196)           2,912            1,079             
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (59,358)         136,414        (77,387)          
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 274,448        138,034        215,421         

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 215,090$      274,448$      138,034$       

The Notes to Consolidated Financial  Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
OMNICARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

(in thousands, except per share data) 
 

Accumulated
Other Total

Common Paid-in Retained Treasury Deferred Comprehensive Stockholders'
 S tock Capital Earnings Stock Compensation Income Equity

Balance at January 1, 2006 122,619$                  1,861,483$               1,127,915$               (78,418)$                   (76,904)$                   (14,649)$                   2,942,046$               
Deferred compensation adjustment per 

adoption of SFAS 123R (Note 11) -                            (76,904)                     -                            -                            76,904                      -                            -                            
Dividends paid ($0.09 per share) -                            -                            (10,937)                     -                            -                            -                            (10,937)                     
Stock acquired/issued for benefit plans -                            3,596                        -                            6,743                        -                            -                            10,339                      
Issuance of common stock 850                           48,793                      -                            -                            -                            -                            49,643                      
Stock option and warrant exercises and amortization/forfeitures 453                           20,600                      -                            (572)                          -                            -                            20,481                      
Stock awards, net of amortization/forfeitures 347                           27,961                      -                            (14,508)                     -                            -                            13,800                      
Subtotal 124,269                    1,885,529                 1,116,978                 (86,755)                     -                            (14,649)                     3,025,372                 
Net income -                            -                            183,572                    -                            -                            -                            183,572                    
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Cumulative translation adjustment -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            1,188                        1,188                        
Unrealized depreciation in fair value of 

investments -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            (713)                          (713)                          
Equity adjustment for minimum pension

and long-term care plan liabilities -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            (8,902)                       (8,902)                       
Comprehensive income (loss) -                            -                            183,572                    -                            -                            (8,427)                       175,145                    

Adjustment to initially apply SFAS
No. 158, net of tax (Note 12) -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            (37,066)                     (37,066)                     

Balance at December 31, 2006 124,269                    1,885,529                 1,300,550                 (86,755)                     -                            (60,142)                     3,163,451                 
Cumulative FIN 48 adjustment (Note 13) (5,804)                       (5,804)                       
Dividends paid ($0.09 per share) -                            -                            (10,971)                     -                            -                            -                            (10,971)                     
Stock acquired/issued for benefit plans -                            292                           -                            9,248                        -                            -                            9,540                        
Stock option exercises and amortization/forfeitures 85                             6,509                        -                            -                            -                            -                            6,594                        
Stock awards, net of amortization/forfeitures 245                           24,732                      -                            (12,284)                     -                            -                            12,693                      
Subtotal 124,599                    1,917,062                 1,283,775                 (89,791)                     -                            (60,142)                     3,175,503                 
Net income -                            -                            114,056                    -                            -                            -                            114,056                    
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Cumulative translation adjustment -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            2,183                        2,183                        
Unrealized appreciation in fair value of 

investments -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            3,823                        3,823                        
Amortization of pension benefit costs -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            7,085                        7,085                        
Actuarial loss on pension obligations -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            (10,552)                     (10,552)                     
Equity adjustment for long-term

care plan liabilities -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            (395)                          (395)                          
Comprehensive income -                            -                            114,056                    -                            -                            2,144                        116,200                    

Balance at December 31, 2007 124,599                    1,917,062                 1,397,831                 (89,791)                     -                            (57,998)                     3,291,703                 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (Continued) 
OMNICARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

(in thousands, except per share data) 
 

Accumulated

Other Total

Common Paid-in Retained Treasury Deferred Comprehensive Stockholders'
 S tock Capital Earnings Stock Compensation Income Equity

Balance at December 31, 2007 124,599                    1,917,062                 1,397,831                 (89,791)                     -                            (57,998)                     3,291,703                 
Dividends paid ($0.09 per share) -                            -                            (10,751)                     -                            -                            -                            (10,751)                     
Stock acquired/issued for benefit plans -                            (343)                          -                            2,319                        -                            -                            1,976                        
Stock option exercises and amortization/forfeitures 264                           10,138                      -                            -                            -                            -                            10,402                      
Common stock repurchase -                            -                            -                            (100,165)                   -                            -                            (100,165)                   
Stock awards, net of amortization/forfeitures 720                           18,770                      -                            (5,541)                       -                            -                            13,949                      
Subtotal 125,583                    1,945,627                 1,387,080                 (193,178)                   -                            (57,998)                     3,207,114                 
Net income -                            -                            156,108                    -                            -                            -                            156,108                    
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Cumulative translation adjustment -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            224                           224                           
Unrealized appreciation in fair value of 

investments -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            4,940                        4,940                        
Amortization of pension benefit costs -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            9,292                        9,292                        
Actuarial gain on pension obligations -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            43,706                      43,706                      

Comprehensive income -                            -                            156,108                    -                            -                            58,162                      214,270                    

Balance at December 31, 2008 125,583$                  1,945,627$               1,543,188$               (193,178)$                 -$                          164$                         3,421,384$               

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Note 1 – Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Description of Business 
 
Omnicare, Inc. (“Omnicare” or the “Company”) is a lea ding geriatric pharmaceutical services company.  Omnicare 
is the nation’s largest provider of pharmaceuticals and related ancillary pharmacy services to long-term healthcare 
institutions.  Omnicare’s clien ts in clude primarily sk illed nu rsing facilities (“SNFs”), assisted  liv ing facilities 
(“ALFs”), retirement centers, independent living communities, hospitals, hospice, and other healthcare settings and 
service providers.  A t December 31, 2008, Omnicare served long-term care facilities as w ell as ch ronic care and  
other setting s comprising app roximately 1 ,435,000 b eds, in cluding approx imately 6 8,000 patients served by th e 
patient assistance programs of its s pecialty pharmacy services business.  T he comparable number at December 31, 
2007 was approximately 1,449,000 (including approximately 57,000 patients served by patient assistance programs).  
Omnicare provides its pharmacy services in  47 states  in t he United States (“U.S.”), the District of Columbia and 
Canada at December 31, 2008.  Omnicare’s pharmacy services also include distribution and product support services 
for s pecialty pharm aceuticals. Om nicare’s c ontract re search organization provides com prehensive product 
development and re search services for t he pharm aceutical, biotechnology, nutrace utical, medical devices and 
diagnostic industries in 30 countries worldwide. 
 
Principles of Consolidation 
 
The accompanying consolidated financial state ments include the account s of the Com pany and its wholly-owne d 
and majority-owned subsidiaries as of Decem ber 31, 2008 and 2007, and for the y ears ended December 31, 2008, 
2007 an d 2006 .  O mnicare consolidates en tities in  wh ich th e Co mpany is th e primary b eneficiary, in  acco rdance 
with Fi nancial Acco unting S tandards B oard (“F ASB”) I nterpretation No. 46 , “Con solidation of Variable In terest 
Entities,” as amended (“FIN 46R”).  FIN 46R requires variable interest entities to be consolidated if the Company is 
subject to a majority of the  risk of loss from the entity’s  activities or e ntitled to recei ve a m ajority of the  entity’s 
returns, including residual returns.  All sig nificant intercompany accounts and t ransactions have been eliminated in 
consolidation. 
 
Translation of Foreign Financial Statements 
 
Assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign operations (primarily in Omnicare’s contract research organization) 
are translated at the year-end rate of e xchange, a nd th e incom e sta tements are tran slated at ave rage rates of 
exchange.  Ga ins or l osses from  translating foreign c urrency fi nancial state ments are accum ulated in a separate 
component of stockholders’ equity. 
 
Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash equ ivalents in clude all in vestments i n h ighly liq uid in struments with orig inal maturities o f th ree months or 
less. 
 
Restricted Cash 
 
Restricted cash primarily represents cash transferred to separate irrevocable trusts for settlement of employee health 
and severance costs, and cash collected on behalf of a third party. 
 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
 
On January 1, 2008, the Company partially adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
(“SFAS”) No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”).  SFAS 157 defines a hierarchy which prioritizes the 
inputs in fair value measurements.  “Level 1” measurements are measurements using quoted prices in active markets 
for id entical assets or liab ilities.  “Lev el 2” m easurements use sign ificant o ther observable inpu ts.  “Lev el 3” 
measurements are measurements using significant unobservable inputs which require a company to develop its own 
assumptions.  In recording the fair value of assets and liabilities, companies must use the most reliable measurement 
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available.  Th e impact to the Company’s consolidated results of operations, financial position and cash flows upon 
partial adop tion of SFAS 157 was no t m aterial.  The Com pany elected  to  p artially d efer ado ption of SFAS 157 
related to goodwill and indefin ite-lived intangible assets, as well as othe r non-financial assets, in accordance with 
FASB Staff Position 157-2. 
 
See further discussion at the “Fair Value” note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to credit risk con sist primarily of interest-bearing cash 
and cash equivalents, assets invested for settlement of t he Company’s employee benefit obligations, and accounts 
receivable. 
 
The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of default by the financial institutions or issuers of cash and cash 
equivalents to the extent recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  Specifically, at any given point in time, the 
Company has cash on deposit with financial institutions, and cash invested in high quality short-term money market 
funds and/or U.S. gov ernment-backed repurchase agreements, generally having original maturities of three months 
or less, in order to minimize its credit risk. 
 
The Com pany establishes allowa nces for doubtful accounts based on various fact ors, including hi storical credit  
losses a nd s pecifically identified cre dit ris ks.  Ma nagement re views the allowanc es for doubtful accounts on a n 
ongoing basi s for appropriateness.  Fo r the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, no single customer 
accounted for 10% or m ore of re venues.  The Com pany generally does not re quire collateral from  its custom ers 
relating to the extension of credit in the form of accounts receivable balances. 
 
The prescription drug benefit under Medicare Part D (“Part D”) became effective on January 1, 2006.  As a result, 
providers of l ong-term care pharmacy se rvices, including Omnicare, experienced a si gnificant shift in payor mix 
beginning i n 2006.  A pproximately 41% of t he C ompany’s re venues i n 2 008 we re generated under t he Part D 
program.  Th e Company estimates that approximately 23% of these Part D rev enues relate to  patients enrolled in  
Part D prescrip tion dru g plans spo nsored by Un ited Health Group  and  its affiliates (“Un ited”).  Prior to th e 
implementation of the new Medicare Part  D program, most of t he Part  D resi dents served by the Company were 
reimbursed under state Medicaid programs and, to a lesser extent, private pay sources.   
 
Under the Part D benefit, payment is d etermined in accordance with th e agreements Omnicare has negotiated with 
the Part D Plans.  The remainder of Omnicare’s billings are paid or reimbursed primarily by long-term care facilities 
(including revenues f or resi dents funded under M edicare Part  A) a nd ot her t hird pa rty pay ors, i ncluding private 
insurers, state Medicaid programs, as well as individual residents. 

 
The Medicaid and Medicare  programs are highly regulated.  The failure, even if inadvertent, of Omnicare and/or 
client facilitie s to  co mply with  app licable reim bursement regu lations cou ld adv ersely affect  Om nicare’s 
reimbursement u nder t hese programs an d Om nicare’s ab ility to  co ntinue t o p articipate in  th ese programs.  In 
addition, failure to comply with these regulations could subject the Company to other penalties.   
 
As noted, t he C ompany o btains rei mbursement fo r d rugs i t p rovides t o en rollees of a given Part D Pl an in 
accordance with the terms of the agreement negotiated between it and that  Part D Plan.  The  Company has entered 
into such agreements with nearly all Part D Plan  sponsors under which it will provide drugs and associated services 
to their enrollees.  Th e Company continues to have ongoing discussions with Part D Plans in th e ordinary course.  
The Com pany may, as appropriate, re negotiate agreem ents.  Fur ther, the p roportion o f th e Co mpany’s Par t D  
business serviced under specific agreements may change over time based upon  beneficiary choice, reassignment of 
dual eligibles to different Part D Plan s or Part D Plan consolidation.  M oreover, as exp ected in the transition to a 
new program of this magnitude, certain administrative and payment issues have arisen, resulting in higher operating 
expenses, as well as outstanding gross accounts receivable (net of allowances for contractual adjustments, and prior 
to any allowa nce for doubtfu l accounts), particularly for copays.  As  of Decem ber 31, 2008 , copays outstanding 
from Part D Plans were approximately $19 million relating to 2006 and 2007.  The Company is pursuing solutions, 
including leg al actio ns ag ainst certain  Part D p ayors, to collect out standing c opays, as  well as ce rtain re jected 
claims. 
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On July 11, 2007, the Company commenced legal action against a group of  its customers for, among other things, 
the col lection of pa st-due re ceivables that are owe d to the Com pany.  Specifically, ap proximately $92 m illion 
(excluding i nterest) i s owed t o t he C ompany by  t his group of c ustomers as o f D ecember 3 1, 2008, of w hich 
approximately $8 6 m illion i s past  d ue bas ed o n ap plicable paym ent t erms (a si gnificant p ortion o f which i s not  
reserved based on the relevant facts and circumstances).   
 
The provision for doubtful acco unts for the year ended December 31, 2008  of $113.8 million was lower than the  
comparable prior-year amount of $213.6 million, by $99.8 million.  T he year ended 2007 includes an incremental 
charge t aken i n t he f ourth q uarter relating t o cust omer ban kruptcies and other l egal act ion agai nst a gro up o f 
customers for, among other things, the collection of past due receivables, a revised assessment of the administrative 
and payment issues associated with Prescription Drug Plans under Medicare Part D, particularly relating to the aging 
of copays and rejected claims, and the resultant adoption by the Company of a modification in its policy with respect 
to payment authorization for dispensed prescriptions under Medicare Part D and other payors. 
 
Until th ese admin istrative and  p ayment issu es relating  to the Part D Dru g Ben efit as well as th e afo rementioned 
legal action against a group of Omnicare’s customers are fully resolved, there can be no assurance that the impact of 
these matters on the Company’s results of operations, financial position or cash flows will not change based on the 
outcome of any unforeseen future developments.   
 
In 2008, approximately one-half of Omnicare’s pharmacy services billings were directly reimbursed by government-
sponsored programs.  These pro grams include primarily federal Medicare Part D and, to  a lesser extent, the state  
Medicaid programs.  The remainder of Omnicare’s billings were paid or reimbursed by individual residents or their 
responsible parties (p rivate pay), facilities an d o ther th ird-party payors, including private insurers.  As prev iously 
discussed, a port ion o f t hese revenues al so was i ndirectly dependent on government programs.  The t able below 
represents the Company’s approximated payor mix (as a % of annual sales) for the last three years ended December 
31,: 
 

2008 2007 2006
Private pay, third-party and facilities (a)  44% 43% 43%
Federal Medicare program (Part D & Part B) (b)  42% 43% 42%
State Medicaid programs 10% 10% 12%
Other sources (c)  4% 4% 3%

Totals 100% 100% 100%

(a) Includes payments from SNFs on behalf of their federal Medicare program-eligible residents (Medicare 
Part A) and for other services and supplies, as well as payments from third-party insurers and private pay.

(b) Includes direct billing for medical supplies under Part B totaling 1% in each of the 2008, 2007 and 2006
years.

(c) Includes our contract research organization.

 
Inventories 
 
Inventories consist primarily of purchased pharmaceuticals and medical supplies held for sale to c ustomers and are 
stated at the lower of cost or market.  Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method.  Physical inventories are 
typically performed on a m onthly basis at all pharmacy sites, and in all cases t he Company’s policy is to  perform 
them at least once a qua rter.  Cost of goods sold is recorded ba sed on the actu al results of the physical inventory 
counts, and is estimated when a physical inventory is not performed in a particular month.   
 
Properties and Equipment 
 
Properties and equipm ent are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.  Ex penditures for m aintenance, repairs, 
renewals and  betterments th at d o no t m aterially p rolong the u seful liv es o f th e assets are ch arged to  exp ense as 
incurred.  De preciation of properties and e quipment is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated 
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useful lives of the assets, which range from five to 10  years for c omputer equipment and software, machinery and 
equipment, an d f urniture a nd fi xtures.  B uildings a nd b uilding i mprovements are de preciated o ver 40 y ears, a nd 
leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the in itial lease t erms or their useful lives.  The Co mpany 
capitalizes certain costs that  are dir ectly asso ciated with th e d evelopment o f in ternally d eveloped software, 
representing the historical cos t of t hese assets.  Once the software is completed and placed into service, such costs 
are amortized over the estimated useful lives, ranging from five to 10 years. 
 
Leases 
 
Rental paym ents under operating leases a re expense d i n accorda nce with U.S. Generally Accepte d Acc ounting 
Principles (“U.S. GAAP”).  Leases that substantially transfer all of the benefits and risks of ownership of property to 
Omnicare or otherwise meet the criteria for capitalization under U.S. GAAP are accounted for as capital leases.  An 
asset is recorded at the time a capital lease is entered into together with its related long-term obligation to reflect its 
purchase and financing.  Property and equipment recorded under capital leases are depreciated on the same basis as 
previously described.   
 
Valuation of Long-Lived Assets 
 
In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” long-lived 
assets such as property and equipment, software (acquired and i nternally developed) and investments are reviewed 
for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the book carrying amount of the assets may 
not be recoverable.  An i mpairment l oss wo uld be  rec ognized when estimated fut ure u ndiscounted cas h flows 
expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition are less than its book carrying amount.   
 
Goodwill, Intangibles and Other Assets 
 
Intangible assets are co mprised prim arily o f goodwill, customer relatio nship assets, no ncompete ag reements, 
technology ass ets, and tra demarks and tra de nam es, all originating from business c ombinations accounted for as 
purchase transactions.  In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142”), 
goodwill is no longer amortized but is instead reviewed at the aggregate reporting unit level for impairment using a 
fair value based approach at least annually.  SFAS 142 requires the Company to assess whether there is an indication 
that goodwill is impaired, and requires goodwill to be tested between annual tests if even ts occur or circu mstances 
change that would, more likely than not, reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its book carrying amount.  
The Company’s assessments to date have indicated that goodwill has not been impaired.  In tangible assets th at are 
being amortized under SFAS 142 are amortized over their useful lives, ranging from three to 15 years. 
 
Debt issuance costs are includ ed in the “Other noncurrent assets” line of the Cons olidated Balance Sheets and are  
amortized over th e lif e of the r elated d ebt, and  t o th e put d ate of D ecember 1 5, 2015 in  t he case of  th e 3.25% 
convertible senior debentures due 2035. 
 
Insurance Accruals 
 
The Company is self-insured for certa in employee health, prope rty and casua lty insurance claims.  The Co mpany 
carries a stop-lo ss umbrella policy for health insurance to limit the maximum potential liability for both individual 
and aggregate claims for a p lan year.  Clai ms are p aid as they are su bmitted to the respective plan administrators.  
The Company records monthly expense for the self-i nsurance plans in its financial statements for in curred claims, 
based on historical claims experience and input from third-party insurance professionals in order to determine the 
appropriate accrual level.  The accrual gives consideration to claims that have been incurred but not yet paid and/or 
reported to the plan administrator.  The Company establishes the accruals ba sed on the historical claim lag periods , 
current payment trend s for similar insurance cl aims and i nput f rom t hird-party i nsurance and valuation 
professionals. 
 
The book carrying amount of the Company’s property and casualty accrual available for self-insured retentions and 
deductibles, at December 31, 2008 and 2007, was $19 .4 million and $14.5 million, respectively.  The discount rate  
utilized in the computation of the property and casualty accrual balance at December 31, 2008 and 2007, with the 



 

 81

assistance of the Company’s valuation advisors and giving consideration to anticipated claim lag periods, was 1.4% 
and 5.0%, respectively.  
 
Revenue Recognition 
 
Revenue is recognized by Omnicare when products are delivered or services are provided to the customer. 
 
Pharmacy Services Segment 
 
A si gnificant portion of the  Com pany’s Pharmacy Servi ces segm ent revenu es from  sales of pharmaceutical and 
medical products have been reimbursed by the federal Medicare Part D plan and, to a lesser extent, state Medicaid 
programs.  Pay ments for serv ices rendered to  patients co vered by t hese prog rams are g enerally less th an billed 
charges.  The Company monitors its re venues and recei vables from these reim bursement sources, as well as othe r 
third-party insura nce pay ors, and rec ords an estim ated contractual allowa nce for c ertain sales and receiva ble 
balances at the reve nue recognition date, to prope rly account for anticipated diff erences bet ween billed and 
reimbursed a mounts.  Accordingly, the  total net sales  and receivables reported i n the  Com pany’s financial 
statements are recorded at the amount ultimately expected to be received from these payors.  Since billing functions 
for a portion of the Com pany’s re venue systems, are la rgely com puterized ena bling on-line adjud ication (i.e., 
submitting charges to Medicare, Medicaid or other third-party payors electronically, with simultaneous feedback of 
the am ount t o be pai d) at  t he t ime of sal e t o recor d net  reven ues, exp osure t o est imating co ntractual al lowance 
adjustments is  li mited p rimarily to  u nbilled and /or in itially rej ected Med icare, Med icaid and  th ird-party clai ms 
(typically ap proved for reimbursement o nce add itional i nformation is provided t o th e p ayor).  For t he remaining 
portion of the Company’s rev enue system s, th e co ntractual allo wance is esti mated for all b illed, unbilled and /or 
initially rejected Medicare, Medicaid and third-party claims.  The Company evaluates several criteria in developing 
the esti mated contractual allo wances for b illed, un billed and /or in itially rej ected clai ms o n a monthly b asis, 
including historical t rends based on actual claims paid, current contract and reimbursement terms, and c hanges in 
customer base and payor/product mix.  C ontractual al lowance est imates are ad justed to actual amounts as cash i s 
received and c laims are settle d, and the a ggregate impact of these resulting adjustments were not significant to the  
Company’s operations for any of the periods presented.  Further, Omnicare does not expect the reasonably possible 
effects of a c hange i n esti mate related to unsettled December 31, 2008 contractual allowa nce am ounts from  
Medicare, Medicaid and third-party payors to be significant to its future consolidated results of operations, financial 
position or cash flows. 

 
Patient co-payments are associated w ith certain state Medicaid program s, Medicare Part B, Medicare Part D a nd 
certain third-party payors and are typically not collected at the time products are delivered or services are rendered, 
but are billed to the individual as part of the Company’s normal billing procedures.  These co -payments are subject 
to the Company’s normal accounts receivable collections procedures. 
 
A pat ient may be di spensed prescribed medications (typically no more than a 2- 3 day  supply) prior to insurance 
being v erified in  e mergency situ ations, or fo r new fac ility ad missions after hou rs or on weekends.  As soon  as 
practicable (typically the fol lowing business day), specific payor information is obtained so that the proper payor 
can be billed for reimbursement. 
 
Under certain circumstances, the Company accepts returns of medications and issues a credit memo to the applicable 
payor.  The Company estimates and ac crues for sales re turns b ased on historical ret urn e xperience, giving 
consideration to the Co mpany’s return policies.  Prod uct returns are processed i n the period received, and are not 
significant when compared to the overall sales and gross profit of the Company. 

 
Contract Research Services Segment 
 
A portion of the Company's overall revenues relates to the Contract Research Services (“CRO” or “CRO Services”) 
segment, and is earned by perform ing services under contracts with va rious ph armaceutical, biotechnology, 
nutraceutical, medical devices and diagnostics companies, based on contract terms.  Most of the contracts provide 
for services to be per formed on a u nits-of-service basis.  These contrac ts specifically identify the units-of-service 
and unit pricing.  Under t hese contracts,  revenue is generally recognized upon completion of the units-of-service.  
For time-and-materials contracts, reve nue is recognize d a t contractual hourly rates, an d f or fi xed-price cont racts, 
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revenue is recognized using a method similar to that used for units-of-service.  The Company's contracts provide for 
additional service fees for scope of work changes.  The Company recognizes revenue related to these scope changes 
when underlying services a re performed and real ization is assured.  In a number of cases, clients are required to 
make termination payments in addition to payments for services already rendered.  Any anticipated losses resulting 
from contract performance are charged to earnings in the period identified.   
contract.  Revenue recognized in excess of billings is classified as unbilled receivables, while billings in excess 
of revenue are classified as deferred revenue, on the respective lines of the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 
 
Stock-Based Compensation 
 
SFAS N o. 12 3 (revised 20 04), Sh are-Based Paym ent” (“SFAS 1 23R”) r equires the Company to record 
compensation co sts relating to  share-based p ayment tran sactions in  its fin ancial state ments u nder a fair v alue 
recognition model.  Under the provisions of SFAS 123R, share-based compensation cost is measured at  the grant 
date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense ratably over the requisite service period of the 
award ( usually t he vest ing p eriod).  T he C ompany el ected t he “m odified p rospective method” of i mplementing 
SFAS 1 23R, which re quires t hat SF AS 123R be a pplied to  all n ew awards whose in ception date fo llows t he 
effective date of January 1, 2006, and all existing awards modified, repurchased or cancelled after January 1, 2006.  
In a ddition, this method requires c ompensation c ost for the porti on of aw ards for which se rvice has not bee n 
rendered (i .e., nonvested portion) and were outstanding as  of Ja nuary 1,  2006.  Est imated compensation cost  for 
awards that were outstanding as of January 1, 2006 is being recognized over the remaining service period using the 
compensation cost estimate included in the SFAS 123 pro forma disclosures at the time the awards were issued.   
 
Delivery Expenses 
 
Omnicare incurred expenses totaling approximately $204 million, $197 million and $190 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, re spectively, to deliver the products sold t o its cus tomers.  Delivery expenses  
are included in the “Selling, general and administrative expenses” line of the Consolidated Statements of Income. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The Company accounts for i ncome taxes using the asset and liability method in accordance with SFAS No. 109, 
“Accounting for Income Taxes,” under w hich deferred i ncome t axes are rec ognized for t he t ax co nsequences of 
temporary differences by  a pplying e nacted st atutory t ax rates t o differences between the t ax bases of a ssets an d 
liabilities and their reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements. 
 
Future tax benefits are recognized to the extent that realization of those benefits is considered to be more likely than 
not, and a valuation allowance is established for deferred tax assets which do not meet this threshold. 
 
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 
 
The accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) adjustments at December 31, 2008 and 2007, net of aggregate 
applicable tax benefits of $2.5 million and $40.2 million, respectively, by component and in the aggregate, follow 
(in thousands): 
 

2008 2007
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments 4,112$         3,888$         
Unrealized gain on fair value of investments 7,340           2,400           
Pension and postemployment benefits (11,288)       (64,286)       
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss adjustments, net 164$            (57,998)$    

December 31,

 

Billings and payments are specified in each
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Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 
 
The pre paration of the C ompany’s cons olidated financial state ments in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires 
management to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and 
stockholders’ equity at the date of t he financial statements, the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 
the re porting periods a nd a mounts re ported i n t he acc ompanying n otes t o c onsolidated fi nancial st atements.  
Significant est imates unde rlying t he a ccompanying c onsolidated fi nancial st atements include t he al lowance for 
doubtful accounts and c ontractual allowa nce reserve; the net carrying value  of i nventories; ac quisition-related 
accounting inc luding goodwill and other i ndefinite-lived intangible assets, and t he related a nnual i mpairment 
assessments; accruals pursuant to  the Company’s restructuring in itiatives; employee benefit p lan assumptions and 
reserves; stock-based compensation; various other operating al lowances and accruals (including employee health, 
property and casualty insurance acc ruals and related assu mptions); fair v alue determinations; and  cu rrent and 
deferred tax assets, liab ilities and provisions.  Actu al results could differ from those estimates d epending upon the 
resolution of certain risks and uncertainties.   
 
Potential risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond the control of Omnicare, include, but are not necessarily 
limited to , such  factors as o verall eco nomic, fin ancial an d bu siness co nditions; d elays an d reductions in 
reimbursement by the government and other payors to Omnicare and/or its customers; the overall financial condition 
of Omnicare’s customers; the effect o f new government regulations, executive orders and/or legislative initiatives, 
including those relating to reimbursement and drug pricing policies and changes in the interpretation and application 
of su ch policies; effo rts b y payors to co ntrol co sts; th e outcome o f litig ation; t he outcome o f aud it, co mpliance, 
administrative o r i nvestigatory rev iews, in cluding governmental/ reg ulatory inq uiries; o ther co ntingent liab ilities; 
loss or  d elay of co ntracts per taining to  the Co mpany’s CRO  Serv ices seg ment f or reg ulatory or  oth er r easons; 
currency fluctuations between the U.S. dollar and other currencies; changes in international economic and political 
conditions; changes in interest rates; changes in the valuation of the Company’s financial instruments, including the 
swap a greement a nd ot her derivative i nstruments; chan ges i n employee be nefit plan assum ptions and re serves; 
changes in ta x laws a nd re gulations; acces s to ca pital and fi nancing; the demand fo r Om nicare’s products a nd 
services; pricing and other competitive factors in the industry; ch anges in insurance claims experience and related 
assumptions; the outcome of the Company’s annual goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets assessm ents; 
variations in costs or expenses; and changes in accounting rules and standards. 
 
Recently Issued Accounting Standards 
 
In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (re vised 2007), “ Business C ombinations” (“ SFAS 141R”).  
Among other changes, SF AS 141R re quires the acqui ring entity in a busine ss c ombination t o recognize all (and 
only) the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the transaction at fair v alue; establishes the acquisition-date fair 
value as th e measu rement obj ective for all assets acqu ired an d liab ilities assu med, in cluding earn-out p rovisions.  
SFAS 141R is generally effective for business combinations occurring in the first annual reporting period beginning 
after Decem ber 15, 2008.  The Company is evaluating the eff ect of this rece ntly issue d standa rd on its fut ure 
consolidated results of operations, financial position and cash flows, and there can be no assurance that the impact of 
this new requirement will not be material upon adoption. 
 
In December 2007, the FASB issue d SFAS No. 160, “N oncontrolling Inte rests in Consolidated Fina ncial 
Statements, an am endment of A RB No. 51” (“SFAS 160”).  Among other items, SFAS 160 requires all en tities to 
report non controlling (m inority) in terests in  su bsidiaries in  th e sam e way as eq uity in  th e co nsolidated fin ancial 
statements.  SFAS 160 is effective fo r the first annual re porting period beginning after December 15, 2008.  The  
Company is evaluating the e ffect of th is recently issued standard on its fu ture consolidated results of operations, 
financial position and cash flows.  As of December 31, 2008, Omnicare’s minority interest obligation is not material 
to the Company’s financial position as a whole. 
 
In December 2007, t he FASB issue d SFAS No. 161, “Disclos ures about Derivative Instrum ents and He dging 
Activities, an amendment of FASB  Statement No. 133” (“SFAS 161”).  Among other items, SFAS 161 requires  
qualitative disclosures about objectives and strategies for using derivatives, quantitative disclosures about fair value 
amounts o f, a nd gai ns a nd l osses on, derivative i nstruments, a nd di sclosures a bout c redit-risk-related c ontingent 
features in derivative agreements.  SF AS 1 61 is e ffective fo r the first annual re porting period be ginning a fter 
November 15, 2008.  The Company does not anticipate the effect of th is standard to be material on its consolidated 
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results o f o perations, fi nancial posi tion a nd cash fl ows based on  its c apital stru cture an d fi nancial in struments 
outstanding at period end. 
 
In May 200 8, th e FASB issu ed FA SB Staff Position (FSP) No . APB 14 -1, “A ccounting fo r Conv ertible Debt 
Instruments That May Be Settled in Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement)” (“FSP APB 14-1”).  
Among other items, FSP APB 14-1 specifies that issuers of convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash 
upon c onversion (including partial cash settle ment) sh ould sepa rately account fo r t he liability and e quity 
components in a manner that will reflect  the entity’s nonconvertible debt borr owing rate when int erest cost is 
recognized i n subsequent p eriods.  FSP APB 14 -1 is ef fective for fi nancial state ments issue d for fiscal years  
beginning a fter Decem ber 15, 2008, and interim  periods  with in those fiscal years.  The Com pany continues to 
evaluate the impact of this new authoritative guidance on Omnicare’s financial position, and currently estimates that 
the 2009 implementation will result in increased noncash interest expense of approximately $28 million during the 
year end ed D ecember 31 , 200 9.  Fur ther, the Co mpany esti mates th at a pproximately $ 378 million of  conv ertible 
debt will be reclassified from debt to equity in accordance with this new authoritative guidance.  Omnicare expects 
that this new requirement will have no impact on its consolidated cash flows. 
  
In J une 2008, the FASB issued FSP Em erging Issues T ask F orce (“EITF”) No. 03-6-1, “ Determining Whether 
Instruments Grante d in Sha re-Based Pa yment Tran sactions Are Particip ating Sec urities” (“FSP -EITF 03-6-1”).   
FSP-EITF 03-6-1 clarifies that unvested share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends 
or d ividend eq uivalents (wh ether p aid or u npaid) are participating secu rities and  are to  b e in cluded in  the 
computation of earnings per share under the two-class method. FSP-EITF 03-6-1 is effective for financial statements 
issued for fiscal years begi nning after December 15, 2008, and  in terim periods within those years. The Company 
does not expe ct FSP-E ITF 03-6-1 to ha ve a material im pact on its cons olidated re sults of operations, fina ncial 
position or cash flows. 
 
In December 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 132(R)-1, “Employers’ Disclosures about Postretirement Benefit 
Plan Assets” (“FSP FAS 132(R)-1”).  Among other items, FSP FAS 132(R)-1 requires increased disclosures about 
plan assets in an employer’s defined benefit pension or other postretirement plans such as how investment allocation 
decisions are made; major categories of plan assets; inputs and valuation techniques used to measure the fair value 
of plan assets; the effect of fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs on changes in plan assets 
for the period; and significant concentrations of risk  within plan assets.  The disclosures about plan assets requ ired 
by FSP FAS 132(R)-1 s hall be provi ded for fiscal years ending after D ecember 15, 2009.  The Company is 
evaluating the impact of this recently issued standard on its disclosures. 
 
Reclassifications 
 
Certain reclassifications of prior-year amounts have been made to conform with the current-year presentation. 
 
Note 2 – Common Stock Repurchase Program 
 
On March 27, 2008, the Company announced that its Board of Directors authorized a program to repurchase, from 
time to t ime, shares o f Om nicare's out standing com mon st ock having a n ag gregate value o f u p t o $100 m illion, 
depending o n m arket con ditions a nd other fact ors.  D uring 2008, t he C ompany repu rchased ap proximately 4. 1 
million shares at a cost of approxim ately $100 million.  Accordingly, the Company has utilized the full am ount of 
share repurchase authority and com pleted the program.  These re purchases were m ade in open market or privately 
negotiated transactions in compliance with Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 10b-18 and other applicable 
legal requirements.  As of December 31, 2008, Omnicare had approximately 118.4 million shares of common stock 
outstanding.   
 
Note 3 – Acquisitions 
 
Since 1989, the Com pany has been involve d in a progra m to acquire providers of pharmaceutical products and 
related pharmacy services to  long-term care facilities  and their residents as well as p atients in  other care settin gs.  
The Company’s strategy has included the acquisition of freestand ing institutional pharmacy businesses as well as  
other assets, gen erally in significant i n size, wh ich h ave b een co mbined with ex isting ph armacy o perations to 
augment their internal growth.  F rom t ime-to-time the Company may acquire other businesses, such as pharmacy 
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consulting com panies, sp ecialty p harmacy co mpanies, medical su pply an d serv ice com panies, h ospice p harmacy 
companies and companies providing distribution and product support services for specialty pharmaceuticals, as well 
as contract research organizations, which complement the Company’s core businesses.   
 
During the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company completed 12, 20 and 17 acquisitions (all 
of which were in the Pharmacy Services segment) of businesses, respectively, none of which were, individually or in 
the ag gregate, significant to th e C ompany.  Acq uisitions of bu sinesses required cash payments o f ap proximately 
$226 million, $151 million and $94 million (including amounts payable pursuant to acquisition agreements relating 
to prior-period acquisitions) in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.  Th e impact of these agg regate acquisitions on 
the Company’s overall goodwill balance has been reflected in the disclosures at the “Goodwill and Other Intangible 
Assets” note.  The Company continues to evaluate the tax effects and other pre-acquisition contingencies relating to 
certain acqu isitions. Om nicare is i n th e process of co mpleting its allo cation of th e pu rchase price fo r certain  
acquisitions, an d acco rdingly, th e goo dwill and  other i dentifiable i ntangible assets balances are preliminary an d 
subject t o ch ange.  Th e net assets and  operating resu lts o f acqu isitions h ave been in cluded in  t he Co mpany’s 
consolidated financial statements from their respective dates of acquisition. 
 
The purchase agreements for acquisitions generally include clauses whereby the seller will or may be paid additional 
consideration at a fut ure date depending on the passage of time and/or whether or not certain future events occur.  
The agreements also typically include provisions containing a number of representations and covenants by the seller, 
and provide that if those representations are found not to have been true or if those covenants are violated, Omnicare 
may offset  a ny pay ments requi red t o be made at  a future dat e a gainst any  cl aims it may have under i ndemnity 
provisions in the related agreement.  Amounts contingently payable through 2009, primarily representing payments 
originating from earnout provisions, to tal approximately $54 million as of December 31, 2008 a nd, if paid, will be  
recorded as add itional purchase price, servin g t o in crease go odwill in  t he period in  which th e contin gencies are 
resolved a nd pay ment i s made.  T he am ount o f cash paid f or acq uisitions o f b usinesses i n t he C onsolidated 
Statements of Cash Flows re presents acquisition-related payments made in each of the years of ac quisition, as well 
as acquisition-related payments made during each of the years pursuant to  acquisition transactions entered into in 
prior-years.   
 
Note 4 – Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
A summary of cash and cash equivalents follows (in thousands): 
 

2008 2007

Cash 72,932$       109,630$     
Money market funds 11,158         12,134         
U.S. government-backed repurchase agreements 131,000       152,684       

215,090$     274,448$     

December 31,

 
Repurchase agreements represent investments in U.S. government-backed treasury issues at December 31, 2008 and 
2007, under agreements to resell th e securities to the counterparty.  The term of the  repurchase agreements usually 
span overnight, but in no  case is lon ger than 30 days.  The Co mpany has a co llateralized interest in th e underlying 
securities of repurchase agreements, which are segregated in the accounts of the counterparty. 
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Note 5 – Properties and Equipment 
 
A summary of properties and equipment follows (in thousands): 
 

2008 2007
Land 3,646$          3,646$          
Buildings and building improvements 16,150          13,424          
Computer equipment and software 261,934        250,714        
Machinery and equipment 165,962        140,305        
Furniture, fixtures and leasehold improvements 118,220        102,782        

565,912        510,871        
Accumulated depreciation (346,260)      (311,422)      

219,652$     199,449$      

December 31,

 
Note 6 – Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets 
 
Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, by business segment, 
are as follows (in thousands): 
 

Pharmacy 
Services

CRO 
Services Total

Balance as of January 1, 2007  $      4,134,235  $     90,776 4,225,011$      
Goodwill acquired in the year
   ended December 31, 2007 102,238           -                 102,238           
Other 13,641              1,279         14,920             
Balance as of December 31, 2007 4,250,114        92,055       4,342,169        
Goodwill acquired in the year
   ended December 31, 2008 117,494           -                 117,494           
Other (204,715)           (2,042)        (206,757)          
Balance as of December 31, 2008 4,162,893$     90,013$    4,252,906$      

 
The “Oth er” captions ab ove in clude t he settle ment o f acquisition matters relatin g to prior-year acq uisitions, 
(including, where applicable, paym ents purs uant to acquisition agreements s uch as deferred payments, 
indemnification pay ments and payments originating fr om earnout  p rovisions, as wel l as adjust ments for t he 
finalization of pu rchase price allocations, including identifiable intangible asset v aluations).  “Other” also includes 
the effect of adjustments due to foreign currency translations, which relate primarily to the CRO Services segment, 
as well as one pharmacy located in Cana da which is includ ed in the Pha rmacy Services segment.  During the year 
ended 2008, the Company recorded a decrease in goodwill and a corresponding decrease in deferred tax liabilities in 
the amount of approximately $186 million to adjust previously recorded book and tax basis differences in the stock 
of subsidiaries acquired in the acquisition of NeighborCare, Inc. (“NeighborCare”).  The Company does not believe 
this adjustment is material to its current or prior-year Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
The Company performed its annual goodwill impairment assessment for the yea rs ended December 31, 2008 and 
2007 and concluded that goodwill had not been impaired. 
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The table below presents the Company’s other identifiable intangible assets at December 31, 2008 and 2007, all of 
which are subject to amortization, except trademark and trade names as described below (in thousands): 
 

Gross Carrying 
Amount

Accumulated 
Amortization

Net Carrying 
Amount

Customer relationship assets 381,026$            (123,397)$          257,629$            
Trademark and trade names 37,480                -                         37,480                
Non-compete agreements 49,343                (21,763)              27,580                
Technology assets 17,920                (6,942)                10,978                
Other 405                     (303)                   102                     
Total 486,174$           (152,405)$         333,769$            

Gross Carrying 
Amount

Accumulated 
Amortization

Net Carrying 
Amount

Customer relationship assets 350,753$            (90,369)$            260,384$            
Trademark and trade names 29,580                -                         29,580                
Non-compete agreements 41,041                (19,331)              21,710                
Technology assets 16,900                (5,054)                11,846                
Other 405                     (288)                   117                     
Total 438,679$           (115,042)$         323,637$            

December 31, 2008

December 31, 2007

 
Pretax am ortization ex pense related t o i dentifiable i ntangible asset s was  $3 7.4 m illion, $ 35.1 m illion an d $ 34.9 
million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.  Om nicare’s tradem ark and trade  
names constitute identifiable intangible assets with indefinite useful lives based upon their expected useful lives and 
the anticipated effects of ob solescence, demand, competition and other factors per the requirements of SFAS 142.  
Accordingly, these trademarks and trade names are not am ortized, but are reviewed annually for impairment.  Th e 
Company performed its annual assessm ent for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, a nd concluded that 
these assets had not been impaired. 
 
Estimated annual pretax amortization expense for intangible assets subject to amortization at December 31, 2008 for 
the next five fiscal years is as follows (in thousands): 
 

Year ended Amortization
December 31,     Expense

2009 38,998$          
2010 38,505            
2011 37,349            
2012 35,284            
2013 32,590             

 
Note 7 – Fair Value 
 
On January 1 , 2008, the Company part ially adopted the provisions of SFAS No.157, “Fai r Value Measurements” 
(“SFAS 157”).  SFA S 157 defines a h ierarchy which prioritizes the inputs in fair v alue measurements.  “Level 1” 
measurements are measurements using quoted prices in  active markets for id entical assets o r liabilities.  “Lev el 2” 
measurements use significant other observable inputs.  “Level 3” measurements are measurements using significant 
unobservable inputs which require a company to develop its own assumptions.  In recording the fair value of assets 
and liab ilities, co mpanies must u se th e mo st reliab le measu rement availab le.  Th e i mpact to  th e Co mpany’s 
consolidated resu lts of operations, fin ancial po sition and cash flows upon p artial adop tion of SFAS 15 7 was no t 
material.  Th e Co mpany elected  to  partially d efer ado ption of SFAS 157 related  to goodwill and indefinite-lived 
intangible assets, as well as other non-financial assets, in accordance with FASB Staff Position 157-2. 
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Based on  

 Quoted Prices Other  
Fair Value  in Active Observable Unobservable

at December 31, Markets Inputs Inputs
2008 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets and (Liabilities) Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis:(1)

Rabbi trust assets (2) 134,587$            134,587$            -$                   -$                   

Interest rate swap agreement - fair value hedge (3) 6,013                  -                     6,013                  -                     
Derivatives (4) -                     -                     -                     -                     

     Total 140,600$           134,587$           6,013$                -$                  

 
(1) For cash a nd cash e quivalents, rest ricted c ash, acc ounts receiva ble, unbilled receivables, and accounts 
payable, the net carrying value of these items approximates their fair value at period end.  Further, at period end, the 
fair value of Omnicare’s variable rate d ebt facilities approximates the carrying value, as th e effective interest rates 
fluctuate with changes in market rates.  The fair value of the Company’s fixed-rate debt facilities is based on quoted 
market prices and, while no t recorded on the Consolidated Ba lance Sheets and thus excluded from the fair value 
table above, are included in the table below. 
(2) The fair value of restricted funds held in trust (rabb i trust assets) for settlement of the Company’s pension 
obligations is based on quoted market prices of the investments held by the trustee. 
(3) In connection with its offering of $250 million of 6.125% senior subordinated notes due 2013 (the “6.125% 
Senior Notes”), the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement (the “Swap Agreement”) with respect to 
all $250 million of  the aggregate pri ncipal amount of t he 6.1 25% Seni or N otes.  Th e Swap A greement hedges  
against exposure to long-term U.S. dollar interest rates, and is designated and accounted for as a fai r value hedge.  
The Company is accounting for the Swap Agreement in accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative 
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended, so changes in the fair value of the Swap Agreement are offset by 
changes in the recorded carrying value of the related 6.125% Senior Notes.  The fair value of the Swap Agreement is 
recorded in the “Other noncurrent assets” or “Other noncurrent liabilities” line of the Consolidated Balance Sheets, 
as applicable, and as an adjustment to the book carrying value of the related 6.125% Senior Notes.  The fair value of 
over-the-counter derivative i nstruments, such as t he Company’s i nterest rat e swap , can be m odeled for valuation 
using a va riety of t echniques.  The C ompany’s interest rate swap i s valued using market inputs with mid-market 
pricing as a practical expedient for t he bid/ask spread as allowed by SFAS 157.  As such, the s wap is categorized 
within Level 2 of the hierarchy. 
(4) Embedded in the Company’s 4.00% Trust Preferred Income Equity Redeemable Securities d ue 2033 (the 
“Old Tru st PIERS”), Series B 4 .00% Trust Preferred  In come Eq uity R edeemable Secu rities du e 203 3 (the “New 
Trust PIERS”), and the 3.25% convertible senior debentures due 2035 ( the “3.25% Convertible Debentures”) a re 
two derivative instruments, specifically, a contingent interest provision and a contingent conversion parity provision.  
In addition, the 3 .25% Convertib le Debentures include an  in terest reset  provision.  Th e embedded derivatives are 
periodically va lued, and at  period end, th e values of th e derivatives emb edded in th e Old Tru st PIERS, th e New 
Trust PIERS and the 3.25% Convertible Debentures were not material.  However, the values are subject to change, 
based on market conditions, which could affect the Company’s consolidated future results of operations, financial 
position or cash flows and fair value disclosures. 
 
The fair v alue of the Company’s fixed-rate debt facilities  is b ased on quoted market prices and is su mmarized as  
follows (in thousands): 

Financial Instrument: Book Value Market Value Book Value Market Value

6.125% senior subordinated notes, due 2013, gross 250,000$       208,800$       250,000$       230,000$       
6.75% senior subordinated notes, due 2013 225,000         189,000         225,000         212,600         
6.875% senior subordinated notes, due 2015 525,000         446,000         525,000         486,900         
4.00% junior subordinated convertible 
     debentures, due 2033 345,000         250,800         345,000         246,700         
3.25% convertible senior debentures, due 2035 977,500         565,100         977,500         703,800         

December 31,
2008

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

2007
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Note 8 – Leasing Arrangements 
 
The Company has operating leases that cover v arious operating and administrative facilities an d certain  operating 
equipment.  In most cases, the Co mpany expects that these leases will b e renewed, or replaced by other operating 
leases, in t he normal course  of busine ss.  There are no significant contingent rentals in the Company’s operating 
leases.  Omnicare, Inc. routinely guarantees many of the lease obligations of its subsidiaries in the normal course of 
business. 
 
The following is a schedule of fu ture minimum rental payments required under operating leases that have initial or 
remaining noncancelable terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 2008 (in thousands): 
 

Year ended
December 31,

2009 44,582$        
2010 32,674          
2011 21,196          
2012 17,509          
2013 14,585          

      Later years 30,984          
      Total  minimum
        payments required 161,530$     

 
 
The Company has a pproximately $5 m illion in a ggregate minimum rentals scheduled to be received in the future 
under noncancelable subleases as of December 31, 2008, which would serve to  partially reduce the total minimum 
payments required as presented in the table above. 
 
Total rent e xpense under operating leases for the year s ende d December 31, 2008, 2 007 and 2006 we re $79.5 
million, $74.7 million and $70.8 million, respectively. 
 
Note 9 – Debt 
 
A summary of debt follows (in thousands): 
 

December 31,
2008 2007

Revolving loans, due 2010 -$                 -$                 
Term loan notes payable, due 2010 -                   50,602             
Senior term A loan, due 2010 400,000           450,000           
6.125% senior subordinated notes, due 2013 250,000           250,000           
6.75% senior subordinated notes, due 2013 225,000           225,000           
6.875% senior subordinated notes, due 2015 525,000           525,000           
4.00% junior subordinated convertible debentures, due 2033 345,000           345,000           
3.25% convertible senior debentures, due 2035 977,500           977,500           
Capitalized lease and other debt obligations 4,913               8,831               
Subtotal 2,727,413        2,831,933        
Add (subtract) interest rate swap agreement 6,013               (7,990)              
(Subtract) current portion of debt (2,263)              (3,192)              
Total long-term debt, net 2,731,163$      2,820,751$      
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The following is a schedule of require d debt payments due during each of the ne xt five years and t hereafter, as of 
December 31, 2008 (in thousands): 
 

Year ended 
December 31,

2009 2,263$             
2010 401,431           
2011 694                  
2012 125                  
2013 475,066           
Later years 1,847,834        
Total debt payments 2,727,413$      

 
Total cash in terest payments made for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 20 06 were $135.1 million, 
$156.0 m illion and $162.4 million.  As  of Decem ber 31, 2008, the Company ha d approxim ately $26 m illion 
outstanding relating to standby letters of credit, substantially all of which are subject to automatic annual renewals. 
 
2005 Refinancing Transactions  
As part of a major refinancing completed during the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company completed its offering of 
$225 million aggregate principal amount of 6.75% senior subordinated notes due 2013 (the “6.75% Senior Notes”), 
$525 m illion aggregate p rincipal am ount of 6.875% se nior s ubordinated n otes due 2 015 (the “ 6.875% Se nior 
Notes”), $977.5 m illion aggregate pri ncipal amount of 3.25% convertibl e senior debentures due 2035 (the “3.25%  
Convertible D ebentures”), and 1 2,825,000 shares o f common stock, $1 par val ue, at  $59.72 per share fo r gr oss 
proceeds of a pproximately $7 66 m illion (the “ 2005 C ommon St ock O ffering”) (e xcluding gross p roceeds o f 
approximately $51 million received in January 2006 from the underwriters of the common stock offering exercising 
their option in part to purchase an additional 850,000 shares of common stock at $59.72 per share).   
 
The net proceeds from the refinancing were primarily ut ilized to pay off an interim financing provided by a $1.9 
billion 364-day loan facility, d iscussed below, and the purchase of approximately $366 million of the Company’s 
8.125% sen ior su bordinated notes due 2011  ( the “8.125% Sen ior Notes”) pur suant to  a tend er offer and  co nsent 
solicitation.   
 
See t he a dditional discussion i ncluded below for more d etails regar ding t he various senior n otes a nd c onvertible 
debentures. 
 
During t he third  quarter of 20 05, th e C ompany en tered in to a $3.4 billion Cred it Ag reement (th e “Cred it 
Agreement”) co nsisting of the aforem entioned $1 .9 b illion 364-day lo an facility, with orig inal maturity d ates 
spanning fro m Ju ly 2 6, 2006 th rough August 1 7, 2006 ( the “36 4-Day Lo ans”), an  $8 00 million r evolving cr edit 
facility, maturing on Ju ly 28 , 201 0 (the “Revolving Lo ans”), and  a $ 700 m illion sen ior term  A lo an facility,  
maturing on Ju ly 28 , 201 0 (th e “Ter m Lo ans”).  In terest o n the outstanding b alances o f the 36 4-Day Loans was 
payable, at the Company’s option, (i) at a Eurodollar Base Rate (as d efined in the Credit Agreement) plus a margin 
of 0.75% or (ii) at an Alternate Base Rate (as defined in the Credit Agreement).  The 364-Day Loans were drawn at 
various intervals during the third quarter of 2005, with each separate borrowing having a sl ightly different interest 
rate based on the timing of the borrowing.  The 364-Day Loans were repaid in full in late 2005 with proceeds from 
the 2005 Common Stock Offering, the 6.75% Senior Notes, the 6.875% Senior Notes, and the 3.25% Convertible 
Debentures, as further described below.  Interest on the outstanding balances of the Revolving Loans and the Term 
Loans is payable, at the Com pany’s option, (i) at a Eu rodollar Base Rate plus a margin based on the Company’s 
senior unsecured long-term debt securities rating and the Company’s Capitalization Ratio (as d efined in the Credit 
Agreement), that can range from 0.50% to 1.75% or (ii) at an Alternate Base Rate (defined as, for any day, a rate of 
interest per annum equal to the higher of (a) the Prime Rate for such day and (b) the sum of Federal Funds Effective 
Rate (as defined in the Credit Agreement) for such day plus 0.50% per annum).  The interest rate on the Revolving 
Loans a nd the  Term  Loa ns was 3.6% at December 31, 20 08.  The C redit Agreement requires the  Com pany t o 
comply with certain financial covenants, including a minimum consolidated net worth and a minimum fixed charges 
coverage ratio, and customary affirmative and negative covenants.   
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The Company primarily used t he net  proceeds from the Credit Agreement to  repay outstanding borrowings, as of 
July 28, 2005, under a fo rmer 2003 credit facility totaling $123.1 million for a term A loan and $181 million for 
revolving credit facility lo ans (the “2 003 Credit Facilities”),  and  for certain  acquisitions, primarily NeighborCare.  
As of Decem ber 31, 2008, there was $400 million outstanding under the Term Loans, and no amount was dra wn 
under the Revolving Loans. 
 
In connection with the execution of the Credit Agreement, the Company has defe rred debt issuance costs of $ 11.7 
million.  The Company amortized to expense approximately $3 million of the $11.7 million deferred debt issuance 
costs during each of the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006.  
 
In add ition to the new Cred it Agreement, the Company had additional borrowings in 2005 of approximately $43 
million, primarily consisting o f a note payable carrying  a five-year term, wh ich was paid in  full during the three 
months ended December 31, 2008. 
 
8.125% Senior Subordinated Notes 
During 2001, th e Company co mpleted th e i ssuance, at par v alue, of $375  million of  8.125% sen ior su bordinated 
notes due 2011.  In connection with the issuance of the 8.125% Senior Notes, the Company deferred $11.1 million 
in debt issuance costs, of which approximately $0.03 million and $1.1 million was amortized to expense during the 
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.   
 
On December 5, 2005, Omnicare commenced a tender offer (the “Tender Offer”) for cash to purchase any and all of 
the $375 million outstanding principal amount of its 8.125% Senior Notes.  In connection with the Tender Offer, the 
Company solicited consents to effect certain proposed amendments to the indenture governing the 8.125% Senior 
Notes.  On De cember 16, 2005 (the “Consent Payment Deadline”), tenders and consents had been received with 
respect to $366.2 million aggregate principal amount of the 8.125% Senior Notes (approximately 98% of the total 
outstanding principal am ount).  T he total c onsideration, excluding accrued a nd unpaid interest, for each $1,000  
principal amount of 8. 125% Senior Not es validly tendered pri or to December 16, 2 005 was $1 ,048.91, w hich 
included a $20 consent payment.  As of December 31, 2005, approximately $8.8 million of the 8.125% Senior Notes 
remained outst anding.  Subs equent to the Consent Payment Dea dline and December 31, 2005, and prior to t he 
Tender Offer expiration at midnight, New York City time, on January 3, 2006, an additional $0.6 million aggregate 
principal am ount was validly t endered.  T he t otal co nsideration, excl uding acc rued a nd u npaid i nterest, fo r eac h 
$1,000 principal amount of 8.125% Senior Notes validly tendered subsequent to the Consent Payment Deadline and 
prior to  exp iration w as $1 ,028.91, which d id no t in clude th e $ 20 consen t p ayment.  D uring O ctober 2006 , th e 
Company purchased all of t he remaining $8.2 million of the 8.125% Senior Notes.  In connection with the initial 
2005 purchase of t he 8.125% Seni or Notes, t he C ompany i ncurred ea rly redem ption fees, resulting i n a  $ 17.9 
million p retax ch arge ($ 11.2 million aftertax ) and  th e wri te-off of d ebt issu ance co sts resu lting in  a $ 5.8 million 
pretax charge ($3.7 million aftertax), both of which were recorded in interest expense for the year ended December 
31, 2005.  Additionally, the Company incurred approximately $1.1 m illion ($0.7 million aftertax) of professional 
fees ass ociated with the  pur chase o f t he 8. 125% Se nior Notes, which were recorded i n sel ling, ge neral a nd 
administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005. 
 
6.125% Senior Subordinated Notes 
The C ompany com pleted, d uring t he second quarter of 20 03, i ts of fering o f $ 250 million of 6.125% se nior 
subordinated notes due 2013.  In con nection with the issuance of t he 6.125% Senior Notes, the Company deferred 
$6.6 million in debt issuance costs, of which approximately $0.7 million was amortized to expense in each of the 
three yea rs e nded Decem ber 31, 2008, 2007 a nd 2006, respectively.  The 6.125% Senior Notes c ontain certai n 
affirmative and negative covenants and events of default customary for such instruments.   
 
In c onnection wi th i ts o ffering of t he 6 .125% Se nior N otes, th e C ompany en tered in to an  in terest rate swap 
agreement (the “Swap Agreement”) with respect to all $250 million of the aggregate principal amount of the 6.125% 
Senior Notes.  Under the Swap Agreement, which hedges against exposure to long-term U.S. do llar interest rates, 
the Company receives a fixed rate of 6.125% and pays a floating rate based on LIBOR with an interest period of six 
months, plus a  spread of 2.27%.  T he floating rate i s determined semi-annually, in ar rears, two London Banking 
Days prior to t he first of each Decem ber and J une.  The Company records inte rest expense on the 6.125% Seni or 
Notes at the floating rate.  The estimated LIBOR-based floating rate (including the 2.27% spread) was 4.07% as of 
December 31, 2008.  The Swap Agreement, which matches the terms of the 6.125% Senior Notes, is designated and 
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accounted for as a fair value hedge.  The Company is accounting for the Swap Agreement in accordance with SFAS 
No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended, so changes in the fair value 
of the Swap Agreem ent are of fset by changes in the reco rded carrying value of th e related 6 .125% Senior Notes.  
The fair value of the Swap Agreement of approximately $6 million at December 31, 2008, is recorded in the “Other 
noncurrent assets” or “Other noncurrent liabilities” line of the Consolidated Balance Sheets, as applicable, and as an 
adjustment to the book carrying value of the related 6.125% Senior Notes. 
 
6.75% Senior Subordinated Notes 
On December 15, 2005, Om nicare co mpleted its offeri ng of $225 m illion aggre gate pr incipal amount of 6.75% 
senior su bordinated notes due 20 13.  I n c onnection with the i ssuance o f t he 6.75% Senior N otes, t he C ompany 
deferred $4.6 million in debt issuance costs, of which approximately $0.6 million was amortized to expense in each 
of t he years  e nded December 31, 2008,  2007 and 2006, respectively.  The 6.75% Senior Notes c ontain ce rtain 
affirmative and negative covenants and events of default customary for such instruments. 
 
6.875% Senior Subordinated Notes 
On December 15, 2005, Om nicare completed its offe ring of $525 m illion aggregate principal amount of 6.875% 
senior subordinated notes due 2015.  In  con nection with the issu ance of the 6.875 % Senior No tes, the Co mpany 
deferred $10.7 million in debt issuance costs, of which approximately $1 million was amortized to expense in each 
of t he years e nded December 31, 2008, 2007 a nd 2006, respectively.  The 6.875% Senior Notes c ontain certai n 
affirmative and negative covenants and events of default customary for such instruments. 
 
4.00% Junior Subordinated Convertible Debentures: 
 
During th e first q uarter of 2005, th e Com pany co mpleted its o ffer t o ex change up  to  $345 m illion aggreg ate 
liquidation amo unt of 4.00% Tru st Preferred  In come E quity Red eemable Secu rities due 203 3 (th e “Old  Trust 
PIERS”) o f O mnicare C apital Trust  I (the “Ol d T rust”), fo r an e qual amount of Se ries B  4.0 0% T rust P referred 
Income Equity Redeemable Securities (t he “New Tru st PIERS”) of  Omnicare Capital Trust II (t he “New Tru st”).  
The New Trust PIERS h ave substantially similar terms to the Old Trust PIERS, ex cept that the New Trust PIERS 
have a n et sh are settle ment f eature.  In  con nection with  the ex change o ffer, th e co mposition of th e Co mpany’s 
4.00% junior subordinated convertible debentures underlying the trust PIERS was impacted.  Additional information 
regarding the 4.00% junior subordinated convertible debentures underlying the Old Trust PIERS and the New Trust 
PIERS is summarized below. 
 
Original 4.00% Junior Subordinated Convertible Debentures 
 
In co nnection with th e offeri ng of t he Old Tru st PIERS in th e second  quarter of 2003, th e C ompany issu ed a  
corresponding amount of 4.00% junior subordinated convertible debentures (the “Old 4.00% Debentures”) due 2033 
to the Old Trust.  The Old Trust is a 100%-owned finance subsidiary of the Company.  The Company has fully and 
unconditionally guaranteed the securities of the Old Trust.  The Old Trust PIERS offer fixed cash distributions at a 
rate of 4.00% per annum payable quarterly, and a fixed conversion price of $40.82 under a c ontingent conversion 
feature whereby the holders may convert their Old Trust PIERS if the closing sales price of Company common stock 
for a predetermined period, beginning with the quarter ending September 30, 2003, is more than 130% of the then-
applicable conversion price or, during a predetermined period, if the daily average of the trading prices for the Old 
Trust PIERS is less th an 105% of the average of the conversion values for the Old Trust PIERS through 2028 (98% 
for an y p eriod th ereafter t hrough m aturity).  Th e Ol d Tru st PIER S also  will pay co ntingent d istributions, 
commencing with the quarterly distribution period beginning June 15, 2009, if the average trading prices of the Old 
Trust PI ERS for a predetermined period e quals 115% o r more of  t he stated l iquidation amount o f t he Old Tr ust 
PIERS.  In thi s circum stance, the ho lder of the conve rtible debenture will receive 0.125 percent of the avera ge 
trading price during the predetermined period.  Em bedded in the Old Trust PIERS are two derivative instruments, 
specifically, a contingent interest provision and a contingent conversion parity provision.  The embedded derivatives 
are periodically valued, and at period end, the values of both derivatives embedded in the Old Trust PIERS were not 
material.  However, the values are subject to change, based on market conditions, which could affect the Company’s 
future results of operations, financial position or cash flows.  Omnicare irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees, 
on a s ubordinated basis, certain payments to be made by  the Old Trust in connection with the Old Trust PIERS.  
Subsequent t o t he fi rst q uarter 2 005 e xchange o ffer discussed i n f urther detail at  t he Se ries B  4.00% J unior 
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Subordinated Convertible Debentures caption below, the Company has $11,233,050 aggregate liquidation amount of 
the Old Trust PIERS and underlying Old 4.00% Debentures remaining outstanding at period end. 
 
Series B 4.00% Junior Subordinated Convertible Debentures 
 
On March 8, 2005, the Company completed the exchange of $333,766,950 aggregate liquidation amount of the Old 
Trust PIERS (representing 96.7% of the total liquidation amount of the Old Trust PIERS outstanding) for an equal 
amount of the New Trust PIERS, plus an exchange fee of $0.125 per $50 stated l iquidation amount of  Old Trust 
PIERS.  Eac h New Trust PIERS represents an undivided beneficial interest in the assets of t he New Trust, which 
assets consist solely of a c orresponding amount of Series B 4.00% junior subordinated convertible debentures (the 
“New 4.00% Debentures”) issued by the Company with a stated maturity of June 15, 2033.  The Company has fully 
and unconditionally g uaranteed th e secu rities o f th e New Tr ust.  Sub sequent to  th e co mpletion o f t he ex change 
offering and at period end, the Company has $333,766,950 of New 4.00% Debentures outstanding. 
 
The terms of the New Trust PIERS are substan tially identical to the terms of the Old Trust PIERS, except that the 
New Tru st PIERS ar e conver tible in to cash  and , if applicab le, sh ares of  Co mpany common sto ck, wh ereas th e 
outstanding Old Trust PIERS are convertible only into Company common stock (except for cash in lieu of fractional 
shares). 
 
The purpose of the exchange offer was to change the conversion settlement provisions of the Old Trust PIERS.  By 
committing t o pay  u p t o t he st ated l iquidation am ount of t he Ne w T rust P IERS t o be c onverted i n cas h u pon 
conversion, the Company is able to account for the New Trust PIERS under the treasury stock method. 
 
As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the aforementioned contingent threshold had not been met and, accordingly, the 
Old 4.00% Debentures and the New 4.00% Debentures have been classified as long-term debt on the December 31, 
2008 and 2007 Consolidated Balance Sheets. 
 
In connection with the i ssuance of the Old 4.00% Debentures and the New 4.00% Debentures, the Company has 
deferred $11.1 million in debt issuance costs, of which approximately $0.4 million was amortized to expense in each 
of the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006.   
 
3.25% Convertible Senior Debentures 
On December 15, 2005, Om nicare completed its offering of $977.5 million aggregate principal am ount of 3.25% 
convertible senior debentures due 2035, including the exercise in full by the underwriters of their option to purchase 
additional debentures.  The 3.25% Convertible Debentures have an initial conversion price of approximately $79.73 
per s hare under a cont ingent con version feat ure w hereby t he hol ders m ay conve rt t heir 3. 25% C onvertible 
Debentures, prior to December 15, 2033, on any date during any fiscal quarter beginning after March 31, 2006 (and 
only during such fiscal quarter) if the closing sales price of the Company’s common stock was more than 130% of 
the then current conversion price for at least 20 trading days in the period of the 30 consecutive trading days ending 
on the last t rading day of the previous fiscal quarter or during any five consecutive trading days period if, during 
each of the previous five consecutive tr ading days, the trading price of the co nvertible debentures for each day was 
less than 98 percent of the then current conversion price. The 3.25% Convertible Debentures bear interest at a rate of 
3.25% per year, subject to an upwa rd adjustment on and after December 15, 2015 in certain circumstances, up to a 
rate not to exceed 1.99 times the original 3.25 percent interest rate per year.  The 3.25% Convertible Debentures also 
will pay contingent inte rest in cash, beginning with the six-month interest period commencing December 15, 2015, 
during any six-month period in which the t rading price of the 3.25% Convertible Debentures for each of the five 
trading days e nding o n t he second t rading day  i mmediately prece ding the fi rst day of t he a pplicable si x-month 
interest period equals or exceeds 120% of the principal amount of the 3.25% Convertible Debentures.  Embedded in 
the 3.25% Convertible De bentures are t hree derivative instruments, specifically, a cont ingent interest provision, an 
interest reset provision and a co ntingent co nversion pa rity p rovision.  Th e em bedded de rivatives are valued 
periodically, and at period end, the values of the derivatives embedded in the 3.25% Convertible Debentures were 
not m aterial.  Howev er, t he v alues are sub ject to  ch ange, b ased on  mark et co nditions, which could  affect the 
Company’s fu ture results o f o perations, financial position or cash flows .  In connectio n with  th e issu ance of th e 
3.25% Convertible Debentures, the Company has deferred approximately $26.9 million in debt i ssuance costs, of 
which app roximately $ 2.7 millio n was am ortized to  expen se fo r the years end ed Dece mber 31 , 2008, 20 07 an d 
2006. 
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Note 10 – Public Offering of Common Stock  
 
During the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company completed the offering of 12,825,000 shares of i ts common stock 
(excluding th e u nderwriters’ o ption to  pu rchase add itional sh ares), $1 p ar v alue, at $ 59.72 per sh are.  Gro ss 
proceeds, before underwriting discount, commission and expenses, were ap proximately $766 million.  On January 
12, 2006 , underwriters of t he co mmon stock  offering exer cised t heir option, in  part, to  purch ase an  ad ditional 
850,000 shares of com mon stock at $59.72 per share, for gross cas h proceeds of appr oximately $51 million.  The  
sale of these additional shares closed on January 17, 2006.   
 
Note 11 – Stock-Based Compensation 
 
At December 31, 2008, the Company had four stock-based employee compensation plans under which incentive 
awards were outstanding, which are described more fully below.   
 
Omnicare b elieves t hat th e incentive awards issu ed under  th ese p lans serv e to b etter align  th e in terests of its 
employees with those of its stockholders.   
 
Stock-Based Compensation Plans 
 
During 2004, stockholders of the Company approved the 2004 Stock and Incentive Plan, under which the Company 
is authorized to grant equity-based and other incentive compensation to employees, officers, directors, consultants 
and a dvisors of the Com pany in an am ount aggre gating up t o 10.0 m illion share s of Com pany com mon stock.  
Beginning May 18, 2004, stock-based incentive awards are made only from the 2004 Stock and Incentive Plan.   
 
During 1998, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the 1998 Long-Term Employee Incentive Plan (the “1998 
Plan”), under which t he C ompany was a uthorized t o grant st ock-based i ncentives t o a b road base of em ployees 
(excluding executive office rs and directors of the Company) in a n amount initially aggre gating up t o 1.0 m illion 
shares of Company common stock for non-qualified options, stock awards and stock appreciation rights.  In March 
2000 and  November 200 2, th e Co mpany’s Bo ard of Directors am ended the 1998 Pl an to i ncrease the sha res 
available for granting to 3.5 million and 6.3 million, respectively.   
 
During 1995, the Company’s Board of Directors and stockholders approved the 1995 Premium-Priced Stock Option 
Plan, providing options to purchase 2.5 million shares of Company common stock available for grant at an exercise 
price of 125% of the stock’s fair market value at the date of grant. 
 
Under the 1992 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan, the Company granted stock awards and stock options at not less 
than fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. 
 
The Company also had a Di rector Stock Plan, which allowed for stock options and stock awards to be granted to 
certain non-employee di rectors.  As o f May 18 , 2004, this plan was t erminated.  C onsequentially, awards are  no 
longer made from this plan. 
 
Under these plans, stock options vest and become exercisable at varying points in time, ranging up to four years in 
length, and have terms that generally span ten years from the grant date.  St ock option awards are granted with an 
exercise price at least equal to the fair market value of Company stock upon grant.  Omnicare’s normal practice is to 
issue new shares upon stock option exercise.  Certain stock option and s hare awards provide for accelerated vesting 
if there is a change in control, as defined in the plans. 
 
Employee Stock Purchase Plan 
 
In Nov ember 19 99, th e C ompany’s B oard of  Directors adop ted th e Omnicare StockPlus Prog ram, a non -
compensatory em ployee st ock purchase plan (t he “ESPP”).  Under t he ESPP, employees and n on-employee 
directors of the Company who elect to participate may contribute up to 6% of eligible compensation (or an amount 
not to exceed $20,000 for non-employee directors) to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock.  F or each 
share of stock purchased, the participant also receives two options  to purchase additional shares of the Com pany’s 
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stock.  The stock options are subject to a four-year vesting period and are generally subject to forfeiture in the event 
the related shares purchased are not held by the participant for a minimum of two years.  The st ock options have a 
ten-year life from the date of issua nce.  A mounts contri buted to t he E SPP a re used by the plan a dministrator to 
purchase the Company’s stock on the open market or for shares issued by Omnicare.   
 
Stock Awards 
 
Non-vested st ock a wards a re gra nted t o key em ployees at  t he di scretion o f t he Compensation and Incentive 
Committee of the Board of Directors.  These awards are restricted as to the transfer of ownership and generally vest 
over the requisite service periods, typically a seven-year period (with a greater proportion vesting in the latter years), 
or three to ten-year pe riods (vesting on a straight-line basis).  Unrestricted stock awards are granted annually to all 
members of the Board of Directors, and non-employee directors also receive non-vested stock awards that generally 
vest on the third anniversary of the date of grant.  The fair value of a stock award is equal to the fair market value of 
a share of Company stock on the grant date. 
 
Stock-Based Compensation 
 
As discussed in the “Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” note of the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements, effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 123R, 
which requires the Company to record compensation costs relating to share- based payment transactions, including 
stock options, in its consolidated financial statements, based on estimated fair values.  The Company currently uses 
the Black -Scholes op tions pricing model t o determine th e fair value of sto ck op tions on  th e grant date, which is 
affected by Omnicare’s stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of complex and subjective variables, 
as further discussed below.  These variables include Omnicare’s expected stock price volatility over the expected 
term of the awards, act ual and projected employee exer cise beha viors, the risk -free i nterest rate a nd the st ock’s 
dividend yield. 
 
The expected term of st ock options granted represents the period of time that the stock options are expected to be 
outstanding and is estimated based primarily on historical stock option exercise experience.  The expected volatility 
is based primarily on the historical volatility of the Company’s stock over a period generally commensurate with the 
expected term of the stock options.  The risk-free interest rate used in the option valuation model is based on United 
States Treasury Strip (“stripped c oupon interest”) issues with remaining terms similar to  the expected term of the 
stock options.  The expected dividend yield is based on the current Omnicare stock yield.  The Company is required 
to estimate forfeitures at the time of the grant and revise those estimates in subsequent periods as necessary to reflect 
any cha nges i n act ual forfeiture e xperience.  Om nicare uses historical dat a t o est imate pre -vesting st ock option 
forfeitures and records stock-based compensation expense only for those awards that are expected to vest.  All stock 
option a wards are am ortized on a straight-line b asis over th e requisite service periods of th e awards, wh ich are 
generally the vesting period. 
 
The assumptions used to value stock options granted during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 are 
as follows: 
 

2008 2007 2006
Expected volatility 35% 30% 30%
Risk-free interest rate 2.2% 3.5% 4.6%
Expected dividend yield 0.4% 0.2% 0.2%
Expected term of options (in years)            4.7            4.7            4.6
Weighted average fair value per option $         7.56 $       10.93 $       13.25  

 
Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company recognized the estimated compensation cost of restricted stock 
awards over the vesting term  in accord ance with the vesting sc hedule.  Unrestricted stock awards were expense d 
during the per iod gra nted.  The estimated com pensation cost was based on the fair market value of Om nicare’s 
common stock on the date of the grant.  Effective January 1, 2006, the Company recognizes the c ompensation cost 
of rest ricted s tock awa rds on a  stra ight-line b asis ov er th e requisite service periods of the a wards, which a re 
generally the vesting period, with the amount of stock award compensation cost recognized as of any balance sheet 
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date b eing at least eq ual to  th e po rtion of th e gran t-date value of the a ward that is vest ed at that date.  Furthe r, 
unrestricted stock awards are expensed during the year granted. 
 
Total pret ax st ock-based c ompensation ex pense rec ognized in the Consoli dated Stat ement of I ncome as part  of  
S,G&A expense for st ock options and st ock awards for the year e nded December 31, 20 08 is a pproximately $5.0 
million and $22.5 million, approximately $4.1 million and $19.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, and 
approximately $4.3 million and $20.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, respectively. 
 
As of December 31, 2008, there was a pproximately $67 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to 
nonvested stock awards and stock options granted to Omnicare employees, which is expected to be recognized over 
a remaining weighted-average period of approximately 5.5 y ears.  T he total grant date fair value of shares vested 
during t he y ear e nded December 31 , 2008 r elated t o st ock awa rds a nd st ock options was  ap proximately $2 0.4 
million and $3.3 million, respectively. 
 
General Stock Option Information 
 
A summary of stock option activity under the plans for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 is 
presented below (in thousands, except exercise price data): 
 

Shares

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price Shares

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price Shares

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price
Options outstanding, beginning of year 7,259    30.78$      7,663    31.34$      7,309      29.84$      
Options granted 818       23.88        125       33.40        878         40.94        
Options exercised (264)      15.78        (85)        23.66        (449)       24.77        
Options forfeited (465)      36.52        (444)      42.63        (75)         37.13        
Options outstanding, end of year 7,348    30.19        7,259    30.78        7,663      31.34        
Options exercisable, end of year 5,969  30.10$     5,952  27.74$     5,627      26.17$     

2008 2007 2006

 
The total exercise date intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 
2006 was approximately $3.6 million, $1.3 million and $13.6 million, respectively. 
 
The following summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2008 (in 
thousands, except exercise price and remaining life data): 
 

Range of Exercise 
Prices

Number Outstanding 
at December 31,      

2008

Weighted Average 
Remaining 

Contractual Life 
(in years)

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price

Number 
Exercisable at 
December 31,     

2008

Weighted Average 
Remaining 

Contractual Life 
(in years)

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price
$7.72 - $15.45 1,034 0.5 15.28$        1,034 0.5 15.28$         

 15.46 - 23.17 1,126 2.8 18.91          1,047 2.3 18.70           
 23.18 - 30.90 2,752 5.8 26.43          1,986 4.5 27.24           
 30.91 - 38.61 111 7.3 35.15          23 4.6 35.19           
 38.62 - 61.79 2,325 6.7 46.49          1,879 6.4 47.55           
$7.72 - $61.79 7,348 4.9 30.19$       5,969 4.0 30.10$        

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE

General Restricted Stock Award Information 
 
A summary of nonvested restricted stock awards for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 is 
presented below (in thousands, except fair value data): 
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Shares

Weighted 
Average 

Grant Date 
Price Shares

Weighted 
Average 

Grant Date 
Price Shares

Weighted 
Average 

Grant Date 
Price

Nonvested shares, beginning of year 2,103      37.27$       2,617        34.56$       2,967      29.80$       
Shares awarded 720         23.57         239           38.70         344         56.15         
Shares vested (627)        32.54         (699)         27.01         (659)        24.43         
Shares forfeited (29)          27.31         (54)           44.74         (35)          33.60         
Nonvested shares, end of year 2,167      34.23$       2,103        37.27$       2,617      34.56$       

2008 2007 2006

Note 12 – Employee Benefit Plans  
 
The C ompany has va rious d efined co ntribution sa vings plans under w hich el igible e mployees can part icipate by  
contributing a portion of thei r salary fo r investment, at the direction of each employee, in one or m ore investment 
funds.  Several of the plans were adop ted in connection with certain of the Company’s acquisitions.  The plans are 
primarily tax-deferred arrangements pursuant to Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) Section 401(k) and are subject to 
the prov isions o f t he Em ployee Retir ement Inc ome Security Act (“ERISA”).  T he C ompany m atches em ployee 
contributions in varying degrees (either in shares of the Company’s common stock or cash, in accordance with the 
applicable plan p rovisions) based on the contribution l evels of t he employees, as s pecified in the respective plan 
documents.  Expe nse rel ating pri marily to t he C ompany’s m atching c ontributions for t hese defi ned co ntribution 
plans for th e years end ed Dece mber 31 , 2008, 2007 and 2 006 was $7 .0 m illion, $6 .8 m illion and  $6.9 m illion, 
respectively.  
 
The C ompany has a n on-contributory, defined be nefit pensi on pl an cove ring cert ain co rporate headquarters 
employees and the em ployees of se veral com panies sol d by the C ompany in 1992, for which benefits cease d 
accruing upon the sale (the “Qualified Pl an”).  Benefit s accruing under this plan to  corporate headquarters 
employees were fully vested and frozen as of January 1, 1994.   
 
The Company also ha s an e xcess benefit plan (“EBP”) that  prov ides retirement payments to  certain  headquarters 
employees in am ounts generally consiste nt with what they woul d ha ve recei ved under the Qualified Plan.  The  
retirement benefi ts pro vided by t he EB P are general ly co mparable t o t hose t hat wo uld ha ve bee n earne d i n t he 
Qualified Plan, if payments under the Qualified Plan were not limited by the IRC.   
 
In a ddition, the Com pany ha d a s upplemental pensi on plan (“SPP”) i n which ce rtain of its officers  participated.  
Retirement benefits under the SPP were calculated on the basis of a s pecified percentage of the officers’ covered 
compensation, years of credi ted serv ice and  a v esting sch edule, as sp ecified in  th e plan  d ocument.  All b enefits 
under the SPP became fully vested and accrued as of January 1, 2008.  In February of 2008, all participants received 
a lump sum payment, totaling approximately $7.3 million, of all their fully accrued benefits under the SPP. 
 
The Qualified Plan is fu nded with an irrevocable trust, which consists of assets h eld in the Vanguard Intermediate 
Term Treasury Fund Admiral Shares fund (“Vanguard Fund”), a mutual fund holding U.S. Treasury obligations.  In 
addition, th e Company h as estab lished rabbi tru sts, wh ich are also  held in  th e Vang uard Fund , t o prov ide for 
retirement o bligations u nder th e EBP.  The Co mpany’s general app roach is to  fun d its p ension oblig ations in  
accordance with the funding provisions of ERISA.   
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Components of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Other Amounts
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (Pre-tax)
(in thousands):

Net Periodic Pension Cost (Pre-tax): 2008 2007 2006
Service cost 5,121$           4,348$           2,245$           
Interest cost 9,542             8,204             4,173             
Amortization of deferred amounts

(primarily prior actuarial losses) 14,694           11,607           4,362             
Return on assets (483)               (189)               (176)               
Net periodic pension cost 28,874           23,970           10,604           

Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit Obligations
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (Pre-tax):
Net (gain) loss (71,435)          17,002           N/A
Amortization of net (loss) (14,680)          (11,583)          N/A
Amortization of prior service cost (14)                 (24)                 N/A
Adjustment for minimum pension liability included in

other comprehensive income (pre-FAS 158) N/A N/A 13,099           
Total (gain) loss recognized in other comprehensive income (86,129)          5,395             13,099           

Total (gain) loss recognized in net periodic pension cost and
other comprehensive income (57,255)$       29,365$         23,703$        

For the years ended December 31,

The estim ated am ount of net loss in accumulated othe r com prehensive incom e expected to be recognized as a  
component of net periodic pension cost during the 2009 year is approximately $1.0 million. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used to calculate net periodic pension costs for years ended December 31 were as follows: 
 

2008 2007 2006
Discount rate 5.80% 5.80% 5.50%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 25.00% 23.00% 13.00%
Expected rate of return on assets 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%  

 
The actuarial assumptions used to calculate the benefit obligations at the end of plan year were as follows: 
 

2008 2007 2006
Discount rate 5.60% 5.80% 5.80%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 10.00% 25.00% 23.00%
Expected rate of return on assets 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%

 
The d iscount rate assu mption was determined giving co nsideration primarily to th e Citig roup Pensio n Liab ility 
Index (as wel l as t he Moody’s Aa C orporate Bond Index in 2006), and consultation wi th the Company’s outside 
employee benefit plan actuary professionals.  It should be noted that the actuarial calculation is highly dependent 
upon the stock price on the date(s) of stock award vesting and, accordingly, can fluctuate significantly with changes 
in Omnicare’s stock price.  The expected rate of return on assets was estimated based primarily on the historical rate 
of return on intermediate-term U.S. Government securities. 
 
On December 31, 2006, the  Company adopte d the recognition a nd disclosure provisions of SFAS 158, which 
required the C ompany to recognize the f unded status (i.e., the difference between the fair value of plan assets and  
the projected benefit obligations) of its pension plans in the December 31, 2006 statement of financial position, with 
a corres ponding a djustment to acc umulated othe r c omprehensive incom e.  T he a djustment to accum ulated othe r 
comprehensive income at adoption represented the net unrecognized actuarial losses and unrecognized prior service 
costs, which were prev iously n etted again st th e p lan’s funded statu s in  th e Co mpany’s statem ent of financial 
position pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 87 , “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions” (“SFAS 8 7”).  Th ese 
amounts will be s ubsequently recognized as net pe riodic pe nsion c ost purs uant to the C ompany’s historical 
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accounting policy for amortizing such amounts.  Further, actuarial gains and losses that arise in subse quent periods 
and are not recognized as net p eriodic pension cost in the same periods will be recognized as a co mponent of other 
comprehensive income.  T hose amounts will be s ubsequently recognized as  a c omponent o f net periodic pension 
cost on the same basis as the amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income at adoption of SFAS 
158. 
 
Obligations and Funded Status
(in thousands):

Change in Plan Assets: 2008 2007
Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year 3,561$                     3,179$                   
Actual return on plan assets 483                          314                        
Employer contributions 7,432                       167                        
Benefits paid (including SPP plan settlements) (7,447)                     (99)                        
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 4,029$                     (1) 3,561$                   (1)

Change in Projected Benefit Obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at end of prior year 173,915$                 144,335$               
Service cost 5,121                       4,348                     
Interest cost 9,542                       8,204                     
Actuarial (gain)/loss (71,435)                   17,127                   
Benefits paid (including SPP plan settlements) (7,447)                     (99)                        
Projected benefit obligation at end of year 109,696$                173,915$               

Funded Status:
Projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets (105,667)$               (1) (170,354)$             (1)

Accumulated Benefit Obligation at end of year 107,335$                106,243$               

For the years ended December 31,

 
(1) In add ition to  the irrevo cable tru st assets p resented in  the table above, the Co mpany has invested additional 

funds fo r settle ment o f th e Company’s p ension ob ligations in  rabb i trusts, wh ich to taled $ 134.6 million and  
$123.0 million as of Decem ber 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  Since rabbi trust assets do not serve to offset 
the Company’s pension obligation for accounting purposes per U .S. GAAP, the funded status above has bee n 
reflected as the differe nce between the projected benefit obligation for all p lans and the irrevocable trust plan 
assets of the Qualified Plan. 

 
The C ompany’s i nvestment st rategy gene rally t argets i nvesting i n i ntermediate U.S. g overnment and a gency 
securities funds, seeking a moderate and sustainable level of current income by investing primarily in intermediate-
term U.S. Treasury obligations with a low credit default risk.  
 
Amounts Recognized in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets Consist of (in thousands):

2008 2007
Current liabilities 5,173$                        8,805$                        
Noncurrent liabilit ies 100,494                      161,549                      
Total 105,667$                    170,354$                    

Amounts Recognized in Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income (Pretax) Consist of:

Net loss 16,188$                      102,303$                    
Prior service cost -                              14                               
Total 16,188$                      102,317$                    

December 31,
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Information for Pension Plans with an Accumulated  
Benefit  Obligation in excess of Plan Assets
 (in thousands):

2008 2007
Qualified Plan:

Projected benefit obligation 4,619$                        4,215$                        
Accumulated benefit obligation 4,619                          4,215                          
Fair value of plan assets (1) 4,029                          3,561                          

EBP P lan:
Projected benefit obligation 105,077                      162,196                      
Accumulated benefit obligation 102,716                      94,524                        
Fair value of plan assets (1) -                              -                              

SPP Plan:
Projected benefit obligation -                              7,504                          
Accumulated benefit obligation -                              7,504                          
Fair value of plan assets (1) -                              -                              

Grand Totals:
Projected benefit obligation 109,696                      173,915                      
Accumulated benefit obligation 107,335                      106,243                      
Fair value of plan assets (1) 4,029                          3,561                          

(1) See "Obligations and Funded Status" table of this note for further discussion.

December 31,

The estimated aggregate contributions to the rabbi trusts expected to be funded during the year ended December 31, 
2009, relating to the Com pany’s pension obligations a nd based on the a ctuarial assumptions in place at year end 
2008, are not anticipated t o be significant.  Additionally, no fundi ng is anticipated to be necessary relating to t he 
Qualified Plan.   
 
Projected benefit payments, which reflect expecte d future service, as  appropriate, for each  of the  next fi ve fisca l 
years and in the aggre gate for the five fiscal years thereafter as of Dece mber 31, 2008 are estim ated as follows (in 
thousands): 

2009 5,173$       
2010 90,245       
2011 1,757         
2012 3,020         
2013 2,574         
Years 2014 - 2018 14,048       

 
The Company also has a L ong-Term Care  Insurance Po licy that p rovides post retiremen t health care b enefits for 
certain headquarters employees.  The plan expense for ea ch of the three  years ended December 31, 2008 was not 
significant, a nd t he related l iability as of December 31, 2008 is $0.6 mil lion.  Further, the adjustment to othe r 
comprehensive income for the year ende d December 31, 2008 was immaterial, and the  full year 2007 adjustment 
totaled $0.4 million.   
 
Note 13 – Income Taxes  
 
Provision 
The provision for income taxes is comprised of the following (in thousands): 
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2008 2007 2006
Current provision 37,430$           31,233$           55,322$           
Deferred provision 66,649             41,209             81,602             

Total income tax provision 104,079$         72,442$           136,924$         

For the years ended December 31,

 
Tax benefits related to the exercise of stock options and stock awards have been (debited) credited to paid-in capital 
in amounts of $(1.2) million, $3.3 million and $11.2 million for 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 
 
Effective Income Tax Rate 
The difference between the C ompany’s reported income tax expense and the federal income tax expense computed 
at the statutory rate of 35% is explained in the following table (in thousands): 
 

Federal income tax at the statutory rate 91,065$        35.0% 65,274$     35.0% 112,174$      35.0%
State, local and foreign income taxes, net 

of federal income tax benefit 5,593            2.1       4,260         2.3       5,640            1.8       
Other, net (including tax accrual

adjustments) 7,421            2.9       2,908         1.5       19,110          5.9       
Total income tax provision 104,079$     40.0% 72,442$    38.8% 136,924$      42.7%

For the years ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006

Included i n the “Othe r, net”  row of the preceding ta ble for the  year e nded December 31, 2006 is approximately 
$20.6 m illion represen ting t he no n-deductible p ortion of litigation settle ments, o r 6.4  p ercentage p oints o f th e 
overall 2006 effective tax rate of 42.7%. 
 
Income t ax payments, net , amounted t o $13.6 mill ion, $30.1 million an d $16.7 million in  2008 , 20 07 and  200 6, 
respectively. 
 
Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities 
Deferred income taxes re flect the net ta x effects of temporary differences between the carrying am ounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. 
 
Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows (in thousands): 
 

2008 2007
Accrued liabilities 115,038$       122,913$        
Accounts receivable reserves 105,453         109,160          
Net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards 91,080           98,248            
Pension obligations 40,803           63,714            
Other 29,008           27,817            
Gross deferred tax assets, before valuation allowances 381,382         421,852          
Valuation allowances (23,337)          (30,221)           

Gross deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowances 358,045$      391,631$        

Amortization of intangibles 466,193$       407,959$        
Contingent convertible debentures interest 90,653           62,689            
Fixed assets and depreciation methods 22,683           21,266            
Current and noncurrent assets 17,562           13,371            
Subsidiary stock basis 10,943           206,885          
Other 5,860             3,011              

Gross deferred tax liabilities 613,894$       715,181$        

December 31,
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As of December 31, 2008, the Company has remaining deferred tax benefits related to i ts federal, state and foreign 
net o perating l osses t otaling $91.1 m illion ($40.9 m illion fe deral, $48.8 mill ion state and $1 .4 m illion fo reign).  
These NOLs will expire, in varying amounts, beginning in 2009 t hrough 2028.  T he potential future tax benefits of 
the NOLs have been offset by $23.3 m illion of val uation allowance based on t he C ompany’s analysis of the 
likelihood of gene rating sufficient taxable incom e in the va rious jurisdictions to utilize the be nefits be fore 
expiration.  
 
Uncertain Tax Positions 
FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 48, “A ccounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,” (“FIN 48”) became effective 
on January 1, 2007.  FIN 48 provides guidance for the financial statement recognition and measurement of income 
tax positions taken or  expected to be taken in a ta x r eturn.  Under FI N 48, recognition and m easurement are 
considered discrete events.  The recognition threshold is met when it is determined a tax position, based solely on its 
technical merits, is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the relevant taxing authority.  If a tax 
position does not meet the more likely than not recognition threshold, the benefit of that position is not recognized in 
the financial statements.  A tax position t hat meets the more likely than not rec ognition threshold is measured to 
determine the amount of benefit to be recognized in the financial statements.   
 
At January 1, 2008, the Company had gross unrecognized tax benefits of $78.2 million and ended the year with the 
gross unrec ognized tax benefits of $67.5 million.  A reconciliation of the beginning and e nding am ount of 
unrecognized tax benefit is as follows: 

2008 2007
Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year $78,199 $77,151
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year 3,108           5,700           
Additions for tax positions of prior years 5,159           888              
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (11,906)       (1,543)         
Settlement reductions (1,517)         (2,257)         
Reductions for tax positions settled through the expirations of the statute of limitations (5,572)         (1,740)         
Unrecognized tax benefits at end of year $67,471 $78,199

Included in  th e balance at December 3 1, 2 008 a re $ 53.6 million o f unrecognized tax benefits, net o f federal tax 
benefit, that, if recognized, would af fect the effective ta x rate.  The liab ilities for unrecognized tax benefits are 
carried in “ Other noncurrent liabilities” on the  Conso lidated Bala nce Sheets because paym ent of cash is not  
anticipated within one year of the balance sheet date for any significant amounts.  However, it is reasonably possible 
that $30.1 million, net of fe deral tax benefit, of unrecognized federal and state tax be nefits will reverse within one 
year of the balance sheet date due to the expiration of statutes of limitations.  The Company recognizes interest and 
penalties accrued related to unrec ognized tax benefits in tax expenses.  Duri ng the year ended December 31, 2008, 
the Com pany recognized appr oximately $1.7 m illion in interest, net of federal tax bene fit, and penalties.  The  
Company had approximately $10.7 million for the payment of interest and penalties accrued at December 31, 2008.  
 
The Company files incom e tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and various states and foreign jurisdictions.  
With few exceptions, the C ompany is no longe r subject to  U.S. federal examinations by tax aut horities for yea rs 
before 2005, and state and local, or non-U.S. income tax examinations, by tax authorities for years before 2004.   
 
Note 14 - Earnings Per Share Data 
 
Basic earnings per share a re com puted based on the weighted-average n umber o f sha res o f c ommon stock 
outstanding during the period.  Diluted earnings per share include the dilutive effect of stock options, warrants and 
restricted stock awards, as well as convertible debentures. 
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The following is a rec onciliation of t he basic and  dilute d ear nings per sha re (“ EPS”) com putations fo r both the 
numerator and denominator (in thousands, except per share data): 
 

Income
Common     

Shares
Per        

Common Share
2008: (Numerator) (Denominator) Amounts
Basic EPS
Net income 156,108$        117,466           1.33$              

Effect of Dilutive Securities

4.00% junior subordinated convertible debentures 279                  275                    
Stock options, warrants and awards -                       572                    

Diluted EPS 
Net income plus assumed conversions 156,387$        118,313           1.32$              

2007:
Basic EPS
Net income 114,056$        119,380           0.96$              

Effect of Dilutive Securities 
4.00% junior subordinated convertible debentures 284                  295                    
Stock options, warrants and awards -                       1,583                 

Diluted EPS
Net income plus assumed conversions 114,340$        121,258           0.94$              

2006:
Basic EPS
Net income 183,572$        118,480           1.55$              
Effect of Dilutive Securities 
4.00% junior subordinated convertible debentures 289                  1,480                 
Stock options, warrants and awards -                       2,576                 
Diluted EPS   
Net income plus assumed conversions 183,861$        122,536           1.50$              

For the years ended December 31, 

 
During the year s ended December 31 , 2008 , 2007 and 2006, the an ti-dilutive ef fect associated with cer tain stock 
options, warrants and stock awards was excluded from the computation of diluted EPS, since the exercise price was 
greater than the average market price of the Company’s common stock during these periods.  The aggregate number 
of stock options, warrants a nd stoc k a wards e xcluded f rom the com putation o f th e d iluted EP S f or those  y ears 
totaled approximately 6.5 million, 4.3 million and 1.6 million, respectively. 
 
Note 15 – Restructuring and Other Related Charges 
 
Omnicare Full Potential Program 
In 2006, the Company commenced the i mplementation of the “ Omnicare Full Potential” Plan, a m ajor initiative 
primarily designe d t o re -engineer the  C ompany’s p harmacy ope rating model to incre ase efficiency and enhance 
customer growth.  The Omnicare Full Potential Plan is expected to optimize resources across the entire organization 
by i mplementing best practices, including the realignm ent and right-sizing o f f unctions, an d a “h ub-and-spoke” 
model, whereby certain key administrative and production functions will be tra nsferred to regional support ce nters 
(“hubs”) specifically designed and managed to perform these tasks, with local pharmacies (“spokes”) focusing on 
time-sensitive services and customer-facing processes. 
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This program is expected to be  com pleted over a m ulti-year pe riod a nd is estim ated to re sult i n total pretax 
restructuring a nd ot her relate d c harges of a pproximately $9 3 m illion.  As presented i n further detail belo w, t he 
Company rec orded re structuring an d other related c harges for t he Om nicare Full P otential Pr ogram of 
approximately $36 million, $29 million and $17 million pretax during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 
2006, respectively (approximately $22 m illion, $18 m illion and $11 million aftertax, respectively), or c umulative 
aggregate restructuring a nd other related c harges of a pproximately $83 million be fore taxes through 2008.  T he 
remainder of t he overall restructuring and other related charges will be recognized and disclosed prospectively, as 
the remaining portions of the project are finalized and implemented.  The Company eliminated approximately 1,200 
positions in c ompleting its initial phase of the program .  The remainder of the progra m is currently esti mated to  
result in a net reduction of approximately 1,200 positions (1,900 positions eliminated, net of 700 new positions filled 
in dif ferent ge ographic locat ions as well as to per form new functions req uired by  the h ub-and-spoke m odel o f 
operations), of which approximately 160 positions had been eliminated as of December 31, 2008.  The foregoing 
reductions do not inclu de additional savings expected from lower levels of o vertime and re duced temporary labor.  
The Company currently estimates reductions in overtime, excess hours and temporary help, as well as productivity 
gains, to equal an additional 820 full-time equivalents. 
 
The restructuring charges primarily in clude sev erance p ay, th e buy-out of  em ployment ag reements, lease 
terminations, and othe r exit-related asset disposals, professional fees and fa cility ex it costs.  The other relate d 
charges are primarily comprised of professional fees.  Detai ls of the Omnicare Full Potential Plan restructuring and 
other related charges follow (pretax, in thousands): 
 

2006 Utilized Balance at 2007 Utilized
Provision/ during December 31, Provision/ during
Accrual 2006 2006 Accrual 2007

Restructuring charges:
Employee severance 6,465$             (3,775)$        2,690$             2,300$             (4,955)$       
Employment
   agreement buy-outs -                   -               -                   2,546               (1,347)         
Lease terminations 383                  (309)             74                    5,389               (2,335)         
Other assets, fees and facility
    exit costs 3,859               (2,690)          1,169               8,992               (8,303)         
   Total restructuring
      charges 10,707            (6,774)$       3,933$            19,227             (16,940)$    

Other related charges 6,759               10,235             
   Total restructuring and
      other related charges 17,466$          29,462$           

Balance at 2008 Utilized Balance at
December 31, Provision/ during December 31,

2007 Accrual 2008 2008
Restructuring charges:

Employee severance 35$                  4,578$         (4,613)$            -$                
Employment
   agreement buy-outs 1,199               337              (1,501)              35                    
Lease terminations 3,128               9,513           (3,756)              8,885               
Other assets, fees and facility
    exit costs 1,858               15,897         (15,361)            2,394               
   Total restructuring
      charges 6,220$            30,325       (25,231)$         11,314$           

Other related charges 5,459           
   Total restructuring and
      other related charges 35,784$      

As of December 31, 2008, the Company has made cumulative payments of approximately $16 million of severance 
and other employee-related costs for the Omnicare Full Po tential Plan.  The remaining liabilities at Decem ber 31, 
2008 re present am ounts not yet paid relating t o actions taken i n connection with the program  (prim arily lease 
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payments and professional fees) a nd will be settled as these m atters are finalized.  The provisi on/accrual a nd 
corresponding payment amounts relating to employee severance a re being accounted fo r primarily in accordance 
with S FAS No. 112 “Em ployers’ Ac counting for P ostemployment Benefits ;” and the provision/accrual and 
corresponding payment amounts relating to employment agreement buy-outs are being accounted for prim arily in  
accordance with SFAS No. 146 “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities” (“SFAS 146”). 
 
2005 Program 
In the third quarter of 2005, the Company announced the implementation of certain consolidation plans and other 
productivity initiatives to strea mline pha rmacy services an d contract research organization ope rations, incl uding 
maximizing workforce and operating asset utilization, and producing a more cost-efficient, operating infrastructure  
(the “2005 Program”).  These consolidation and productivity initiatives we re related, in part, to the integration of 
NeighborCare.  Given the  geo graphic overlap o f th e NeighborCa re and Omnicare pharm acies, substantial 
opportunities for consolidation e xisted at the time of ac quisition.  While the m ajority of consolidations resulted i n 
NeighborCare p harmacies being c onsolidated into  Omnicare pharmacies, de pending on location, capacity and 
operating pe rformance, certa in Om nicare pha rmacies were al so identi fied for consolid ation int o NeighborCare 
locations.  Additionally, as part of t he e valuation process o n how best to integ rate the tw o organizations, the 
Company also foc used broadly on way s to lower operating infrastructure costs to m aximize efficiencies and asset 
utilization and identified oppor tunities to right-size the busi ness, str eamline operations and eli minate redundant 
assets.  The consolidation activity and other productivity initiatives of the 2005 Program resulted in the closure of 29 
Omnicare facilities, of which 26 we re pha rmacy operations .  Additionally, there was a net re duction in force of 
approximately 900 positions relating to t he 2005 Program.  Of this reduction in force, approximately 96% were in 
the pharmacy operations and the remaining reductions were at the corporate headquarters or the Company’s contract 
research operations.  Restructuring activities in t he c ontract resea rch organization segment related prim arily to 
facility lease obligations.  In additio n, S,G&A expenses for t he year e nded Decem ber 31, 2006 i ncluded a  $6.1 
million cha rge associated with retention paym ents fo r c ertain Nei ghborCare em ployees as required under the  
acquisition agreement. 
 
The 2005 Program  initiative s re quired cumulative restructuring a nd other related c harges of a pproximately $31 
million before taxes through the third quarter of 2006, which related to the costs associated with the consolidation of 
Omnicare pharm acies and t he othe r c onsolidation a nd productivity initiatives de scribed a bove.  Spe cifically, the 
Company reco rded r estructuring a nd ot her related cha rges of  ap proximately $12 m illion a nd $ 19 million p retax 
during the yea rs ende d Dece mber 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively (a pproximately $8 m illion and $12 m illion 
aftertax, respectively).  The  restruct uring liabilities associated with the 2 005 Progra m were evaluated by the  
Company during 2007.  As a result of this review, it was determined that certain liabilities were no longer expected 
to be utilized as part of the  activ ities re maining under t he 200 5 Progra m.  In acc ordance with SFAS 146, t he 
Company r ecorded adj ustments in 200 7 to  reduce th e employee sev erance an d e mployee agree ment buy -out 
liabilities by approximately $1.2 million and $0.4 million pretax, respectively. 
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The restructuring ch arges primarily in cluded sev erance p ay, th e buy-out of  em ployment ag reements, lease 
terminations and other assets, profession al fees and facility exit costs.  Details of t he 2005 Program restructuring 
charge liabilities follow (pretax, in thousands): 
 

2005 Utilized Balance at 2006 Utilized  
Provision/ during December 31, Provision/ during
Accrual 2005 2005 Accrual 2006

Restructuring charges:
Employee severance 4,364$           (1,555)$        2,809$          2,027$          (3,246)$       
Employment
   agreement buy-outs 1,666             (932)             734               1,459            (1,982)         
Lease terminations 11,187           (1,354)          9,833            3,077            (5,346)         
Other assets, fees and facility
    exit costs 1,562             (227)             1,335            3,003            (3,393)         
   Total restructuring
      charges 18,779$        (4,068)$       14,711$       9,566          (13,967)$     

Other related charges 2,530            
Total restructuring and

    other related charges 12,096$       

Balance at Adjustments Utilized Balance at Utilized Balance at
December 31, during during December 31, during December 31,

2006 2007 2007 2007 2008 2008
Restructuring charges:

Employee severance 1,590$           (1,218)$        (70)$              302$             (6)$              296$           
Employment
   agreement buy-outs 211                (361)             150               -                -              -              
Lease terminations 7,564             -               (2,585)           4,979            (1,745)         3,234          
Other assets, fees and facility
    exit costs 945                -               (931)              14                 -              14               
   Total restructuring
      charges 10,310$        (1,579)$       (3,436)$        5,295$         (1,751)$       3,544$       

As of December 31, 2008, the Company has made cumulative payments of approximately $8 million of se verance 
and other employee-related costs.  The remaining liabilities at December 31, 2008 re present amounts not yet paid 
relating to actions ta ken in c onnection with the program  (prim arily lease payments) and will be settled as these  
matters are finalized. 
 
Note 16 – Shareholders’ Rights Plan 
 
In May 199 9, the Company’s Board of  Directors declared a d ividend, payable on June 2 , 1999, of one preferred 
share purchase right (a “Right”) for eac h outstanding share of t he Company’s $1.00 per share par value common 
stock, that, when exe rcisable, entitles the registered holder to purchase from the Company one ten-thousa ndth of a  
share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of the Company, without par value, at a price of $135 per one 
ten-thousandth of a share , subject to adjustment.  Upon certain eve nts relating to the acquisition of, commencement 
or announcement of, or announcement of an intention to make a tender offer or exchange offer that would result in 
the beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the Company’s outstanding common stock by an individual or group of 
individuals (the “Distribution Date” ), the Rights not owned by the 15% stockholde r will entitle it s hol der t o 
purchase, at the Right’s t hen current exercise price, c ommon shares having a m arket value of twice such e xercise 
price.  A dditionally, if after any pers on has become a 15 % stockholder, the Co mpany is involve d in a merger or 
other business combination with any other person, each Right will entitle its holder (other than the 15% stockholder) 
to purchase, at the Right’s t hen current exercise price, common shares of the acquiring company having a value of 
twice the Right’s then current exercise price.  The Rights will expire on June 2, 2009, unless redeemed earlier by the 
Company at $0.01 per Right until the Distribution Date.   
 
Note 17 – Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Omnicare continuously evaluates contingencies based upon the best available information.  The C ompany believes 
that liabilities have  been provided to the extent necessary in cases where the outcome is conside red probable and 
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reasonably estim able.  To the exte nt that resol ution of contin gencies results in a mounts that v ary fr om th e 
Company’s recorded liabilities, future earnings will be charged or credited accordingly. 

 
As previously disclose d, t he United States Attorney’s  Of fice, District of M assachusetts is co nducting a n 
investigation relating to the Com pany’s relationships with certain manufacturers and distributors of pharm aceutical 
products a nd certain cust omers, as well as with re spect to contracts with certain c ompanies acquire d by the  
Company.  Any actions  resulting from this investigation c ould result in civil or crim inal proceedings against the 
Company.  The Company believes that it has complied with all applicable laws and regulations with respect to these 
matters.  Omnicare has recorded a special litigation charge of $40 million pretax in its financial results for the fourth 
quarter and full year ended Decem ber 31, 2008 to esta blish a  se ttlement reserve in c onnection with this 
investigation.  This special litigation cha rge relates to the Company’s estimate of potential settlement amounts and 
associated cost s under SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies.”  The Company cannot predic t the ultimate 
outcome of this matter. 
 
On October 27 , 2008, the U.S. Distr ict Court in  Boston, Massachusetts unsealed a qui  tam complaint against the  
Company that was originally filed under seal with the court on July 16, 2002.  This action was brought by Deborah 
Maguire as a private party "qui tam relator" on behalf of the federal government and various state governments.   On 
September 16, 2008, the U.S. Government filed a Notice that it is not intervening in the action at this time. 
 
A qui ta m ac tion is always filed unde r se al.  Before a qui tam  action is unsealed, and ty pically follo wing an  
investigation by the gove rnment initiated after the filing of the qui tam action, the gove rnment is required to notify 
the court of its decision whether to intervene in the action.  The governm ent could seek to intervene in this qui ta m 
action in the future with permission from the court.  Where the government ultimately declines to intervene, the qui 
tam relators may continue to pursue the litigation at their own expense on behalf of the federal or state government 
and, if successful, would receive a portion of the government's recovery. 
 
The action brought by Ms. Maguire alleges civil violations  of the False Clai ms Act, 31 U.S .C. (S) 3729 et seq. a nd 
various state f alse claims statutes base d on allegations th at the C ompany:  submitted claims for nam e brand drugs 
when actually  pr oviding ge neric versions of the sam e dr ug to  nur sing ho mes; p rovided con sultant ph armacist 
services to its customers at below-market rates to induce the referral of pharmaceutical business in violation of the 
Anti-Kickback Statute, 42 U.S.C. 13 20a-7b; a nd accepted disc ounts from drug m anufacturers i n return for 
recommending that certain pharmaceuticals be presc ribed to nursi ng home resident s in violation of the Anti-
Kickback Statute.  The unsealed action see ks damages provided for in the False  Claims Act and a pplicable state 
statutes.    
 
In addition, on October 30 and 31, 2008, Omnicare was provided with copies of t wo complaints against Omnicare 
and other de fendants that were p reviously filed u nder seal wit h the U.S. District Court in Boston, 
Massachusetts. One complaint was brought by Bernard Lisitza, and the other by David Kammerer, both as private 
party “qui tam relators” on behalf of the federal government and various state go vernments. The U.S. Government 
has notified the court that it is not intervening in these actions at this time. 
 
The action brought by Mr. Kammerer alleges civil violations of the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. (S) 3729 et seq. and 
various state statutes based on allegations that Omnicare accepted rebates, post-purchase discounts, grants and other 
forms of remuneration from drug manufacturers in return for purchasing pharmaceuticals from those manufacturers 
and taking steps to increase the purchase of those manufacturers’ drugs in violation of the Anti-Kickback Statute, 42 
U.S.C. (S) 1320a-7b and applicable state statu tes. The action brought by Mr. Lisitza alleges civil violations of the 
False Clai ms Act and various state statutes based on allegations tha t O mnicare: accepted re bates from  drug 
manufacturers in return for recommending to physicians that certain pharmaceuticals be prescribed to nursing home 
residents in violation of the Anti-Kickback Statute and applicable state statutes; made false statements and omissions 
to physicians in connection with its recom mendations of those pha rmaceuticals; and substi tuted certain 
pharmaceuticals without phy sician authoriz ation. The unsealed actions seek dam ages provide d for in the False 
Claims Act and applicable state statutes. 
 
In addition to the unsealed qui tam actions described above, the Company is aware of two other qui tam complaints 
against it and other companies that have been filed with the U.S. District Court in Boston, Massachusetts and remain 
under seal.   
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The Company believes that all of the allegations described above are without merit and intends to vigorously defend 
itself in these actions if pursued. 
 
The fe deral government and certai n states had bee n investigating allegations  relating to three ge neric 
pharmaceuticals provided by the Com pany in connection with the substi tution of capsules for tablets (Ranitidine), 
tablets for capsules (Fluoxetine) and two 7.5 mg tablets for one 15 mg tablet (Buspirone).  On November 14, 2006, 
the Com pany entered into a voluntary civil set tlement agreement, under whic h the Company paid the federa l 
government and participating state go vernments $51 million to satisfy all of the federal and state civil clai ms and 
related plaintiff legal fees.  The Company recorded a special litigation c harge, for the  settlement and related legal 
fees, of $57.5 million pretax ($45.3 million aftertax) in its financial results for 2006 to establish a reserve relating to 
the aforem entioned i nvestigation.  The settlement agreem ent also resulted in t he dismissal, with prejudice, of a 
number of other allegations included in complaints filed by two qui tam relators.  Another issue alleged by one of 
the qui tam relators remains under seal and was not resolved by the settle ment.  The settle ment agreement did not  
include any finding of wrongdoing or any admission of liability.  As part of the settlement agreement, on November 
9, 2006 , th e C ompany en tered in to a Corpo rate In tegrity Agr eement with  th e Dep artment o f Health  and  Hu man 
Services Office of the Inspector General with a term of five years from November 9, 2006.  The Corporate Integrity 
Agreement requi res that t he Com pany m aintain its co mpliance program  in accordan ce with the  term s of the  
Corporate Integrity Agreem ent.  The a greement contains specific re quirements rega rding th e de velopment and  
implementation of therapeutic interchange programs and the general training of ce rtain Company employees as to 
the requirements of the Company’s compliance program and the Corporate Integrity Agreement.  The requirements 
of t he Corporate Inte grity Agreem ent have re sulted in increase d c osts to  m aintain the Com pany’s c ompliance 
program and could result in greater sc rutiny by federal regulatory authorities.  Violations  of the Corporate Integrity 
Agreement could subject the Company to significant monetary and/or administrative penalties.   
 
On July 11, 2006, the Attorney Gene ral’s Office in Michigan provide d t he C ompany’s legal  counsel with 
information concerning its i nvestigation relating to certain billing issues under t he Michigan Medicaid program at  
Specialized Pharmacy Servi ces, a subsidi ary of the Co mpany located in Michi gan.  On  October 5 , 200 6, th e 
Company ente red into a voluntary settle ment a greement and a  Corporate Inte grity Agreement with the State of 
Michigan to resolve th e Michiga n Attorney General’s i nvestigation relating to certain billing issues under the  
Michigan Medicaid program  at Specialized Pharmacy Services.  Under the te rms of the settle ment agreement, the 
Company paid the State of Michigan approximately $43 m illion, with an additional amount of approxim ately $6 
million to be paid over the following three years.  The C ompany also reached a n agreement in pri nciple with the  
State of Mic higan to resolve clai ms relating to billing by Specialized Pharmacy Servi ces for drugs provide d t o 
hospice patients for a settlement amount of approximately $3.5 million.  On October 26, 2007, the Company entered 
into settlement agreements with the fe deral government and the State of Michigan to resolve these hospice claims.  
Under the terms of the October 26, 2007 settlement agreements, the Company paid the federal government and the 
State of M ichigan a n a ggregate am ount of approxim ately $3.5 m illion.  In  connection with t he se ttlements, the 
November 9, 2006 Corporate Integrity Agreement with the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the 
Inspector General was also amended to cover ce rtain hospice billing matters.  The settle ment agree ments do not 
include any finding of wrongdoing or any admission of liability.  The Company recorded a special liti gation charge 
of $54.0 million pretax ($46.7 million aftertax) in its financial results for 2006 based on the terms of the settle ment 
agreement.  T he Corporate Integrity Agre ement with the State of Mi chigan re quires that the Com pany and 
Specialized Pharmacy Services m aintain Specialized Pha rmacy Services’ c ompliance program in ac cordance with 
the term s of the Corporate  Inte grity Agreem ent.  The agreem ent contai ns speci fic requirem ents re garding 
compliance with Medicaid policies governing access t o pharm acy facilities and records, un it dose billing 
agreements, consumption billing, hospi ce patient term inal illness prescri ptions and prescriptions dispensed after a  
patient’s death.  The requirements of the Corporate Integrity Agreement have resulted in increased costs to maintain 
Specialized Pharmacy Services’ com pliance program and could re sult in greate r scrutiny by  Michigan regulatory 
authorities.  Violations of the Corpor ate Integrity Agree ment could subj ect the Company to signifi cant monetary 
and/or administrative penalties. 
 
On February 2 and February 13, 2006, respectively, two substa ntially similar putative class action lawsuits, entitled 
Indiana State Dist. Council of  Laborers & HOD Carriers Pension & Welfare Fund v. Omnicare, Inc., et  al ., No. 
2:06cv26 (“HOD Carriers”), and Chi v. O mnicare, Inc., et al.,  No. 2:06cv31 (“Chi”), were filed against Omnicare 
and two of its officers in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Kentucky purporting to assert 
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claims for violation of §§10(b) and 20(a ) of the Sec urities Excha nge Act of 1934 a nd Rule 10b-5 prom ulgated 
thereunder, and seeking, among other things, compensatory damages and inj unctive relief.  T he complaints, which 
purported to be b rought on behalf of all o pen-market purchasers of Omnicare common stock from August 3, 2005 
through Ja nuary 2 7, 2006, a lleged that Omnicare had a rtificially inflated its earni ngs by  en gaging in im proper 
generic drug substitution a nd that defe ndants had made false and m isleading statements regarding the Company’s 
business and prospects.  On April 3, 2006, plaintiffs in the HOD Carriers case formally moved for consolidation and 
the appointment of lead plaintiff and lead counsel pursuant to the Pr ivate Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.  
On May 22, 2006, that motion was granted, the cases were consolidated, and a lea d plaintiff and lead counsel were 
appointed.  On Ju ly 20 , 200 6, plaintiffs filed a consolidated am ended c omplaint, addi ng a t hird officer as a  
defendant and new factual allegations primarily relating to revenue recognition, the valuation of receivables and the 
valuation of i nventories.  On Octo ber 3 1, 2006, plaintiffs m oved for l eave to file a second am ended c omplaint, 
which was gra nted on January 26, 2007, on the c ondition that no further amendments would be  permitted absent 
extraordinary circumstances.  Plaintif fs thereafter filed their second am ended complaint on January 29, 2007.  Th e 
second amended complaint (i) expands the putative class to include all purchasers of Omnicare common stock from 
August 3, 2005 through July 27, 2006, (ii) names two members of the Company’s board of directors as additional 
defendants, (iii) adds a new plaintiff and a new claim for violation of Section 11 of the Securities Act of 1933 based 
on allege d false and m isleading statem ents in the regist ration statem ent filed in co nnection with the  Co mpany’s 
December 2005 public offe ring, (iv) alleges that the Com pany failed to tim ely disclose its contractual dispute with 
UnitedHealth Group, Inc. a nd its affilia tes (“United” ), a nd (v) alle ges that the C ompany failed to ti mely record 
certain special litigation re serves.  The de fendants filed a m otion to dismiss the second am ended c omplaint on 
March 12, 2007 , claiming that p laintiffs had failed ad equately to  p lead loss cau sation, scien ter or  any actio nable 
misstatement or omission.  That motion was f ully b riefed as of M ay 1, 2007.  In r esponse to ce rtain arg uments 
relating to the individual claims of the nam ed plaintiffs that were raised in defendants’ pending motion to dismiss, 
plaintiffs filed a motion to a dd, or in  the a lternative, to i ntervene an additional named plaintiff, Alaska Electrical 
Pension Fund, on July 27, 2007.  On October 12, 2007, the cou rt issued an opinion and or der dismissing the case 
and denying plaintiffs’ motion to add an additional named plaintiff.  On November 9, 2007, plaintiffs filed a notice 
of appeal with the Unite d States Court of Appeals for the Sixth C ircuit with re spect to the dism issal of thei r case.  
Oral argument was held on September 18, 2008. 
 
On February 13, 2006, two substantially similar shareholder derivative actions, entitled Isak v . Gemunder, et al. , 
Case No. 06-CI-390, and Fragnoli v. Hutton, et al., Case No. 06-CI-389, were filed in Kentucky State Circuit Court, 
Kenton Circuit, against the m embers of Omnicare’s board of directors, individually, purporting to assert claims for 
breach of fiduciary duty, abuse of c ontrol, gross mismanagement, waste of c orporate assets and unjust enrichment 
arising out o f the C ompany’s alleged vi olations o f fe deral and state health care laws base d upon the sa me 
purportedly improper generic drug substitution that is the subject of the federal purported class action lawsuits.  The 
complaints seek, among other things, damages, restitution and injunctive relief.  The Isak and Fragnoli actions were 
later consolidated by agreement of t he parties.  On January 12, 2007, the defendants filed a m otion to dismiss the 
consolidated a ction on the  grounds that t he dism issal of  the substantia lly identical shareholder der ivative action, 
Irwin v.  Gemunder, et  al., 2:06cv62, by the  United States District Court  fo r the  Eastern District of  Kentucky on 
November 20, 2006 should be given preclusive e ffect and thus ba rs re -litigation of the issues already decided i n 
Irwin.  Instead of opposing that motion, on March 16, 2007, the plaintiffs filed an amended consolidated complaint, 
which continues to name all of the directors as defendants and asserts the same claims, but attempts to bolster those 
claims by addi ng nearly all of the  substantive allegations from the m ost recent complaint in t he federal securities 
class action (see discussion of HOD Carriers above) and an amended complaint in Irwin that added the same factual 
allegations that were added to the consolidated amended complaint in the HOD Carriers action.  On April 16, 2007, 
defendants fil ed a su pplemental memorandum of law in  fu rther s upport of thei r pen ding m otion to dismiss 
contending th at the am ended c omplaint sho uld be  dis missed o n the  sam e gro unds p reviously articulated for 
dismissal, namely, the preclusive effect of the dismissal of the Irwin action.  That motion has been fully briefed, oral 
argument was held on August 21, 2007, and the court reserved decision. 
 
The Company believes the a bove-described purporte d cla ss and derivative actions a re without m erit and will be  
vigorously defended. 

 
The yea rs e nded 2008, 2007 and 2006 included a  $99.3 million, $42.5 m illion and $13.6 m illion pretax c harge 
($68.7 million, $26.4 million and $8.6 million after taxes), respectively, reflected in the “Litigation and other related 
professional fees” line of the Conso lidated Statem ents of Income, prim arily for litigation-related profe ssional 
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expenses in c onnection with the  Com pany’s lawsuit against Unite d, certain other large c ustomer disp utes, the  
investigation by the United States Attorney’s Office, District of Massac husetts (including the a forementioned $40 
million pretax special c harge); t he purported class a nd derivative a ctions; the  in vestigation by the federal 
government and certai n states rela ting to drug substitutions; the Com pany’s response to subpoenas it received  
relating to other legal proceedings to which the Company is not a party; and the inquiry conducted by the Attorney 
General’s Office in Michigan relating to certain billing issues under the Michigan Medicaid program. 

 
During 2006, the Com pany experienced certain quality control and product recall issues, as well as fire dam age, at 
one of its re packaging facilities, Hear tland Repac k Services (“ Heartland”).  As a preca utionary measure, the  
Company voluntarily and temporarily suspended operations at Heartland.  During the time that the Heartland facility 
was closed, the Company conducted ce rtain environmental tests at the facility.  Based on t he results of these tests, 
which sh owed very  low leve ls of beta lactam  residue, and the ti me and expe nse associated with com pleting the 
necessary rem ediation procedures, as well as the short remaining term  on the lease for the curre nt facility, the  
Company decided not to reopen the Heartland facility.  T he Company continues to work to addre ss and resolve all 
issues, and restore ce ntralized repackaging to full ca pacity.  In order t o tem porarily replace t he ca pacity of the 
Heartland facility, the Com pany ram ped up production in its othe r repackagi ng facility, as well as onsite in its 
individual pharmacies for use by their patients.  As a result, the Company has been and continues to be able to meet 
the needs of all of its client facilities and their reside nts.  Addressing these issues served to increase costs, and as a 
result, the yea r ended 2008 included special charges of  approximately $6.4 million pretax ($5.5 million and $0 .9 
million was recorded in the cost of sales and operating expenses sections of the Consolidated Statements of Income, 
respectively) ($3.9 million after taxes) for costs associated with the quality control, pr oduct recall and fire damage 
issues at Heartland (“Heartland Matters”).  The associated costs for the year ended 2007 included special charges of 
approximately $17.2 million pretax ($14.8 million and $2.4 million was recorded in the cost of sales and operating 
expenses secti ons of t he Consoli dated Stat ements of In come, respectively) ($10.7 m illion after taxes) for c osts 
associated with the Heartland matters.  Beginning in the third quarter, the year ended 2006 included special charges 
of $33.7 million pr etax ($27.7 million and $6.1 m illion was recor ded i n the cost of  sales and operating expense 
sections of t he Consoli dated Statements of Income, respe ctively) ($21.2 m illion after taxes) for these increa sed 
costs, particularly relating to the write-off of inventory totaling $18.9 million pretax, as well as $14.8 million pretax 
for the i ncremental costs associated with the Heartla nd matters.  T he Company maintains product re call, property 
and casualty and business interruption insurance, and the extent of insurance recovery for these expenses continues 
to be  reviewed by its outside advisors.  As of December 31, 2008, the Company has received no material insurance 
recoveries.  Further, in or der to replace the repac kaging capacity of th e Heartland facility, on February 27, 2007, 
Omnicare entered into a n agreem ent fo r the Repacka ging Services di vision of  Cardi nal Health to serve as the 
contract repac kager for pharm aceutical volumes previously repacka ged at the Heartla nd facility.  The agreem ent 
initially extends through October 2010. 

 
Although the Company cannot know with certainty the ulti mate outcome of the matters described in the preceding 
paragraphs, there can be no assurance that the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse impact on 
the Com pany’s consolidated results of o perations, fi nancial positio n or cash fl ows o r, in the  case of the 
investigations regarding certain drug substitutions, the inves tigation by the United States Attorney’s Office, District 
of Massachusetts and the m atters relating to the Heartland facility, that these m atters will be resolve d in an amount 
that would not exceed the amount of the pretax charges recorded by the Company. 
 
As part of its ongoing operations, the Company is subject to various inspections, audits, inquiries and similar actions 
by third parties, as well as governmental/regulatory authorities responsible for enforcing the laws and regulations to 
which the Company is subject.  The Company is also involved in various legal actions arising in t he normal course 
of business.  These m atters are co ntinuously bein g e valuated an d, i n m any cases, are bei ng c ontested by the 
Company and  the outc ome is not pre dictable.  C onsequently, an estim ate of the possible loss or range of l oss 
associated with certain actions cannot be made.  Although occasional adverse outcomes (or settlements) may occur 
and could possibly have an a dverse effect on the results  of operations and cash flows in any one accounting pe riod, 
outside of the matters described in the preceding paragraphs, the Company is not aware of any such matters whereby 
it is presently believed that  the final disposition will ha ve a material adverse affect  on the Com pany’s ove rall 
consolidated financial position.   
 
The Company indemnifies the directors and officers of the Company for certain liabilities that might arise from the 
performance of their job responsibilities for the C ompany.  Additionally, in the normal course  of business, t he 
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Company enters into c ontracts that contain a variety of  representations and war ranties and which provide general 
indemnifications.  T he Company’s maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown, as t his involves the 
resolution of claims made, or future claims that may be made, against the Company, its directors and/or officers, the 
outcomes of which is unknown and not c urrently predictable.  Accordingly, no liabilities have been recorded for the 
indemnifications. 
 
Note 18 – Segment Information 
 
Based on the “ management approach” as defined by SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise 
and R elated I nformation,” Omnicare has two o perating segments.  The Com pany’s larg er se gment is Pharm acy 
Services.  Pharmacy Services prim arily provides distri bution of pharmaceuticals, related pharmacy consulting a nd 
other ancillary services, data management services, medical supplies, and distribution and patient assistance services 
for specialty pharmaceuticals.  The Company’s customers are primarily skilled nursing, assisted living, hospice and 
other providers of healthcare services in 47 states in the United States, the Di strict of Columbia and in Canada at 
December 31, 2008.  T he Company’s ot her segment is CRO Se rvices, which provid es c omprehensive product 
development and research services t o client com panies in pha rmaceutical, biotec hnology, nutraceutical, medical 
devices and di agnostics industries in 30 count ries around the worl d at Decem ber 31 , 2008, including the United 
States.   
 
The table below pre sents information about the seg ments as of and for the years ende d December 31, 2008, 2007 
and 2006, and should be read in connection with the paragraphs that follow (in thousands): 
 

Corporate
Pharmacy CRO an d Consolidated

2008: Services Services Consolidating Totals
Net sales 6,107,287$        203,320$       -$                    6,310,607$         
Depreciation and amortization expense (85,359)             (1,836)            (30,213)          (117,408)            
Restructuring and other related charges (31,130)             (1,695)            (2,959)            (35,784)              
Litigation and other related professional fees (99,267)             -                     -                      (99,267)              
Heartland matters (6,445)               -                     -                      (6,445)                
Operating income (expense) 496,578             15,908           (118,031)        394,455              
Total assets 6,896,243          171,442         392,033          7,459,718           
Capital expenditures (58,130)             (2,544)            (439)               (61,113)              

2007:
Net sales 6,024,871$        195,139$       -$                    6,220,010$         
Depreciation and amortization expense (83,818)             (1,867)            (27,718)          (113,403)            
Restructuring and other related charges (20,065)             (2,767)            (5,051)            (27,883)              
Litigation and other related professional fees (42,516)             -                     -                      (42,516)              
Heartland matters (17,193)             -                     -                      (17,193)              
Operating income (expense) 439,148             10,378           (107,583)        341,943              
Total assets 6,971,072          188,116         434,591          7,593,779           
Capital expenditures (41,370)             (1,819)            (2,081)            (45,270)              

2006:
Net sales 6,321,141$        171,852$       -$                    6,492,993$         
Depreciation and amortization expense (86,559)             (1,956)            (31,150)          (119,665)            
Restructuring and other related charges (22,565)             (2,374)            (4,623)            (29,562)              
Litigation and other related professional fees (114,778)           -                     -                      (114,778)            
Heartland matters (33,726)             -                     -                      (33,726)              
Operating income (expense) 560,991             5,340             (86,005)          480,326              
Total assets 6,962,764          168,853         266,854          7,398,471           
Capital expenditures (28,810)             (763)               (1,678)            (31,251)              

For the years ended December 31, 
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The following sum marizes net sales a nd long-lived as sets, by  geographic a rea, as of and for th e y ears e nded 
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 (in thousands): 
 

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
United States 6,238,340$     6,154,377$     6,428,533$     217,638$     195,859$     196,866$     
Foreign 72,267            65,633            64,460            2,014           3,590           3,559           
Total 6,310,607$     6,220,010$     6,492,993$     219,652$     199,449$     200,425$     

Long-Lived AssetsNet Sales

The determination of foreign sales is based on t he countr y in whic h the sales ori ginate.  No i ndividual foreign 
country’s sales were material to the consolidated sales of Omnicare.  In accordance with EITF No. 01-14, Omnicare 
included in its  reported CRO Segment net sales, amount, for the y ears ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, 
reimbursable out-of-poc kets totaling $1 8.9 m illion, $20.4 million and $17.2 million, respectively, for the United 
States geographic area; $12.4 million, $11.3 million and $8.4 million, respectively, for the foreign geographic area; 
and $31.3 million, $31.7 million and $25.6 million, respectively, for the total net sales. 
 
Note 19 – Summary of Quarterly Results (Unaudited) 
 
The following table presents the Company's quarterly financial information for 2008 and 2007 (in thousands, except 
per share data): 
 

First Second Third Fourth Full
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year

2008

Net sales(a) 1,558,979$       1,550,152$       1,603,389$       1,598,087$       6,310,607$       
Cost of sales(a) 1,177,763         1,166,461         1,187,585         1,180,874         4,712,683         
Heartland matters 1,574                1,560                1,041                1,356                5,531                
Gross profit 379,642            382,131            414,763            415,857            1,592,393         
Selling, general and

administrative expenses 236,597            237,019            237,889            236,666            948,171            
Provision for doubtful accounts 30,392              25,767              28,911              28,732              113,802            
Restructuring and other related

charges 6,448                10,784              7,655                10,897              35,784              
Litigation and other related

professional fees 21,642              16,022              13,479              48,124              99,267              
Heartland matters 319                   180                   129                   286                   914                   
Operating income 84,244              92,359              126,700            91,152              394,455            
Investment income 2,611                1,959                1,441                3,771                9,782                
Interest expense (37,056)             (35,940)             (36,908)             (34,146)             (144,050)           
Income before income taxes 49,799              58,378              91,233              60,777              260,187            
Income tax provision 19,855              21,573              33,528              29,123              104,079            
Net income 29,944$            36,805$            57,705$            31,654$            156,108$          

Earnings per share:(b)

Basic 0.25$                0.31$                0.50$                0.27$                1.33$                
Diluted 0.25$                0.31$                0.49$                0.27$                1.32$                

Dividends per common share 0.0225$            0.0225$            0.0225$            0.0225$            0.09$                

Weighted average number of 
common shares outstanding:

Basic 119,848            117,901            115,983            116,166            117,466            
Diluted 120,538            118,672            117,483            116,965            118,313            

Comprehensive income 39,071$            36,001$            58,486$            80,712$            214,270$          
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Note 19 – Summary of Quarterly Results (Unaudited)-Continued 
 

First Second Third Fourth Full
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year

2007

Net sales(a) 1,577,065$       1,549,157$       1,536,989$       1,556,799$       6,220,010$       
Cost of sales(a) 1,190,993         1,150,109         1,151,327         1,174,192         4,666,621         
Heartland matters 4,296                4,015                3,320                3,157                14,788              
Gross profit 381,776            395,033            382,342            379,450            1,538,601         
Selling, general and

administrative expenses 225,609            228,008            229,683            226,994            910,294            
Provision for doubtful accounts 28,904              29,899              30,362              124,395            213,560            
Restructuring and other related

charges 9,174                6,250                4,957                7,502                27,883              
Litigation and other related

professional fees 6,907                9,010                9,192                17,407              42,516              
Heartland matters 1,496                896                   328                   (315)                  2,405                
Operating income 109,686            120,970            107,820            3,467                341,943            
Investment income 1,921                2,102                2,369                2,323                8,715                
Interest expense (42,048)             (41,718)             (40,925)             (39,469)             (164,160)           
Income (loss) before income taxes 69,559              81,354              69,264              (33,679)             186,498            
Income tax provision 26,572              32,113              26,667              (12,910)             72,442              
Net income (loss) 42,987$           49,241$           42,597$           (20,769)$           114,056$         

Earnings (loss) per share:(b)

Basic 0.36$               0.41$               0.36$               (0.17)$               0.96$               
Diluted 0.35$                0.41$                0.35$                (0.17)$               0.94$                

Dividends per common share 0.0225$            0.0225$            0.0225$            0.0225$            0.09$                

Weighted average number of 
common shares outstanding:

Basic 119,077           119,389          119,466          119,585           119,380           
Diluted 121,378            121,371            121,229            119,585            121,258            

Comprehensive income (loss) 45,375$           49,831$           47,334$           (26,340)$           116,200$         
 

Notes to Summary of Quarterly Results: 
 
(a)  In accordance with EITF No. 01-14, Om nicare has recorded reimbursements received for “out-of-pocket” 

expenses on a grossed-up basis in total net s ales and total cost of sales for both the 2008 and 2007 periods.  
EITF No. 01-14 relates solely to the Company's CRO Services business. 

(b) Earnings per share is calc ulated independently for each  separately re ported quarterly and full year pe riod.  
Accordingly, the sum  of the separate ly rep orted q uarters may not nece ssarily be equal  to the per share  
amount for the corresponding full y ear period, as i ndependently calculated.  F urther, the fourth quarter of 
2007 loss per share has been computed using basic weighted average shares outstanding only, as the impact 
of the Company’s potentially dilutive i nstruments was a nti-dilutive during this pe riod, due to the net loss 
incurred. 
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Note 20 – Guarantor Subsidiaries 
 
The Company’s 6.125% Senior Notes due 2013, the 6.75% Senior Notes due 2013 and the 6.875% Senior Notes due 
2015 a re f ully an d unconditionally g uaranteed on an  u nsecured, joint a nd se veral basis by certain wholly-owned 
subsidiaries of the Company (the “Guarantor Subsidiaries”).  The following condensed consolidating financial data 
illustrates the  com position of Omnicare, Inc . (“ Parent”), the  Gua rantor Subsidiari es and the Non-Guarantor 
Subsidiaries as of Decem ber 31, 2008 and 2007 for the balance sheets, as well as the sta tements of income and the 
statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008.  Management believes 
separate complete financial statements of the respective Guarantor Subsidiaries would not provide information that 
would be necessary for evaluating the s ufficiency of t he Guarantor Subsidiaries , and thus are not presented.  No 
consolidating/eliminating adjustments column is presented for the condensed consolidating statements of cash flows 
since there were no significant consolidating/eliminating adjustment amounts during the periods presented. 
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Note 20 – Guarantor Subsidiaries – Continued  
 

(in thousands)

2008: Parent 
 Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 
 Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 

 Consolidating/  
Eliminating 
Adjustments 

Omnicare, Inc. 
and 

Subsidiaries 

Net sales -$                 6,080,555$         230,052$           -$                     6,310,607$     
Cost of sales -                   4,537,311           175,372             -                     4,712,683       
Heartland matters -                   5,531                  -                        -                       5,531              
Gross profit -                   1,537,713           54,680               -                       1,592,393       
Selling, general and administrative expenses 16,007          901,328              30,836               -                     948,171          
Provision for doubtful accounts -                   109,028              4,774                 -                     113,802          
Restructuring and other related charges -                   35,500                284                    -                     35,784            
Litigation and other related professional fees -                   99,267                -                        -                     99,267            
Heartland matters -                   914                     -                        -                       914                 
Operating income (loss) (16,007)        391,676              18,786               -                       394,455          
Investment income 1,584            8,198                  -                        -                       9,782              
Interest expense (139,177)      (1,791)                 (3,082)               -                       (144,050)         
Income (loss) before income taxes (153,600)      398,083              15,704               -                       260,187          
Income tax (benefit) expense (59,720)        157,693              6,106                 -                       104,079          
Equity in net income of subsidiaries 249,988        -                          -                        (249,988)          -                      
Net income 156,108$      240,390$            9,598$               (249,988)$        156,108$        

2007:

Net sales -$                 5,990,685$         229,325$           -$                     6,220,010$     
Cost of sales -                   4,493,146           173,475             -                     4,666,621       
Heartland matters -                   14,788                -                        -                       14,788            
Gross profit -                   1,482,751           55,850               -                       1,538,601       
Selling, general and administrative expenses 8,453            859,689              42,152               -                     910,294          
Provision for doubtful accounts -                   210,787              2,773                 -                     213,560          
Restructuring and other related charges -                   26,075                1,808                 -                     27,883            
Litigation and other related professional fees -                   42,516                -                        -                     42,516            
Heartland matters -                   2,405                  -                        -                       2,405              
Operating income (loss) (8,453)          341,279              9,117                 -                       341,943          
Investment income 3,355            5,360                  -                        -                       8,715              
Interest expense (159,506)      (1,173)                 (3,481)               -                       (164,160)         
Income (loss) before income taxes (164,604)      345,466              5,636                 -                       186,498          
Income tax (benefit) expense (62,467)        132,770              2,139                 -                       72,442            
Equity in net income of subsidiaries 216,193        -                          -                        (216,193)          -                      
Net income 114,056$      212,696$            3,497$               (216,193)$        114,056$        

2006:

Net sales -$                 6,194,318$         298,675$           -$                     6,492,993$     
Cost of sales -                   4,639,740           225,226             -                     4,864,966       
Heartland matters -                   27,663                -                        -                       27,663            
Gross profit -                   1,526,915           73,449               -                       1,600,364       
Selling, general and administrative expenses 8,250            832,493              46,683               -                     887,426          
Provision for doubtful accounts -                   81,180                1,029                 -                     82,209            
Restructuring and other related charges -                   28,755                807                    -                     29,562            
Litigation and other related professional fees -                   114,778              -                        -                       114,778          
Heartland matters -                   6,063                  -                        -                     6,063              
Operating income (loss) (8,250)          463,646              24,930               -                       480,326          
Investment income 6,625            3,828                  -                        -                       10,453            
Interest expense (165,819)      (1,924)                 (2,540)               -                       (170,283)         
Income (loss) before income taxes (167,444)      465,550              22,390               -                       320,496          
Income tax (benefit) expense (60,816)        189,608              8,132                 -                       136,924          
Equity in net income of subsidiaries 290,200        -                          -                        (290,200)          -                      
Net income 183,572$      275,942$            14,258$             (290,200)$        183,572$        

Summary Consolidating Statements of Income
For the years ended December 31,
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Note 20 – Guarantor Subsidiaries – Continued 
 

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets 
(in thousands) 
 

As of December 31, 2008:  Parent 
 Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 
 Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 

Consolidating/    
Eliminating 
Adjustments 

 Omnicare, Inc. 
and Subsidiaries 

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 145,178$          44,529$             25,383$             -$                        215,090$          
Restricted cash -                        1,891                 -                        -                          1,891                
Accounts receivable, net (including intercompany) -                        1,338,354          60,865               (32,064)               1,367,155         
Unbilled receivables, CRO -                        22,329               -                        -                          22,329              
Inventories -                        441,826             10,922               -                          452,748            
Deferred income tax benefits, net-current 1,202                132,991             56                      -                          134,249            
Other current  assets 1,270                171,726             5,235                 -                          178,231            
          Total current assets 147,650            2,153,646          102,461             (32,064)               2,371,693         
Properties and equipment, net -                        212,416             7,236                 -                          219,652            
Goodwill -                        4,159,159          93,747               -                          4,252,906         
Identifiable intangible assets, net -                        329,882             3,887                 -                          333,769            
Other noncurrent assets 49,644              232,008             46                      -                          281,698            
Investment in subsidiaries 6,075,308         -                        -                        (6,075,308)          -                        
          Total assets 6,272,602$      7,087,111$       207,377$          (6,107,372)$       7,459,718$      

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities (including intercompany) 28,460$            633,070$           11,323$             (32,064)$             640,789$          
Long-term debt, notes and convertible debentures 2,728,513         2,594                 56                      -                          2,731,163         
Deferred income tax liabil ities, net-noncurrent 94,245              285,361             10,492               -                          390,098            
Other noncurrent liabilit ies -                        274,825             1,459                 -                          276,284            
Stockholders’ equity 3,421,384         5,891,261          184,047             (6,075,308)          3,421,384         
          Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity 6,272,602$      7,087,111$       207,377$          (6,107,372)$       7,459,718$      
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Note 20 – Guarantor Subsidiaries – Continued 
 

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets (Continued) 
(in thousands) 

As of December 31, 2007:  Parent 
 Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 
 Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 

Consolidating/    
Eliminating 
Adjustments 

 Omnicare, Inc. 
and Subsidiaries 

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 171,779$          70,088$             32,581$             -$                        274,448$          
Restricted cash -                        3,155                 -                        -                          3,155                
Accounts receivable, net (including intercompany) -                        1,348,504          30,386               (2,602)                 1,376,288         
Unbilled receivables, CRO -                        24,855               -                        -                          24,855              
Inventories -                        436,639             11,544               -                          448,183            
Deferred income tax benefits (liabilities), net-current 878                   125,474             -                        (113)                    126,239            
Other current  assets 1,336                196,474             5,172                 -                          202,982            
          Total current assets 173,993            2,205,189          79,683               (2,715)                 2,456,150         
Properties and equipment, net -                        188,340             11,109               -                          199,449            
Goodwill -                        4,238,547          103,622             -                          4,342,169         
Identifiable intangible assets, net -                        318,255             5,382                 -                          323,637            
Other noncurrent assets 52,135              219,906             333                    -                          272,374            
Investment in subsidiaries 5,939,714         -                        -                        (5,939,714)          -                        
          Total assets 6,165,842$       7,170,237$        200,129$           (5,942,429)$        7,593,779$       

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities (including intercompany) 33,105$            600,095$           21,562$             (2,602)$               652,160$          
Long-term debt, notes and convertible debentures 2,764,510         4,505                 51,736               -                          2,820,751         
Deferred income tax liabilities, net-noncurrent 68,534              372,110             9,258                 (113)                    449,789            
Other noncurrent liabilities 7,990                370,352             1,034                 -                          379,376            
Stockholders’ equity 3,291,703         5,823,175          116,539             (5,939,714)          3,291,703         
          Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity 6,165,842$       7,170,237$        200,129$           (5,942,429)$        7,593,779$       
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Note 20 – Guarantor Subsidiaries – Continued 
 

(in thousands)

2008  Parent 
 Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 
 Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 

Omnicare, Inc. 
and 

Subsidiaries 

Cash flows from operating activities:
                    Net cash flows from operating activities (73,175)$       515,417$       (4,045)$             438,197$        

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash received -                    (225,710)        -                        (225,710)         
Capital expenditures -                    (61,156)          43                      (61,113)           
Transfer of cash to trusts for employee health and 
    severance costs, net of payments out of the trust -                    847                -                        847                 
Other -                    683                -                        683                 
                    Net cash flows used in investing activities -                    (285,336)        43                      (285,293)         

Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings on line of credit facilities 396,000        -                     -                        396,000          
Payments on line of credit facilities, term A loan and notes payable (446,000)       -                     (39,081)             (485,081)         
Payments on long-term borrowings and obligations (3,193)           -                     -                        (3,193)             
(Decrease) increase in cash overdraft balance (5,723)           274                -                        (5,449)             
Payments for Omnicare common stock repurchase (100,165)       -                     -                        (100,165)         
Payments for stock awards and exercise of stock  
    options, net of stock tendered in payment (1,390)           -                     -                        (1,390)             
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 963               -                     -                        963                 
Dividends paid (10,751)         -                     -                        (10,751)           
Other 216,833        (255,914)        39,081               -                      
                    Net cash flows used in financing activities 46,574          (255,640)        -                        (209,066)         

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash -                    -                     (3,196)               (3,196)             

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (26,601)         (25,559)          (7,198)               (59,358)           
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 171,779        70,088           32,581               274,448          
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 145,178$     44,529$        25,383$             215,090$       

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

For the  year ended December 31,
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Note 20 – Guarantor Subsidiaries – Continued 
 

(in thousands)

2007 Parent 
 Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 
 Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 

Omnicare, Inc. 
and 

Subsidiaries 

Cash flows from operating activities:
                    Net cash flows from operating activities (91,730)$       587,462$       9,797$               505,529$        

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash received -                    (151,135)        -                        (151,135)         
Capital expenditures -                    (44,864)          (406)                  (45,270)           
Transfer of cash to trusts for employee health and 
    severance costs, net of payments out of the trust -                    291                -                        291                 
Other -                    (774)               -                        (774)                
                    Net cash flows used in investing activities -                    (196,482)        (406)                  (196,888)         

Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings on line of credit facilities 95,000          -                     -                        95,000            
Payments on line of credit facilities, term A loan and notes payable (245,000)       -                     -                        (245,000)         
Payments on long-term borrowings and obligations (5,734)           -                     -                        (5,734)             
(Decrease) increase in cash overdraft balance 3,511            (7,091)            -                        (3,580)             
Payments for stock awards and exercise of stock  
    options, net of stock tendered in payment (8,966)           -                     -                        (8,966)             
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 4,112            -                     -                        4,112              
Dividends paid (10,971)         -                     -                        (10,971)           
Other 388,063        (388,063)        -                        -                      
                    Net cash flows from financing activities 220,015        (395,154)        -                        (175,139)         

Effect of  exchange rate changes on  cash -                    -                     2,912                 2,912              

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 128,285        (4,174)            12,303               136,414          
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 43,494          74,262           20,278               138,034          
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 171,779$      70,088$         32,581$             274,448$        

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows - Continued

For the  year ended December 31,
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Note 20 – Guarantor Subsidiaries – Continued 
 

(in thousands)

2006  Parent 
 Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 
 Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 

Omnicare, Inc. 
and 

Subsidiaries 

Cash flows from operating activities:
                    Net cash flows from operating activities (82,220)$       205,435$       (14,695)$           108,520$        

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash received -                    (93,540)          (806)                  (94,346)           
Capital expenditures -                    (30,733)          (518)                  (31,251)           
Transfer of cash to trusts for employee health and 
    severance costs, net of payments out of the trust -                    (1,321)            -                        (1,321)             
Other -                    46                  -                        46                   
                    Net cash flows used by investing activities -                    (125,548)        (1,324)               (126,872)         

Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings on line of credit facilities 158,000        -                     -                        158,000          
Payments on line of credit facilities, term A loan and notes payable (258,000)       -                     -                        (258,000)         
Proceeds from long-term borrowings and obligations 63                 -                     -                        63                   
Payments on long-term borrowings and obligations (14,921)         -                     -                        (14,921)           
Fees paid for financing arrangements (3,482)           -                     -                        (3,482)             
(Decrease) increase in cash overdraft balance 5,101            7,163             -                        12,264            
Proceeds from stock offering, net of issuance costs 49,239          -                     -                        49,239            
Payments for stock awards and exercise of stock  
    options and warrants, net of stock tendered in payment (2,751)           -                     -                        (2,751)             
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 10,411          -                     -                        10,411            
Dividends paid (10,937)         -                     -                        (10,937)           
Other 49,764          (51,787)          2,023                 -                      
                    Net cash flows from financing activities (17,513)         (44,624)          2,023                 (60,114)           

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash -                    -                     1,079                 1,079              

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (99,733)         35,263           (12,917)             (77,387)           
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 143,227        38,999           33,195               215,421          
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 43,494$       74,262$        20,278$             138,034$       

For the year ended December 31,

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows - Continued

 
The Company’s 3.25% Convertible Debentures due 2035 are fully and unconditionally guaranteed on an unsecured 
basis by Omnicare Purchasing C ompany, LP , a  w holly-owned s ubsidiary of t he Company (t he “G uarantor 
Subsidiary”).  The fo llowing condensed consolidating financial data illustrates th e composition of Omnicare, Inc. 
(“Parent”), the Guarantor Subsidiary and the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 for the 
balance sheets, as well as the statements of income and the statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the 
period ended December 31, 2008.  Mana gement believes sepa rate complete financial  statements of the respecti ve 
Guarantor Subsidiary would not provide information that would be necessary for evaluating the sufficiency of t he 
Guarantor Subsidiary, and thus are not presented.  Th e Guarantor Subsidiary does not have a ny material net  cash 
flows in the condensed consolidating statements of cash flows.  No consolidating/eliminating adjustments column is 
presented for t he con densed co nsolidating st atements of cash flows sinc e there were no significant 
consolidating/eliminating adjustment amounts during the periods presented. 
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Note 20 – Guarantor Subsidiaries – Continued 
 

(in thousands)

2008:  Parent 
 Guarantor 
Subsidiary 

 Non-Guarantor 
Subsidiaries 

 Consolidating/  
Eliminating 
Adjustments 

Omnicare, Inc. 
and 

Subsidiaries 

Net sales -$                 -$                        6,310,607$        -$                     6,310,607$     
Cost of sales -                   -                          4,712,683          -                     4,712,683       
Heartland matters -                   -                          5,531                 -                       5,531              
Gross profit -                   -                          1,592,393          -                       1,592,393       
Selling, general and administrative expenses 16,007          1,343                  930,821             -                     948,171          
Provision for doubtful accounts -                   -                          113,802             -                     113,802          
Restructuring and other related charges -                   -                          35,784               -                     35,784            
Litigation and other related professional fees -                   -                          99,267               -                       99,267            
Heartland matters -                   -                          914                    -                     914                 
Operating income (loss) (16,007)        (1,343)                 411,805             -                       394,455          
Investment income 1,584            -                          8,198                 -                       9,782              
Interest expense (139,177)      -                          (4,873)               -                       (144,050)         
Income (loss) before income taxes (153,600)      (1,343)                 415,130             -                       260,187          
Income tax (benefit) expense (59,720)        (522)                    164,321             -                       104,079          
Equity in net income of subsidiaries 249,988        -                          -                        (249,988)          -                      
Net income (loss) 156,108$     (821)$                 250,809$          (249,988)$        156,108$       

2007:

Net sales -$                 -$                        6,220,010$        -$                     6,220,010$     
Cost of sales -                   -                          4,666,621          -                     4,666,621       
Heartland matters -                   -                          14,788               -                       14,788            
Gross profit -                   -                          1,538,601          -                       1,538,601       
Selling, general and administrative expenses 8,453            1,093                  900,748             -                     910,294          
Provision for doubtful accounts -                   -                          213,560             -                     213,560          
Restructuring and other related charges -                   -                          27,883               -                     27,883            
Litigation and other related professional fees -                   -                          42,516               -                       42,516            
Heartland matters -                   -                          2,405                 -                     2,405              
Operating income (loss) (8,453)          (1,093)                 351,489             -                       341,943          
Investment income 3,355            -                          5,360                 -                       8,715              
Interest expense (159,506)      -                          (4,654)               -                       (164,160)         
Income (loss) before income taxes (164,604)      (1,093)                 352,195             -                       186,498          
Income tax (benefit) expense (62,467)        (415)                    135,324             -                       72,442            
Equity in net income of subsidiaries 216,193        -                          -                        (216,193)          -                      
Net income (loss) 114,056$     (678)$                 216,871$          (216,193)$        114,056$       

2006:

Net sales -$                 -$                        6,492,993$        -$                     6,492,993$     
Cost of sales -                   -                          4,864,966          -                     4,864,966       
Heartland matters -                   -                          27,663               -                       27,663            
Gross profit -                   -                          1,600,364          -                       1,600,364       
Selling, general and administrative expenses 8,250            1,020                  878,156             -                     887,426          
Provision for doubtful accounts -                   -                          82,209               -                     82,209            
Restructuring and other related charges -                   -                          29,562               -                     29,562            
Litigation and other related professional fees -                   -                          114,778             -                       114,778          
Heartland matters -                   -                          6,063                 -                     6,063              
Operating income (loss) (8,250)          (1,020)                 489,596             -                       480,326          
Investment income 6,625            -                          3,828                 -                       10,453            
Interest expense (165,819)      -                          (4,464)               -                       (170,283)         
Income (loss) before income taxes (167,444)      (1,020)                 488,960             -                       320,496          
Income tax (benefit) expense (60,816)        (343)                    198,083             -                       136,924          
Equity in net income of subsidiaries 290,200        -                          -                        (290,200)          -                      
Net income (loss) 183,572$     (677)$                 290,877$          (290,200)$        183,572$       

Summary Consolidating Statements of Income

For the years ended December 31,
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Note 20 – Guarantor Subsidiaries – Continued 
 

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets 
(in thousands) 

As of December 31, 2008:  Parent 
 Guarantor 
Subsidiary 

 Non-Guarantor 
Subsidiaries 

Consolidating/    
Eliminating 
Adjustments 

Omnicare, Inc. 
and 

Subsidiaries 

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 145,178$          -$                      69,912$             -$                        215,090$        
Restricted cash -                        -                        1,891                 -                          1,891              
Accounts receivable, net (including intercompany) -                        66                      1,367,155          (66)                      1,367,155       
Unbilled receivables, CRO -                        -                        22,329               -                          22,329            
Inventories -                        -                        452,748             -                          452,748          
Deferred income tax benefits, net-current 1,202                -                        133,047             -                          134,249          
Other current  assets 1,270                -                        176,961             -                          178,231          
          Total current assets 147,650            66                      2,224,043          (66)                      2,371,693       
Properties and equipment, net -                        26                      219,626             -                          219,652          
Goodwill -                        -                        4,252,906          -                          4,252,906       
Identifiable intangible assets, net -                        -                        333,769             -                          333,769          
Other noncurrent assets 49,644              19                      232,035             -                          281,698          
Investment in subsidiaries 6,075,308         -                        -                        (6,075,308)          -                      
          Total assets 6,272,602$      111$                  7,262,379$       (6,075,374)$       7,459,718$    

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities (including intercompany) 28,460$            -$                      612,395$           (66)$                    640,789$        
Long-term debt, notes and convertible debentures 2,728,513         -                        2,650                 -                          2,731,163       
Deferred income tax liabilities, net-noncurrent 94,245              -                        295,853             -                          390,098          
Other noncurrent liabilities -                        -                        276,284             -                          276,284          
Stockholders’ equity 3,421,384         111                    6,075,197          (6,075,308)          3,421,384       
          Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity 6,272,602$      111$                  7,262,379$       (6,075,374)$       7,459,718$    
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Note 20 – Guarantor Subsidiaries – Continued 
 

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets 
(in thousands) 

As of December 31, 2007:  Parent 
 Guarantor 
Subsidiary 

 Non-Guarantor 
Subsidiaries 

Consolidating/    
Eliminating 
Adjustments 

Omnicare, Inc. 
and 

Subsidiaries 

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 171,779$          -$                      102,669$           -$                        274,448$        
Restricted cash -                        -                        3,155                 -                          3,155              
Accounts receivable, net (including intercompany) -                        43                      1,376,288          (43)                      1,376,288       
Unbilled receivables, CRO -                        -                        24,855               -                          24,855            
Inventories -                        -                        448,183             -                          448,183          
Deferred income tax benefits, net-current 878                   -                        125,361             -                          126,239          
Other current  assets 1,336                -                        201,646             -                          202,982          
          Total current assets 173,993            43                      2,282,157          (43)                      2,456,150       
Properties and equipment, net -                        28                      199,421             -                          199,449          
Goodwill -                        -                        4,342,169          -                          4,342,169       
Identifiable intangible assets, net -                        -                        323,637             -                          323,637          
Other noncurrent assets 52,135              19                      220,220             -                          272,374          
Investment in subsidiaries 5,939,714         -                        -                        (5,939,714)          -                      
          Total assets 6,165,842$      90$                   7,367,604$       (5,939,757)$       7,593,779$    

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities (including intercompany) 33,105$            -$                      619,098$           (43)$                    652,160$        
Long-term debt, notes and convertible debentures 2,764,510         -                        56,241               -                          2,820,751       
Deferred income tax liabilities, net-noncurrent 68,534              -                        381,255             -                          449,789          
Other noncurrent liabilit ies 7,990                -                        371,386             -                          379,376          
Stockholders’ equity 3,291,703         90                      5,939,624          (5,939,714)          3,291,703       
          Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity 6,165,842$       90$                    7,367,604$        (5,939,757)$        7,593,779$     
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Note 20 – Guarantor Subsidiaries – Continued 
 

(in thousands)

2008:  Parent 
 Guarantor 
Subsidiary 

 Non-Guarantor 
Subsidiaries 

 Omnicare, Inc. 
and Subsidiaries 

Cash flows from operating activities:
                    Net cash flows from operating activities (73,175)$           -$               511,372$           438,197$           

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash received -                    -                 (225,710)           (225,710)            
Capital expenditures -                    -                 (61,113)             (61,113)              
Transfer of cash to trusts for employee health and 
    severance costs, net of payments out of the trust -                    -                 847                    847                    
Other -                    -                 683                    683                    
                    Net cash flows used in investing activities -                    -                 (285,293)           (285,293)            

Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings on line of credit facilities 396,000            -                 -                    396,000             
Payments on line of credit facilities, term A loan and notes payable (446,000)           -                 (39,081)             (485,081)            
Payments on long-term borrowings and obligations (3,193)               -                 -                    (3,193)                
(Decrease) increase in cash overdraft balance (5,723)               -                 274                    (5,449)                
Payments for Omnicare common stock repurchase (100,165)           -                 -                    (100,165)            
Payments for stock awards and exercise of stock
    options, net of stock tendered in payment (1,390)               -                 -                    (1,390)                
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 963                   -                 -                    963                    
Dividends paid (10,751)             -                 -                    (10,751)              
Other 216,833            -                 (216,833)           -                     
                    Net cash flows used in financing activities 46,574              -                 (255,640)           (209,066)            

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash -                    -                 (3,196)               (3,196)                

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (26,601)             -                 (32,757)             (59,358)              
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 171,779            -                 102,669             274,448             
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 145,178$         -$              69,912$             215,090$          

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31,
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Note 20 – Guarantor Subsidiaries – Continued 
 

(in thousands)

2007 Parent 
 Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 
 Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 
 Omnicare, Inc. 
and Subsidiaries 

Cash flows from operating activities:
                    Net cash flows from operating activities (91,730)$           -$               597,259$           505,529$           

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of  businesses, net o f cash received -                    -                 (151,135)           (151,135)            
Capital expenditures -                    -                 (45,270)             (45,270)              
Transfer of cash to trusts for employee health and    
    severance costs, net of payments out of the trust -                    -                 291                    291                    
Other -                    -                 (774)                  (774)                   
                    Net cash flows used in investing activities -                    -                 (196,888)           (196,888)            

  
Cash flows from financing activities:   
Borrowing on line of credit  facilities 95,000              -                 -                    95,000               
Payments on line of credit facilities, term A loan and notes payable (245,000)           -                 -                    (245,000)            
Payments on long-term borrowings and obligations (5,734)               -                 -                    (5,734)                
(Decrease) increase in cash overdraft balance 3,511                -                 (7,091)               (3,580)                
Payments for stock awards and exercise of stock    
    options, net of stock tendered in payment (8,966)               -                 -                    (8,966)                
Excess tax benefits f rom stock-based compensation 4,112                -                 -                    4,112                 
Dividends paid (10,971)             -                 -                    (10,971)              
Other 388,063            -                 (388,063)           -                     
                    Net cash flows from financing activities 220,015            -                 (395,154)           (175,139)            

  
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash -                    -                 2,912                 2,912                 

  
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 128,285            -                 8,129                 136,414             
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 43,494              -                 94,540               138,034             
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 171,779$          -$               102,669$           274,448$           

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows - Continued

For the year ended December 31,
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Note 20 – Guarantor Subsidiaries – Continued 
 

(in thousands)

2006  Parent 
 Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 
 Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 
 Omnicare, Inc. 
and Subsidiaries 

Cash flows from operating activities:
                    Net cash flows from operating activities (82,220)$           -$               190,740$           108,520$           

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash received -                    -                 (94,346)             (94,346)              
Capital expenditures -                    -                 (31,251)             (31,251)              
Transfer of cash to trusts for employee health and 
    severance costs, net of payments out of the trust -                    -                 (1,321)               (1,321)                
Other -                    -                 46                      46                      
                    Net cash flows used by investing activities -                    -                 (126,872)           (126,872)            

Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings on line of credit facilities 158,000            -                 -                    158,000             
Payments on line of credit facilities, term A loan and notes payable (258,000)           -                 -                    (258,000)            
Proceeds from long-term borrowings and obligations 63                     -                 -                    63                      
Payments on long-term borrowings and obligations (14,921)             -                 -                    (14,921)              
Fees paid for financing arrangements (3,482)               -                 -                    (3,482)                
(Decrease) increase in cash overdraft balance 5,101                -                 7,163                 12,264               
Proceeds from stock offering, net of issuance costs 49,239              -                 -                    49,239               
Payments for stock awards and exercise of stock  
    options and warrants, net of stock tendered in payment (2,751)               -                 -                    (2,751)                
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 10,411              -                 -                    10,411               
Dividends paid (10,937)             -                 -                    (10,937)              
Other 49,764              -                 (49,764)             -                     
                    Net cash flows from financing activities (17,513)             -                 (42,601)             (60,114)              

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash -                    -                 1,079                 1,079                 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (99,733)             -                 22,346               (77,387)              
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 143,227            -                 72,194               215,421             
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 43,494$           -$              94,540$             138,034$          

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows - Continued

For the year ended December 31,
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ITEM 9. - CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND 
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 
 
None. 
 
ITEM 9A. - CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 
 
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.  Based on an evaluation, as of the end of the period covered by 
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our 
disclosure c ontrols an d procedures (as de fined i n the E xchange Act Rule 13a-15(e )) ar e effective to ensure t hat 
information required to be disclosed in the reports that the Company files under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and 
are also effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that the Company files or submits 
under th e Securities Ex change Act of  1934  is accu mulated and  co mmunicated to  t he Co mpany’s management, 
including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financi al Officer, to allow timely d ecisions re garding required 
disclosure. 
 
Changes in Internal Control.  There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that 
occurred d uring the C ompany’s fo urth q uarter en ded December 3 1, 2 008 that ha ve materially affected, or are  
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 
 
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
Our management is res ponsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal cont rol over financial reporting, 
as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f).  The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is 
a process that is designe d under the s upervision of the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer to 
provide reasonable assurance regardi ng the reliability of financial reportin g and the preparation of fi nancial 
statements for external purposes in acc ordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.  
Our management conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based 
on the f ramework in Internal C ontrol – Int egrated Framework is sued by  the C ommittee of Spo nsoring 
Organizations of the T readway Commission.  B ased on our assessment under the framework in Internal Control – 
Integrated Fr amework, our management concluded that , as o f Dece mber 31, 2008, our inter nal contr ol o ver 
financial reporting was effective. 
 
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.  
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 
 
The e ffectiveness of t he C ompany’s in ternal control over fina ncial reporting as of December 31, 2008 ha s been 
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in thei r report 
which appears herein. 
 
ITEM 9B. - OTHER INFORMATION 
 
None. 
 

 
PART III 

 
ITEM 10. - DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE 
                GOVERNANCE 
 
The information required by this Item  10 regar ding our directors and executive office rs, our a udit committee and 
Section 16(a) compliance is included under the captions “Election of Directors,” “Governance of the Company and 
Board Matters” and “Section 16(A) Be neficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in ou r proxy statement for our 
2009 annual meeting of stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference.  Information concerning our executive 
officers is also included under the caption “Executive Officers of the Company” in Part I of this Report.  There have 
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been no m aterial changes to  the proce dures by  whic h st ockholders m ay recom mend nom inees to the b oard o f 
directors as described in the Company's Proxy Statement dated April 25, 2008. 
 
Audit Committee Financial Expert.  The information required by this Item 10 disclosure requirement is included in 
our proxy statement for our 2009 annual meeting of stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Codes of Ethics.  We expect all of our employees to act in accordance with and to abide by the Omnicare “Corporate 
Compliance Program – It’s About Integrity” (the “Omnicare Integrity Code”).  The Omnicare Integrity Code is a set 
of business values and procedures that provides guidance to Om nicare employees with respect to c ompliance with 
the law in all of their business dealings and decisions on behalf of Omnicare and with respect to the maintenance of 
ethical standards, which are a vital and integral part of Omnicare’s business. 
 
The Omnicare Integrity Code applies to  all e mployees including the Chief Ex ecutive Officer, the C hief Financial 
Officer, the Principal Accounting Officer and other senior financial officers (the “Covered Officers”).  In addition to 
being bound by the Omnicare Integrity Code’s provisions about ethical conduct, conflicts of interest and compliance 
with law, Omnicare has adopted a Code of Ethics for the Covered Officers.  The Company will furnish any person, 
without charge, a copy of the Code of Ethics for the Covered Officers upon written request addr essed to Omnicare, 
Inc., 1600 RiverCenter II, 100 East RiverCenter Boulevard, Covington, KY  41011, Attn.:  Corporate Secretary.  A 
copy of the Code of Ethics for the Covered Officers can also be found on our web site at www.omnicare.com.  Any 
waiver of any provision of the Code granted to a Covered Officer may only be granted by our Board of Directors or 
its Audit Commit tee.  If a waiver is granted, information concerning the waiv er will be posted on our web site at 
www.omnicare.com for a period of 12 months. 
 
ITEM 11. - EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 
 
The inf ormation required by th is I tem 1 1 is in cluded in ou r proxy statement f or our 2009 annu al m eeting of  
stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
ITEM 12. - SECU RITY OWNE RSHIP OF CERT AIN BENEFI CIAL O WNERS A ND MANAGEMENT 
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 
 
Equity Compensation Plan Information 
 
The following table sets forth certain information regarding our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2008 
(in thousands, except exercise price data): 

Plan Category
Equity compensation plans
  approved by stockholders(a ) 6,743 30.41$                           4,262

Equity compensation plans
  not approved by stockholders(b) 615 27.33                              -

7,358 30.15$                           4,262

Number of Securities to be 
issued Upon Exercise of 
Outstanding Options and 

Warrants

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price of 

Outstanding Options and 
Warrants

Number of Securities 
Remaining Available  for 
Future Issuance Under 
Equity Compensation 

Plans(c )

 
(a)  Includes the 1992 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan,  the 1995 Premium-Priced Stock Option Plan an d the 

2004 Stock and Incentive Plan. 
(b)  Includes the 1998 Long-Term Employee Incentive Plan and Director Stock Plan, as further discussed in the 

"Stock-Based Employee Compensation" note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included at 
Item 8 of thi s Filing.  Additionally, at Decem ber 31, 2008, the outstand ing am ount includes 10 
compensation related warrants issued in 2003 at an exercise price of $33.08 per share. 

(c) Excludes securities listed in the first column of the table.  
 
The remaining information required by this Item 12 is included in our proxy statement for our 2009 annual meeting 
of stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference. 



 

 129

 
ITEM 13. - CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND 
        DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE 
 
The inf ormation required by th is I tem 1 3 is in cluded in ou r proxy statement f or our 2009 annu al m eeting of  
stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
ITEM 14. - PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES 

 
The inf ormation required by th is I tem 1 4 is in cluded in ou r proxy statement f or our 2009 annu al m eeting of  
stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference. 
 

PART IV 
 
ITEM 15. - EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 
 
 (a)(1) Financial Statements 
 

Our 2008 Consolidated Financial Statements are included in Part II, Item 8, of this Filing. 
 
 (a)(2) Financial Statement Schedule 
 

See Index to Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule at Part II, Item 8, of this Filing. 
 
 (a) (3) Exhibits 
 
   See Index of Exhibits. 



 

 

SIGNATURES 
 
 
Pursuant to the requirem ents of Sectio n l3 or l5(d) of the Securities Exchan ge Act of l934, the Company has duly 
caused th is report to  be sign ed on  its behalf b y th e under signed th ereunto duly au thorized, on th is 26 th day of 
February 2009. 
 
     OMNICARE, INC. 
 

/s/David W. Froesel, Jr.   
David W. Froesel, Jr.  
Senior Vice President and  
Chief Financial Officer 

     
 
Pursuant to the requi rements of the S ecurities Exchange Act of l934, this Re port has been signed below by the 
following persons on behalf of the Company and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 
     
Signature    Title                 Date 
 
/s/Joel F. Gemunder  President, Chief Executive Officer and Director 
Joel F. Gemunder   (Principal Executive Officer) 
 
/s/David W. Froesel, Jr.  Senior Vice President and      
David W. Froesel, Jr.  Chief Financial Officer 
    (Pri ncipal Financial and 
    Accoun ting Officer) 
 
            February 26, 2009 
John T. Crotty, Director* 
Steven J. Heyer, Director* 
Sandra E. Laney, Director*        
Andrea R. Lindell, Ph. D, RN, Director*        
John H. Timoney, Director*      
James D. Shelton, Director* 
Amy Wallman, Director* 
 
 
 
 
 

*Cheryl D. Hodges, by signing her name hereto, signs this document on behalf of herself and on behalf of 
each person indicated above pursuant to a power of attorney duly executed by such person and filed 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

 
 
        /s/Cheryl D. Hodges  
        Cheryl D. Hodges 
        (Attorney-in-Fact)
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SCHEDULE II 
 

OMNICARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

(in thousands) 
 

Additions
Balance at   charged Write-offs, Balance

Year ended beginning of to cost net of at end
December 31, period and expenses Acquisitions recoveries of period

Allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable:

2008 334,061$           113,802$           5,550$               (120,444)$         332,969$           

2007 191,048             213,560             1,536                 (72,083)             334,061             

2006 169,390             82,209               1,694                 (62,245)             191,048              



 

     
(a) Not in this conformed copy.    E-1 

INDEX OF EXHIBITS 
 
 
 
Number and Description of Exhibit 
(Numbers Coincide with Item 601 of Regulation S-K) 

  

Document Incorporated by Reference from a 
Previous Filing, Filed Herewith or Furnished 
Herewith, as Indicated Below 

      
(2) Agreement and Plan of Merger, by and among 

Omnicare, Inc., NCS Acquisition Corp. and NCS 
HealthCare, Inc., dated as of December 17, 2002 

 Exhibit (a) (5)(E) to NCS Acquisition Corp.’s 
Schedule TO-T, as amended and filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on 
December 18, 2002 

 
(2.1) 

 
Agreement and Plan of Merger, by and among 
Omnicare, Inc., Nectarine Acquisition Corp. and 
NeighborCare, Inc., dated as of July 6, 2005 

 
 

 
Form 8-K 
July 7, 2005 

 
(2.2) 

  
Asset Purchase Agreement, by and among 
Omnicare, Inc., RxCrossroads, L.L.C., 
RxInnovations, L.L.C., Making Distribution 
Intelligent, L.L.C. and Louisville Public 
Warehouse Company, dated as of July 1, 2005 

 
 

 
Form 8-K 
July 8, 2005 

 
(2.3) 

 
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 
9, 2005, by and between Omnicare, Inc., Hospice 
Acquisition Corp., excelleRx, Inc. and certain of 
the stockholders and option holders of excelleRx, 
Inc. 

 
 

 
Form 8-K 
July 14, 2005 

 
(3.1) 

 
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of 
Omnicare, Inc. (as amended) 

  
Form 10-K 
March 27, 2003 

 
(3.2) 

 
Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior 
Participating Preferred Stock of Omnicare, Inc., 
dated as of May 18, 1999 

 
 

 
Form 10-K 
March 27, 2003 

 
(3.3) 

 
Third Amended and Restated By-Laws of 
Omnicare, Inc. 

 
 

 
Form 8-K 
December 23, 2008 

 
(4.1) 

 
Rights Agreement, and related Exhibits, dated as 
of May 17, 1999 between Omnicare, Inc. and 
First Chicago Trust Company of New York, as 
Rights Agent 

 
 

 
Form 8-K 
May 18, 1999 

 
(4.2) 

 
Subordinated Debt Securities Indenture, dated as 
of June 13, 2003, between Omnicare, Inc. and 
SunTrust Bank, as Trustee 

 
 

 
Form 8-K 
June 16, 2003 

 
(4.3) 

 
First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 
13, 2003, between Omnicare, Inc. and SunTrust 
Bank, as Trustee 

 
 

 
Form 8-K 
June 16, 2003 

    



 

     
(a) Not in this conformed copy.    E-2 
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Number and Description of Exhibit 
(Numbers Coincide with Item 601 of Regulation S-K) 

 
 

 

Document Incorporated by Reference from a 
Previous Filing, Filed Herewith or Furnished 
Herewith, as Indicated Below 

      
 
(4.4) 

 
Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 
13, 2003, between Omnicare, Inc. and SunTrust 
Bank, as Trustee 

  
Form 8-K 
June 16, 2003 

 
(4.5) 
 

 
Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 
8, 2005, between Omnicare, Inc. & SunTrust 
Bank, as Trustee 

 
 

 
Form 8-K 
March 9, 2005 

 
(4.6) 

 
Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
December 15, 2005, by and among the Company, 
the guarantors named therein and the Trustee 
(including the Form of 2013 Note) 

  
Form 8-K 
December 16, 2005 

 
(4.7) 

 
Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
December 15, 2005, by and among the Company, 
the guarantors named therein and the Trustee 
(including the Form of 2015 Note) 

  
Form 8-K 
December 16, 2005 

(4.8) Inde nture, dated as of December 15, 2005, by and 
among the Company, Omnicare Purchasing 
Company, LP, as guarantor and the Trustee 
(including the Form of Convertible Debenture) 

 Form  8-K 
December 16, 2005 

 
(4.9) 

 
Guarantee Agreement of Omnicare, Inc. relating 
to the Trust Preferred Income Equity Redeemable 
Securities of Omnicare Capital Trust I, dated as 
of June 13, 2003 

 
 

 
Form 8-K 
June 16, 2003 

 
(4.10) 
 

 
Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of 
Omnicare Capital Trust II, dated as of March 8, 
2005 

 
 

 
Form 8-K 
March 9, 2005 

 
(4.11) 

 
Guarantee Agreement of Omnicare, Inc. relating 
to the Series B 4.00% Trust Preferred Income 
Equity Redeemable Securities of Omnicare 
Capital Trust II, dated as of March 8, 2005 

  
Form 8-K 
March 9, 2005 
 

 
(10.1) 

 
Annual Incentive Plan for Senior Executive 
Officers* 

 
 

 
Appendix B to Proxy Statement for 2001 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders dated April 
10, 2001 

 
(10.2) 

 
1992 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan* 

 
 

 
Appendix A to Proxy Statement for 2002 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders dated April 
10, 2002 
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Number and Description of Exhibit 
(Numbers Coincide with Item 601 of Regulation S-K) 
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(10.3) 

 
1995 Premium-Priced Stock Option Plan* 

 
 

 
Exhibit A to Proxy Statement for 1995 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders dated April 
10, 1995 

(10.4) 1998 Long-Term Employee Incentive Plan*  Form 10-K 
March 30, 1999 

 
(10.5) 

 
Amendment to 1998 Long-Term Employee 
Incentive Plan, effective November 26, 2002* 

  
Form 10-K 
March 27, 2003 

 
(10.6) 

 
Director Stock Plan for Members of the 
Compensation and Incentive Committee* 

  
Form S-8 
December 14, 2001 

 
(10.7) 

 
Director Compensation Program Update* 

  
Form 8-K 
May 20, 2005 

 
(10.8) 
 

 
Omnicare, Inc. 2004 Stock and Incentive Plan* 

  
Appendix B to the Company’s Definitive 
Proxy Statement for 2004 Annual Meeting of 
Stockholders, filed on April 9, 2004 

 
(10.9) 

 
Form of Indemnification Agreement with 
Directors and Officers* 
 

  
Form 10-K 
March 30, 1999 

(10.10) Em ployment Agreement with J.F. Gemunder, 
dated August 4, 1988* 

 Form  10-K 
March 27, 2003 

 
(10.11) 

 
Employment Agreement with C.D. Hodges, dated 
August 4, 1988* 

  
Form 10-K 
March 27, 2003 

 
(10.12) 

 
Employment Agreement with 
P.E. Keefe, dated March 4, 1993* 

  
Form 10-K 
March 25, 1994 

 
(10.13) 

 
Split Dollar Agreement with 
E.L. Hutton, dated June 1, 1995, (Agreement in 
the same form exists with  
J.F. Gemunder)* 
 

  
Form 10-K 
March 25, 1996 
 

(10.14) Split Dollar Agreement, dated  
June 1, 1995 (Agreements in the same form exist 
with the following Executive Officers: D.W. 
Froesel, Jr., C.D. Hodges, P.E. Keefe and J.M. 
Stamps)* 

 Form  10-K 
March 25, 1996 
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(10.15) 

 
Amended and Restated Omnicare, Inc. Excess 
Benefit Plan* 

 
 

 
        (a) 
 

 
(10.16) 

 
Employment Agreement with D.W. Froesel, Jr., 
dated February 17, 1996* 
 

  
Form 10-K 
March 31, 1997 

(10.17) Form of Amendment to Employment  
Agreement with D.W. Froesel, Jr., dated as of 
February 25, 2000* 

 Form  10-K 
March 30, 2000 

 
(10.18) 

 
Amendment to Employment Agreement with 
D.W. Froesel, Jr., dated December 22, 2008* 

  
        (a) 
 

 
(10.19) 

 
Form of Amendment to Employment Agreements 
with J.F. Gemunder, P.E. Keefe and C.D. 
Hodges, dated as of February 25, 2000* 

  
Form 10-K 
March 30, 2000 

 
(10.20) 

 
Amendment to Employment Agreement with J.F. 
Gemunder, dated as of September 25, 2002* 

 
 

 
Form 10-K 
March 27, 2003 

 
(10.21) 

 
Amendment to Employment Agreement with J.F. 
Gemunder, dated as of April 6, 2006* 

 
 

 
Form 8-K 
April 12, 2006 

 
(10.22) 

 
Amendment to Employment Agreement with J.F. 
Gemunder, dated as of December 22, 2008 
(Amendments in the same form exist with the 
following Executive Officers: P.E. Keefe and 
C.D. Hodges)* 

 
 

 
        (a) 
 

(10.23) Amendment to Employment Agreement with P. 
E. Keefe, dated as of April 6, 2006* 

 Form  8-K 
April 12, 2006 
 

 
(10.24) 

 
Amendment to Employment Agreement with 
C.D. Hodges, dated as of April 6, 2006* 
 

 
 

 
Form 8-K 
April 12, 2006 

(10.25) Employment Agreement with J.M. Stamps, dated 
as of June 1, 1999* 

         (a) 
 

 
(10.26) 

 
Amendment to Employment Agreement with 
J.M. Stamps, dated as of December 29, 2008* 

  
        (a) 
 

 
(10.27) 

 
Form of Stock Option Award Letter* 
 

  
Form 8-K 
December 1, 2004 
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(10.28) 

 
Form of Restricted Stock Award Letter 
(Executive Officers)* 

 
 

 
        (a) 
 

    
 
(10.29) 

 
Form of Restricted Stock Award Letter 
(Employees Other Than Executive Officers)* 

 
 

 
        (a) 
 

 
(10.30) 

 
Prime Vendor Agreement with McKesson, dated 
as of  
December 23, 2003** 

 
 

 
Form 10-K  
March 15, 2004 

 
(10.31) 

 
Summary of Non-Employee Director 
Compensation* 

  
Form 10-K 
March 16, 2005 
 

(10.32) Credit Agreement, dated as of July 28, 2005, 
among Omnicare, Inc., as borrower, the lenders 
named therein, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as a 
joint syndication agent, Lehman Brothers Inc., as 
a joint syndication agent, CIBC World Markets 
Corp., as a co-documentation agent, Merrill 
Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, as a 
co-documentation agent, Wachovia Capital 
Markets, LLC, as a co-documentation agent, and 
SunTrust Bank, as administrative agent. 
 

 Form  8-K 
August 3, 2005 

 
(10.33) 

 
Employment Agreement with L.P. Finn III, dated 
as of August 21, 1997* 
 

  
Form 10-K 
March 1, 2007 

 
(10.34) 

 
Amendment to Employment Agreement with L.P. 
Finn III, dated as of December 22, 2008* 
 

  
        (a) 
 

 
(10.35) 

 
Letter Agreement, dated February 21, 2008, by 
and among Omnicare, Inc., ValueAct Capital 
Master Fund, L.P. and ValueAct Capital Master 
Fund III, L.P. 
 

  
Form 8-K 
February 22, 2008 

(10.36) Amendment to Split Dollar Agreement with J.F. 
Gemunder, dated December 22, 2008* 
 

         (a) 
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(10.37) Amendment to Split Dollar Agreement with 

D.W. Froesel, Jr., dated December 22, 2008 
(Agreements in the same form exist with the 
following Executive Officers: C.D. Hodges, P.E. 
Keefe and J.M. Stamps)* 

         (a) 
 

 
(12) 

 
Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to 
Fixed Charges 

 
 

 
Filed Herewith 

 
(21) 

 
Subsidiaries of Omnicare, Inc. 

  
Filed Herewith 

 
(23)  

 
Consent of Independent Registered Public 
Accounting Firm (PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP) 

 
 

 
Filed Herewith 

 
(24) 

 
Powers of Attorney 

 
 

 
Filed Herewith 
 

 
(31.1) 

 
Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive 
Officer of Omnicare, Inc. in accordance with 
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 
 

  
Filed Herewith 

 
(31.2) 

 
Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial 
Officer of Omnicare, Inc. in accordance with 
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

 
 

 
Filed Herewith 

 
(32.1) 

 
Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive 
Officer of Omnicare, Inc. in accordance with 
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002*** 

 
 

 
Furnished Herewith 

 
(32.2) 

 
Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial 
Officer of Omnicare, Inc. in accordance with 
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002*** 

 
 

 
Furnished Herewith 

 
* Indicates management contract or compensatory arrangement. 
 
** Confidential treatment requested as to certain portions, which portions have been filed separately with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. 
 
*** A signed original of this written statem ent required by Section 906 has been provided to Omnicare, Inc. and will be retained 
by Omnicare, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 
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EXHIBIT 12

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Income before income taxes 260,187$       (1) 186,498$       (2) 320,496$       (3) 361,806$       (4)(5) 375,199$         
Add fixed charges:

Interest expense 135,218         156,015         162,069         125,765         65,821             
Amortization of debt expense 8,832             8,145             8,214             4,800             4,600               
Interest expense-special items -                     -                     -                     35,045           (5) -                       
Interest portion of rent expense 26,498           24,913           23,595           19,600           16,000             

Adjusted income 430,735$       375,571$       514,374$       547,016$       461,620$         

Fixed charges:
Interest expense 135,218$       156,015$       162,069$       125,765$       65,821$           
Amortization of debt expense 8,832             8,145             8,214             4,800             4,600               
Interest expense-special items -                     -                     -                     35,045           (5) -                       
Interest portion of rent expense 26,498           24,913           23,595           19,600           16,000             

Fixed charges 170,548$       189,073$       193,878$       185,210$       86,421$           

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges(6) 2.5                 x 2.0                 x 2.7                 x 3.0                 x 5.3                   x

Omnicare, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

(in thousands, except ratio)

For the years ended December 31, 

 
(1) Income before income taxes for 2008 includes a special charge of $35,784 for restructuring and other related charges.  Please 

see the "R estructuring an d Othe r R elated C harges" note of th e Notes to Consolidated Fina ncial State ments f or furt her 
discussion.  Also included in income before income taxes is $99,267 and $6,445 for special charges relating to litigation and 
other related p rofessional fees, and Heartland matters, respectively.  Please see th e "Commitments and Contingencies" note 
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion. 

(2) Income before income taxes for 2007 includes a special charge of $27,883 for restructuring and other related charges.   Please 
see the "R estructuring an d Othe r R elated C harges" note of th e Notes to Consolidated Fina ncial State ments f or furt her 
discussion.  Also included in income before income taxes is $42,516 and $17,193 for special charges relating to litigation and 
other related p rofessional fees, and Heartland matters, respectively.  Please see th e "Commitments and Contingencies" note 
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.   

(3) Income before income taxes for 2006 incl udes a special c harge of $29,562 for restructuring and other related charges and a 
$6,132 special charge associ ated with retention payments for certai n Neighb orCare, Inc. em ployees as require d under the  
acquisition agreement.  Please see the "Restructuring and Other Related Charges" note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements for further discussion.  Also included in income before income taxes is $125,128 and $33,726 for special charges 
relating to litigation and ot her related professional fees, and Heartland matters, respectively.  Please see the "Commit ments 
and Contingencies" note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion. 

(4) Income before income taxes for 2005 includes a special charge of $18,779 for restructuring and other related charges.  Please 
see the "R estructuring an d Othe r R elated C harges" note of th e Notes to Consolidated Fina ncial State ments f or furt her 
discussion. 

(5) Interest expense for 2005 includes a special charge of $32,502 before taxes in connection with  the debt extinguishment and 
new debt issuance costs in connection with the financing arrangement undertaken to provide interim and final funding for the 
NeighborCare, Inc., RxCrossroads, L.L.C. and excelleRx, Inc. transactions, and the repurchase of approximately 98% of the 
8.125% senior subordinated notes, due 2011.  In addition to the aforementioned items, interest expense also includes a special 
charge of $2,543 before taxes in connecti on with estim ated interest associated with t he settlement of litigation relating to 
certain contractual issues with two vendors. 

(6) The ratio of earnings to fixed charges has been computed by adding income before income taxes and fixed charges to derive 
adjusted income, and dividing adjusted income by fixed charges.  Fixed charges consist of interest expense on debt (including 
the amortization of debt expense) and one-third (the proportion deemed representative of the interest portion) of rent expense. 
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EXHIBIT 21

Subsidiaries of Omnicare, Inc.

State of
Doing Business As Name Incorporation/

Legal Name (if other than legal name) Organization
3096479 Delaware Co. LLC Delaware
Accu-Med Services of Washington LLC Delaware
Accu-Med Services, LLC Delaware
Accumed, Inc. New Hampshire
ACS Acqco Corp Delaware
Advanced Care Scrips, Inc. Florida
Alacritas Biopharma, Inc. California
Ambler Acquisition Company LLC Delaware
AMC - New York, Inc. Royal Care Holdings, Inc. Delaware
AMC - Tennessee, Inc. The Pharmacy, Stephens Drugs Delaware
Anderson Medical Services, Inc. Delaware
APS Acquisition LLC Delaware
APS Summit Care Pharmacy, LLC Delaware
Arlington Acquisition I, Inc. Delaware
ASCO Healthcare of New England, LLC Maryland
ASCO Healthcare of New England, LP Maryland
ASCO Healthcare, LLC Maryland
Atlantic Medical Group, LLC Maryland
Bach's Pharmacy East, LLC fka Pompton Nursing Home Suppliers Delaware
Bach's Pharmacy Services, LLC Delaware
Badger Acquisition LLC Delaware
Badger Acquisition of Brooksville LLC Delaware
Badger Acquisition of Kentucky LLC Delaware
Badger Acquisition of Minnesota LLC Delaware
Badger Acquisition of Ohio LLC Omnicare Health Network Delaware
Badger Acquisition of Orlando LLC Home Care Pharmacy of Florida Delaware
Badger Acquisition of Tampa LLC Bay Pharmacy Delaware
Badger Acquisition of Texas LLC Delaware
Best Care HHC Acquisition Company LLC Delaware
Best Care LTC Acquisition Company LLC Delaware
Bio-Pharm International, Inc. Delaware
BPNY Acquisition Corp. Brookside Park Pharmacy Delaware
BPTX Acquisition Corp. Brookside Park Pharmacy of Texas Delaware
Campo's Medical Pharmacy, Inc. Louisiana
Capitol Home Infusion, Inc. Virginia
Care Card, Inc. Maryland
Care Pharmaceutical Services, LP Delaware
Care4 LP Delaware
CHP Acquisition Corp. Cherry Hill Pharmacy Delaware

The following is a list of operational subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of
December 31, 2008. Other non-operational subsidiaries which have been omitted from the list would not, when considered in
the aggregate, constitute a significant subsidiary. Each of the companies is incorporated under the laws of the state following its
name.
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State of

Doing Business As Name Incorporation/
Legal Name (if other than legal name) Organization
CIC Services LLC Delaware
CIP Acquisition Corp. Carter's Institutional Pharmacy Delaware
Clinimetrics Research Associates, Inc. California
Compass Health Services, LLC West Virginia
Compscript - Boca, LLC Florida
Compscript - Mobile, Inc. Delaware
Compscript, LLC Florida
Concord Pharmacy Services, Inc. Pennsylvania
CP Acquisition Corp. Central Pharmacy Oklahoma
CP Services LLC Delaware
CPS Acquisition Company LLC Delaware
CSR, Inc. Kentucky
CTLP Acquisition LLC Care Tech Delaware
D & R Pharmaceutical Services, LLC Kentucky
Delco Apothecary, Inc. Pennsylvania
Dixon Pharmacy LLC Illinois
DP Services LLC Delaware
Encare of Massachusetts, LLC Delaware
Enloe Drugs, LLC Delaware
Euro Bio-Pharm Clinical Services, Inc. Delaware
Evergreen Pharmaceutical of California, Inc. fka PIP Acquisition, West Val Premiere California
Evergreen Pharmaceutical, LLC Washington
excelleRx, Inc. Delaware
Geneva Sub, Inc. Delaware
Hardardt Group, Inc., The Delaware
Heartland Healthcare Services Ohio
Heartland Pharmacy of Illinois LLC Ohio
Heartland Pharmacy of Pennsylvania, LLC Ohio
Highland Wholesale, LLC Ohio
HMIS, Inc. Delaware
Home Care Pharmacy, LLC Delaware
Home Pharmacy Services, LLC Missouri
Horizon Medical Equipment and Supply, Inc. West Virginia
Hytree Pharmacy, Inc. Ohio
In-House Pharmacies, Inc. California
Institutional Health Care Services, LLC New Jersey
Interlock Pharmacy Systems, LLC Missouri
JHC Acquisition LLC Jacobs Health Care Systems Delaware
Konsult, Inc. Delaware  
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State of
Doing Business As Name Incorporation/

Legal Name (if other than legal name) Organization
Langsam Health Services, LLC Sequoia Health Services, Inc. Delaware
Langsam Medical Products  Delaware
LCPS Acquisition, LLC Medilife Pharmacy Delaware
LifeMed, LLC Delaware
Lobos Acquisition LLC Delaware
Lobos Acquisition of Arizona, Inc. Delaware
Lo-Med Prescription Services, LLC Ohio
LPA Acquisition Company, LLC Delaware
LPI Acquisition Corp. Lipira Pharmacy Delaware
Main Street Pharmacy L.L.C. Maryland
Managed Healthcare, Inc. Delaware
Management & Network Services, Inc. Ohio
Management & Network Services LLC Ohio
Med World Acquisition Corp. Delaware
Medical Arts Health Care, Inc. Georgia
Medical Services Consortium, Inc. Compscript - Miami Florida
Medical Services Group, LLC Maryland
MHHP Acquisition Company LLC Delaware
MOSI Acquisition Corp. Medical Outpatient Services Delaware
National Care For Seniors LLC Ohio
NCIA Acquisition Company, LLC Delaware
NCS Healthcare of Arizona, Inc. Ohio
NCS Healthcare of Arkansas, Inc. Ohio
NCS Healthcare of Beachwood, LLC Ohio
NCS Healthcare of Connecticut, Inc. Connecticut
NCS Healthcare of Florida, Inc. Ohio
NCS Healthcare of Illinois, LLC Illinois
NCS Healthcare of Indiana, Inc. Indiana
NCS Healthcare of Indiana, LLC Delaware
NCS Healthcare of Iowa, LLC Ohio
NCS Healthcare of Kansas, LLC Ohio
NCS Healthcare of Kentucky, Inc. Ohio
NCS Healthcare of Maryland, LLC Ohio
NCS Healthcare of Massachusetts, Inc. Ohio
NCS Healthcare of Michigan, Inc. Ohio
NCS Healthcare of Minnesota, Inc. Ohio
NCS Healthcare of Missouri, Inc. Ohio
NCS Healthcare of Montana, Inc. Ohio
NCS Healthcare of New Hampshire, Inc. New Hampshire
NCS Healthcare of New Jersey, Inc. New Jersey
NCS Healthcare of New Mexico, Inc. Ohio
NCS Healthcare of North Carolina, Inc. North Carolina
NCS Healthcare of Ohio, LLC Ohio
NCS Healthcare of Oklahoma, Inc. Oklahoma
NCS Healthcare of Oregon, Inc. Ohio
NCS Healthcare of Pennsylvania, Inc. Pennsylvania  
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State of
Doing Business As Name Incorporation/

Legal Name (if other than legal name) Organization
NCS Healthcare of Rhode Island, LLC Rhode Island
NCS Healthcare of South Carolina, Inc. Ohio
NCS Healthcare of Tennessee, Inc. Ohio
NCS Healthcare of Texas, Inc. Ohio
NCS Healthcare of Vermont, Inc. Ohio
NCS Healthcare of Washington, Inc. Ohio
NCS Healthcare of Wisconsin, LLC Ohio
NCS Healthcare, LLC Delaware
NCS of Illinois, Inc. Ohio
NCS Services, Inc. Ohio
NeighborCare - ORCA, LLC Oregon
NeighborCare - TCI2, LLC California
NeighborCare Holdings, Inc. Delaware
NeighborCare Home Medical Equip, LLC Pennsylvania
NeighborCare Home Medical Equip of Maryland LLC Maryland
NeighborCare Infusion Services, Inc. Delaware
NeighborCare of California, Inc. California
NeighborCare of Indiana, LLC Indiana
NeighborCare of Maryland, LLC Maryland
NeighborCare of New Hampshire, LLC New Hampshire
NeighborCare of Northern California, Inc. California
NeighborCare of Ohio, LLC Ohio
NeighborCare of Oklahoma, Inc. Oklahoma
NeighborCare of Virginia, LLC Virginia
NeighborCare of Wisconsin, LLC Wisconsin
NeighborCare Pharmacies, LLC Maryland
NeighborCare Pharmacy of Oklahoma LLC Oklahoma
NeighborCare Pharmacy of Virginia LLC Virginia
NeighborCare Pharmacy Services, Inc. Delaware
NeighborCare Services Corporation Delaware
NeighborCare, Inc. Pennsylvania
NeighborCare-Medisco, Inc. California
NGC Acquisition Company LLC Delaware
Nihan & Martin LLC Delaware
NIV Acquisition LLC Denman Pharmacy Services Delaware
North Shore Pharmacy Services, LLC Delaware
OCR Services Corporation Delaware
OCR-RA Acquisition, LLC Long Term Care Pharmacy Delaware
OFL Corp. Delaware
Omnibill Services LLC Delaware  



 

E-12 

State of
Doing Business As Name Incorporation/

Legal Name (if other than legal name) Organization
Omnicare Air Transport Services, Inc. Delaware
Omnicare Canadian Holdings, Inc. Delaware
Omnicare Clinical Research, Inc. fka IBAH, Inc. Delaware
Omnicare Clinical Research, LLC fka Coromed, Inc. Delaware
Omnicare CR Inc. Delaware
Omnicare Distribution Center LLC fka Heartland Repack Services LLC Delaware
Omnicare ESC LLC Delaware
Omnicare Extended Pharma Services, LLC Delaware
Omnicare Headquarters LLC Delaware
Omnicare Holding Company Delaware
Omnicare Indiana Partnership Holding Co, LLC Delaware
Omnicare Management Company Delaware
Omnicare of Nevada LLC Delaware
Omnicare of New York, LLC Delaware
Omnicare Pennsylvania Med Supply, LLC Delaware
Omnicare Pharmacies of Maine Holding Company Delaware
Omnicare Pharmacies of Pennsylvania East, LLC Delaware
Omnicare Pharmacies of Pennsylvania West, LLC Pennsylvania
Omnicare Pharmacies of the Great Plains Holding Company Delaware
Omnicare Pharmacy and Supply Services, LLC South Dakota
Omnicare Pharmacy of Colorado LLC Delaware
Omnicare Pharmacy of Florida,  LP Delaware
Omnicare Pharmacy of Indiana,  LLC Delaware
Omnicare Pharmacy of Maine LLC Delaware
Omnicare Pharmacy of Nebraska LLC Delaware
Omnicare Pharmacy of North Carolina, LLC Delaware
Omnicare Pharmacy of Pueblo,  LLC Delaware
Omnicare Pharmacy of South Dakota LLC Delaware
Omnicare Pharmacy of Tennessee LLC Delaware
Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP Delaware
Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 2, LP Delaware
Omnicare Pharmacy of the Midwest, LLC fka Freed's Delaware
Omnicare Purchasing Company General Partner, Inc. Delaware
Omnicare Purchasing Company Limited Partner, Inc. Delaware
Omnicare Purchasing Company LP Delaware
Omnicare Respiratory Services, LLC Delaware
Omnicare Senior Health Outcomes, LLC Delaware
Omnicare.com, Inc. Delaware
PBM Holding Co. Delaware
PBM Plus Mail Service Pharmacy, LLC Delaware
PBM-Plus, Inc. Wisconsin
PCI Acquisition, LLC Delaware  



 

E-13 

State of
Doing Business As Name Incorporation/

Legal Name (if other than legal name) Organization
Pharmacon Corp. New York
Pharmacy Associates of Glens Falls, Inc. New York
Pharmacy Consultants, Inc. South Carolina
Pharmacy Holding  # 1, LLC Delaware
Pharmacy Holding  # 2, LLC Delaware
Pharmacy Sevices of Indiana, LLC Indiana
Pharmasource Healthcare, Inc. Georgia
Pharm-Corp of Maine LLC Delaware
Pharmed Holdings, Inc. Delaware
PMRP Acquisition Company, LLC Delaware
PP Acquisition Company, LLC Delaware
PPS Acquisition Company, LLC Delaware
PPS-GBMC Joint Venture LLC Maryland
PPS-St. Agnes Joint Venture, LLC Maryland
PRN Pharmaceutical Services, LP Delaware
Professional Pharmacy Services, Inc. Maryland
PSI Arkansas Acquisition LLC Delaware
Rescot Systems Group, Inc. Pennsylvania
Resource Biometrics, Inc. California
Roeschen's Healthcare, LLC Wisconsin
Royal Care of Michigan LLC Delaware
RXC Acquisition Company Delaware
SHC Acquisition Co. LLC Synergy Delaware
Shore Pharmaceutical Providers, Inc. Delaware
South Park Partners LP Maryland
Southside Apothecary, Inc. New York
Specialized Home Infusion of Michigan LLC Delaware
Specialized Patient Care Services, Inc. Alabama
Specialized Pharmacy Services, LLC Michigan
Specialty Carts, LLC Ohio
Sterling Healthcare Services, Inc. Delaware
Suburban Medical Services LLC Pennsylvania
Sun Pharmacy Limited Liability Company Ohio
Superior Care Pharmacy, Inc. Delaware
Swish, Inc. Delaware
TCPI Acquisition Corp. Total Care Pharmacy Delaware
The Medicine Centre, LLC Connecticut
THG Acquisition Corp. Tandem Health Group Delaware  
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State of
Doing Business As Name Incorporation/

Legal Name (if other than legal name) Organization
Three Forks Apothecary, Inc. Kentucky
The Tidewater Healthcare Shared Services Group, Inc. Pennsylvania
UC Acquisition Corp. UniCare, Inc. Delaware
Uni-Care Health Services of Maine, Inc. New Hampshire
Value Health Care Services, LLC Delaware
Value Pharmacy, Inc. Massachusetts
VAPS Acquisition Company, LLC Delaware
Vital Care Infusions Supply, Inc. New York
Weber Medical Systems LLC Delaware
Westhaven Services Co., LLC Ohio
Williamson Drug Company, Incorporated Virginia
Winslow's Pharmacy New Jersey
ZS Acquisition Company LLC Delaware

Country of
Doing Business As Name Incorporation/

Legal Name (if other than legal name) Organization

Foreign Entities Country 

3096480 Nova Scotia Company Canada
3103-3798 Quebec, Inc. Omnicare Clinical Research Canada
42986 Ontario Limited Medico Pharmacy Canada
Clinimetrics Research Australia, Pty, Ltd.  Australia
Clinimetrics Research Canada, Inc. Canada
Clinimetrics Research Europe, Ltd. UK
Omnicare Alberta LP Canada
Omnicare Clinical Research (Proprietary) Limited South Africa
Omnicare Clinical Research A/S Denmark
Omnicare Clinical Research AB Sweden
Omnicare Clinical Research AG Switzerland
Omnicare Clinical Research Holdings B.V. Netherlands
Omnicare Clinical Research India Private Limited India
Omnicare Clinical Research International B.V. Netherlands
Omnicare Clinical Research GmbH Germany
Omnicare Clinical Research GmbH & Co. Kg. IFNS Germany
Omnicare Clinical Research Limited UK
Omnicare Clinical Research LLC Russia
Omnicare Clinical Research N.V. Belgium
Omnicare Clinical Research Oy Finland
Omnicare Clinical Research PTE. LTD. Singapore
Omnicare Clinical Research PTY. LTD. Australia
Omnicare Clinical Research S.A. Argentina
Omnicare Clinical Research S.A.R.L. France
Omnicare Clinical Research S.L. Spain
Omnicare Clincial Research sp.z.oo Poland
Omnicare Clinical Research s.r.o Czech Republic
Omnicare Clinical Research KK Japan
Omnicare Clinical Research  SRL Italy  
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EXHIBIT 23 
 
 

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
 
 

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-02667, 
333-77845, 333-95949, 333 -36874 and  333 -120450) of  Omnicare, I nc. o f our report d ated Feb ruary 2 6, 2009 
relating to the consolidated financial statements, financial state ment schedule , a nd t he effe ctiveness of internal  
control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.    
 
 
/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Cincinnati, Ohio 
February 26, 2009 
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EXHIBIT 24 
  
 
 

POWERS OF ATTORNEY 
 
 

The undersigned directors of OM NICARE, INC.  ("Company") hereby appoints JOEL F. GEMUNDER, 
DAVID W. FROESEL, JR. and CHERYL D. HODGES as his/her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact for the purpose 
of signing the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, and all amendments 
thereto, to be filed with th e Securities and Exchange Commission.  Each of  such attorneys-in-fact is appointed with 
full power to act without the other. 
 
 
/s/ John T. Crotty        Febr uary 19, 2009   

John T. Crotty       Date 
 
 
/s/ Steven J. Heyer .      Febr uary 25, 2009   

Steven J. Heyer       Date 
 
 
/s/ Sandra E. Laney       Febr uary 18, 2009   

Sandra E. Laney       Date 
 
 
/s/ Andrea R. Lindell, Ph.D., RN      Febr uary 19, 2009   

Andrea R. Lindell, Ph.D., RN      Date 
 
 
/s/ John H. Timoney       Febr uary 19, 2009   

John H. Timoney       Date 
 
 
/s/ James D. Shelton       Febr uary 24, 2009   

James D. Shelton       Date 
 
 
/s/ Amy Wallman        Febr uary 18, 2009   

Amy Wallman       Date 
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EXHIBIT 31.1 
 

RULE 13a-14(a) CERTIFICATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 302 OF THE 
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

 
I, Joel F. Gemunder, President and Chief Executive Officer of Omnicare, Inc. (the “Company”), certify that: 
 
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of the Company; 
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a m aterial fact or om it to state a 

material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements 
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fai rly 

present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of t he Company as 
of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 
 

4. The C ompany’s other certifying officer a nd I a re responsible for establishing an d m aintaining disclosure 
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over 
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Company and have: 
 
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 

designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Company, including its 
consolidated subsi diaries, is m ade known to us by others within those entities, particularly duri ng the 
period in which this report is being prepared; 

b) designed suc h internal co ntrol ove r fin ancial reporti ng, or ca used suc h internal  control over fi nancial 
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial re porting a nd the  p reparation of financial st atements for e xternal purposes in acc ordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles; 

c) evaluated the effective ness of the Company’s disclosure con trols an d pr ocedures an d pr esented in  th is 
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the 
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

d) disclosed in this report any change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the C ompany’s most recent fis cal qua rter that ha s materially affected, or is reasonably like ly to  
materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

 
5. The Company’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal 

control over financial reporting, to the Company’s auditors and the audit committee of the Company’s board of 
directors: 

 
a) all significa nt deficiencies a nd m aterial weakne sses i n t he design or operation of i nternal co ntrol o ver 

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Company’s ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial information; and  

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that in volves management or other employees who have a si gnificant 
role in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.  

 
 

Date:  February 26, 2009 
  
 /s/ Joel F. Gemunder 
 Joel F. Gemunder 
 President and Chief Executive Officer 
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EXHIBIT 31.2 
 

RULE 13a-14(a) CERTIFICATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 302 OF THE 
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

 
I, David W. F roesel, Jr ., Senior Vice P resident a nd C hief Financial Of ficer of  Omnicare, In c. (the  “Company”), 
certify that: 
 
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of the Company; 
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a m aterial fact or om it to state a 

material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements 
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fai rly 

present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of t he Company as 
of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

 
4. The C ompany’s other certif ying officer a nd I a re responsible f or es tablishing a nd m aintaining disclosure 

controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over 
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Company and have: 
 
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 

designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Company, including its 
consolidated subsi diaries, is m ade known to us by others within those entities, particularly duri ng the 
period in which this report is being prepared; 

b) designed suc h internal co ntrol ove r fin ancial reporti ng, or ca used suc h internal  control over fi nancial 
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial re porting a nd the  p reparation of financial st atements for e xternal purposes in acc ordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles; 

c) evaluated the effective ness of the Company’s disclosure con trols an d pr ocedures an d pr esented in  th is 
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the 
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

d) disclosed in this report any change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the C ompany’s most recent fis cal qua rter that ha s materially affected, or is reasonably like ly to  
materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

 
5. The Company’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal 

control over financial reporting, to the Company’s auditors and the audit committee of the Company’s board of 
directors: 

 
a) all significa nt deficiencies a nd m aterial weakne sses i n t he design or operation of i nternal co ntrol o ver 

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Company’s ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial information; and  

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that in volves management or other employees who have a si gnificant 
role in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.  

 
 

Date:  February 26, 2009 
 
 /s/ David W. Froesel, Jr.                
 David W. Froesel, Jr. 
 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
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EXHIBIT 32.1 
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED  
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

 

I, Joel F. Gemunder, President and Chief Executive Officer of Omnicare, Inc. (the “Company”), do hereby certify in 
accordance with 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: 

1. The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the period ended December 31, 2008  (the “Report”) 
fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities  Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 
78m or 78o(d)); and 

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial  condition and 
results of operations of the Company. 

 
Dated:  February 26, 2009 
 
 
 
       /s/ Joel F. Gemunder 
       Joel F. Gemunder 
       President and Chief Executive Officer 
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 EXHIBIT 32.2 
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED  
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

 

I, David W. Froesel, Jr., Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Omnicare, Inc. (the “Company”), do 
hereby certify in accordance with 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002, that: 

1. The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the period ended December 31, 2008 (the “Report”) fully 
complies with the requirements of s ection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitie s Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 
78m or 78o(d)); and 

2. The in formation c ontained i n the R eport fairly presents, in all material respects, the  financial co ndition a nd 
results of operations of the Company. 

 
Dated:  February 26, 2009 
 
 
 
       /s/ David W. Froesel, Jr. 
       David W. Froesel, Jr. 
       Senior Vice President and  

Chief Financial Officer 



 

Appendix 1 

Summary of Special Items: 
 
Each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008 include special items, as discussed below, which 
amounts have been excluded from the “adjusted” presentation.  Management believes that these special items are 
either infrequent occurrences or otherwise not related to Omnicare’s ordinary course of business. 
 
Additional in formation reg arding t he C ompany’s reconciliations of selected fi nancial resu lts fro m GAAP to th e 
corresponding adjusted non-GAAP measure is included at the Supplemental Financial Data caption of the Investors 
section of Om nicare’s website (www.omnicare.com), as well as the C ompany’s qu arterly an d full year earn ings 
releases as reported on Form 8-K. 
 
Year ended December 31, 2008 
Special items included in operating income in 2008 include restructuring and other related charges ($0.18 per diluted 
share), and costs associated with the Heartland Repack Services quality control, product recall and fire issues ($0.03 
per diluted share).  Sp ecial items for 2008 also included litigation and other related professional fees for litig ation-
related professional expenses in  connection with  the Company’s lawsuit against UnitedHealth Group, Inc. and its 
affiliates (“United”), certain other larger customer disputes, the investigation by the United States Attorney’s Office, 
District of Massachusetts, the purported class and derivative actions, the investigation by the federal government and 
certain states relating to drug substitu tions, the Company’s response to subpoe nas it received relating to othe r legal 
proceedings to wh ich t he C ompany is n ot a p arty, as well as th e establish ment o f a settlement reserv e fo r th e 
investigation by th e United States Atto rney’s Office, District of Massachusetts ($0 .58 per diluted share).  See th e 
“Restructuring and Ot her Related C harges” and “C ommitments an d C ontingencies” not es of the Not es t o 
Consolidated Financial Statements, and Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results 
of Operations, for additional information concerning these special items. 
 
Year ended December 31, 2007 
Special items included in operating income in 2007 include restructuring and other related charges ($0.14 per diluted 
share), and costs associated with the Heartland Repack Services quality control, product recall and fire issues ($0.09 
per diluted share).  Sp ecial items for 2007 also included litigation and other related professional fees for litig ation-
related professional expenses in connection with the investigation by the United States Attorney’s Office, District of 
Massachusetts, the purported class and derivative actions , th e Co mpany’s lawsu it ag ainst Un ited, th e in quiry 
conducted by th e Attorn ey General’s office in  Mich igan relating  to  certain b illing issu es und er the Mich igan 
Medicaid program, the investigation by the federal government and certain states relating to drug substitutions, the 
Company’s re sponse to subpoenas it recei ved relating to other legal proceedi ngs to which the C ompany is not a 
party, and certain other larger customer disputes ($0.22 per diluted share).  See the “Restructuring and Other Related 
Charges” and  “Commitments an d Con tingencies” no tes of th e No tes to Co nsolidated Financial State ments, an d 
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, for additional information 
concerning these special items. 
 
Year ended December 31, 2006 
Special items included in operating income in 2006 include restructuring and other related charges ($0.15 per diluted 
share), retention payments for certain NeighborCare employees as req uired under the acquisition agreement ($0.03 
per diluted share) and  costs asso ciated with the Heartland Repack Services quality control, product recall an d fire 
issues ($0.17  p er d iluted share).  Sp ecial ite ms fo r 2006 also  in cluded litig ation ch arges co nsisting o f th e 
establishment o f a settlem ent reserv e for i nquiries by th e fed eral government and  certain  states con cerning t he 
substitution of three gene ric pharmaceuticals by the C ompany ($0.37 per diluted share), establishment of a reserve 
for the inquiry conducted by the Attorney Gen eral's Office in Michigan relating to certain  billing issues under the 
Michigan Medicaid program ($0.38 per diluted share; $10,350 of the Michigan matter was recorded as a reduction 
of net sales) an d litigation-related professional expenses in connection with the investigation by the United States 
Attorney's Office, District of Massachusetts, the purported class and derivative actions and the Company's lawsuit 
against United ($0.07 per di luted share).  See the “Restructuring and Other Related Charges” and “Commitments 
and C ontingencies” not es o f t he N otes t o Consolidated Financial St atements, an d M anagement's Di scussion a nd 
Analysis o f Fi nancial Con dition and  Resu lts o f Op erations, fo r ad ditional in formation con cerning th ese sp ecial 
items. 
 



2008 2007
High Low Close High Low Close

First Quarter   $24.79    $15.59   $18.16 $44.59    $38.00   $39.77     
Second Quarter $26.32    $18.18   $26.22 $41.40    $33.17   $36.06     
Third Quarter  $32.61    $24.03   $28.77 $37.31    $29.30   $33.13      
Fourth Quarter $29.09    $19.71   $27.76 $35.11    $22.18   $22.81      

Corporate Offices
Omnicare, Inc.
1600 RiverCenter II
100 East RiverCenter Boulevard
Covington, Kentucky 41011
(859) 392-3300
(859) 392-3333 (FAX)
www.omnicare.com

Transfer Agent and Registrar - Common Stock
BNY Mellon Shareowner Services
480 Washington Boulevard
Jersey City, New Jersey 07310-1900
(800) 791-3932
Hearing Impaired TDD: (800) 231-5469
www.bnymellon.com/shareowner/isd

Series B 4.00% Trust Preferred Income Equity Redeemable
Securities and 4.00% Trust Preferred Income Equity
Redeemable Securities Trustee/Registrar:
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.
Corporate Trust Administration
900 Ashwood Parkway, Suite 425
Atlanta, Georgia 30338

Series B 4.00% Junior Subordinated Convertible
Debentures
4.00% Junior Subordinated Convertible Debentures  
6.125% Senior Subordinated Notes 
6.75% Senior Subordinated Notes 
6.875% Senior Subordinated Notes
3.25% Convertible Senior Debentures 
Trustee/Registrar:
U.S. Bank Corporate Trust Services
Two Midtown Plaza
1349 W. Peachtree Street NW, Suite 1050
Atlanta, Georgia 30309

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Cincinnati, Ohio

Annual Meeting
The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Omnicare, Inc. will
be held at 9 a.m. Eastern time on Friday, May 22, 2009, at
The Embassy Suites-RiverCenter, 10 East RiverCenter
Boulevard, Covington, Kentucky.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan
Omnicare’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan is a convenient
way for stockholders to increase their investment in the
Company.  This Plan enables stockholders to reinvest
dividends and make voluntary cash contributions on a
monthly basis for additional share purchases.  For more
information about this Plan, please contact The Bank of
New York Mellon at (800) 791-3932 or
www.bnymellon.com/shareowner/isd.

CORPORATE AND INVESTOR INFORMATION
Form 10-K
Omnicare’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, is included in this
report.  Additional copies of the Form 10-K, and any
related Exhibit, are available without charge by 
contacting Omnicare’s Investor Relations Department at 
(800) DIAL-OCR (800 / 342-5627), or via e-mail to
investor.relations@omnicare.com.  The Form 10-K is also
available on Omnicare’s Web site at www.omnicare.com.

CEO and CFO Certifications
Omnicare’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer have provided all certifications required under
Securities and Exchange Commission regulations with
respect to the financial information and disclosures
included in the Form 10-K report.  The certifications are
available as exhibits to Omnicare’s Form 10-K and  
Form 10-Q reports. 

In addition, Omnicare’s Chief Executive Officer has filed
with the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) a certification
to the effect that, to his knowledge, Omnicare is in
compliance with all corporate governance listing standards
of the NYSE.

Investor Inquiries
Questions concerning Omnicare’s operations and financial
results should be directed to the Investor Relations
Department at (800) DIAL-OCR (800 / 342-5627) or via 
e-mail to investor.relations@omnicare.com.

Requests for annual reports, press releases and other
published information should be directed to 
(800) DIAL-OCR (800 / 342-5627) or via e-mail to
investor.relations@omnicare.com.  These documents can
also be obtained on Omnicare’s Web site at
www.omnicare.com.

For changes of address or information concerning transfer
of stock, dividends or lost stock certificates, stockholders
should contact The Bank of New York Mellon at  
(800) 791-3932.  The deaf and hearing-impaired may call
(800) 231-5469.

Stock Listing
Omnicare’s common stock is listed on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol OCR.

Price Range of Common Stock
The table below shows the quarterly high and low closing
prices and quarter-end closing prices of Omnicare’s
common stock in 2008 and 2007:
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